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P R O C E E D I N G S  

CHAIRMAN JABER: Le t ' s  get started. S t a f f ,  you have 

3 not ice and a prel iminary matter you want t o  b r i ng  t o  our 

attention? 

MR. BELLAK: By an order issued February 6th, 2003, a 

hearing - -  notice o f  hearing was published i n  the matter o f  

t h i s  rulemaking wi th  proposed amendments t o  Rule 25-17.0832 f o r  

t h i s  time and place. And I th ink  Ms. Harlow would l i k e  t o  

speak t o  the most recent developments. 

CHAIRMAN JABER: Thank you, Mr. Bellak. 

MS. HARLOW: Good morning, Commissioners. Early t h i s  

norning the part ies reached a s t ipu la t ion  on the matter tha t  

das the Commission's concern w i th  the r u l e  waivers. I ' d  l i k e  

t o  b r i e f l y  discuss what the s t ipu la t ion  i s .  Because o f  the 

recentness o f  the s t ipu lat ion,  we do not have it i n  wr i t ing.  

de have an oral agreement. So I ' d  l i k e  t o  discuss the 

s t ipu la t ion  and the impact t ha t  we feel  l i k e  tha t  has. 

And l e t  me j u s t  s t a r t  by saying tha t  the s t ipu la t ion  

would include a l l  the changes tha t  were proposed by the 

Commission i n  the r u l e  tha t  were cleanup changes; f o r  example, 

the updates on the divis-ion names, any grammatical errors tha t  

were there. 

standard o f f e r  contract from ten years t o  f i v e  years. The only 

dif ference from the proposed r u l e  tha t  the Commission proposed 

i s  tha t  the word "speci f ic ,"  regarding a spec i f i c  period o f  

It would also change the minimum term o f  a 
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o f  a contract, would be deleted from the proposed changes. 

f you'd l i k e  t o  see tha t  v isua l l y ,  you can t u r n  t o  

Tab 3 i n  your Composite Exhib i t  1, and i t ' s  on the bottom o f  

Page 7. 

S t a f f  believes tha t  the proposed s t ipu la t ion  between 

the par t ies  i s  appropriate. We bel ieve t h a t  reducing the 

minimum term on a standard o f f e r  contract from ten years t o  

f i v e  years reduces the burden o f  the waiver costs tha t  we've 

experienced i n  the past. We've had seven waivers on t h i s  

par t i cu la r  issue i n  the past three and a h a l f  years. 

We also feel  l i k e  i t  can a l l ev ia te  ratepayer r i s k  

tha t  the Commission was concerned w i th  when they asked the 

s t a f f  t o  look i n t o  t h i s  matter because i t  can resu l t  i n  without 

a waiver a standard o f f e r  contract w i th  a lower term a t  periods 

o f  time when the Commission feels t h a t ' s  appropriate. And we 

also feel l i k e  i t  increases the f l e x i b i l i t y  o f  the ru le .  

We feel l i k e ,  and the par t ies  have agreed t o  t h i s  

language, tha t  removing the word "speci f ic"  from 

25-17.0832(4)(a)(7) does not preclude any r i g h t s  tha t  the 

u t i l i t i e s  have today t o  come i n  w i th  a spec i f ic  standard o f fe r  

contract f o r  your approval tha t  has a specif ied term i n  tha t  

contract. We also fee l ,  and the par t ies  have agreed t o  t h i s  

language, tha t  i t  does not preclude any r i g h t  tha t  any o f  the 

cogens or  any other QFs, including MSWs, have t o  come i n  and 

protest such a contract a t  tha t  time tha t  the Commission was 

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 
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reviewing a speci f ic  standard o f f e r  contract from a speci f ic  

u t i l i t y .  

And I ' d  also l i k e  t o  comment tha t  removing the word 

"speci f ic"  from the proposed r u l e  does not increase any r i gh ts  

tha t  any par ty  would have t o  protest  or t o  put a spec i f ic  

period o f  time i n  a standard o f fe r  contract. 

And s t a f f  i s  avai lable f o r  any questions. 

CHAIRMAN JABER: Commissioners, I 'm  sure you have 

questions. I j u s t  wanted t o  ask legal a procedural question 

before we got started on substance. 

M r .  Bel lak, i f  the Commission accepts the s t i pu  

and removes the word "speci f ic , "  because t h i s  hearing was 

noticed w i th  t h i s  change, are there addit ional not ic ing 

requirements o r  something we need t o  know i n  terms o f  

a t ion 

procedure? Because I don' t  want t o  be put i n  a pos i t ion o f  

coming back. 

MR. BELLAK: It won't have any e f fec t  l i k e  that .  

What w i l l  happen i s  tha t  i f  you f i n d  tha t  t h i s  i s  acceptable t o  

the Commission, then w e ' l l  simply publ ish a notice o f  change 

and tha t  w i l l  add a few days t o  the time f o r  f i l i n g  it, but 

t h a t ' s  the only e f f e c t  o f  it. 

CHAIRMAN JABER: Okay. So you f i l e  a notice o f  

change doesn't open up the comment period again or anything 

l i k e  that .  And then how do you get the r u l e  adopted? Do you 

f i l e  a not ice o f  adoption l a t e r ?  

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 
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MR. BELLAK: Once the requ is i te  number o f  days - - 
iccording t o  the statute, the agency shal l  f i l e  the notice wi th  

the committee along w i th  the reasons for such change, provide 

the not ice t o  persons request ing- i t  a t  leas t  2 1  days p r i o r  t o  

F i l i n g  the r u l e  f o r  adoption. So a l l  we have t o  do i s  publ ish 

that i n  FAW, allow the requis i te  number o f  days, and then f i l e  

the r u l e  w i th  the change. 

CHAIRMAN JABER: Commi ssioner Brad1 ey. 

COMMISSIONER BRADLEY: Yes. And I th ink  tha t  I kind 

ant ic ipate what M r .  Bel lak i s  going t o  say. 

lak, i n  your opinion, what might JAPC's response be t o  

being proposed here t h i s  morning? 

But, 

MR. BELLAK: They would - -  we'd be fol lowing t o  the 

the requirement o f  the statute, and so JAPC would have 

no problem wi th  it whatsoever. 

COMMISSIONER BRADLEY: Okay. 

CHAIRMAN JABER: Great question. Part ies, do you 

have anything t o  add t o  what Ms. Harlow br ie fed us on? 

Okay. Great. You've l e f t  them speechless, Judy. 

Commissioners, do you have any questions on s t a f f ' s  

recommendation on the s t ipu la t ion  reached by the part ies? 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Well, I guess I have a question 

concerning - - why was the term "speci f ic"  f i r s t  included i n  the 

proposal ? I 

MS. HARLOW: S t a f f  o r i g i n a l l y  had a concern tha t  it 
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was not c lear i n  the ru le  who was - - who had the r i g h t  t o  se t  

the spec i f i c  term. And we were under the impression tha t  i f  we 

put tha t  one word i n  there, i t  would clear tha t  problem up.' I 

don' t  bel ieve t h a t  tha t  language -does address tha t  problem 

because I th ink  tha t  even i f  i t  was clear i n  the r u l e  tha t  a 

spec i f ic  term could be se t  by the u t i l i t y  when they came in ,  I 

think tha t  the other par t ies would s t i l l  have the r i g h t  a t  tha t  

point  i n  t ime t o  come i n  and protest whatever tha t  spec i f ic  

term was. Say it was eight years, they may say t h a t ' s  not 

appropriate. So I r e a l l y  don' t  feel l i k e  leaving the word 

"speci f ic"  out has a s ign i f i can t  change t o  the proposed ru le .  

COMMISSIONER DAVIDSON: F011 0w-u~ .  

CHAIRMAN JABER: Commissioner Davidson . 
COMMISSIONER DAVIDSON: Thank you, Chai rman. Thi s i s  

a fol low-up t o  Commissioner Deason's question. Has the 

Commission experienced any d i f f i c u l t y  w i th  the use o f  t h i s  word 

i n  applying t h i s  r u l e  or any s i m i l a r  rules? 

MS. HARLOW: I ' m  sorry, Commissioner, I don' t  

understand your question. 

COMMISSIONER DAVIDSON: Has the word "spec i f i c "  posed 
any problems fo r  the Commission? I mean, I feel l i k e  we're 

get t ing i n t o  j us t  s o r t  o f  a preference t o  leave a word i n  or 
take it out, and I'm t r y i n g  t o  f i n d  out i f  there's any sort o f  

factual basis f o r  the word "spec1 f i c "  presenting any regulatory 

problems. 

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 
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ieve tha t  

concerns 

tha t  - -  by some o f  the par t ies tha t  i t  would po ten t i a l l y  set 

who sets - -  tha t  the u t i l i t y  sets a spec i f i c  term i n  each 

contract when i t  comes in ,  and tha t  each time tha t  happened, 

those par t ies  would have t o  come i n  and protest  t ha t  a t  t ha t  

time. I believe i t ' s  the 

impact they were concerned with, i f  I understand your question. 

COMMISSIONER DAVIDSON: Thank you. That does help t o  

answer it, but I guess I 'm j u s t  concerned f o r  the same reason 

tha t  Commissioner Deason was. This word was included i n  the 

f i r s t  instance, and now, i t ' s  proposed tha t  the word be 

str icken, and I don' t  have a par t i cu la r  problem w i th  that .  I ' m  

j u s t  t ry ing t o  get a t  what's sor t  o f  the actual basis f o r  tha t .  

So I don' t  bel ieve i t ' s  the wording. 

CHAIRMAN JABER: Commi ssioner Davidson, I th ink  

M r .  Guyton wanted t o  address your question, too. 

COMMISSIONER DAVIDSON: Great. Thank you, Chai man. 

MR. GUYTON: I j u s t  want t o  make sure t h a t  the 

Commission i s  aware t h a t  the word "speci f ic"  i s  not i n  the r u l e  

as i t  cur ren t ly  ex is ts .  

under the ex is t ing  r u l e  w i th  the word "speci f ic"  being i n  the 

ru le .  Where the word "speci f ic"  occurred was in the i n i t i a l  

proposed r u l e  amendment. And so when we speak o f  removing 

"speci f ic ,  I' we are n o t  removing ' 'specif ic" from an ex is t ing  

ru le ,  we're removing i t  from the proposed ru le .  

So there 's  not been an experience 

I j u s t  want t o  

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 
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nake sure tha t  t h a t ' s  c lea r l y  understood. 

MR. BELLAK: Madam Chairman? 

CHAIRMAN JABER: Mr. Bel 1 ak. 

MR. BELLAK: We'd l i k e  t o  move the composite exh ib i t  

i n t o  the record. I wasn't sure whether you were going t o  take 

appearances or not, but a t  some point ,  we'd 1 i ke t o  move t h i s  

i n t o  the record. 

CHAIRMAN JABER: Mr. Bellak, thank you for reminding 

.ne about a l l  o f  that .  What i s  the process you want us t o  

fol low? This i s  s o r t  o f  a new one on me. Do we need t o  take 

appearances and move comments i n t o  the record and the exhibi ts 

o r  - -  
MR. BELLAK: Well you can take appearances, and a t  

that  po int  i n  time, w e ' l l  move Exhib i t  1, Composite Exhibi t  1 

i n t o  the record, and tha t  w i l l  provide a record support f o r  the 

ru le  tha t  we're proposing. 

CHAIRMAN JABER: Great. Thank you. M r .  Guyton, 

l e t ' s  s t a r t  w i t h  you. 

MR. GUYTON: Commissioners, my name i s  

I ' m  w i th  the l a w  firm o f  Steel, Hector & Charles Guyton. 

Davis, LLP, and I ' m  appearing on behalf o f  Flor ida Power & 

Light Company i n  t h i s  proceeding. 

MR. BEASLEY: Commissioners, James D. Beasley wi th 

the law f i r m  o f  Ausley & McMullen appearing on behalf o f  Tampa 

E lec t r i c  Company. 
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MR. BADDERS: Good morning. Russel 1 Badders 

appearing here on behalf o f  Gulf Power Company. I ' m  w i th  the 

l a w  f i r m  o f  Beggs 81 Lane i n  Pensacola a t  the address as shown 

i n  the  comments. 

MR. McGEE: James McGee appearing on behalf o f  

Progress Energy F1 orida. 

MR. ZAMBO: Rich Zambo on behalf the City o f  Tampa, 

Flor ida,  and the P a l m  Beach County Sol id  Waste Authority. 

MR. WRIGHT: Schef Wright on behalf o f  Miami-Dade 

County, Flor ida;  Montenay Power Corp; Lee County, Flor ida;  and 

Pasco County, Flor ida.  

CHAIRMAN JABER: Anyone else i n  the audience tha t  

needs t o  make an appearance? 

S t a f f .  

MR. BELLAK: Richard Bellak representing the 

Commi s s i  on. 

CHAIRMAN JABER: Thank you. And, M r .  Bel lak, you 

have asked tha t  Composite Exhib i t  1 be i d e n t i f i e d  fo r  purposes 

o f  the record hearing. And Composite Exhib i t  1 w i l l  be 

i d e n t i f i e d  as Hearing Exhib i t  1. 

MR. BELLAK: Thank you, Madam Chairman. 

(Exhibi t  1 marked for i den t i f i ca t i on .  1 

CHAIRMAN JABER: And without objection - -  Mr. Zambo. 

MR. ZAMBO: Evladam Chairman, i n  the s p i r i t  o f  

cooperation, the City o f  Tampa and P a l m  Beach County Sol id  

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 
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daste Author i ty have agreed t o  a request by Flor ida Power 

Corporation tha t  we would s t r i ke  port ions o f  the supplemental 

d i rec t  testimony o f  Frank Seidman. And tha t  would be on 
Page 11, beginning a t  Line 11, a l l  o f  Page 12 and concluding on 

Page 13, Line 9. That 's composed o f  one question and answer. 

CHAIRMAN JABER: Okay. So you've agreed t o  s t r i k e  

from M r .  Seidman's testimony Page 11, Line 11 through Page 13, 

Line 9. 

MR. ZAMBO: Yes, in h is  supplemental testimony. 

CHAIRMAN JABER: And, M r .  Bel lak, tha t  was included 

i VI the composite exh ib i t?  

MR. BELLAK: (Nodding head a f f i rmat ive ly . )  

CHAIRMAN JABER: Okay. Commi ssioners, Hearing 

Exhib i t  1 i s  made up o f  Composite Exh ib i t  1 as modified by 

Mr. Zambo pursuant t o  agreement today. And Hearing 

Exhib i t  1 i s  admitted i n t o  the record. 

(Exhibi t  1 admitted i nto the record. ) 

CHAIRMAN JABER: Canmi  ssioners, do you have 

additional questions o f  s t a f f  o r  the part ies? I have one 

question o f  s t a f f .  On the standard o f f e r  contract process, i s  

t ha t  a PAA process? 

MS. HARLOW: 

CHAIRMAN JABER: Okay. Commissioners, do I have a 

I t  t y p i c a l l y  i s ,  yes. 

mot i  on, concerns, questions? 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Well ,  I j u s t  want t o  make sure 

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 
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I t o t a l l y  understand, not having i t  d i r e c t l y  i n  f r o n t  o f  me. 

We're keeping the cleanup language which i s  j u s t  grammatical 

and references t o  d i v i s ion  names, things o f  t ha t  nature. 

MS. HARLOW: Yes, s i r .  ~ 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: We' r e  changing ten-year minimum 

period t o  f i v e  years. 
MS. HARLOW: Yes, s i r .  

COMMISSIONER DEASON: And i n  the proposal, there 

was - -  as you indicated, there was the use o f  the term 

"speci f ic"  i n  (4)(a)(7), and we're de let ing tha t  and keeping 

tha t  section as the r u l e  current ly  ex is ts .  

MS. HARLOW: That's correct, s i r .  

COMMISSIONER DEASON: And t h a t ' s  the sum t o t a l  - -  
t h a t ' s  the t o t a l  o f  a l l  the changes tha t  we're making - -  

MS. HARLOW: Yes, i n  the s t ipu la t ion .  And the 

par t ies have also - -  I neglected t o  mention tha t  the par t ies 

have also agreed t o  waive any r i gh ts  tha t  they have t o  l i t i g a t e  

the change i n  the minimum term a t  t h i s  time. 

CHAIRMAN JABER: You confused me w i th  t h a t  sentence. 

The r u l e  i s  l e f t  tha t  there would be a minimum o f  f i v e  years, 

but t h i s  doesn't r e s t r i c t  a company from coming i n  w i th  

something longer than f i v e  years - -  

MS. HARLOW: Correct. 

CHAIRMAN JABER: - -  and tha t  might get l i t i g a t e d .  

MS. HARLOW: Correct, correct, the change i n  the ru le  
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from ten t o  f i v e  years. 

CHAIRMAN JABER: Okay. So they have waived t h e i r  

l i t i g a t i o n  w i th  respect t o  the ru le .  

MS. HARLOW: Yes. 

CHAIRMAN JABER: Okay. Well, they have se t t led  it, 

so I guess tha t  goes without saying. 

COMMISSIONER BRADLEY: Madam Chair? 

CHAIRMAN JABER: Commi ss i  oner Brad1 ey. 

COMMISSIONER BRADLEY: Mr . Zambo, you procedural 1 y 

have s t r icken cer ta in  testimony. What i s  the e f f e c t  o f  your - -  
vJhat you have s t r icken from the record? And what i s  the 

purpose o f  s t r i k i n g  since we have already st ipulated? 

MR. ZAMBO: Well, the purpose o f  s t r i k i ng ,  as I 

understand i t ,  i s  Flor ida Power Corp d i d  not want t h a t  

uncontested - - those uncontested statements i n  the record 

because we're not going t o  have a proceeding here a t  which time 

they could challenge tha t  por t ion o f  our testimony. We've j u s t  

removed i t  from the record. 

MR. McGEE: That's correct. 

COMMISSIONER BRADLEY: Thank you. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Madam Chairman, I can move 
approval o f  the s t ipu lat ion.  

COMMISSIONER BAEZ: Second. 

CHAIRMAN JABER: There's been a motion and a second 

t o  approve the s t ipu la t ion  reached by the par t ies and 
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mecommended by s t a f f  t o  leave the r u l e  as i t  i s  w i th  the 

2xception o f  changing the minimum period o f  time from ten t o  

f ive.  A l l  those i n  favor say "aye." 

(Simultaneous aff irmati .ve response. ) 

CHAIRMAN JABER: Opposed? 

Okay. The motion carr ies unanimously. And tha t  

concludes t h i s  r u l e  proceeding. 

need us - - do we need t o  o f f i c i  a1 l y  close the docket? 

Is there anything else you 

MR. BELLAK: Well, as I understand it, you can 

ins t ruc t  t ha t  the docket w i l l  be closed on the adoption o f  the 

ru le .  

CHAIRMAN JABER: Commissioner Deason - - upon motion 

by Commissioner Deason tha t  the docket be closed. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON : So moved. 

COMMISSIONER BAEZ: Second. 

CHAIRMAN JABER: So it be done. Part ies, I want t o  

thank you f o r  your ge t t ing  together and reaching a resolve on 

t h i s .  Your hard work i s  much appreciated. 

o f  the end o f  the day i s  a bet ter  process. 

I th ink  a t  the end 

M r .  Guyton, 1 wanted t o  compliment - -  a l l  o f  the 

comments were wonderful, but 1 wanted t o  compliment your 

comments i n  par t i cu la r  on the h i s to r i ca l  perspective you gave 

and the thorough explanation fo r  where we are today and why. 

real 1 y appreci ated that .  

I 

MR. GUYTON: Thank you, Commissioner. 

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 
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CHAIRMAN JABER: Thank you. 

(Rule H e a r i n g  concluded a t  9:53 a.m.) 
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STATE OF FLORIDA 1 
. CERTIFICATE OF REPORTER 

30UNTY OF LEON 1 

I, TRICIA DeMARTE, RPR, O f f i c i a l  Commission Reporter, do 
hereby-cer t i fy  t h a t  the foregoing proceeding was heard a t -  the 
time and place herein stated. 

I T  IS FURTHER CERTIFIED tha t  I stenographically 
reported the  said proceedings; t h a t  the same has been 
transcribed under my d i r e c t  su ervis ion;  and t h a t  t h i s  
t ranscr ip t  const i tutes a t rue  ! ranscr ip t ion o f  my notes of said 
proceedings . 

I FURTHER CERTIFY t h a t  I am not a re la t i ve ,  em loyee, 
attorney or counsel o f  any o f  the par t ies,  nor am !i a r e l a t i v e  

3 r  employee of any o f  the par t ies '  attorneys or  counsel 
connected w i th  the action, nor am I f i n a n c i a l l y  interested i n  
the action. 

DATED THIS 20th DAY OF MARCH, 2003. 

I K  A DeMAKlt .  KPK 
FPSC O f f i c i a l  Commission Reporter 

(850) 413 - 6736 
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FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 
RULE HEARING 

MARCH 19, 2003  

COMPOSITE E X H I B I T  NO. 1 

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO 
RULE 25-17.0832,  F.A.C., 
FIRM CAPACITY AND ENERGY 
CONTRACTS 

DOCKET NO. 001574-EQ 
/ 

1. FLORIDA ADMINISTRATIVE WEEKLY NOTICE AND PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO RULE 
25-17.0832,  F.A.C. (FEBRUARY 14, 2003) 

2 .  STATEMENT OF FACTS AND CIRCUMSTANCES JUSTIFYING PROPOSED RULES; 
STATEMENT ON FEDERAL STANDARDS; ECONOMIC IMPACT STATEMENT; AS 
PROVIDED TO THE JAPC, FEBRUARY 10, 2003 .  

3 .  NOTICE OF RULEMAKING ORDER NO. PSC-03-0178-NOR-EQ9 ISSUED FEBRUARY 
6,  2003.  

P 

4. COMMENTS OF GULF POWER COMPANY. 

5 .  COMMENTS OF FLORIDA POWER & LIGHT COMPANY. 

6. COMMENTS OF PROGRESS ENERGY. 

7.  COMMENTS OF TAMPA ELECTRIC COMPANY. 

8. COMMENTS OF LEE COUNTY, FLORIDA, MIAMI-DADE COUNTY, FLORIDA AND 
MONTENAY-DATE, LTD. 

9. COMMENTS OF C I T Y  OF TAMPA AND SOLID WASTE AUTHORITY OF PALM BEACH 
COUNTY, FL .  

10. COMMENTS OF PASCO COUNTY, FL AND HILLSBOROUGH COUNTY, FL. 

11. COMMENTS OF THE FLORIDA INDUSTRIAL COGENERATION ASSOCIATION. 

12. ORDERS REGARDING WAIVER REQUIREMENTS I N  RULE 25-17.0832(4)(e).  
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NAME OF PERSON ORIGINATING PROPOSED RULE 
Ken Keck, General Counsel 
NAME OF SUPERVISOR OR PERSON WHO APPROVED 
THE PROPOSED RULE Ken Keck, General Counsel 
DATE PROPOSED RULE APPROVED BY AGENCY 
HEAD: January 15,2003 
DATE NOTICE OF PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT 
PUBLISHED IN FAW: January 3 1,2003 

PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 
DOCKET NO. 001574-EQ 
RULE TITLE RULE NO.: 
Fm Capacity and Energy Contracts 25-17.0832 
PURPOSE AND EFFECT: The purpose of the amendment is 
to reduce the minimum term for standard offer contracts from 
10 to five years. The rule amendment also requires 
investor-owned electric utilities to specify the term of the 

7) 

standard offer when filing the contract for approval with the 
Commission. The effect is to reduce the risk that ratepayers 
will be tied to long-term contracts that are abave avoided cost 
SUMMARY Rule 25-17.0832, F.A.C., requires 
investor-owned utilities to file tariff and a standard offer 
contract for the purchase of !inn capacity and energy h m  
specified types of small qualifying facilities. The rule sets forth 
the minimum specifications and acceptable pricing 
methodologies for standard offer contracts. The amendment to 
subparagraph (4)(e)3. and 7. would reduce the ten year 
minimum contract term for standad offer contracts to five 
years. In addition, the amendment to subpargraph (4)(e)7. 
would require investor-owned utilities to specify the contract 
term when filing the standard offer for approval by the 
Commission. 
SUMMARY OF STATEMENT OF ESTIMATED 
REGULATORY COST Several municipal solid waste 
(MSWs) facilities oppose the rule amendments. However, the 
impact on the local government entities depends on future firm 
capacity and energy prices. If these prices increase, a shorter 
contract term would benefit MSW facility owners because they 
could enter a new standard offer contract swner with higher 
payments. On the other hand, if fm capacity and energy 
prices decrease, MSW owners would be faced with lower 
paymen@. One MSW argued that because MSW facilities are 
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publicly owned, any shortfall or reduction in electrical 
revenues will require increasing solid waste disposal costs. In 
addition, at least one MSW argued that adoption of the rule 
amendments will result in MSWs having to negotiate more 
contracts, which will increase transaction costs for the MSWs. 
The MSWS overlook that longer contracts are still possible 
under the rule. The MSWs also do not acknowledge that the 
Commission is required to keep IOU rates reasonable and 
shortening the standard offer contract term is best for IOU 
ratepayers in an environment in which wholesale generation 
costs are falling. Keeping the ten year minimum term would 
continue the possibility that IOUs and their ratepayers would 
be faced with higher cost capacity and energy costs for an 
additional five years for new standard offer contracts, even if 
market costs declined. However, wholesale generation costs 
may increase and IOUs would lose the benefits of a fixed price 
contract for an additional five years. Allowing a qualifying 
facility to choose the contract term would abrogate the 
Commission’s regulatory responsibility over capacity and 
energy Contracts. 
Any person who wishes to provide information regarding the 
statement of estimated regulatory costs, or to provide a 
proposal for a lower cost regulatory altemative must do so in 
writing within 21 days ofthis notice. 
SPECIFIC AUTHORITY: 350.127,366.05(1) FS. 
LAW IMPLEMENTED 366.051,366.81 FS. 
WRITTEN COMMENTS OR SUGGESTIONS ON THE 
PROPOSED RULE MAY BE SUBMITTED TO THE FPSC, 
DIVISION OF THE COMMISSION CLERK AND 
ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES, WITHIN 21 DAYS OF 
THE DATE OF THIS NOTICE FOR INCLUSION IN THE 
RECORD OF THE PROCEEDING 
IF REQUESTED WITHIN 21 DAYS OF THE DATE OF 
THIS NOTICE, A HEARING WILL BE SCHEDULED AND 
ANNOUNCED IN THE FAW. 
If any person decides to appeal any decision of the 
Commission with respect to any matter considered at the 
rulemaking hearing, if held, a record of the hearing is 
necessary. The appellant must ensure that a verbatim record, 
including testimony and evidence forming the basis of the 
appeal is made. The Commission usually makes a verbatim 
record of rulemaking hearings. 
Any person requiring some accommodation at this hearing 
because of a physical impairment should call the Division of 
the Commission Clerk and Administrative Services, 
(850)413-6770, at least 48 hours prior to the hearing. Any 
person who is bearing or speech impaired should contact the 
Florida Public Service Commission by using the Florida Relay 
Service, which can be reached at 1(800)955-8771 (TDD). 
THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE 
PROPOSED RULE IS: Richard Bellak, Florida Public Service 

p Commission, 2540 Shumard Oak Blvd., Tallahassee, Florida 
32399-0862, (850)4 13-624s 

P 

Volume 29, Number 7, February 14,2003 

THE FULL TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULE IS: 

25-17.0832 Firm Capacity and Energy Contracts. 
(1) No change. 
(a) Within one working day of the execution of a 

negotiated contract or the receipt of a signed standard offer 
contract, the utility shall notify the Director of the Division of 
& m c ” c  Redation &&&a&&~ and provide the amount 
of committed capacity and the type of generating unit, if any, 
which the contracted capacity is intended to avoid or defer. 

@) Withiin IO working days of the execution of a 
negotiated contract or receipt of a signed standard offer 
contract for the purchase of fm capacity and energy, the 
purchasing utility shall file with the Commission a copy of the 
signed contract and a summary of its terms and conditions. At 
a minimum, h sununary shall &luck fepm+: 

1. through 3. No change. 
4. The type of unit being avoided, its size. and its 

5.  through 6. No change. 
(2) througb (3)(d) No change. 
(4) Standard Offer Contracts, 
(a) Upon petition by a utility or pursuant to a Commission 

action, each public utility shall submit for Commission ’ 

approval a tariff or tariffs and a standard offer contract or 
contracts for the purchase of firm capacity and energy from 
small qualifying facilities. In lieu of a e 
negotiated contract, standard offer contracts are available to the 
following types of qualifying facilities: 

in-service year; 

1. through (e)2. No change. 
3. The payment options available to the qualifying facility 

including all financial and economic assumptions necessary to 
calculate the firm capacity payments available under each 
payment option and an illustrative calculation of fm capacity 
payments for a minimum & tee year term contract 
commencing with the in-service date of the avoided unit for 
each payment option; 

4. through 6. No change. 
7. The e period of time over which firm capacity 

and energy shall be delivered from the qualifying facility to the 
utility. Fm capacity and energy shall be delivered, at a 
minimum, for a period of & tee years, commencing with the 
anticipated in-service date of the avoided unit specified in the 
contract. At a maximum, fm capacity and energy shall be 
delivered for a period of time equal to the anticipated plant life 
of the avoided unit, commencing with the anticipated 
in-service date of the avoided unit; 

8. through (S)(c) No change. 
Specific Authority 350.127, , 366.05(1)683 FS. L.w 
h p l 9 e n t c d  366,051- m T y N e w  10-25-90, Amended 
1-7-97.. 

0 
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NAME OF PERSON ORIGINATING PROPOSED RULE: 
Tom Ballinger 
NAME OF SUPERVISOR OR PERSONS WHO APPROVED 
THE PROPOSED RULE: Florida Public Service Commission 
DATE PROPOSED RULE APPROVED BY AGENCY 
HEAD: Februaly 4,2003 
DATE NOTICE OF PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT 
PUBLISHED IN FAW Vol. 26, No. 44, November 3,2000 

DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS 
RULE TITLES: RULE NOS.: 
Transfer of Supervision Interstate 

and Intrastate 33-301.103 
Interstate Compact for Adult 

Offender Supervision 33-301.104 
Other State Offenders Community 

Supervision 33-301.105 
PURPOSE AND EFFECT. The purpose and effect of the 
proposed rule is to delete an unnecessary rule, set forth 
guidelines for offender travel to other states and to provide for 
equal standards of supervision for other state offenders 
supervised in Florida. 
SUMMARY The proposed rules delete unnecessary rule 
provisions, set forth guidelines for offender travel to other 
states and provide for equal standards of supervision for other 
state offenders supervised in Florida. 
SUMMARY OF STATEMENT OF ESTIMATED 
REGULATORY COST: None. 
Any person who wishes to provide information regarding the 
statement of estimated regulatory costs, or to provide a 
proposal for a lower cost regulatory altemative must do so in 
writing withim 21 days of this notice. 
SPECIFIC AUTHORITY: 949.08 FS. 
LAW IMPLEMENTED: 949.07,949.08 FS. 
IF REQUESTED WITHIN 21 DAYS OF THE DATE OF 
THIS NOTICE, A HEARING WILL BE SCHEDULED AND 
ANNOUNCED IN THE FAW. 
THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE 
PROPOSED RULES IS: Pem King Dale, Office of the 
General Counsel, Department of Corrections, 2601 Blair Stone 
Road, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-2500 

THE FULL TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULES IS: 

33-301.103 Transfer of Supervision Interstate and 
Intrastate. 
Specific Authority 944.08.944.09 FS. Law Implemented 948.03 FS. History- 
Nnv 5-28-86, Formerly 33-24.W9&plcd 

33-301.104 In terstate Comoact for Adult 0 ffender 
Suoervisio& 

(1) An offender who has ma de a satisfactom adiu stment 
while on suoervision shall be allowed to visit other states. the 
District of Columbia. the Commo nwealth of Pueno Rico or the 

U.S. Virein Islands for business. visitatio n or vacation 
pwoses as 10 ne as travel reauirements in subsection 12) are 
met. oublic safetv will not be c o r n o w  such a visit. 4 

of the state of the offender meets the travel reaui r w t s  
destination. If the offender is a 
offender case. o nce the officer has venfied and in- 
offender as to the reauirementr of the 
CODY 0 f Form DC3-220. Tra vel P- 
5 e ' itin a f  
Interstate co moact. F m  DC3-220 is i n c o m u  
reference in Rule 33-302.106. W. The Tra vel P a  

the offe nder. waives extradition riehts of the 0- V 
outside the state or c o u n a  

In order for an offender to obtain D- to travel 
thefollo ' 

la ) The offender is not Drohihited bv the order of 

The offender is not wanted or f acme ' prnsecu tion for 
criminal charges or violhion of the order of suoerviSlpg 

(c) The o f f e n d v t r a  vel that is venfiabl e 
bv Drovidine a soecific location n- 
contact oerson bv which the informa tion is to be verified in 
advance. hv the ofiic ex 

The offender has orovided the officer with reas onable 
advance notice of his or -el and has DIO vided 
fie off1 cer ample time to verifv the travel nlan and r eview any 
documentation mior to travel authonzatlpa 

(e) The tr avel doe- e 
PT treatment DKOEI- 

m a l l  be 
if the offender is not current with the 
authoritv - l  ' 'a1 
oblieation a w e e m  t and the W e r  shall exoend 
the course of travel 

e t  . ' ' w  cate that 
autborizine the offender to travel would c o m  a lack of 
prudence. S uch ext e- cucums tances those tha t 
would cause a re- belie ve that the Q&& 

mav be 1 ikelv to violate a condition of s w n  If tra vel 

13) Travel shall not exceed thirtv m s e  cutive davs ia 

. .  
1 

. .  
. .  

. .  

includes a waiver of extradition s e a  which. W m  

. .  
. .  

suoervision p 
. .  

. .  
. .  

. . .  

. .  

. .  . 

m. Once a travel . D emit  is issued to an off- the offi Cer 
shall instru ct the offende r reeardlne tra vel issu- 
fQll"g . .  ( a l I m m e l v  e notifvine the ofiicer ifa- an 
!?s.!ax 

(b) Immediatelv notifvine the officer of a nv unusu a1 
Situations or any co ntact with law enforc-t that occurred 

(c) Imm ediatelv calline or reoortine uoon retum to the 
durine the tra ve kQisQck 

countv of residence: 
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Rule 25-17.0832 
Docket No. 001574-EQ 

STATEMENT OF FACTS AND CIRCUMSTANCES 
JUSTIFYING RULE 

During the last several years, the Commission granted five 
requests from IOUs to waive the ken year minimum contract term 
established by Rule 25-17.0832(4)(e).’ The IOUs requested the 
waiver to reduce the risk that ratepayers would be tied to a long- 
term contract that is above avoided cost because of the uncertainty 
in the wholesale generation market. In each of these waivers, the 
minimum contract term was set at five years. The rule amendment 
would codify these rule waivers. 

A high degree of uncertainty currently exists in the electric 
market due to recent regulatory changes, potential future 
regulatory changes, fuel price volatility, and technological 
changes. Given this uncertainty, reducing the minimum required 
term for standard offer contracts will decrease the potential for 
ratepayers to be tied to purchased power contracts that are priced 
higher than alternative power sources. Purchased power costs are 
passed directly to ratepayers through the Fuel and Purchased Power 

r- Cost Recovery Clause. Therefore, the rule change will impact 
ratepayers by reducing the probability that they will pay higher 
purchased power costs under a standard offer contract than would 
have otherwise been paid in the open market. 

~~ ~ 

In re: Petition for armroval of standard offer contract 
for aualifvina coqeneration and small Dower Droduction facilities 
bv TamDa Electric ComDanv, Order No. PSC-00-1773-PAA-EQ, 00 FPSC 
9:499 (2000) ;  In re: Petition bv Florida Power & Liqht ComDanv 
for aporoval of standard offer contract, Order No. PSC-OO-1748- 
PAA-EI, 00 FPSC 9:458 (2000); In re: Petition of Florida Power 
Conoration for ApDroval of Standard Offer Contract based on a 
2003 Combined Cvcle Avoided Unit and AccomDanvins Rate Schedule 
COG-2 Pursuant to Section 366.051, F.S.. and Rules, Order No. 
PSC-OO-O~O~-PAA-EQ, 00 FPSC 3:206 (2000); =e: Petition of 
Florida Power CorDoration for ADDroval of Standard Offer Contract 
and AccomDanvinq Rate Schedule COG-2, Order No. PSC-00-0264-PAA- 
EG, 00 FPSC 2:203 (2000); In re: Petition bv Florida Power & 

revised COG-2 tariff, Order No. PSC-99-1713-TRF-EQ, 99 FPSC 9:23 
m Liqht ComDanv for aDDroval of a standard offer contract and 

(1999). 



STATEMENT ON FEDERAL STANDARDS 

There is no federal standard on the subject of the amendments 
to Rule 25-17.0832. 



_ _ - - - _ _ _ _ -  M E M O R A N D U M  

May 31, 2001 

TO: DIVISION OF APPEALS ( E L T O N )  

FROM: DIVISION OF ECONOMIC REGULATION ( H E W I T T W  &a$p 
SUBJECT: STATEMENT OF ESTIMATED REGULATORY COSTS FOR DOCKET NO. 

CAPACITY AND ENERGY CONTRACTS 
001574-EQ, PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO RULE 25-17.0832, F.A.C., FIRM 

SUMMAR Y OF THE RULES 

Currently, Rule 25-17.0832, F.A.C., Firm Capacity and Energy Contracts, contains the 

standards and requirements for investor-owned utilities (IOUs) to file a tariff for a standard offer 

contract for the purchase of firm capacity and energy from specified types of small qualifying 

facilities (QFs). Section (4)(e)(7) requires a ten year minimurn contract term for standard offer 

contracts with a maximum term being the expected life of the avoided unit. The Commission 

approves the time period when a standard offer contract tariff is requested. 
n 

The proposed amendments would reduce the minimum standard offer contract period for the 

purchase of QF firm capacity and energy from ten years to five years. The proposed amendments 

would also update the rule to include a new division name and other editorial changes. 

ESTIMATED NUMBER OF ENTITIES REOUIRED TO COMPLY AND 
GENERAL DESCRIPTION OF INDIVIDUALS AFFECTED 

There are five investwowed electric utility companies operating in Florida and there are 

approximately 60 QFs; 30 with f m  capacity contracts. QFs are not limited to selling their 

output to IOUs and would only be affected by the proposed rule changes if they seek a new 

s t a n h d  offer contract with an IOU. 

1 
FOR THE AGENCY AND OTHER STATE AND LOCAL GOVERNMENT ENTITIES - The Public Service Commission and other state entities are not expected to experience 

implementation costs other than the costs associated with promulgating a proposed rule. Existing 

Commission staff would continue to handle the monitoring and review of QF contracts. 



2 

Local government entities that have an interest in solid waste facilities could be impacted. 
There are various cities in Florida that have interests in municipal solid waste (MSWs) facilities 

which are cov& by this rule change. The City of Tampa and Miami-Dade responded to a data 
request and objected to the shortening of the possible minimum time period for a standard offer 

contract from ten years to five years. Tampa predicated its response on the rule limiting the 
maximum contract length to a five year term. However, the maximum contract term, the 
anticipated life of the avoided unit, would not change. Moreover, the Commission determines 
the period of time when a standard offer contract is approved and has granted requests for a rule 
waiver for a five year term limit in several recent standard offer contracts. 

Although the existing MSW facility contracts would not be affected by the proposed rule 
changes, future contracts could be affected. Whether the effects of the proposed rule changes 
would be positive or negative for local governments depends on the future price for firm capacity 
and energy. If energy and capacity prices are increasing in the future, a shorter contract would 
benefit MSW facility owners and their ratepayers since they could enter a new standard offer 
contract sooner with higher payments. If energy and capacity prices are decreasing in the future, 
a shorter contract would cost MSW facility owners and their ratepayers because a new standard 
offer contract would have lower payments. Longer contracts would still be possible up to the 
anticipated life of the avoided unit if approved by the Commission. The Commission is required 
to keep IOU rates reasonable and shortening the term for standard offer contracts is best for IOU 
ratepayers in a falling electricity price environment. 

All the IOUs that responded stated that there should not be additional costs to comply 
with the proposed rule changes. One IOU stated that the proposed rule amendment would give 
it more flexibility in tailoring the terms of the contract to specific needs. 

Montenay Power Corporation (Mpc), which operates the Miami-Dade County Resources 
Recovery Facility and the Bay County Resources Recovery Facility, responded to the data request 
with its opposition to the proposed rule changes. MF'C particularly objected to the reduction in 
the duration of power purchase agreements as they may apply to standard offer contracts. MF'C 
pointed out that since these MSW facilities are publicly owned, any shortfall or reduction in 
electrical revenues would require increasing of solid waste disposal costs to the residents and 
businesses of the respective counties. 

The existing minimum contract term limit of ten years does not remove the uncertainties 
that surround future prices and costs and the viability of contract renewability. The reduction of 

m 
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the mini“ contract term to five years would have the same uncertainties, the value would be 
“marked to market” sooner rather than later, if the contract is for the minimum term. As noted 
above, the costs or benefits accruing to an existing or planned facility’s value when a contract 
is renewed depends upon the price of firm capacity and energy at that future time. Whether 
conditions will benefit the owner of the MSW facility and its ratepayers or an IOU and its 
ratepayers is unknown at present. 

MPC further contends that because the proposed rule changes would reduce the 
attractiveness of utilities’ standard offer contracts, it would be more necessary for MPC and other 
QFs to negotiate power purchase agreements rather than accepting a standard offer. This situation 
would significantly increase MPC’s transaction costs in obtaining a purchase power agreement 
pursuant to the Public Utility Regulatory Policies Act of 1978, section 366.051, Florida Statutes, 
and the Commission’s rules. MPC estimates that the increase in transaction costs could easily 
well exceed $100,000, including the engagement of attorneys to participate in negotiations and 
review draft contracts offered by utilities and the engagement of consultants to evaluate the 
utility’s avoided costs estimates. If negotiations were difficult and took six months or more, 
MpC estimates that the transaction costs could run well over $250,000. 

f l  

fl 
Small businesses, small cities, and small counties that may have interests in MSW 

facilities would face the same situation as the larger cities stated above. The shorter minimum 
contract term may benefit or cost these entities depending on price conditions in five years. 

small businesses, small cities, and small counties that are customers of IOUs would have 
lower electricity costs if rates fall because IOUs can obtain capacity and energy for shorter 
contract periods in a falling price environment. 

ALTERNATIVE METHODS 
Maintaining the current rule would continue the possibility that IOUs and their ratepayers 

would be saddled with higher cost capacity and energy costs for an additional five years for new 
small standard offer c o n m t s  if market prices declined. However, prices may increase and IOUs 
would lose the benefits of a fixed price contract for an additional five years. MPC suggests that 

an eligible QF be allowed to choose to accept a standard offer contract for any period between 
five years and the life of the avoided unit designated in the contract. However, the Commission 
can not give up its responsibility to regulate the IOUs and their capacity and energy contracts. 
qfserc.cbh 

P. 
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ORDER NO. PSC-03-0178-NOR-EQ I ISSiiED: February 6, 2003 In re: Proposed amendments to 

Rule 25-17.0832, F.A.C., Firm 
Capacity and Energy Contracts. 

The following Commissioners participated in the disposition of 
this matter: 

LILA A. JABER, Chairman 
J. TERRY DEASON 
BRAULIO L. BAEZ 

RUDOLPH “RUDY” BRADLEY 
CHARLES M. DAVIDSON 

NOTICE OF RULEMAKING 

NOTICE is hereby given that the Florida Public Service 
Commission, pursuant to Section 120.54, Florida Statutes, has 
initiated rulemaking to amend Rule 25-17.0832, Florida 
Administrative Code, relating to firm capacity and energy 
contracts. 

The attached Notice of Rulemaking will appear in the February 
14, 2003 edition of the Florida Administrative Weekly. 

A hearing will be held at the following time and place: 

Florida Public Service Commission 
9:30 A.M. - March 19, 2003 
Room 148, Betty Easley Conference Center 
4075 Esplanade Way 
Tallahassee, Florida 

1 ten comments or suggestions on the rule must be r ceived 
by the Director, Division of the Commission Clerk and 
Administrative Services, Florida Public Service Commission, 2540 
Shumard Oak Blvd., Tallahassee, FL 32399-0862, no later than March 
7, 2003. Comments previously filed in this docket will be 
considered part of the rulemaking record. 
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By ORDER of the Florida Public Service Commission, this 6th 
day of February, 2003. 

BLANCA S. BAY6, Director 
Division of the Commission Clerk 
and Administrative Services 

By: I C a c r L  
Kay Fl&n, Chi&f 
Bureau of Records and Hearing 
Services 

( S E A L )  

RCB 
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NOTICE OF PROPOSED RULEMAKING .. 

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 

DOCKET NO. 001574-EQ 

RULE TITLE: RULE NO. : 

Firm Capacity and Energy Contracts 25-17.0832 

PURPOSE AND EFFECT: The purpose of the amendment is to reduce the 

minimum term for standard offer contracts from 10 to five years. 

The rule amendment also requires investor-owned electric utilities 

to specify the term of the standard offer when filing the contract 

P for approval with the Commission. The effect is to reduce the risk 

that ratepayers will be tied to long-term contracts that are above 

avoided cost. 

SUMMARY: Rule 25-17.0832 requires investor-owned utilities to file 

tariff and a standard offer contract for the purchase of firm 

capacity and energy from specified types of small qualifying 

facilities. The rule sets forth the minimum specifications and 

acceptable pricing methodologies for standard offer contracts. The 

amendment to subparagraph ( 4 )  (e) 3 .  and 7. would reduce the ten year 

minimum contract term for standard offer contracts to five years. 

In addition, the amendment to subparagraph (4) (e)7. would require 
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investor-owned utilities to specify the contract term when filing 

the standard offer for approval by the Commission. 

SUMMARY OF STATEMENT OF ESTIMATED REGULATORY COST: Several 

municipal solid waste (MSWs) facilities oppose the rule amendments. 

However, the impact on thee local government entities depends on 

future firm capacity and energy prices. If these prices increase, 

a shorter contract term would benefit MSW facility owners because 

they could enter a new standard offer contract sooner with higher 

payments. On the other hand, if firm capacity and energy prices 

decrease, MSW owners would be faced with lower payments. One MSW 

argued that because MSW facilities are publicly owned, any 

shortfall or reduction in electrical revenues will require 

increasing solid waste disposal costs. In addition, at least one 

MSW argued that adoption of the rule amendments will result in MSWs 

having to negotiate more contracts, which will increase transaction 

costs for the MSWs. The MSWS overlook that longer contracts are 

still possible under the rule. The MSWS also do not acknowledge 

that the Commission is required to keep IOU rates reasonable and 

shortening the standard offer contract term is best for IOU 

ratepayers in an environment in which wholesale generation costs 

are falling. Keeping the ten year minimum term would continue the 

... 
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possibility that IOUs and their ratepayers would be faced with 

higher cost capacity and energy costs for an additional five years 

for new standard offer contracts, even if market costs declined- 

However, wholesale generation costs may increase and IOUs would 

lose the benefits of a fixed price contract f o r  an additional five 

years. Allowing a qualifying facility to choose the contract term 

would abrogate the Commission's regulatory responsibility over 

capacity and energy contracts. 

Any person who wishes to provide information regarding the 

statement of estimated regulatory costs, or to provide a proposal 

for a lower cost regulatory alternative must do so in writing 

within 21 days of this notice. 

SPECIFIC AUTHORITY: 350.127, 366.05(1), FS 

LAW IMPLEMENTED: 366.051, 366.81, FS 

WRITTEN COMMENTS OR SUGGESTIONS ON THE PROPOSED RULE MAY BE 

SUBMITTED TO THE FPSC, DIVISION OF THE COMMISSION CLERK AND 

ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES, WITHIN 21 DAYS OF THE DATE OF THIS NOTICE 

FOR INCLUSION IN THE RECORD OF THE PROCEEDING. 

IF REQUESTED WITHIN 21 DAYS OF THE DATE OF THIS NOTICE, A HEARING 

WILL BE SCHEDULED AND ANNOUNCED IN THE FAW. 
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THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULE IS: Richard 

Bellak, Florida Public Service Commission, 2540 Shumard Oak Blvd., 

Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0862, (850) 413-6245. 

THE FULL TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULE IS: 

25-17.0832 Firm Capacity and Energy Contracts. 

(1) . No Change. 

(a) Within one working day of the execution of a negotiated 

contract or the receipt of a signed standard offer contract, the 

utility shall notify the Director of the Division of Economic 

Requlation - L L i c  ,&--ea%? and provide the amount of committed 

capacity and the type of generating unit, if any, which the 

contracted capacity is intended to avoid or defer. 

(b) Within 10 working days of the execution of a negotiated 

contract or receipt of a signed standard offer contract for the 

purchase of firm capacity and energy, the purchasing utility shall 

file with the Commission a copy of the signed contract and a 

summary of its terms and conditions. At a minimum, the sununary 

shall include rrport: 

1. - 3. No Change. 

4. The type of unit being avoided, its size, and its in- 

service year; 
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5 .  - 6. No. Change. 

(2) - (3) (d) No Change. 

( 4 )  Standard Offer Contracts. 

(a) Upon petition by a utility or pursuant to a Commission 

action, each public utility shall submit for Commission approval a 

tariff or tariffs and a standard offer contract or contracts for 

the purchase of firm capacity and energy from small qualifying 

facilities. In lieu of a seuarately- negotiated contract, 

standard offer contracts are available to the following types of 

qualifying facilities: 

1. - (e)2. No Change. 

3. The payment options available to the qualifying 

facility including all financial and economic assumptions 

necessary to calculate the firm capacity payments 

available under each payment option and an illustrative 

calculation of firm capacity payments for a minimum five 

hn year term contract commencing with the in-service 

date of the avoided unit for each payment option; 

4. - 6. No Change. 
7. The suecific period of time over which firm capacity 

and energy shall be delivered from the qualifying 
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held, a record of the hearing is necessary. The appellant must 

ensure that a verbatim record, including testimony and evidence 

forming the basis of the appeal is made. The Commission usually 

makes a verbatim record of rulemaking hearings. 

Any person requiring some accommodation at this hearing because of 

a physical impairment should call the Division of the Commission 

Clerk and Administrative Services at (850) 413-6770 at least 4 8  

hours prior to the hearing. Any person who is hearing or speech 

impaired should contact the Florida Public Service Commission by 

fi using the Florida Relay Service, which can be reached at: 1-800- 

955-8771 (TDD) . 



A SOUIWEllN COMPANV 

March 0,2003 

Ms. Blanca S. Bayo, Director 
Division of the Commission Clerk and Administrative Services 
Florida Public Service Commission 
2540 Shumard Oak Boulevard 
Tallahassee FL 32399-0870 

Dear Ms. Bayo: 

RE: Docket No. 001574-EQ, Proposed Rule Amendments to 
Rule 2517.0832, F.A.C 

After review of the proposed changes to the rule and the discussions at the Staff 
conducted workshop on February 25,2003. Gulf believes that no revision of 
Rule 25-17.0832, F.A.C., is necessary at this time. However, Gulf supports the 
rule amendments proposed by Staff as an alternative to not revising the rule. 
Gulfs comments filed on March 28,2002 are hereby incorporated by reference. 
These comments discuss in more detail Gulfs position regarding the 
amendments proposed by Staff and other parties in this docket. While Gulf does 
not intend to call any witnesses at the hearing, counsel for Gulf will participate in 
the hearing. 

Sincerely, 

Susan D. Ritenour 
Assistant Secretary and Assistant Treasurer 

Iw 

cc: Beggs and Lane 
Jeffrey A. Stone, Esquire 
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Pensacola. Florida 32520 0 
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P 

0 

A SOUTHERN COMPANV 

March 28,2002 

Ms. Blanca S. Bayo, Director 
Division of the Commission Clerk and Administrative Services 
Florida Public Service Commission 
2540 Shumard Oak Boulevard 
Tallahassee FL 32399-0870 

Dear Ms. Bayo: 

. *  

c. RE: Docket No. 001 574-EQ 

Enclosed are an original and fifteen copies of Gulf Power Company’s Response to 
CommentdTestimony filed on March 1,2002 in the above referenced docket. 

Sincerely, 

/$LLadn a* --(&) 
Susan D. Ritenour 
Assistant Secretary and Assistant Treasurer 

Iw 

Enclosure 

cc: Beggs and Lane 
Jeffrey A. Stone, Esquire 



i- RESPONSE TO COMMENTS/TESTIMONY 
FILED ON MARCH 1,2002 
DOCKET NO. 001574-EQ 

In general, there were two distinct actions taken on March 1,2002 that relate to 
the instant docket and revisions to rule 25-17.0832, F.A.C. First, there was testimony 
(comments) filed with regard to the previously proposed rule language that had been 
discussed by the parties in earlier workshops in Docket No. 001574-EQ. Second in 
Docket No. 020166-EQ, there was a petition to initiate a rule development proceeding on 
newly submitted (not previously discussed) language and a motion to consolidate these 
two rule revision efforts. Gulfs  comments are in response to comments and testimony 
that address both versions of the proposed rule amendments. 

A. ResDonse to comments on rule amendments DrODOSed in Docket No. 001574-EQ 

The primary amendment to Rule 25-1 7.0832 proposed in Docket No. 001 574-EQ, is 
to change the minimum term of standard offer contract fiom ten to five years. 
Standard offer contracts are open offers from the utilities to pay any qualifyins entity 
for their power with the goal that the utility’s generating capacity may be deferred to 
the benefit of its customers. With standard offer contracts, the ratepayers bear the 
risk that they will pay higher rates for energy and capacity supplied by Qualifying 
Facilities (QF) pursuant to standard offers then might otherwise be available in the 
market. The Commission staff has stated that the five year minimum term balances 
the interests of the ratepayers without unduly discouraging the construction of QFs. 
Gulf agrees with witnesses B m e r  and Salmon that the existing rules are adequate 
and work well, however, Gulf does support Staffs  proposed changes as they appear 
to enhance an already effective rule. Lowering the minimum term of a standard offer 
contract to five years should reduce the risk to the customers of having a utility 
locked into high cost energy or capacity at times when energy or capacity are 
available at lower prices. Staff’s belief that there is value in allowing for shorter 
contract terms at a time when markets are changing is valid. Gulf supports the rule 
amendments proposed by Staff in Docket No. 001574-EQ. 

Gulf disagrees with several of the comments from the City of Tampa’s witness 
Salmon and the Solid Waste Authority of Palm Beach County’s witness B m e r .  
They both contend that the proposed rule revisions fail to make the Standard Offer 
Contracts a “safe harbor” or “fail safe” instrument that they could fall back on in the 
event that a utility chose to negotiate unreasonably for its firm capacity and energy. 
Gulf believes that the market is the main driver for setting purchase power prices and 
that it is the utility’s charge by the Commission to pursue the best, most cost- 
effective arrangement for its customers. Rule revisions that would make standard 
offer contracts “Safe Harbors” would, in many instances, require utility customers to 
pay more for electricity than the utility’s full avoided cost. Mr. Seidman points out 
that the “value of deferral” methodology was chosen because it protects the 
customers h m  paying too much for the capacity purchased h m  QFs and small 



power producers. Gulf believes that this was and continues to be a sound policy 
decision. 

Mr. Seidman, commenting on behalf of the City of Tampa, clearly opposes reducing 
the minimum standard offer contract term to five years. Mr. Seidman appears to take 
the position that by reducing the minimum term in standard offer contracts to five 
years, the QF would “not have the option to contract for longer than five years.” 
Contrary to Mr. Seidman’s contention, having a ““mum” contract period for 
standard offer contracts, in no way, prohibits the QF from pursuing a longer term 
agreement with the utility through a separately negotiated contract. There can be 
value in a long-term commitment for the purchase of power from any entity provided 
that there is an appropriate balance between the price and risks going forward. The 
Commission has always supported the ability for QFs and small power producers to 
enter into negotiated contracts that could better meet the needs and desires of both 
the utility and the non-utility generator. Negotiated contracts could be sought to 
better match the long-term aspects of both the QFs commitment and the utility’s 
value of deferring the need to construct additional generating capacity. 

B. Comments on Lee Countv. Miami-Dade Countv and Montenav-Dade, Ltd. 
proposed rule amendments 

A petition to initiate rule development was filed in Docket No. 020166-EQ. That 
docket has been consolidated with Docket No. 001574-EQ. The petition filed in 
Docket No. 020166-EQ contained proposed rule amendments to Rule 25-17.0832. 
These newly proposed amendments have not been discussed by the parties in the rule 
development process. Gulf urges the Commission to postpone the May 15 hearing 
and schedule additional workshops to further discuss and gain a better understanding 
of the newly proposed rule amendments. Based on the limited information that Gulf 
has regarding these new amendments, Gulf has several comments on these newly 
proposed revisions. 

The newly proposed amendments appear to require utilities to pay QFs “rates equal 
to the costs that would be bome by the utility’s general body of ratepayers if the 
utility were to build its avoided unit or purchase capacity” from another source. No 
method or definition is provided in the revision to provide guidance on how to 
calculate and determine exactly what customers will pay. Gulf believes that before 
this concept is to be adopted, this issue must be discussed and possible solutions fully 
evaluated to insure that the electric customers of the State do not pay too much for 
QF power. 

The newly proposed rule language also proposes a “risk management and fuel 
hedging” provision that would lock in the price of 20% of the energy price from a QF 
based on projected operation of the avoided unit. It appears that this would subject a 
utility’s customer to having to pay the QF for the projected amount of energy at the 
fixed price even if the utility would have used it under the given economic conditions 
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ASOUTHERN COMPANY 

December 19,2000 

Ms. Blanca S. Bayo, Director 
Division of Records and Reporting 
Florida Public Service Commission 
2540 Shumard Oak Boulevard 
Tallahassee FL 32399-0870 

Dear Ms. Bayo: 

RE: Gulf Power Company's Comments on the Proposed Revisions to 
Rule 25-17.0832, F.A.C., Firm Capacity and Energy Contracts 
Docket No. 001 574-El 

After review of the proposed changes to the rule and the discussion at the Staff 
conducted workshop on December 12, 2000, Gulf believes that no revision of 
Rule 25-17.0832, F.A.C. is necessary at this time. Changes to the Rule are best 
resolved through the waiver procedure already in place at the FPSC. 

Sincerely, 

Linda G. Malone 
Assistant Secretary and Assistant Treasurer 

Iw 

cc: Beggs & Lane 
J. A. Stone 

Gulf Power Company 
Susan D. Ritenour 
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Steel Hector & Davis t i p  

215 South Monroe, Suite 601 
Tallahassee, Florida 32301-1804 

850 222.2300 
850.222.8410 Fax 
www.sieelhector.com 

Cbatlss 1. Guyton 
850 222 3423 

March 7,2003 

VIA HAND DELIVERY 

Blanca S. Bay4 Director 
Division of the Commission Clerk & 

Administrative Services 
Florida Public Service Commission 
2540 Shumard Oak Boulevard 
Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0850 

Re: Pronosed Amendments to Rule 25-17.0832, Firm Cameitv and Energy 
Contracts -Docket No.: 001574-EO 

Dear Ms. Bay& 
r'. 

Enclosed for filing on behalf of Florida Power & Light Company in the above docket are 
the original and seven (7) copies of the Comments of Florida Power & Light Company: At 
Staffs February 25, 2003 workshop, Staff requested these comments and an indication of 
whether parties were adopting their prior comments. FPL requests that all its prior comments in 
this proceeding, in addition to the.enclosed comments, be included in the record. 

At the February 25' Staff Workshop, Staff also requested the names of persons who 
would be presenting on behalf of parties at the March 19, 2003 hearing. I will be presenting 
FPL's comments at the rule making hearing, and Delia Perez-Alonso may also present comments 
or answer questions from the Commission. 

If you or your staff have any questions regarding this transmittal, please contact me at 
(850) 222-2300. 

Charles A. Guy& 

CAG:gcm 
Enclosure 
Copy to: Judy Harlow 

Tom Ballinger 
Counsel for All Parties of Record 
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Introduction 

There are four fundamental changes to the cogeneration rules before the Commission. 

There is the change the Commission proposed, to reduce the minimum term of the standard offer 

contract from 10 years to 5 years. This change is consistent with Commission policy that is 

evidenced by the Commission granting seven rule waiver requests and allowing utilities to 

employ a five year minimum term in their standard offer contracts. There are also three rule 

amendments proposed by Lee County, Miami-Dade County and Montenay-Dade, Ltd. that FPL 

strongly opposes. These amendments are at odds with twenty years of Commission cogeneration 

policy, are unnecessary, and, most importantly, will result in the unjust enrichment of 

cogenerators at the expense of utility customers. 

Place The Cogenerators’ Proposed Amendments in Context 

7- It is important to place the cogenerators’ amendments’before the Commission in 

context. There are two critical contexts: one is practical, the other is historical. 

Practical Context 

Initially, it appears there are three groups interested in the proposed rule changes: (a) 

cogenerators who stand to profit if their proposed changes are adopted, (b) utility customers who 

stand to pay more for Standard Offer cogenerated power if the cogenemtors’ proposed rule 

amendments are adopted, and (c) investor-owned public utilities who are concerned about their 

customers having to pay too much for cogenerated power. However, in this proceeding the 

interests of utilities and their customers are closely aligned. So, really there are only two 

competing interests here: (a) cogenerators, who want utility customers to pay more for their 

power, and (b) utilities and utility customers who reasonably expect the Commission to protect 

them from paying too much for cogenerated power. 

/z 
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Undoubtedly, the Commission has seen in comments catch phrases like “encouraging 

cogeneration” or “fostering congeneration” or “encouraging the development of solid waste 

facilities.” Some of these phrases are even used in statutes. However, those very same statues 

also place the Commission in the role of protecting utility customers. There is no statutory 

mandate to foster or encourage cogeneration through customers paying in excess of avoided cost. 

So when the Commission sees these catch phrases, remember there are two sides to this coin. If 

you increase payments to cogenerators to “encourage cogeneration,” you increase costs paid by 

utility customers. Those are the interests in conflict. That is the practical context. 

Historical Context 

The historical context is also important. There is both a long-term and a short-term 

historical context. FPL‘s comments address both, the long-term context first. 

r-- In 1978 Congress passed the Public Utility Regulatory Policies Act (“PURPA”). Among 

other things PURF’A required utilities to purchase power from qualifying facilities (“QFs”) at the 

utility’s avoided cost (the cost the utility would have incurred but for the purchase of the QF 

power). PUWA’s avoided cost utility purchase requirement was appealed to the United States 

Supreme Court and affirmed in American Paper Insfiiule, Znc. v. American Electric Power 

Service, 461 US.  402,76L.Ed.2d22,103 S.Ct. 1921 (1983). 

PUWA required the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission (FERC) to adopt 

implementing rules, which it did. The rules regarding purchases of power from cogenerators are 

found today at 18 CFR Part 292. P U P A  also required state regulatory commissions to adopt 

rules implementing PURPA and the relations between utilities and QFs. 

Although PURPA and the FERC rules implementing PURPA established avoided cost as 

the maximum to be paid for cogenerated power, they left to the states the specific. means of 

3 
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quantifying avoided costs. 

quantify avoided costs. 

purchases from QFs consistently have been quantified using the Value of Deferral methodology. 

There have been a myriad of means employed by the states to 

In Florida, avoided costs associated with firm capacity and energy 

.. 

The Florida Comniission’s first attempt to adopt cogeneration rules was in 1981 (Docket 

No. 780235-EU, Order No. 9970). Those rules were challenged, and a preliminary Florida 

Supreme Court decision, that was later withdrawn, questioned the Commission’s authority to 

adopt cogeneratioii rules. While that case was pending, the Commission was given explicit 

statutory authority to address utility dealings with cogenerators, and in 1983 the Commission, 

once again, initiated cogeneration rulemaking in Docket No. 820406-EU. 

It was in Docket No. 820406-EU in 1983 that the Commission first adopted most of the 

cogeneration policies the cogeneratoe in this case now seek to change. The case had extensive 

hearings attended by numerous parties. In addition to FPL, FPC, TECO, Gulf and the Florida 

Electric Coordinating Group, there were numerous cogenerators or potential cogenerators: St. 

Regis Paper, IMC, Florida Crushed Stone, W.R. Grace, U.S. Steel, Royster, Occidental 

Chemical, U.S. Sugar, 11T Rayonier, Metropolitan Dade County, Nicholas Production Company 

and Therm0 Electron, Inc. Twenty-three witnesses testified. 

,--- 

After the close of the hearing, the Commission issued two orders, Order No. 12443 

adopting new rules and Order No. 12634, its “Final Order’’ explaining its adopted rules and 

underlying policy. Both orders shed light on the issues raised by the cogenerators. Order No. 

12443 discusses the fundamental contest between Staff, who advocated use of the Value of 

Deferral methodology to quantify avoided costs, and cogeneratoe, who advocated use of the 

Revenue Requirements methodology to calculate avoided cost. In Order No. 12634 the 

Commission explained why it chose the Value of Deferral approach. 

/- 
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After adopting its new cogeneration rules, the Commission had another extensive hearing 

to address the implementation of those rules, Docket No. 830377-EU. In the final order in that 

docket, Order No. 13247, the Commission first addressed its policy regarding the proper 

treatment of conservation when calculating avoided costs. It found that logic as well as prior 

interpretation of the Florida Energy Efficiency Conservation Act (“FEECA”) compelled the 

recognition of conservation when determining avoided costs. 

In these and other early orders issued in the early 1980s, the Commission established 

cogeneration policies that have been followed for 20 years. For the most part, the Commission’s 

cogeneration policy has been unwavering. 

FPL sets forth this long-term history because not one of the Commissioners currently 

serving was on the Commission when the Value of Deferral methodology, the methodology for 

pricing firm energy, and the methodology for treating conservation when identifying the avoided 

unit were settled by the Commission almost 20 years ago. Over those years other aspects of the 

cogeneration rules have changed, but not these principles, even though cogenerators have tried. 

The Commission needs to be aware that the changes being requested by cogenerators here fly in 

the face of almost 20 years of cogeneration policy, and not one of the arguments is new. They 

have all previously been rejected, sometimes on numerous occasions. 

?-- 

There are instances where change is necessary and warranted. At other times, attempting 

to change what has served customers well is unwarranted. Every change advanced by the 

cogenerators in this proceeding has been heard and appropriately rejected before by prior 

Commissions. The case for change now is much less compelling. 

Twenty years ago, cogeneration was new, and thought was being given as to how it could 

be encouraged. States like California overpaid, and standard offer contracts quickly became 
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much too costly. Florida followed a mare conservative approach, yet a number of cogeneration 

contracts in Florida have been bought out. Today the Commission is being asked not by entities 

that are considering entry but by established cogenerators who have already financed their 

facilities to take actions that will increase their revenues at utility customers’ expense. This does 

not encourage cogeneration; this merely redistributes wealth from customers to established 

cogenerators. This needs to be put in context before the Commission acts. 

The Commission should also look at this docket in the short-term historical context. The 

Commission instructed its Staff to initiate this proceeding in 2000 during an FPL rule waiver 

proceeding in which FPL was seeking a waiver of the rule requiring a ten year minimum term in 

standard offer contracts. The Commission granted that waiver and in doing so recognized that it 

had granted four other such waivers. Acknowledging that these repeated rule waivers reflected a 

change in its cogeneration policy, the Commission instructed its Staff to initiate a rulemaking 

proceeding to change the rule addressing the minimum term of Standard Offer contracts. That 

was in 2000, and that is how this docket was initiated. Since that rule waiver, there have been 

two more waivers of the ten year minimum term. So, the Commission has granted seven waivers 

/I 

of the Standard Offer ten year minimum term. In each instance it approved a five year minimum 

term for the Standard Offer. 

So, the Commission’s intended scope of this proceeduig was quite narrow. The 

Commission did not intend to place at issue any of the rule amendments that have been proposed 

by the cogenerators. 

The changes advanced by the cogenerators did not arise as a Commission initiated 

change in policy. They arose at the request of the cogenerators, who petitioned for those rule 

changes. As a matter of convenience, their petition was incorporated into this docket. Those 
)4 
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requested changes, all of which would increase the risk that the cost of cogenerated power to 

utility customers would increase, have not been proposed by the Commission and do not reflect 

current Commission policy. This short-term historical perspective is needed as well. 

Summary of Current Cogeneration Rules 

Before addressing the specific rule provisions before the Commission, it is helpful to 

review how the Commission’s current cogeneration rules are structured. The Commission’s 

cogeneration rules encourage the negotiation of contracts between cogenerators and utilities. 

They require utilities to purchase fiom cogenerators and to provide data to cogenerators to 

facilitate negotiations. They also require utilities to negotiate in good faith with cogeneraton. 

These rules also contemplate that cogeneratois may bid into capacity RFPs that utilities issue to 

meet their resource needs. 

In addition to those rules, there is a cogeneration rule that requires utilities to issue 

standard offer contracts available to a small subset of cogenerators. The entities eligible for 

these standard offer contracts are entities that FERC requires to be eligible as well as solid waste 

facilities. The solid waste facilities were added to the FERC required entities to implement 

Section 377.709, Florida Statutes. That statute requires the Commission to have a cost-effective 

funding program in place for solid waste facilities. The important poiill for the Commission to 

recall is that the Standard Offer rule already exists as a means of facilitating solid waste facilities 

under Section 377.709, Florida Statutes. Nothing more is required to comply with Section 

377.709. Certainly the rule changes advanced by the Solid Waste Facilities are not necessary to 

comply with that statute. If they were, then the Commission would have been outside of 

compliance with that statute for years. It has not been. 

. 
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Specific Rule Changes Proposed 

Having given the Commission both a practical and a historical context, please turn to the 

four rule amendments before the Commission. FPL will start with the Commission’s proposed 

change in the minimum term of the Standard Offer from 10 to 5 years. 

Standard Offer Minimum Term. 

.. 

When the standard offer contracts were first developed, the Commission settled on a 10 

year minimum Standard Offer term. Its rationale appears to have been based on planning 

considerations. The Commission stated in Order No. 12634: 

The requirement that a QF be willing to sign a contract for 
the delivery of firm capacity for at least ten years after the 
originally anticipated in service date of the avoided unit is 
important from a planning perspective. While a ten-year contract 
will not offset the expected thirty year life of a base load 
generating unit, we believe it is of sufficient length to confer 
substantial capacity related benefits on the ratepayers. 

Order No. 12634 at 19. The Commission went on to note that under the Value of Deferral 

method, a utility “pays the QF only what it earns in any given year, the value of the annual 

deferral.. . .” So the Value of Deferral method confers on the QF exactly the value he provides to 

customers whether the term of the contract is 10 years or 5 years. For each year the QF receives 

the annual Value of Deferral. 

The issue that arises from reading this passage is whether a 5 year rather than a 10 year 

minimum term provides enough time from a planning perspective. The answer is yes. In 1983 

the avoided units were coal units with longer construction times and more contentious 

permitting. Today, avoided units tend to be gas fired and require less advance construction and 

permitting time. Permitting and construction lead times aside, the Commission has faced this 

same timing issue in load management tariffs in addressing the minimum notice suchcustomers 

F 
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may give before leaving the rate. The Commission has decided on a niininium notice of five 

years. So a five year minimum Standard Offer Contract term is consistent with that as well. 

However, planning considerations aside, the real reason the Commission should feel 

comfortable in moving to a five year minimum term is because the Commission has already 

effectively made the policy change in granting seven waivers of the 10 year minimum term rule 

requirement. In each instance the Commission allowed a 5 year minimum term instead. This 

has become the Commission’s policy; that is why a rule amendment is appropriate. 

Cogenerators’ ProDosed Rule Changes 

Lee County, Miami-Dade County and Montenay-Dade have proposed three rule 

amendments. (1) They ask the Coinmission to change, for standard offer contracts that extend 

for the life of the avoided unit, the method of calculating avoided costs from the currently 

/? approved Value of Deferral method to the Revenue Requirements method. (2) They ask the 

Commission to change the way avoided energy payments are made such that 80% of the 

payments would be structured as they currently are and the remaining 20% would be fixed based 

upon a forecast of fuel prices. (3) They ask the Commission to disregard conservation that it has 

approved as reasonably achievable and cost-effective when determining the avoided unit. 

On all the rule changes now proposed by the cogenerators, the Commission’s policy has 

been steadfast, despite attempts to change the policy. The Commission has always employed 

Value of Deferral rather than Revenue Requirements to calculate avoided capacity costs. The 

Commission has always calculated avoided energy costs retrospectively, giving cogenerators the 

actual costs they avoided. The Commission has always recognized conservation in determining 

a utility’s avoided costs. 
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More importantly, each of the proposed changes by the cogenerators would likely 

increase what utility customers pay cogenerators for their power. None of these changes would 

be insignificant. Collectively, they would be a windfall.for the cogenerators at the expense of 

customers who are looking to lhe Commission for protection. 

Value of Deferral versus Revenue Requirements 

PURF’A, FERC’s rules and applicable Florida Statutes all require utilities to pay no more 

than avoided cost for cogenerated power. The term “avoided cost” is defined generally in all 

those statutes and rules, but the fact of the matter is that the mechanics were left to the states. 

The general process followed in determining a utility’s avoided cost is to look to its 

planning process, determine the next resource or resources to be added to meet its resource needs 

and then calculate the cost associated with such resources. The ultimate idea is that by 

identifying and requiring utilities to pay “avoided cost: the cost that can be avoided by 

purchasing cogenerated power, utility customers are no worse off than they would have been if 

the utility had built or bought from its avoided resource. 

P 

As one might imagine from that general approach, there are a myriad of ways avoided 

costs could be calculated. Those decisions have been left largely to the states. 

In Florida, the primary conflict or debate has been whether the Commission should use 

the Value of Deferral or Revenue Requirements methodology to calculate avoided cost. The 

Commission Staff and the utilities advocated the use of the Value of Deferral methodology. The 

cogenerators argued for the Revenue Requirements method. The Commission has consistently 

chosen the Value of Deferral methodology. 

To understand Value of Deferral, one must understand the effect the purchase of 

cogenerated capacity has for a utility. Unless the cogeneration purchase is for the sanie term and 
f i  
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same amount of capacity as the unit the utility would build, the utility does not avoid the 

construction of utility generation, it just defers it. The Value of Deferral methodology quantifies 

the value of such a deferral on a year by year basis. 

A simple example will illustrate. Assume that absent a cogeneration purchase a utility 

would build a 1,000 MW plant for $500 million, but with a one year purchase of 1,000 MW of 

cogenerated power it can move its planned construction back a year. If the utility makes the one 

year purchase what has been saved? Advocates of the Revenue Requirements approach would 

say, the revenue requirements associated with the first year of the plant that was deferred: a 

year’s return on the $500 million investment and a year of depreciation, foregone O&M 

expenses, taxes, etc.. . . Advocates of Value of Defemal recognize that the real value is simply 

deferring or moving back a year the stream of revenue requirements in the plant. Instead of 

paying revenue requirements for a plant in years 1-30, because of the one year cogeneration 

purchase and one year deferral, customers will now pay revenue requirements for a plant in years 

2-3 1. Unless the assumed inflation rate that would raise the initial cost of investment due to a 

one year deferral exceeds the discount rate used to discount both revenue requirements streams 

to present day dollars, deferral will likely save customers money. It is that difference in the net 

present value (“NF’V”) of the two revenue requirements streams that the Value of  Deferral 

quantifies. It does it for each year, and if there is a deferral for the life of the unit, then the NPV 

of that 30 year stream of Value of Deferral payments equals the NPV of the revenue 

requirements for that plant. 

/4 

The difference of the two approaches is that Revenue Requirements are front end loaded, 

because investment and depreciation, key components in the calculation of Revenue 

Requirements, are at their highest when the plant begins service. They will be at their lowest - 
11 
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near the end of the life of the unit. The Revenue Requirements cost curve declines over the life 

of the plant. Value of Deferral is not front end loaded. Each year it captures the annual value of 

deferring the investment one year. Over the full life of the plant, on a NPV basis, the two 

payment streams are the same, but the cost curve for Value of Deferral is much flatter. "his is 

illustrated in Attachment A. 

So, which stream is more appropriate for a 5 or 10 year contract that does not avoid but 

only defers the utility unit? Value of Deferral. Value of Deferral assures that utility customers 

pay only for the value of what they receive - the year by year value of deferring the utility unit. 

The heavily front end loaded Revenue Requirements for the utility unit are not completely 

avoided with a 5 or 10 year contract; they are merely deferred, so they should not be fully paid to 

the cogenerator. Instead, the cogenerator should receive the value of what it provides the 

customer - the value of deferring that 30 year revenue requirements stream for the life of the 

contract. Moreover, if the heavily front end loaded Revenue Requirements stream is paid to 

cogenerators, once cogenerators have earned a sufficient sum to pay off their debt, they have the 

perverse incentive to walk away from the contract. 

P 

The Commission explained this in Order No. 12634, the final order in the 1983 

There arc several passages from that order that are most cogeneration rule proceeding. 

instructive. The first passage succinctly summarizes the Commission's policy decision: 

Under the standard offer, the annual price to be paid for QF 
capacity is geared to the value of deferring the statewide avoided 
unit one year. We adopt the testimony of Mr. Trapp on this point. 
We agree with Mr. Trapp that there must be a link between the 
price paid for QF capacity and the value of other supply side 
alternatives available to a utility to meet its service obligation. It is 
this linkage that ensures that cogeneration and small power 
production will remain a cbst effective conservation measure. 

Order 12634 at 14, 15. 
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The second passage froin Order 12634 succinctly summarizes the Value of Deferral 

methodology: 

The value of deferral is, in essence, a calculation of the 
value of deferring the revenue requirements of a new generating 
plant by one year. Essentially, it compares the difference in annual 
revenue requirements if the revenue requirements stream begins in 
year X as compared to beginning in year X+1. 

Order 12634 at 16. 

The third instructive passage from Order No. 12634 makes it unequivocally clear that the 

Commission would not permit payments in excess of the Value of Deferral: “We will not 

consider supply side alternatives more costly than the Value of Deferral because it would not 

benefit the ratepayers to pursue them, regardless of the source.” Order 12634 at 17. 

The final instructive passage from Order No. 12634 is longer, but it is shared for several 

reasons. First, it shows that the Value of Defeml versus Revenue Requirements debate was 

raised and resolved 19 years ago. Second, it clearly articulates why Value of Deferral is the 

superior approach: 

/-. 

/-. 

IMC, gt al, urged us to adopt a capacity payment mle that 
would set a maxjmnm cap on the level of permissible payments 
equal to the revenue requirements of a generic base load coal unit. 
We believe that the value-of-deferral methodology is superior to a 
revenue requirements methodology for a couple of reasons. First, 
revenue requirements are based on a thirty-year depreciation life 
for a power plant. The payments are relatively high in the early 
years and relatively low in the later years; if ratepayers receive 
service from the plant for thirty years, the disadvantage of high 
payments in the early years is offset by the benefit of low 
payments in the later years. That symmetry is missing if a QF 
makes only a ten-year commitment; a QF would receive the high 
end of the deferred revenue requirements stream without a 
concomitant obligation to provide service in exchange for 
relatively low deferred revenue requirements in later years. 
Second, capacity payments based on deferred revenue 
requirements would overpay the QF in early years, thus getting 
into the thorny problem of securing all capacity payments for a 

. 
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number of years, not just those made pursuant to the early payment 
option. 

The value-of-deferral methodology overcomes these 
problems. First, the deferral method pays the QF only what it 
eams in any given year, the value of an annual deferral, thus 
eliminating the security question in ordinary circumstances. 
Second, the value-of-deferral method will, over the thirty-year 
depreciation life of the avoided unit, pay a QF the same amount it 
would have received if its capacity payments had been based on 
deferred revenue requirements. That is, at the end of thirty years, a 
QF would have received the same total amount on a present value 
basis, under either methodology; the difference between the two 
methods lies in the level of payment in any given year in that thirty 
year period. Leveliziug capacity payments based on avoided 
revenue requirements mitigates but does not cure the problem; 
using the value of annual deferral as the benchmark, levelized 
capacity payments based on deferred revenue requirements still 
overpay a QF in the early years. 

Order No. 12634 at 19. 

/--. So, do not just take FF’L’s word for it. Listen to prior Commissions who had the benefit 

of a full record and multiple witnesses. The Value of Deferral method of computing avoided 

costs is the superior approach, particularly for cogeneration contracts for less than the life of the 

planned utility unit. 

The approach has been successfully used for almost 20 years. Extensive cogeneration 

has been encouraged. FPL alone has over 800 MW of firm cogenerated power; but most 

importantly, utility customers have not paid too much. When Section 377.709, Florida Statutes, 

was adopted, the Commission decided it did not have to change from Value of Deferral to 

Revenue Requirements to satisfy the statute, and it did not. Not once in those twenty years of 

Commission cogeneration policy has the Value of Deferral method been challenged with either a 

rule challenge or an appeal. There is no legitimate reason to abandon the proven Value of 

Deferral approach and unjustly enrich cogenerators at the expense of utility customers.. 

P-- 
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A Partiallv Guaranteed Firm Enerav Payment Stream. 

The second change urged upon the Coinmission by established cogenerators is to change 

the method of payment for firm energy in firm Standard Offer contracts. Instead of the current 

method, which is a 100% retrospective determination of what energy generated by the avoided 

unit would have cost, the cogenerators want that payment stream to be 80% retrospective based 

on actual costs and 20% prospective based on forecasted fuel costs at the time the Standard Offer 

contract is entered. They want part of their energy payment stream guaranteed. 

Twenty years ago in Order No. 12634 the Commission also established its method for 

calculating avoided energy costs under firm Standard Offer contracts. The Commission decided 

that cogenerators would be paid the lesser of system incremental energy costs or the energy costs 

that would have been incurred if the energy had been generated by the avoided unit. Essentially, 

this approach recognizes that utility units are economically dispatched. If the avoided unit would 

have been dispatched because it would have been economic to commit it, then a cogenerator 

providing firm energy that allowed the utility to avoid the energy that would have been generated 

by the avoided unit would receive the avoided unit’s energy cosl. However, if the avoided unit 

would not have been economically dispatched because system incremental energy costs were 

below the energy cost associated with the avoided unit, then the cogenerator should receive that 

lower price. 

fl 

Here is how the Commission characterized its methodology in Order No. 12634: 

The rule provides for a firm energy price that is also linked to the 
avoided unit. Commencing with the anticipated in-service date of 
the avoided unit, the QF will receive the lesser of the as available 
energy cost of the utility planning the avoided unit or the energy 
cost associated with the avoided unit itself. The energy cost 
associated with the avoidkd unit is defined as the cost of fuel, in 
cents per KWH, that would have been burncd in the avoided unit, 
calculated by multiplying the average market price of the fuel that 
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would have been burned in the statewide avoided unit by the 
average heat rate associated with it. [Rule 25-17.83(6)]. The rule 
requires payment of “the lesser of‘ because in those situations 
where a utility’s incremental fuel costs were less that the fuel cost 
of the avoided unit, it would not be economical to dispatch it. 

Order No. 12634 at 18. Clearly, under this approach the avoided energy payments can only be 

calculated retrospectively, once one can determine how the avoided unit would have been 

dispatched. 

Although the current methodology for firm energy payments was established in Order 

12634 in 1983, a dispute regarding a potential forecast energy payment quite similar to the 

change proposed by the cogenerators arose and was resolved by the Commission in a 1982 

decision, in Order No. 10943. In that case sample cogeneration tariffs provided that energy 

payments to QFs be made based on estimated or forecast avoided energy costs with a one way 

true up - if actual costs exceeded forecast, then cogenerators received more money. 

In Order No. 10943, the Commission rejected the idea of a guaranteed firm energy 

payment stream based on a forecast. It abandoned both the forecasted, guaranteed energy 

payment stream and the one way true up and began payments based on actual energy cost 

determined after the fact. That is the approach of the current rule that the cogenerators seek to 

change, in part. 

The following is what the Conunission said 20 years ago when rejecting another 

. guaranteed payment stream: 

The purpose of the one way true-up was to guarantee a 
minimum price to QFs to encourage them to come on line; 
however, an unintended consequence of the one way true up is a 
subsidization of cogeneration by other ratepayers. As long as the 
purchase price is the utility’s actual avoided costs, which can 
only be determined rktrospectively, QFs should not be 
guaranteed any price. (Emphasis added.) 

Order No. 10943 at 3. 
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Previous Commissioners were right on the mark 20 years ago. There is no need to 

guarantee energy payments, even in part. QFs have been encouraged to come on line without 

such guaranteed payments. More importantly, by paying actual rather than forecasted avoided 

energy costs, utility custon~ers have not subsidized cogenerators. Why change now? 

The cogenerators argue that this approach should be changed “to protect customers,” to 

provide a hedge against increasing future fuel prices. FPL urges the Commission to be skeptical 

of cogenerators’ professions that they are acting to “protect the customers’ interests” rather than 

their own interests. Unless the cogenerators are acting against their economic interests, an 

improbable conclusion, they seek the rule change because they think it will yield them more 

money. That is more customer money. 

Conservation Must Be Recoenized In Determining Avoided Cost. 

The final rule change the cogenerators seek would also increase customer costs. They 

ask that the Commission reverse its long standing, often challenged, but never rejected practice 

of recognizing conservation wheu calculating avoided cost. 

/4 

The impact of this proposed change is easy to explain. ‘1’0 calculate avoided cost 

payments for cogenerators, one identifies the next unit the utility plans to build to meet its need 

and then calculates the value of deferring or avoiding the unit. Identifying the utility’s next 

planned generating unit requires the use of a load forecast. The issue here is whether that load 

forecast should include or exclude forecasted demand reductions due to conservation. If it 

includes forecasted conservation, the capacity need is deferred and cogenerators are paid less by 

utility customers. If the load forecast excludes forecasted conservation, the capacity need is 

accelerated and utility customers pay cogenerators more. 
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FPL takes the position that Commission approved conservation that has already been 

found by the Commission to be cost-effective (less costly than supply side alternatives) should 

be recognized in the load forecast used to identify the next planned generating unit. This 

conservation has already been subject to review, and the Commission has determined it to be 

cost-effective.’ It is scheduled to be implemented. Ignoring it would be requiring customers to 

pay twice for the same capacity deferral. They would pay once through the ECCR clause and 

again through capacity payments to cogenerators. 

.. 

As previously noted, the Commission has heard and rejected this argument by 

cogenerators on numerous occasions for well articulated reasons. The Commission’s initial 

rejection of this argument was in Order No. 13247, the 1984 order in the proceeding to 

implement the cogeneration rules. The issue was whether the load forecast used to determine the 

r‘. avoided unit should include or exclude prospective conservation. Here, as there, the 

cogenerators ask the Commission to exclude it, to ignore it and to have customer pay twice for it. 

The Commission’s reaction then is equally appropriate now: 

During these proceedings, considerable debate was fostered 
by the QF intervenors as to which load forecast should be used to 
determine the in-service date of the statewide avoided unit. The 
QFs contended that the load forecast should exclude the effects of 
utility sponsored demand side conservation programs. In our 
opinion, these arguments are totally without merit. (Emphasis 
added.) Specifically we reject the testimony of Dr. Spann and Mr. 
Seidman regarding this subject. The Commission’s cogeneration 
rules. implicitly require that the effects of utility sponsored 
conservation programs be reflected in the utilities’ load forecasts 
for the purpose of determining the timing of the statewide avoided 

#-. 

In Order No. PSC-99- 1942-FOF-EG, the Commission approved conservation goals of an 
additional 496 MW for the years 2003 through 2009. This was the amount of conservation the 
Commission found to be reasonably achievable and cost-effective on FPL’s system, and it was 
based upon a comprehensive analysis conducted pursuant to Commission order. The following 
year the Commission approved a DSM plan filed by FPL designed to achieve its reasonably 
achievable, cost-effective level of DSM. See, Order No. PSC-00-0915-PAA-EG. 
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unit. Rule 25-17.83(4) describes certain evidence and the scope of 
analysis to be presented to the Coinmission by each utility to assist 
the Commission in determining the statewide avoided unit. Rule 
25-1 7.83(4)(a) specifically requires each utility to identify its next 
platlned uncertified generating unit to be added to its system 
pursuant to its most current long range generation expansion 
plan (emphasis added). The only adjustment to the utility’s 
generation expansion plan is the specified exclusion of anticipated 
purchases from qualifying facilities which are not currently under 
contract. Logic, as well as past Commission practice since the 
adoption of the Florida Energy Efficiency and Conservation Act 
(FEECA), dictates that a utility’s most current long range 
generation expansion plan must be based on the utility’s most 
current “expected case” load forecast, inclusive of conservation. 
Had we desired to treat conservation differently, we would have 
expressly stated so as was done with regard to non-contracted QF 
capacity. 

The fact is, we do not desire to exclude the effects of utility 
sponsored conservation programs from the load forecasts or 
generation expansion plans of the Florida utilities in determining 
the statewide avoided unit. The reason for this was clearly stated 
in Mr. Jenkins’ testimony: conservation in the aggregate is 
significantly more cost effective than cogeneration (TR 1107-12). 
As such, exclusion of the effects of utility sponsored 
conservation programs from the load forecast in this 
proceeding would result in payments to qualifying facilities in 
excess of the utilities’ avoided costs and hence, subsidization of 
cogeneration by the general body of Florida ratepayers. This 
is clearly contrary to the intent of the Commission’s 
cogeneration rules and policy. (Emphasis added.) 

Undeterred, cogenerators raised the argument again in subsequent hearings. Again the 

Confission rejected it. For instance, in 1989 in Docket No. 890004-EU, FICA, the Florida 

Industrial Cogenerators Association, took issue with recognizing conservation in determining the 

avoided unit. The Commission rejected the argument as it had in the past and should here as 

well: 

Because of FCG’s treatment of these variables, FICA states that 
the FCG‘s avoided unit study is not a least-cost generation 
expansion plan. We disagree. As discussed above, conservation 
and cogeneration are modeled as integral parts of the generation 

. 
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expansion studies. As we have consistently ruled in the past, we 
consider this to be the appropriate treatment for these alternatives 
to construction. For conservation this treatment is appropriate 
since it is less expensive than the construction of new generation 
and would be pursued first in an optimal .. generation expansion 
plan .... 

Order No. 22341 at 4. The Commission went on to note conservation and load management 

were already pre-approved by the Conlmission as cost-effective. 

The Coeenerators’ “Settlement” Offer. 

On the eve of the Staffs February 25, 2003 rule development workshop, several solid 

waste facilities offered a “settlement” proposal. The “settlenient” proposal made no mention of 

their suggested rule amendments to fix part of the avoided energy payment stream or to ignore 

conservation in determining avoided cost. Their “settlement” proposal did suggest that Revenue 

Requirements rather than Value of Deferral be used to calculate avoided costs, and it also 

allowed solid waste facilities (not all cogenerators) to choose the term of the standard offer 
,-- 

contract between 10 and 30 years. In addition, it offered modest “discounts” from Revenue 

Requirements for longer term contracts chosen by solid waste facilities. 

The “settlement” proposal is not a settlement at all. Even with the purported discount 

associated with longer term contracts, customers would be paying more under this proposal thau 

they are under the current rule, because of the change of the method of calculating avoided cost 

from Value of Deferral to Revenue Requirements. 

The “settlement” proposal suffers. from the same infirmities that are associated with the 

cogenerators’ rule proposals. It is inconsistent with established cogeneration policy of using 

Value of Deferral rather than Revenue Requirements to measure avoided cost. It is unnecessary, 

because there is no problem that needs to  be addressed. Most importantly, it results in customers 

needlessly paying more for cogenerated power than they would receive in terms of value. In 
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short, it employs an improper measure of avoided cost resulting in unjust enrichment of solid 

waste facilities. In addition, there are at least two other problems with the “settlement” proposal. 

First, it contains a provision that clearly would result in customers paying twice for the 

same capacity. Section 4(h)(1) of the proposal has a provision that if a contract does not result in 

the avoidance of a utility’s unit and the unit is built, then the solid waste facility may extend the 

contract up to the life of the unavoided unit. If the contract does not purchase capacity deferral 

and the utility has to build the unit, customers would be paying for the unit addition as well as 

the contract extension. Such a double payment for capacity is unwarranted. If solid waste 

facility contracts do not allow deferral or avoidance of a utility unit, then they should be denied 

avoided capacity payments rather than receive the right to extend a contract that has proven to be 

worthless to customers. 

7- Second, this rulc provision goes much furthcr than is necessary for the Commission to 

comply with Section 377.709, Florida Statutes. Section 377.709, Florida Statutes is not intended 

to result in customers subsidizing license for solid waste facilities. “lie Commission has already 

complied with the statute by making standard offer contracts available to solid waste facilities. 

The Commission does not have to employ Revenue Requirements for this type of cogenerator 

and Value of Deferral for others to comply with Section 377.709, Florida Statutes. In fact, such 

a decision would violate the statute because the statute contemplates that only avoided cost 

should be paid, and under prior Commission policy the payment of Revenue Requirements 

instead of Value of Deferral would be a payment in excess of avoided costs. In addition, 

PURPA, which creates the standard offer requirement, does not extend it to solid waste facilities. 

n e  Commission has previously extended the standard offer to solid waste facilities to satisfy 
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Section 377.709, Florida Statutes, and nothing more is required to comply with that statute than 

what is currently available under the existing rule. 

Conclusions Regarding the Coeenerators’ Prouosed Rule Chanees 

The Commission said it best on any number of occasions. None of the rule changes 

proposed by the cogenerators should be adopted. Each of the proposed changes enhnnces 

cogenerator revenue at customer expense. Each of them is a solution in search of a problem. 

They are contrary to the Commission’s intent and well-established cogeneration policy. In 

contrast, the change of the standard offer minimum term from 10 to 5 years reflects the 

Commission’s policy and should be adopted. 

Respectfully submitted, 

Steel Hector & Davis, LLP 
Suite 601 
215 South Monroe Street 
Tallahassee, Florida 32301 

Attomeys for Florida Power 
& Light Company 

TAL-1998 44906vl 
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11 
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13 
14 
15 
16 
17 
18 
19 
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21 
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Revenue Requirements 

Value of Deferral Methodologies 
VS 

YEAR 
2004 
2005 
2006 
2007 
2008 
2009 
2010 
201 1 
2012 
2013 
2014 
2015 
201 6 
2017 
2018 
2019 
2020 
2021 
2022 
2023 
2024 
2025 
2026 
2027 

2029 
203C 
2031 
203; 
2032 

2028 

TOTAL 
REVENUE 

?EQUIREMENT 
7.766.73 
7,547.25 
7,295.74 
7,054.91 
6,823.98 
6,602.21 
6.386.90 
6,183.41 
5,982.30 
5,781.82 
5,581.33 
5,380.84 
5,180.36 
4.979.07 
4,779.39 
4,578.90 
4.378.42 
4,177.93 
3.977.45 
3,776.96 
3,599.37 
3,467.55 
3,350.62 
3,249.69 
3,140.77 
3,031.84 
2,922.91 
2.813.98 
2,705.0E 
2,596.12 

I 78,637 1 NPV @ 6.54% 

LEVELIZED 
REVENUE 

REQUIREMENT 
5.673.28 
5,673.28 
5,673.28 
5,673.28 
5.673.26 
5,673.28 
5,673.28 
5,673.28 
5,673.28 
5.673.28 
5.673.26 
5,673.28 
5,673.26 
5,673.20 
5,673.20 
5,673.28 
5,673.20 
5,673.28 
5,673.28 
5.673.20 
5.673.28 
5,673.28 
5.673.20 
5,673.28 

5.673.20 
5,673.28 
5,673.26 
5.673.28 

5,673.28 

5,673.28 

I 78,637 I 

VALUE 
OF 

DEFERRAL 
4.593.16 
41685.02 
4,776.72 
4,874.30 
4,971.76 
5,071.22 
5,172.64 
5,276.10 
5,381.62 
5,489.25 
5.599.04 
5,711.02 
5,825.24 
5,941.74 
6,060.58 
6.181.78 
6.305.43 
6,431.52 
6,560.1E 
6,691.37 
6,825.1 I 
6,961.7C 
7,100.92 
7,242.9t 
7.387.8: 
7,5355 
7.686.2I 
7,840.0( 
7.996.0( 
8,156.71 

1 78.637 I 
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Responsive Comments of Florida Power 8 Light Company 

FPL submits these comments in response to the rulemaking proceeding 

initiated by the Florida Public Service Commission to amend Rule 25-17.0832, 

Florida Administrative Code, relating to firm capacity and energy contracts. 

FPL's comments support the proposed rule modification initiated by the 

Commission. The amendments proposed by the Commission address primarily 

the reduction of the minimum term of the Standard Offer Contract from ten years 

to five years. FPL supports this modification. Although FPL has taken the 

approach of requesting a waiver on a case by case basis, it does not oppose this 

proposed change. This amendment to Rule 25-17.0832 will alleviate the need to 

file recurring and expensive rule waiver requests. Given the number of rule 

waiver requests that have been granted, this amendment essentially captures 

Commission policy. 

P-. 

On the other hand, FPL is concerned with and strongly opposes the 

suggestion by Lee County, Miami-Dade County and Montenay-Dade ("the 

Parties") for additional amendments to Rule 25-17.0832. The suggested 

amendments are contrary to established Commission policy in implementing 

Statute 366.051. The amendments proposed include: 1) basing the Standard 

Offer rates, terms and conditions on the purchase of power rather than only on 

the construction alternative, 2) using revenue requirements as the baqis to 

calculate payments pursuant to a Standard Offer Contract, 3) allowing the 

Qualifying Facility to specify the duration of the contract, 4) providing for a 



r- 

minimum of 20 YO of the energy payment pursuant to the Standard Offer Contract 

to be based on the projected energy cost used by the utility at the time the 

contract is executed, and 5) excluding all demand side management alternatives 

not implemented or under contract from the utility's analyses in identifying its 

avoided unit. Adoption of these provisions would reverse twenty years of 

Commission cogeneration policy reflected in the current rule. Most, if not all, of 

the arguments presented by the Parties in support of their proposed 

amendments have been presented to the Commission in the past and have been 

rejected by the Commission. FPL believes it is a waste of the Commission's time 

to consider the amendments proposed by the Parties. These amendments 

significantly increase risks and costs to utility customers by subjecting them to 

payments higher than the purchasing utility's avoided costs. .- 

The rulemaking proceeding initiated by the Commission addressed the 

reduction of the minimum term of the Standard Offer Contract from ten to five 

years. The result of this modification is to limit the risk that customers will be tied 

to long-term contracts that do not reflect the avoided cost of the utility. The 

additional amendments proposed by the Parties will have the opposite result in 

that they will increase the risk to the customers and result in payments to 

qualifying facilities that are higher than the avoided costs of the purchasing utility. 

Section 366.051 establishes the rates for purchases from cogenerators 

and small power producers at rates equal to the purchasing utility's full avoided 

cost. The Commission has taken a balanced approach in implementing the 

2 
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statute by balancing the allocation of the risks and benefits associated with 

purchases from Qualifying Facilities. 

Basing Standard Offer Contracts on Purchase Options 

Early on in its consideration of cogeneration rules the Commission 

considered and rejected the idea being advanced by the Parties, paying the 

higher of a construction or a purchased alternative as avoided cost. The 

Commission expressed a willingness to consider a purchase alternative as a 

measure of avoided cost, but only if the purchase was less costly than 

construction: 

Several intervenors, notably Dade County, urged us to 
consider all alternatives to additional construction available to a 
utility in pricing QF capacity. If other supply side alternatives, such 
as off system firm power purchases, are identified as available and 
less costly than constructi6n of the statewide avoided unit, we will 
take that into account in pricing the standard offer. We will not 
consider supply side alternatives more costly than the value of 
deferral because it would not benefit the ratepayers to pursue 
them, regardless of the source. (Emphasis added.) 

In re: Amendment of Rules 25-1 7.80 throuah 25-1 7.89 relation to coaeneration. 

83 FPSC 10:150,166 (Order No. 12634). The Commission recognized then, as it 

should now; that using purchases as a measure of avoided cost was appropriate 

only when such cost was lower than construction cost. Any other arrangement 

penalizes customers. 

3 



Using Revenue Requirements Rather than Value of Deferral to Calculate 
Capacity Payments 

The Revenue Requirements methodology for use in calculating capacity 

payments was rejected in the early days of QF rulemaking, in the early 80s. The 

preferred methodology to be used in calculating avoided costs payments has 

always been the value of deferral methodology. The Commission also resolved 

the revenue requirements versus value of deferral issue in Order No. 12634. 

There it said: 

We believe that the value-of-deferral methodology is superior to a 
revenue requirements methodology for a couple of reasons. First, 
revenue requirements are based on a thirty-year depreciation life 
for a power plant. The payments are relatively high in the early 
years and relatively low in the later years: if ratepayers receive 
service from the plant for thirty years, the disadvantage of the high 
payments in the early years is offset by the benefit of low payments 
in the later years. That symmetry is missing if a QF makes only a 
ten-year commitment; a QF would receive the high end of the 
deferred revenue requirements stream without a concomitant 
obligation to provide service in exchange for relatively low deferred 
revenue requirements in later years. Second, capacity payments 
based on deferred revenue requirements would overpay the QF in 
early years, thus getting into the thorny problem of securing all 
capacity payments for a number of years, not just those made 
pursuant to the early payment option. 

The value-of-deferral methodology overcomes these 
problems. First the deferral method pays the QF only what it earns 
in any given year, the value of an annual deferral, thus eliminating 
the security question in ordinary circumstances. Second. the value- 
of-deferral method will, over the thirty-year depreciation life of the 
avoided unit, pay a QF the same amount it would have received if 
its capacity payments had been based on deferred revenue 
requirements. That is, at the end of the thirty years, a QF would 
have received the same total amount on a present value basis, 
under either methodology; the difference between the two methods 
lies in the level of payment in any given year in that thirty year 
period. Levelizing capacity payments based on avoided revenue 
requirements mitigates but does not cure the problem; using the 
value of annual deferral as the benchmark, levelized capacity 

P 
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payments based on deferred revenue requirements still overpay a 
QF in the early years. 

The Commission’s observations in 1983 are equally valid today. The revenue 

requirements methodology advanced by the parties unduly benefits QFs at .the 

expense of customers. 

The value-of-deferral methodology balances the benefit of purchasing 

from QFs with the risk of the purchasing utility paying more than full avoided cost. 

While theoretically a contract term equal to the life of the avoided unit using a 

revenue requirement methodology will yield payments on a net present value 

basis that are equal to payments using the value of deferral methodology, the 

practical result of this approach is a significant shift in risks to the customers of 

payments for purchased power at rates that are considerably higher than avoided 

costs. Should the QF walk away for any reason prior to the 30 or 40 year 

contract, the customers would pay more than the avoided cost. This problem is 

exacerbated by a history of decreasing generating capacity costs. 

/-. 

Allowing the QF to Specify Contract Duration -Minimum Term 

/4. 

The burden of justifying the term of the Standard Offer Contract has been 

placed on the utility, where it belongs. The minimum term specified in the 

Standard Offer Contract allows the Commission to implement, through its rules, a 

policy that once again balances risks. The minimum term needs to be long 

enough to incorporate planning needs and QF contractual requirements while at 

the same time protecting the customers from paying higher than avoided costs. 
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The narrow criteria that has to be met in order to qualify for a Standard Offer 

contract are such that the potential exists for payments to result in a subsidy. 

The five year minimum term mitigates this risk. Furthermore, allowing the QF to 

specify the term of the contract results in a significant shift in risks. The QF will 

only take into account its interests in deciding the term and will not consider a 

balancing of risks vs. benefds for the customers. 

In originally approving a ten-year minimum term, the Commission was 

concerned about customers receiving capacity deferral benefits. It was 

recognized delivery for ten years was important from a planning perspective. 

Order No. 12634 at 168. Given the long unit permitting and construction times at 

that time, ten years was a reasonable term, but given the shorter terms currently 

prevalent, a five year term is reasonable from a planning perspective. /4 

Energy Payments based on Projected Energy Costs 

P. 

The energy payments associated with a Standard Offer Contract are tied 

to the actual cost of the fuel associated with the avoided unit or the as-available 

energy cost. The Commission explained the rationale for this linkage in Order 

No. 12634: 

The rule provides for a firm energy price that is also linked to 
the avoided unit. Commencing with the anticipated in-service date 
of the avoided unit, the QF will receive the lesser of the as available 
energy cost of the utility planning the avoided unit or the energy 
cost associated with the avoided unit itself. The energy cost 
associated with the avoided unit is defined as the cost of fuel, in 
cents per KWH. that would have been burned in the avoided unit, 
calculated by multiplying the average market price of the fuel that 
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would have been burned in the statewide avoided unit by the 
average heat rate associated with it. [Rule 25-17.83(6)]. The rule 
requires payment of the “lesser of‘ because in those situations 
where a utility’s incremental fuel cost were less that the fuel cost of 
the avoided unit, it would not be economical to dispatch it. 

History has demonstrated the inherent uncertainty associated with 

forecasting fuel costs. Once again, the suggestion that the energy payments 

should be, in part, tied to forecasted fuel prices shifts the risks from the QF to the 

customer. Each time the Commission has taken up the issue of payments to 

QFs in the past, the outcome has been to mitigate risks associated with energy 

payments by tying them to the current market price at the time of the purchase. 

Excluding Demand Side Management Alternatives not Implemented or 
under Contract 

Finally, the issue of excluding demand side management alternatives that 

are not implemented or currently under contract only serves to artificially increase 

the avoided costs associated with the avoided unit. The process of identifying 

the next unit to be avoided typically starts with the Ten Year Site Plan. The Ten 

Year Site Plan represents the utility’s current official generation expansion 

planning document. The demand side alternatives included in the plan are 

previously presented and approved by the Commission. Order No. PSC-99- 

1942-FOF-EG approved FPL‘s demand side management targets included in 

FPL‘s generation expansion plan. To exclude the approved demand side 

management plan in the utility’s determination of its next unit to be avoided can 

.-- 
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only result in Standard Offer Contracts with payment terms and conditions higher 

than the Utility's avoided cost. 

The Commission has previously considered and rejected this conservation 

argument on several occasions. Perhaps the clearest rejection of this argument 

is found in Order No. 13247: 

During these proceedings, considerable debate was fostered 
by the QF intervenors as to which load forecast should be used to 
determine the in-service date of the statewide avoided unit. The 
QFs contended that the load forecast should exclude the effects of 
utility sponsored demand side conservation programs. In our 
opinion, these arguments are totally without merit. Specifically 
we reject the testimony of Dr. Spann and Mr. Seidman regarding 
this subject. The Commission's cogeneration rules implicitly 
require that the effects of utility sponsored conservation programs 
be reflected in the utilities' load forecasts for the purpose of 
determining the timing of the statewide avoided unit. Rule 25- 
17.83(4) describes certain evidence and the scope of analysis to be 
presented to the Commission by each utility to assist the 
Commission in determining the statewide avoided unit. Rule 25- 
17.83(4)(a) specifically requires each utility to identify its next 
planned uncertified generating unit to be added to its system 
pursuant to its most current lonq ranae qeneration expansion plan 
(emphasis added). The only adjustment to the utility's generation 
expansion plan is the specified exclusion of anticipated purchases 
from qualifying facilities that are not currently under contract. Logic, 
as well as past Commission practice since the adoption of the 
Florida Energy Efficiency and Conservation Act (FEECA) dictates 
that a utility's most current long range generation expansion plan 
must be based on the utility's most current "expected case" load 
forecast, inclusive of conservation. Had we desired to treat 
conservation differently, we would have expressly stated so as was 
done with regard to non-contracted QF capacity. 

The fact is. we do not desire to exclude the effects of utility 
sponsored conservation programs from the load forecasts or 
generation expansion plans of the Florida utilities in determining the 
statewide avoided unit. The reason for this was clearly stated in 
Mr. Jenkins' testimony: conservation in the aggregate is 
significantly more cost effective than cogeneration (TR 1107-12). 
As such, exclusion of the effects of utility sponsored 
conservation programs from the load forecast in this 
proceeding would result in payments to qualifying facilities in 
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excess of the utilities’ avoided costs and hence, subsidization 
of cogeneration by the general body of Florida ratepayers. 
This is clearly contrary to the intent of the Commission’s 
cogeneration rules and policy. (Emphasis added.) 

Conclusion 

FPL concludes, for the reasons set forth herein, that the amendments 

proposed by the Commission serve to capture Commission policy. FPL supports 

the changes proposed by the Commission. On the other hand, FPL strongly 

opposes the additional amendments to Rule 25-17.0832 proposed by Lee 

County, Miami-Dade County and Montenay-Dade. These additional proposed 

amendments are contrary to Commission policy and only serve to increase the 

risk that customers in the state of Florida will pay higher than avoided cost for the 

power purchased pursuant to a utility’s Standard Offer Contract. 

Respectfully submitted, 

By: 

Steel Hector &%avis LLP 
Suite 601. 
215 S. Monroe St. 
Tallahassee, Florida 32301 
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BEFORE THE 

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 

In Re: Proposed Amendments To Rule 25- 
17.0832, F.A.C., Firm Capacity and Energy 
Contracts. 

) 

1 
1 

Docket No. 001574-EQ 

Filed: December 21,2000 

POST-WORKSHOP COMMENTS OF 

FLORIDA POWER & LIGHT COMPANY 

After reviewing Written comments filed in Docket No. 001574-EQ an- ..%wing the 

comments at the December 12,2000 workshop (the "Workshop"), Florida Power & Light 

("FPL"), through its undersigned counsel, hereby submits the following comments to 

suggested revisions of Rule 25-17.0832, F.A.C, Firm Capacity and Energy Contracts. 

FPL Opposes the Proposed Elimination Of Subscription Limits 

1. FPL opposesproposed changes to Rule 25-17.0832 that result in elimination 

of standard offer contract subscription limits. The Public Utility Regulatory Policy Act 

( "PWA")  and section 366.051 of the Florida Statutes (1999) require onlypayment of 

"avoided" costs. Removing the subscription limits entirely would imply that the Florida 

Public Service Commission ("FPSC" or the "Commission") at least in principle accepts 

the proposition that a utility's electric customers are required to bear capacity costs in 

excess of those actually avoided through deferral or avoidance of a generating unit. 

While encouraging cogeneration and small power production, the Florida Legislature did 

not intend that public utilities pay more than their avoided costs for such purchased 

power. Specifically, Section 366.051 provides in pertinent part: "In fixing rates for 

power purchased by public utilities from cogenerators or small power producers, the 



commission shall authorize a rate equal to the purchasing utility's full avoided costs."' 

Section 366.051 clearly defines a utility's "full avoided cost" as ". . . the incremental 

costs to the utility of the electric energy or capacity, or both, which but for the purchase 

from cogenerators or small power producers, such utility would generate itself or 

purchase ftom another source." The definition does not envision the utility paying for 

capacity in excess of that which is actually deferred or avoided. 

2. Because eliminatingthe subscription limit for standard offer contracts would 

imply the potential for payment of costs in excess of a utility's avoided costs, it also 

would endorse the concept of ratepayer subsidization of qualifying facilities. Assuming 

arguendo that a unit can be avoided or deferred through the issuance of a standard offer 

contract, the language of the proposed amendment completely removes the subscription 

limit altogether, thereby opening up the possibility of requiring investor owned utilities 

to make capacity payments beyond the planned capacity actually deferred or avoided? 

Based on comments made at the Workshop, the Commission staff ("Staff') did not 

intend such a result in proposing an elimination of the subscription limit. 

3. Although it is questionable in today's market whether there is sufficient latent 

qualifylng facility capacity such that a standard offer contract would result in subscriptions 

in excess of the actual avoided unit, FPL does not believe that the Rule should be amended 

in a way that, even if only in theory, provides the opportunity for ratepayer subsidization of 

qualifylng facilities. FPL submits that such a result is contrary to the intent and letter ofboth 

state and federal law and regulation. 

3. The Commission's own rules recognize and support this very same principle: 

Emphasis added. 

See e.g., Notice of Proposed Rule Development In Re: Proposed Amendments To Rule 25-1 7.0832, 
F.A.C., Firm C a p a c i ~  And Energv Contracts, Section 25-17.0832(4)(d)(Z), deleting the language "the total 
amount of committed capacity, in megawatts, needed to fully subscribe the avoided unit specified in the 
contract." 



r. 

,-- 

The rates, terms, and other conditions contained in each 
utility’s standard offer contracts shall be based on the need 
for and equal to the avoided cost of deferring or avoiding the 
construction of additional generation capacity or parts 
thereof by the purchasing utility. 

FPL respectfully suggests that eliminating entirely the nexus between the avoided unit (i.e., 

the identified generation need of the utility) and the subscription limits for standard offer 

contracts from Rule 25-17.0832, would contravene both state and federal law. 

FPL Does Not Oppose Proposed Changes Limiting Standard Offer 

Contract Terms To A Maximum Of Five Years 

4. FPL does not oppose proposed amendments to Rule 25-17.0832 creating a 

maximum term of five years over which firm capacity and energy may be delivered from 

the qualifjmg facility to the utility. On the other hand, FPL is not opposed at this time 

to the proposal made by counsel for the Florida Industrial Cogeneration Association 

(“FICA“), the City of Tampa, and the Solid Waste Authority of Palm Beach County 

(“Authority”) that the Rule be amended to lower the minimum contract term from ten to 

five years but retain the provision that limits the maximum term “to the anticipated plant 

life of the avoided unit.”4 

5.  FPL’s non-opposition to this proposal, however, should not be construed as 

agreement that a standard offer contract for any fixed term that includes capacity 

payments must be offered in all situations, even where no capacity will be deferred or 

avoided. FPL maintains the position that unless capacity will be actually deferred or 

avoided, capacity payments to qualifjmg facilities represent inappropriate subsidies (at 

rate payers’ expense) that should not occur, let alone be potentially linked to the life of 

Rule 25-17.0832(4)(b). Emphasis added. 3 

Rule 25.17.0832(4)(e)(7). Because FPL is not at this time opposing the altemative amendment 
proposed by counsel for FICA, the City of Tampa, and the Authority, FPL reserves its comments on the 
arguments regarding the value of deferral methodology advanced at the Workshop and in prelimiway 
comments. FPL reserves the right to file supplemental comments to the extent requested by Staff or 
otherwise deemed necessary by FPL. 



n an "un-avoided" unit. Utilities would continue to be free to seek a waiver of the 

minimum term for a standard offer contract on a case-by-case basis as circumstances 

may warrant (e.g., a unit will not actually be deferred or avoided). 

6. In summary, FPL does not oppose Staff's proposed amendment to make the 

maximum term five years. However, FPL would be willing to consider more fully the 

above-referenced altemative proposed at the Workshop by counsel for FICA, the City 

of Tampa, and the Authority. 

Respectfully submitted, this 

21st day of December, 2000 

R. Wade Litchfield 

Florida Power & Light Company 

700 Universe Boulevard 

Juno Beach, Florida 33408-0420 
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POST-WORKSHOP COMMENTS OF 

FLORIDA POWER & LIGHT COMPANY 

After reviewing written comments filed in Docket No. 001574-EQ and hearing 

the comments at the December 12, 2000 workshop (the "Workshop"), Florida Power & 

Light ("FPL"), through its undersigned counsel, hereby submits the following comments 

to suggested revisions of Rule 25-17.0832, F.A.C, Firm Capacity and Energy Contracts. 

FPL Opposes the Proposed Elimination Of Subscription Limits 

1. FPL opposes proposed changes to Rule 25-17.0832 that result in 

elimination of standard offer contract subscription limits. The Public Utility Regulatory 

Policy Act ("PURPA") and section 366.051 of the Florida Statutes (1999) require only 

payment of "avoided" costs. Removing the subscription limits entirely would imply that 

the Florida Public Service Commission ("FPSC" or the "Commission") at least in 

principle accepts the proposition that a utility's electric customers are required to bear 

capacity costs in excess of those actually avoided through deferral or avoidance of a 

generating unit. While encouraging cogeneration and small power production, the 

Florida Legislature did not intend that public utilities pay more than their avoided costs 

for such purchased power. Specifically, Section 366.051 provides in pertinent part: "In 

fixing rates for power purchased by public utilities from cogenerators or small power 

producers, the commission shall authorize a rate equal to the purchasing utility's full 



avoided costs."' Section 366.051 clearly defines a utility's "full avoided cost" as ". . . the 

incremental costs to the utility of the electric energy or capacity, or both, which but for 

the purchase from cogenerators or small power producers, such utility would generate 

itself or purchase from another source." The definition does not envision the utility 

paying for capacity in excess of that which is actually deferred or avoided. 

/-- 

2.  Because eliminating the subscription limit for standard offer contracts 

would imply the potential for payment of costs in excess of a utility's avoided costs, it 

also would endorse the concept of ratepayer subsidization of qualifying facilities. 

Assuming nrguendo that a unit can be avoided or deferred through the issuance of a 

standard offer contract, the language of the proposed amendment completely removes the 

subscription limit altogether, thereby opening up the possibility of requiring investor 

owned utilities to make capacity payments beyond the planned capacity actually deferred 

or avoided.' Based on comments made at the Workshop, the Commission staff ("Staff") 

did not intend such a result in proposing an elimination of the subscription limit. 
/-- 

3. Although it is questionable in today's market whether there is sufficient 

latent qualifying facility capacity such that a standard offer contract would result in 

subscriptions in excess of the actual avoided unit, FPL does not believe that the Rule 

should be amended in a way that, even if only in theory, provides the opportunity for 

ratepayer subsidization of qualifying facilities. FPL submits that such a result is contrary 

to the intent and letter of both state and federal law and regulation. 

3. The Commission's own rules recognize and support this very same 

principle: 

The rates, terms, and other conditions contained in each 
utility's standard offer contracts shall be based on the need 

/- 

Emphasis added. 

See e.g., Notice of Proposed Rule Development In Re: Proposed Amendments To Rule 25- 
17.0832. F.A.C., Firm Capaciy And Energy Connacts, Section 25-17.0832(4)(d)(2), deleting the language 
"the total amount of committed capacity, in megawatts, needed to fully subscribe the avoided unit specified 
in the contract." 
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n for and equal to the avoided cost of defemng or avoiding 
the construction of additional generation capacity or parts 
thereof by the purchasing utility. 

FPL respectfully suggests that eliminating entirely the nexus between the avoided unit 

(Le., the identified generation need of the utility) and the subscription limits for standard 

offer contracts from Rule 25-17.0832, would contravene both state and federal law. 

FPL Does Not Oppose Proposed Changes Limiting Standard Offer 

Contract Terms To A Maximum Of Five Years 

4. FPL does not oppose proposed amendments to Rule 25-17.0832 creating a 

maximum term of five years over which firm capacity and energy may be delivered from 

the qualifying facility to the utility. On the other hand, FPL is not opposed at this time to 

the proposal made by counsel for the Florida Industrial Cogeneration Association 

("FICA"), the City of Tampa, and the Solid Waste Authority of Palm Beach County 

("Authority") that the Rule be amended to lower the minimum contract term from ten to 

five years but retain the provision that limits the maximum term "to the anticipated plant 

life of the avoided unit.'I4 

/-4 

5.  FPL's non-opposition to this proposal, however, should not be construed 

as agreement that a standard offer contract for any fixed term that includes capacity 

payments must be offered in all situations, even where no capacity will be deferred or 

avoided. FPL maintains the position that unless capacity will be actually deferred or 

avoided, capacity payments to qualifying facilities represent inappropriate subsidies (at 

rate payers' expense) that should not occur, let alone be potentially linked to the life of an 
"un-avoided" unit. Utilities would continue to be free to seek a waiver of the minimum 

3 Rule 25-17.0832(4)(b). Emphasis added. 

Rule 25.17.0832(4)(e)(7). Because FPL is not at this time opposing the altemative amendment 
proposed by counsel for FICA, the City of Tampa, and the Authority, FPL reserves its comments on the 
arguments regarding the value of deferral methodology advanced at the Workshop and in preliminary 
comments. FPL reserves the right to file supplemental comments to the extent requested by Staff or 
otherwise deemed necessary by FPL. 

4 



P. term for a standard offer contract on a case-by-case basis as circumstances may warrant 

(e.g., a unit will not actually be deferred or avoided). 

6 .  In summary, FPL does not oppose Staff's proposed amendment to make 

the maximum term five years. However, FPL would be willing to consider more hlly 

the above-referenced alternative proposed at the Workshop by counsel for FICA, the City 

of Tampa, and the Authority. 

Respectfully submitted, this 

21st day of December, 2000 

Florida Power & Light Company 

700 Universe Boulevard 

Juno Beach, Florida 33408-0420 



$9 Florida Power 
A Pmgreu Energy Company 

JAMES A. MCGEE 
ASSOCIATE GENERAL COUNSEL 

April 2,2002 

Ms. Blanca S. Bayo, Director 
Division of the Commission Clerk 

and Administrative Services 
Florida Public Service Commission 
2540 Shumard Oak Boulevard 
Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0850 

Re: Docket No. 001 574-EQ 

Dear Ms. Bay& 

Enclosed for filing in the subject docket are an original and fifteen copies of 
Florida Power Corporation's Comments on the proposed amendments to Rule 25- 
17.0832, F.A.C. 

Please acknowledge your receipt of the above filing on the enclosed copy of 
this letter and return to the undersigned. Also enclosed is a 3.5 inch diskette 
containing the above-referenced document in Word format. Thank you for your 
assistance in this matter. 

Very truly yours, 

James A. McGee 
JAM/scc 
Enclosure 

cc: Parties of record 
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P Docket No. 001574-EQ 
Re: Proposed Amendments to Rule 25-17.0832 

Comments of Florida Power Corporation 

Florida Power Corporation submits these comments in response to proposed amendments 

to Rule 25-17.0832, Florida Administrative Code, regarding standard offer contracts. The Florida 

Public Service Commission initiated changes to the standard offer rule because of numerous 

waivers that had been requested and granted regarding the minimum term of standard offer 

contracts. The initial proposal was to change the minimum term of a standard offer contract from 

ten years to five years. Florida Power Corporation strongly supports the rule change as initiated 

by the FPSC. 

Lex County, Miami-Dade County, Montenay-Dade, LTD., the City of Tampa and the 

Solid Waste Authority of Palm Beach County, Florida (the “Parties”) have requested additional 

changes to rule 25-17.0832. These suggested amendments are contrary to established 

Commission policy in implementing Statute 366.051. These newly proposed amendments 

include: (1)  requiring that standard offer rates, terms, and conditions be based upon the purchase 

of additional generation rather than only on the construction of the next avoided unit, (2) 

allowing the use of revenue requirements as the basis to calculate payments pursuant to a 

standard offer, (3) allowing the Qualifying Facility to specify the duration of the standard offer 

contract, (4) requiring that a minimum of 20% of the energy purchased with standard offer 

contracts be purchased at a fixed energy price based on the projected energy cost of the avoided 

unit, and (5) excluding all demand side management altematives not implemented or under 

P 

contract from the utility’s analyses used to identify its avoided unit. FPC strongly opposes these 

proposed amendments. The arguments presented by the Parties to support these amendments 

1 



have been presented to the Commission in the past and have been rejected. FPC therefore 

believes that it is a waste of time of the Commission’s time to consider the Parties’ amendments. 

/4 

These amendments significantly increase the risk that the utility’s customers will be 

required to pay costs higher than under the current rules. As initiated by the Commission, this 

rulemaking was to reduce the minimum term of a standard offer from ten years to five years. 

Such an amendment limits the risk that the utility’s customers will be obligated to long-term 

contracts that become uneconomic. On the other hand, the additional amendments proposed by 

the Parties would increase the risk of such uneconomic contracts. 

The Commission has been mandated to establish standard offer rates that are equal to the 

purchasing utilities avoided cost and the Commission has taken a balanced approach in 

implementing this mandate by balancing the risks and benefits associated with purchases from 

Qualifying Facilities. 

Requiring Standard Offer Rates, Terms, And Conditions Be Based Upon the Purchase of 
Additional Generation Rather Than Only On the Construction of the Next Avoided Unit 

P 

Purchases of additional generation by Florida utilities are and have been a common 

practice. However, the majority of such purchases are to address short-term needs. Purchases for 

such short-term needs are typically executed shortly before the need begins making the 

requirement of writing and approving a standard offer contract for such a need impractical to 

everyone. 

Long-term purchases can provide benefits to the utility’s customers that cannot be 

achieved from a single QF facility. For instance, FpC’s long-term purchase agreements are 

system backed products and the reliability cannot be matched by any single facility. This 

additional reliability has value to the utility’s customers. Therefore, a standard offer contract 
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based on the rates of such a purchase would not account for such loss in value and result in costs 

in excess of avoided costs. 

The Use of Revenue Requirements as the Basis to Calculate Payments Pursuant to a 
Standard Offer 

The use of Revenue Requirements methodology in calculating capacity payments was 

rejected in the early days of QF rulemaking. The Commission determined that the preferred 

methodology to be used in calculating avoided costs payments has always been the value of 

deferral methodology. This methodology balances the benefit of purchasing from QFs with the 

risk of the purchasing utility paying more than full avoided cost. The basis of the value of 

deferral methodology is that it determines the cost to defer the construction of a plant for one 

year. Therefore, under the value of deferral the term of the contract is not relevant as long as it is 

less than the economic life of the avoided unit. This is because for each successive year the 

avoided cost is the cost of deferring the construction of the avoided unit for another year until the 

end of the life of the avoided unit. 

/-- 

A standard offer contract with a term equal to the life of the avoided unit using the value 

of deferral will yield payments on a net present value basis that are q u a 1  to payments using 

revenue requirements methodology. However, the practical result of the revenue requirements 

approach is a significant increase in the risk to the utility’s customers. This increased risk is 

because if the QF fails to perform for any reason prior to the end of the contract, the utility’s 

customers would pay more than under the value of deferral methodology. This additional risk is 

further exacerbated by the decreasing payments under the revenue requirement methodology. 

Allowing the Qualifying Facility to Specify the Duration of the Standard Offer Contract 

F. The burden of justifying the term of the Standard Offer Contract has been placed on the 

utility, where it belongs. The minimum term only needs to be long enough to incorporate the 
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/4 utility’s planning needs. The criteria that are specified in the Commission’s rules and must be 

met in order to qualify for a Standard Offer contract are narrow. This is appropriate because the 

standard offer is a pre-approved contract. If the QF does not meet the criteria in the standard 

offer, then the utility is obligated to negotiate in good faith under 25-17.0834(1). 

Requiring that A Minimum of 20% of the Energy Purchased with Standard Offer 
Contracts Be Purchased at a Fixed Energy Price Based on the Projected Energy Cost of the 
Avoided Unit 

The energy payments associated with a standard offer contract are tied to the cost of fuel 

delivered to the utility associated with the avoided unit. History has demonstrated the 

speculative nature of forecasting fuel costs. More often than not, the forecasted energy payments 

have been higher that market prices. Once again, the suggestion that the energy payments should 

be, in part, tied to forecasted fuel prices shifts the risks from the QF to the customer. After all, 

the price for fuel delivered to the utility is the best approximation of the price of fuel to be used 

at the avoided unit. Each time the Commission has taken up the issue of payments to QFs in the 

past the outcome has been to mitigate risks associated with energy payments by tying them to the 

actual utility prices at the time of the purchase 

Excluding All Demand Side Management Alternatives Not Implemented or Under 
Contract From the Utility’s Analyses Used To Identify Its Avoided Unit 

Finally, the issue of excluding demand side management altematives that are not 

implemented or currently under contract only serves to artificiaIly increase the avoided costs 

associated with the avoided unit. The process of identifying the next unit to be avoided typically 

starts with the Ten Year Site Plan. The Ten Year Site Plan represents the utility’s current official 

generation expansion planning document. The demand side altematives included in the plan are 

previously presented and approved by the Commission. To exclude the approved demand side 

management plan in the utility’s determination of its next unit to be avoided can only results in 
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Standard Offer Contract with payment terms and conditions higher than the Utility’s avoided 

cost. 

Conclusion 

In conclusion, with their proposed amendments the Parties are clearly attempting to 

increase the payments they would receive under a standard offer contract. The criteria that are 

specified in the Commission’s rules and must be met in order to qualify for a Standard Offer 

contract are narrow. Again, this is appropriate because the standard offer is a pre-approved 

contract. If the QF does not meet the criteria in the standard offer, then the utility is obligated to 

negotiate in good faith under 25-17.0834(1). The Parties that proposed these changes are all 

govemmental bodies or large corporations that would negotiate many large contracts that are 

required for a solid waste facility and they are certainly capable to negotiate with a utility or any 

other wholesale purchaser in the event that the standard offer contract does not meet their needs. 
/- 
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AUSLEY & MCMULLEN 
ATTORNEYS AND COUNSELORS AT LAW 

2 2 7  SOUTH CALHOUN STREET 

P . 0 .  BOX 391 (ZIP 32302) 
TALLAHASSEE. FLORIDA S 2 3 0 1  

18501 224.9115 FAX (BSOI  2 2 2 . 7 5 5 0  

March 7,2003 

HAND DELIVERED 

Ms. Blanca S. Bayo, Director 
Division of Commission Clerk 

and Administrative Services 
Florida Public Service Commission 
2540 Shumard Oak Boulevard 
Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0850 

Re: Proposed amendments to Rule 25-17.0832, F.A.C., Firm Capacity and Energy 
Contracts; FPSC Docket No. 001574-EQ 

Dear Ms. Bayo: 
I' 

Enclosed for filing in the above docket are the original and fifteen (15) copies of  Tampa 
Electric Company's Post-Workshop Comments. 

Please acknowledge receipt and filing of the above by stamping the duplicate copy of this 
letter and remming same to this writer. 

Thank you for your assistance in connection with this matter. 

Sincerely, 

JDBM 
Enclosure 

cc: All Parties of Record (w/enc.) 
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BEFORE THE FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 

In re: Proposed amendments to Rule 25-1 7.0832, ) 

) FILED: March 7,2003 
F.A.C., Firm Capacity and Energy Contracts. ) DOCKET NO. 001574-EQ 

TAMPA ELECTRIC COMPANY’S 
POST-WORKSHOP COMMENTS 

Tampa Electric Company (“Tampa Electric” or “the company”) submits the following 

Post Workshop Comments conceming Staffs proposed amendments to Rule 25.17.0832: 

1. At the conclusion of the rule development workshop conducted on February 25, 

2003, participants were offered an opportunity to submit furfher Written comments by March 7, 

2003. 

2. Tampa Electric adopts and incorporates herein by reference the comments that it 

presented on three prior occasions in this proceeding as follows: 

a. 

b. 

c. 

Tampa Elecmc’s Post-Workshop Comments filed December 21, 2000. 

Tampa Electric’s Prefiled Comments submitted March 1,2002. 

Tampa Electric’s Responsive Comments filed April 1,2002. 

WHEREFORE, Tampa Electric submits these its Post-Workshop Comments and urges 

that the amendments to Rule 25-17.0832 be adopted as proposed in Staffs recommendation 

dated January 21,2003 and without the further modifications urged on behalf of the cogenerators 

and small power producers who are participating in this proceeding. 



rlL_ 
DATED this 7 day of March 2003. 

Respectfully submitted, 

L&L. WILLIS 
JAMES D. BEASLEY 
Ausley & McMullen 
Post Office Box 391 
Tallahassee, FL 32302 
(850) 224-91 15 

ATTORNEYS FOR TAMPA ELECTRIC COMPANY 

?--- 

e 
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that a true copy of the foregoing Post-Workshop Comments, filed 

on behalf of Tampa Electric Company, has been furnished by hand delivery (*) or U. S. Mail on 

this &ay of March 2003 to the following: 
dL, 

Mr. Richard Bellak* 
Staff Counsel 
Florida Public Service Commission 
Room 301F - Gerald L. Gunter Bldg. 
2540 Shumard Oak Boulevard 
Tallahassee, FL 32399-0850 

Mr. Richard Zambo 
598 SW Hidden River Avenue 
Palm City, FL 34990 

Mr. Robert Scheffel Wright 
Landers & Parsons P.A. 

Tallahassee, FL 32302 

Mr. David M. Owen 
Assistant County Attomey 
Post Office Box 398 
Ft. Myers FL 33902 

Mr. Frederick M. Skopp 
Montenay Intemational Cop .  
3225 Aviation Avenue, Fourth Floor 
Miami, FL 33133 

Ms. Susan D. Ritenour 
Gulf Power Company 
One Energy Place 
Pensacola. FL 32520-0780 

F-. Post Office Box 271 

Mr. Jon Moyle, Jr. 
Moyle Flanigan Katz Raymond 
& Sheehan, PA 

11 8 N. Gadsden Street 
Tallahassee, F132301 

Mr. Robert Ginsburg 
Mr. Eric A. Rodriguez 
Miami-Dade County Attomey’s Office 
111 N.W. l*‘Street, Suite2810 
Miami, FL 33128-1993 

Mr. James A. McGee 
Progress Energy Florida, Inc. 
Post OEce  Box 14042 
St. Petersburg, FL 33733-4042 

Mr. Charles Guyton 
Steel Hector &Davis 
215 S. Monroe Street, Suite 601 
Tallahassee, FL 32301-1 804 

Mr. Russell Badders 
Mr. Jeffery Stone 
Beggs & Lane 
Post Office Box 12950 
Pensacola, FL 32576 

e+7 
ATTORNEY 

/-- h:\ldb\wWOl574 port workshop eo”cnrr.doc 
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AUSLEY & MCMULLEN 
ATTORNEYS A N D  C O U N S E L O R S  AT LAW 

2 2 7  sourn CALHOUN STREET 

P.O. BOX 391 (ZIP 3 2 3 0 2 )  

TALLAHASSEE, FLORIDA 3 2 3 0 1  

18501 224-9115 FAX 1850) 2 2 Z - 7 5 6 0  

April 1,2002 

HAND DELIVERED 

Ms. Blanca S. Bayo, Director 
Division of Commission Clerk 
'and Administrative Services 

Florida Public Service Commission 
2540 Shumard Oak Boulevard 
Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0850 

Re: Proposed amendments to Rule 25-17.0832, F.A.C., Firm Capacity and Energy 
Contracts; FPSC Docket No. 001574-EQ 

Dear Ms. Bayo: 
n 

Enclosed for filing in the above docket are the original and fifteen (15) copies of 
Responsive Comments of Tampa Electric Company. 

Please acknowledge receipt and filing of the above by stamping the duplicate copy of this 
letter and retuming same to this writer. 

Thank you for your assistance in connection with this matter. 

Sincerely, 

JDBIPP 
Enclosure 

cc: RichardBellak (wienc.) . 
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DOCKET NO. 001574-EQ 
FILED: April 1, 2002 

Tampa Electric Company ("Tampa Electric" or "the company"), 

having participated in the March 12, 2002 informal workshop in 

this matter, adheres to its previously submitted written 

comments in support of Staff's proposed amendments to Rule 2 5 -  

17.0832, Florida Administrative Code. As a preliminary 

matter, the Staff's proposed rule amendment is a 

straightforward and simple one that addresses the minimum term 

of a standard offer contract in light of recent decisions by 

the Commission addressing that very subject. While Staff's 

proposal focuses on a single issue, the Qualifying Facility 

('QF") Petitioners have launched an expansive effort to 

readdress a number of unrelated issues that have been 

considered and rejected in the past. Staff's laudable and 

focused effort should prevail and the QF Petitioners' efforts 

to convert this proceeding into an onmibus rulemaking should 

be rejected. Tampa Electric offers the following additional 

specific comments in response to the comments and testimony 

submitted on behalf of the QF Petitioners: 

1. Staff's proposed amendments conform the rule to what the 

Commission has already approved four or five different 

times since September 1999 due to uncertainty in the 

market. The QF Petitioners propose, unnecessarily, to 

"reinvent the wheel" with their amendments. Petitioners' 

alleged need for their proposed amendments is newly 

found. Petitioners did not see the need for them until 
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Staff proposed their unrelated amendment to conform the 

standard offer contract term to a number of recent 

rulings by the Commission. 

2 .  The QF Petitioner's testimony infers that the uncertainty 

in the wholesale market is not a reflection of the cost 

of utility-built future generation costs, but the future 

market cost for new generation being built in Florida 

that is still in development and what, if any, effect the 

establishment of RTO-controlled markets might have on 

generation costs in Florida. Five-year terms have been 

accepted by the FPSC multiple times now reflecting that 

uncertainty over future market price. 

3 .  The QF Petitioners inappropriately use the terms, 

monopsony and monopsonist, to describe utilities. A 

monopsony is defined as a market situation where there is 

only one buyer. That is a completely inaccurate 

description of the market available to QFs. A QF is not 

precluded from selling to multiple buyers. The QF has, in 

fact, a superior position to pure markets because there 

are obligated buyers as well as non-obligated buyers to 

whom the QF can sell. ExamDle : A co-generator, 

currently under firm contract can withhold capacity at 

times of shortfall and instead make hourly sales in the 

market, taking advantage of market conditions while still 
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remaining within the terms of the Standard Offer 

contract. 

4. The QF Petitioners' assertions regarding "avoided cost" 

and "full avoided cost" and regulatory bias against QFs 

are erroneous. 

The QF is offered an avoided cost contract wherein he 

gets paid the utility avoided costs as defined by the 

PSC . That cost does not have to be equal to the 

avoided cost over the life of some avoided unit. It 

can be the avoided cost during the term of a contract 

entered into with the QF, including the capacity costs 

during that term. 

QF Petitioners presume that the utility generation 

should be subject to a market test, downward only, of 

course. Utility generation is priced on a cost basis, 

and is neither written-up to the market price when it 

is below market nor written-down to the market price 

when it is above market. QF power is only afforded 

avoided cost status to the utility taking the power. 

If the market price is higher the QF can test that 

market price and sell at the end of five years to a 

higher market price. The benefit is that they can 

always seek a five-year deal at the utility avoided 

cost, thus setting a floor against a potential market 

upside. 
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QFs are actually treated more favorably than the 

utility investment because QF costs are not an issue in 

determining the price to be paid. What is determinative 

is the utility avoided cost, which might be 

significantly higher than the QF cost, but the QF can 

extract a price based on the utility cost and thus more 

than recover its cost. 

The five-year term ends, but the utility is obligated 

to continuously provide new avoided cost offers based 

upon its generation expansion plan. QF's can take 

advantage of these offers thus setting a floor for 

tapping into the market with other buyers of wholesale 

power. 

5 .  QF Petitioners have asserted that utilities have 

assurances of cost..recovery. Utilities have no 

assurances of cost recovery. Recovery of utility 

generation costs over a 30 to 40-year life is always 

subject to prudence review by the Commission in rate 

proceedings and a "used and useful'' test. Recovery of QF 

contract costs is subject to a prudence test before they 

can be recovered through the cost recovery process. In 

addition, regulations and laws associated with 

restructuring of the electricity market could change a 

utility's market position overnight. A five-year 
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guarantee is as much as others in the business can get. 

Why should a QF have more assurance than that? 

6. Conservation and other demand side programs cannot be 

built or stopped as quickly as a new generator. The 

growth in those programs should not be removed when 

determining the avoided unit or ratepayers will be harmed 

who count on those programs to be available when they 

make choices in home construction or energy conservation 

measures. 

7. QF Petitioners have asserted that without long-term 

contracts financing for their projects would not be 

available. Yet IPPs continue to secure financing for 

merchant plants with no firm capacity contracts. Why 

wouldn't financing be equally available to a municipality 

or county government for a facility that receives its 

primary revenues from solid waste disposal tipping fees 

and taxes - not energy sales? 

Tampa Electric appreciates the opportunity to submit the 

foregoing responsive comments. The company is hopeful that 

the rule amendments proposed by Staff will be approved as a 

result of this process, and that the rule amendments proposed 

by the QF Petitioners will be deemed unnecessary and 

inconsistent with interests of retail utility customers in 

this state. 
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AUSLEY & MCMULLEN 
ATTORNEYS AND COUNSELORS AT LAW 

2 2 7  SOUTH CALHOUN STREET 

P.O. BOX 391 (ZIP 32302) 

TALLAHASSEE. FLORIDA 32301 

18501 224-9115 FAX 18501 2 2 2 - 7 5 6 0  

March 1.2002 

HAND DELIVERED 

Ms. Blanca S. Bayo, Director 
Division of Commission Clerk 
and Administrative Services 

Florida Public Service Commission 
2540 Shumard Oak Boulevard 
Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0850 

-/, 

Re: Proposed amendments to Rule 25-17.0832, F.A.C., Firm Capacity and Energy 
Contracts; FPSC Docket No. 001574-EQ 

Dear Ms. Bayo: 
P 

Enclosed for filing in the above docket are the original and fifteen (15) copies of Prefiled 
Comments of Tampa Electric Company. 

Please acknowledge receipt and filing of the above by stamping the duplicate copy of this 
letter and returning same to this writer. 

Thank you for your assistance in connection with thls matter. 

Sincerely, 

Janies D. Beasley 

JDBIPP 
Enclosure 

cc: Richard Bellak (wienc.) 
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PREFILED COMMENTS OF TAMPA ELECTRIC COMPANY 
DOCKET NO. 001574-EQ 
FILED: MARCH 1, 2002 

Tampa Electric Company ("Tampa Electric" or "the company") , 

pursuant to Rule 25-17.0832, Florida Administrative Code, and 

Order No. PSC-01-2175-PCO-EQ ("Order No. 01-2175") issued in 

the above docket on November 5, 2001 offers the following 

written comments on the proposed amendments to Rule 25- 

17.0832, Florida Admin.istrative Code, entitled "Firm Capacity 

and Energy Contracts" : 

On September 4, 2001 the Commission voted to propose 

amendments to Rule 25-17.0832, Florida Administrative Code, as 

set forth in the August 23, 2001 Staff Memorandum discussing 

the various issues and proposing specific amendments to the 

rule. 

Tampa Electric Company has reviewed the Staff's proposed 

amendments and is in general agreement with the approach taken 

by Staff. 

This will serve as Tampa Electric's prefiled comments pursuant 

to Order No. 01-2175. The company reserves the right to 

prefile responsive comments or responsive testimony by April 

1, 2002, as contemplated in Order No. 01-2175, to the extent 

the company deem it necessary or appropriate. 



December 21,2000 

HAND DELIVERED 

Ms. Blanca S. Bayo, Director 
Division of Records and Reporting 
Florida Public Service Commission 
2540 Shumard Oak Boulevard 
Tallahassee, FL 32399-0850 

Re: In re: 
Contracts; FPSC Docket No. 001574-EQ 

Amendments to Rule 25-17.0832, F.A.C., Firm Capacity and Energy 

Dear Ms. Bayo: /-. 
Enclosed for filing in the above docket are the original and fifteen (15) copies of Tampa 

Electric Company's Post-Workshop Comments. 

Please acknowledge receipt and filing of the above by stamping the duplicate copy of this 
letter and returning same to th is  writer. 

Thank you for your assistance in connection with this matter. 

Sincerely, 

JDBJPP 
Enclosures 

cc: All Parties of Record (wienc.) 



/” BEFORE THE FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 

In re: Proposed Amendments to Rule 
25-17.0832, F.A.C., Firm Capacity and ) DOCKET NO. 001574-EQ 
Energy Contracts. ) FILED: December 21,2000 

TAMPA ELECTRIC COMPANY’S 
POST-WORKSHOP COMMENTS 

Tampa Electric Company (“Tampa Electric” or “the company”) submits the following 

post-workshop comments conceming Staffs proposed amendments to Rule 25-17.0832: 

1. Tampa Electric supports Staffs proposed amendments to Rule 25-17.0832 

goveming firm capacity and energy contracts. As the Staff pointed out at the December 12 

workshop in this docket, the proposed rule revisions were prompted by the Commission’s recent 

observation that a number of investor-owned utilities had been requesting rule waivers to reduce 

the ten year term presently specified in the rule to a five year contract term. Tampa Electric was 

one of those utilities. 

P-- 

2. As the Staff pointed out at the workshop, the contract term language initially 

adopted in the rule was selected to accommodate the planning and construction lead time 

associated with the type of generating plant the utilities were constructing when the rule was 

adopted. Certainly the planning and construction period associated with the smaller gas-fired 

units being utilized today is more consistent with a five year term, as opposed to the ten year 

term adopted back when utilities where constructing larger coal-fired base load plants. Nothing 

on the horizon would appear to warrant a standard offer contract extending beyond the proposed 

five year period. Thus, adopting this rule amendment would conform the rule to present day 

reality and obviate the need for utilities to seek rule waivers. 
P 



r"- 3. Limiting standard offer contracts to a five year term would also help utility 

customers reduce their risk of being locked into standard offer contracts that tum out to be 

significantly more costly than other power supply altematives. Recent history has demonstrated 

that longer term full avoided cost based standard offer contracts can lead to just such a result. 

4. Based on the foregoing, Tampa Electric believes the revisions proposed by Staff 

should be adopted. 
2 )  

DATED this m a y  of December 2000. 

Respectfully submitted, 

QL&Lk= 
L#L. WILLIS 
J&ES D. BEASLEY 
Ausley & McMullen 
Post Office Box 391 
Tallahassee, FL 32302 
(850) 224-91 15 

ATTORNEYS FOR TAMPA ELECTRIC COMPANY 
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DOCKET NO. 001574-EQ, IN RE: AMENDMENT OF COGENERATION RULES 

SUPPLEMENTAL COMMENTS OF GERARD J. KORDECKI 

1 Q. Please state your name, address and occupation. 

2 A. 

3 

4 Regulatory Consultant. 

My name is Gerard J. Kordecki. My business address is 10301 Orange Grove 

Drive, Tampa, Florida 3361 8. I am self-employed as an Energy and 

5 Q. 

6 A. Yes, I filed comments on March 1, 2002. 

Mr. Kordecki, have you previously filed comments in this docket? 

/4 

7 0. 

8 A. 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

What is the purpose for your supplemental comments? 

My comments address the additional proposed amendments to the rule 

submitted to the Commission on February 27, 2002 on behalf of Lee County, 

Miami-Dade County, and Montenay-Dade, Ltd. (collectively, "the Petitioners"). 

These proposed amendments were consolidated into this rule docket on 

March 14, 2002. I will also comment on some of the utility responses to the 

staffs proposed amendments, the amendments proposed by Lee County, 

Miami-Dade County, and Montenay-Dade, Ltd., and on issues which arose 

during the February 25, 2003 Commission Staff workshop. 

P-- 16 

17 Q. 

Standard Offer CaDacitv Pavments and Determination of Avoided Cost 

What was the first amendment in the February 27th, 2002 submission? 

1 



r- 
1 A. 
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10 
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12 
13 
14 
15 
16 f i  

17 
18 
19 
20 
21 
22 
23 
24 
25 
26 
21 
28 
29 
30 
31 
32 
33 
34 

35 

36 
r’. 

The first amendment proposed by the Petitioners is intended to more closely 

match standard offer contract payments to QFs with the costs that the utility 

would otherwise incur, as the utility would incur them. This amendment is as 

follows: 

(4) Standard Offer Contracts. 

* * *  

(b) The rates, terms, and other conditions contained in each 
utility’s standard offer contract or contracts shall be based on the need 
for and equal to the avoided cost of deferring or avoiding the 
construction or Durchase of additional generation capacity or parts 
thereof by the purchasing utility. Each standard offer contract shall 
provide the oDtion for the aualifvina facilitv to be Daid rates eaual to the 
costs that would be borne bv the utilitv’s qeneral bodv of rateDavers if 
the utilitv were to build its avoided unit or Purchase caDacitv and 
enerav from another source. Without limitation, this shall include 
payments calculated on the same basis as the utilitv’s revenue 
reauirements where the aualifvinq facilitv sians a standard offer 
contract with a term eaual to the Droiected life of the avoided unit, 
pavments calculated on the same basis as oavments to be made 

purchase is the aeneration resource avoided bv the Purchase from the 
aualifvina facilitv. and payments calculated on the same basis as the 
utilitv’s DroDosed revenue reauirements for a DrODOSed plant where the 
utilitv Plans to limit cost recovew for the DroDosed Plant to a fixed 
period of time. This requirement shall not Dreclude the use of the value 
of deferral pavment methodoloav to calculate capacitv Davments where 
the aualifvina facilitv DroDoses to sian a contract with a term less than 
the Droiected life of the avoided unit. Rates for payment of capacity 
sold by a qualifying facility shall be specified in the contract for the 
duration of the contract. In reviewing a utility’s standard offer contract 
or contracts, the Commission shall consider the criteria specified in 
paragraphs (3)(a) through (3)(d) of this rule, as well as any other 
information relating to the determination of the utility’s full avoided 
costs. 

p p  

The proposed amendment very simply does three things. It expands 

the applicability of the standard offer contracts to purchase power contracts 
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10 
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12 
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and to utility plants where the utility proposes to limit the cost recovery to a 

fixed period of time and lastly, requires the utility to pay the Qualifying 

Facilities (QF's) the same revenues, in the same way as the utility would 

receive them if the utility had built the plant. In this latter instance the QF must 

be willing to sign a contract which covers the projected life of the avoided unit. 

There may be occasions when a utility may sign --or may have the 

opportunity to sign - a firm power purchase agreement in lieu of building a 

plant. If this situation arises and the contractual performance requirements 

are such that a qualifying facility could meet the criteria, then it would be 

appropriate that the QF be eligible through a standard offer to meet the 

purchase requirements if the purchase is considered as the avoided unit. A 

unit power salelpurchase would be the most obvious example of this situation. 

13 Q. 

14 

15 A. 

16 

17 

18 

19 

Are you familiar with any situations where a utility wanted to rate base a 

unit for a specific period of time then remove it from the rate base? 

I've read about a couple of instances where such treatments were proposed 

but I haven't heard what the final resolutions were. Situations where the 

capacity in the rate base is fixed and is less than the life of the unit, fit a 

standard offer contract situation and the same revenue recoveries proposed 

by the utility should be applied in the same manner to a QF. 

- 20 Q. Mr. Kordecki, your amendment proposes that QFs should receive the 

21 same revenue requirements and in the same manner as if the utility built 
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4 A. 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

/-- I1  

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

/c4 22 

23 

the unit. Isn't it true that the QF would receive the same present value of 

revenues under the present rule through the Value of Deferral 

methodology? 

Yes the present value of total revenues would be the same but the QF is not 

receiving the avoided costs in the same manner as the utility receives its 

revenues. Use of Value of Deferral for life of the unit contracts for QFs is not 

consistent with the mandates of the Public Utility Regulatory Policy Act 

(PURPA) and the wishes of the Florida Legislature. Promotion of QFs was 

deemed to be in the public interest. It was stated that QFs should receive the 

same level of revenues (Le., avoided cost) that the utility would have received 

if the utility had built the capacity. Use of the Value of Deferral capacity 

payment methodology, which has increasing revenue streams, is not the 

same as the declining streams in the application of revenue requirements. 

Use of the Value of Deferral methodology also greatly increases the 

possibility that, at some point in time, afler the QF has been paid much less 

than the utility's revenue requirements, the QF contract will come to be 

viewed as undesirable, and even attacked, because it is then "above market." 

This has already occurred in Florida. 

Further, this is unfair because cities or counties which own or operate, 

or both own and operate, waste-to-energy facilities are penalized through the 

Value of Deferral methodology by losing the higher initial payments that the 

utility would receive through a revenue requirements collection methodology. 

The city or county has assumed the same commitment as the utility by signing 
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5 associated revenue requirements. 
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8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

a contract which covers the expected life of the unit. In fact, the standard offer 

contract will have certain minimum operating parameters which must be met 

by the waste energy facility in order to receive the capacity payments. A utility 

normally doesn't carry these operating requirements in order to "collect" the 

A simple way to describe the problem is to think about your own 

financial position. A company offers you a job paying X dollars a year for four 

years. You have immediate needs to meet mortgage payments, car 

payments, food and various household bills. The company says it will pay 60 

percent of X dollars the first year, 90 percent the second and so forth. They 

say that afler four years you will receive on a cumulative basis the present 

value of four years of X dollars and that you should be indifferent to how you 

receive the money since you get the total amount afler four years. The cities 

and counties have bills to pay today just like you do. 

.,--. 

15 

16 Q. Mr. Kordecki, what was the second suggested amendment3 

17 A. 

18 

19 

20 

Term of Standard Offer Contracts 

The second suggested amendment was to change Subsection 25- 

17.0832(4)(e)7 to provide that, consistent with the utility's obligation to 

purchase all of the electric power that a QF has available to sell to the utility, 

the QF would have the option to specify the duration of the standard offer 

.- 21 contract. Specifically, the proposed amendment is as follows: 
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17 A. 
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28 

(E) Minimum Specifications. Each standard offer contract shall, 
at minimum, specify: 

* * *  

7. The period of time over which firm capacity and energy shall 
be delivered from the qualifying facility to the utility. Firm capacity and 
energy shall be delivered, at a minimum, for a period of ten years, 
commencing with the anticipated in-service date of the avoided unit 
specified in the contract. At a maximum, firm capacity and energy shall 
be delivered for a period of time equal to the anticipated plant life of 
the avoided unit, commencing with the anticipated in-service date of 
the avoided unit. Consistent with the utilitv’s obliaation to Durchase the 
firm caDacitv and enerav that a aualifvina facilitv has available to sell to 
a utilitv. the qualifvina facilitv shall have the oDtion to sDecifv the 
duration of its obliaation to deliver firm capacitv and enerav within the 
above oarameters. 

What does this amendment accomplish? 

This amendment addition clarifies the right of a qualifying facility to sell its 

output to a utility for a period of time between 10 years and the life of the unit. 

The selection of the period for the purchase is the right of the QF. At first this 

might appear to be contrary to a utility’s planning principles but there is no 

conflict since the utility is required to only pay avoided costs. With payments 

at avoided costs, the utility’s ratepayers are neutral to the transaction. The 

qualifying facility may have a number of reasons to pick a specific period for 

the sale but, no matter what period is selected (minimum of 10 years, 

maximum life of the unit), the utility’s ratepayers are held harmless and may 

even receive lower costs if the period selected has value of deferral payments 

which are less than the revenue requirements that a utility would receive if the 

utility had built the capacity. In the workshop held on February 25th of this 
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year, it was very apparent that there were misunderstandings about the effect 

of adding the word Page 6 “specific” in the staffs proposed amendment found 

in the description of ”Minimum Specifications” Section (E). The result would 

be to shift to the utilities the right to name the contract period. With this 

change in contract responsibility, I do not see any reason that the utilities, 

acting in their own self-interests, would offer QFs contract periods which go 

beyond the minimum period (10 years presently, 5 years if the staff. 

recommendation is accepted) since the utilities have nothing to gain. Utilities, 

being financially rational, would prefer to build capacity and earn a return 

rather than buy the power from a QF. However, this is contrary to the policy 

adopted by the US. Congress through PURPA and by the Florida Legislature 

through Section 366.051, Florida Statutes, to encourage cogeneration by 

requiring utilities to buy the power that a QF has available to sell at the 

purchasing utility’s full avoided cost. 

15 Fuel Cost Risk Manaqement 

16 Q. 

17 amendment? 

18 A. 

19 

,-. 20 

21 

What are your suggestions regarding a fuel cost risk management 

The Petitioners’ suggestions regarding fuel risk management, with which I 

agree, arose from comments made by the Commissioners at one or more 

agenda conferences in which energy payment risk was discussed. The 

Petitioners’ specific proposed amendment is as follows: 
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(dl As a risk manaaement and fuel-cost hedaina measure. each 
public utilitv subiect to this rule shall Drovide for a minimum of twenty 
120) Dercent of the enerav purchased pursuant to standard offer 

be purchased at the Droiected enemv costs reflected in the utilitv's 
analvses and Dlans as of the date that the standard offer contract is 

enerav costs shall reflect not onlv the Droiected fuel costs associated 
with the avoided unit. but also the avoided operation and maintenance 
costs of the avoided unit. and shall also be based on the Droiected 
oDerations of the avoided unit as of the time the standard offer contract 
is executed. Further. all such costs shall be calculated on a directly 
comDarable basis to that won which the utilitv would calculate the 
costs associated with its avoided unit for the pumose of seekinq 

the avoided unit. 

3 

What is the rationale for this amendment? 

This amendment would provide for some limited fuel cost hedging by 

providing for fixed energy payments based on projections at the time that the 

standard offer contract is entered into. It does not require the utility to agree 

to make all energy payments on the basis of projected energy payments, but 

rather simply requires that a minimum of twenty (20) percent of the energy 

purchased under future standard offer contracts be purchased at energy 

prices that are fixed on the front end. This is no different than the utility 

entering into a longer-term fuel purchase contract. It will protect the utility 

against the risk of fuel costs escalating more rapidly than projected at the time 

that the contracts are entered into. I believe that the 20 percent requirement 

is a sound risk management measure for the utilities, reasonably balancing 

the risks of fuel costs going either way, and reasonably giving the utility great 
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leeway, i.e., between 20 and 100 percent, in specifying the amount of energy 

that they choose to contract for at energy prices that are fixed on the front end 

Plannina Analvses to Determine Avoided Unit and Avoided Cost 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Have you any other amendments to offer? 

Yes. The following amendment addresses the planning assumptions in which 

avoided units and avoided costs are determined: 

(6) Calculation of standard offer contract firm capacity payment 
options. 

(a) Calculation of year-by-year value of deferral. The year-by- 
year value of deferral of an avoided unit shall be the difference in 
revenue requirements associated with deferring the avoided unit one 
year. All analvses to identifv the tvue and timina of a utilitv’s avoided 
unit, and all calculations of the value of deferral of an avoided unit. 
shall be conducted on a basis that treats SUDDlV-Side and demand-side 
outions eauallv and comDarablv. Suecificallv. all such analvses and 
calculations shall include onlv the imDacts of existina and contractually 
committed demand-side manaaement measures and shall not include 

are not alreadv in ulace or contractuallv committed to the utilitv. The 
value of deferral shall be calculated as follows: 

I t  

Please describe the effect of this proposed change. 

By removing the non-committed conservation and load management 

programs from the forecast, all potential resources that could meet the utility 

demand will be evaluated on a level playing field. From the responsive 

comments of the utilities and some limited discussion at the recent workshop, 

there are three arguments presented against this amendment. 
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First, there is a claim that the utilities can’t just start, stop and adjust 

their demand-side programs. From both experience and observation, utilities 

have, in fact, made significant program adjustments with very little lead time in 

many cases. They have also been forced to deal with significant customer- 

initiated adjustments - Le., attrition - in their programs on relatively short 

notice. Due to the limited availability of the standard offer, both in megawatts 

and fuel sources, only relatively small qualifying facilities are in the market to 

sell to the utilities. On a practical basis, only small amounts of QF power 

would be expected to be available at any one time. Adjusting demand-side 

management programs to reduce not-yet-committed and/or not-yet contracted 

installations to reflect an addition of a relatively small increment of waste-to- 

energy supply-side resources would not, in my experience and opinion, be 

difficult. 

The next set of comments involved the fact that the Commission had 

heard similar amendments some 20 years ago. They argue that it would be 

redundant to hear it again. A lot of water has gone over the dam since then. 

The applicability of the QF standard offer has been limited significantly and 

the fear that standard offer customers may not be viable or might walk away 

and so forth, is not applicable today; this argument is particularly inapplicable 

to waste-to-energy facilities, which exist primarily for the purpose of disposing 

of municipal waste using a preferred technology, i.e., combustion to generate 

power as opposed to a disfavored technology, Le., landfills. The utilities, since 

those hearings, have been required to adopt an Integrated Planning Process 

10 
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(IRP) to determine their resource plans. A true IRP would include QFs as 

potential resources during the planning process. Under the planning practices 

used by the utilities today, however, QFs appear to be an afterthought to be 

dealt with after the resource plan is decided. 

Lastly, the Commission has changed demand-side evaluations. If a 

program (measure) or the demand reduction's life is not as long as the life of 

the unit to be "avoided", then a value of deferral methodology will also be 

included along with revenue requirements analysis in the evaluation. The 

Value of Deferral methodology can greatly reduce program benefits. Of 

course, some will say that since a demand-side program must have a 

cosffbenefit of 1.2 or greater contrasted to the avoided costs, how can a 

standard offer QF be more cost effective? 

There are several answers. First, QF generation will add to reliability, 

which, of course, has value; and QF generation, and waste-to-energy 

generation in particular, will add to reliability more reliably than DSM 

measures, because it is more reliable on a megawatt-for-megawatt basis and 

because contracted waste-to-energy generation cannot simply disappear from 

the utility's system with 30 days notice without incurring substantial penalties, 

unlike the case of DSM programs. Secondly, many of the "avoided" units have 

been combined cycle units, which will run well below the incremental 

generators in an economic dispatch. Ultimately this may mean that a demand- 

side management measure may have a fuel penalty assigned to the program 

due to the type of unit being avoided But the QF will not. Purchased QF 
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power will lead to lower average fuel costs in this case More importantly the 

QF can select a contract period, which can make the QF option more cost- 

effective than a conservation program due to lower capacity payments. 

Another utility argument against removing incremental DSM is that QF 

capacity payments would be higher. This is true, but if the QF is the more 

cost-effective option when evaluated on a truly comparable, level-playing-field 

basis. For all of these reasons, the commission should require that all 

incremental demand-side management programs be removed from the 

forecast that is used to determine the "avoided unit. 

Other Anti-QF Arauments 

Q. 

A. 

Mr. Kordecki, do you have any other concems about this rulemaking. 

Yes I do. There seems to be some underlying belief by many of the parties 

that standard offer power creates undue risks for ratepayers and that the 

megawatts available from eligible QFs are so small that there is no real value 

in their purchase. Let's first look at the idea of ratepayer risks associated with 

purchasing this QF power. If the QF receives only avoided cost, then the 

ratepayers have no financial risk. The risk of the utility paying more than 

avoided costs for QF power is not due to the length of the period afler the 

forecast of the avoided unit but to errors (even with prudent estimates ) made 

in the planning analyses and forecasts. This risk is exactly the same, on a 

present value basis, as the risk associated with the utility building its own unit: 

if the QF payments are the same as the utility's revenue requirements on a 
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present value basis, and the QF contract comes to be above-market at some 

future point iQ time, the utility’s self-built unit would also be above-market on a 

present value basis. 

It is my understanding that the utility picks the avoided unit (which may 

or may not be be the next unit) and specifies the operating characteristics of 

this avoided unit. Along with selecting the unit type and timing, the utility picks 

the subscription level (number of megawatts). I have no idea how this 

subscription level is determined. The utility tells any potential QFs what the 

required operating performance parameters will be in order for the QF to 

receive full (or even any) capacity payments. With these performance 

standards, the utilities’ ratepayers are protected against poor operating 

performance. I might add, in most cases, utilities do not have performance 

standards assigned to assets which the utilities must reach in order to 

receive the revenue requirements from those assets. The planning process 

as far as lead time for generation unit construction is much shorter today with 

the selection of simple combustion turbine technology without steam 

generators driven by heat recovery from the CT exhaust gases. The lead time 

now ranges from 18 months to 36 months. 

What this all means is that if there are risks being created with 

generation selection, the utilities are the ones creating the risks in their 

planning processes The highest risk is created when the utility builds the unit 

and receives revenue requirements over the life of the unit, typically twenty or 

thirty years, and sometimes longer in practice. If avoided costs are accurately 
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forecasted then the QF receives the costs and the ratepayers are unaffected. 

Allowing the utilities to only offer short term contracts, which have low 
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capacity payments due to the value of deferral valuation methodology, only 

discourages QF investment which in turn, encourages utility construction 

which has the highest potential risks over its life. 
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What about the argument that small incremental megawatts of capacity 

have little or no value? 

All generation resources have value. If every megawatt that a utility might 

have that is over and above its reserve margin or other planning criteria were 

deemed to have no value, then I would expect that the value of that plant 

would not be allowed in the utility’s rate base and no earnings for that plant 

would be allowed. It is well understood that plant additions are lumpy in the 

sense that from year-to-year there will not be an exact match of plant and 

level of plant need. 

The addition of standard offer QFs generally will have addition sizes 

similar to some of the conservation programs of the utilities. Though these 

programs and QF power are dissimilar in operation, they are somewhat 

comparable in size and collectively support the utilities’ overall resource 

plans. 

At this time, Florida has a total of 11 waste-to-energy plants with 357.2 

megawatts of firm capacity committed under contract to Florida load-serving 

utilities; two other plants have a combined 12.0 MW of power available to sell 
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on a non-firm basis. There can be no doubt that this 357 MW of firm capacity 

has avoided some significant amount (probably between 350 and 400 MW) of 

capacity that would otherwise have had to be built by Florida’s load-serving 

utilities or purchased from other sources, This is significant. And, while there 

may be some differences due to different payments being made to different 

QFs on the basis of different avoided units that were identified at different 

points in time, this does not mean that the QFs don’t provide significant, 

meaningful capacity avoidance benefits to the State as a whole, nor does it 

necessarily mean that the QFs are being paid more than the value that they 

provide. 

Mr. Kordecki, does this conclude your comments? 

Yes, it does. 
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COMMENTS OF GERARD J. KORDECKI 

I. INTRODUCTION 

2 Q. Please state your name, address and occupation. 

3 A. My name is Gerard J. Kordecki. My business address is 10301 

4 Orange Grove Drive, Tampa, Florida 33618. I am self- 

5 employed as an energy and regulatory consultant. 

6 Q. Please summarize your educational background and work 

7 experience. 

8 A. 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

/- 

I received a Bachelor of Science degree in Advertising in 

1963 and a Master of Arts in Marketing in 1965. Both 

degrees are from the University of Florida. I also pursued 

graduate courses in Economics at the University of Florida. 

I worked for Tampa Electric Company for 33 years in various 

capacities involving marketing, sales, conservation, 

resource planning, and rates and regulation. I have 

participated in the development of and supervised the 

preparation of numerous studies and plans involving 

conservation goals and programs, cost allocations, rates, 

load research and resource plans. Since January 1999, I 

have consulted with power plant developers, and industrial 

and institutional utility customers on rates, regulatory 

policy, and transmission access issues. 

1 
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1 Q. 
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/-. 11 

12 A. 
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Mr. Kordecki, have you previously testified before the 

Florida Public Service Commission ("FPSC" or "Contmissionf') ? 

Yes, I have testified regarding the subjects identified 

above on more than 37 occasions. Proceedings in which I 

have testified include rate cases, determination of need 

hearings, various conservation dockets and hearings 

concerning allocation of costs and benefits between 

ratepayers and utilities. I have participated in numerous 

rule hearings, agenda conferences and Commission workshops. 

On whose behalf are you presenting comments in this rule 

proceeding? 

My comments are presented on behalf of Lee County, which 

owns the Lee County Resource Recovery Facility, Miami-Dade 

County, which owns the Dade County Resources Recovery 

Facility and Montenay-Dade, Ltd., which operates the Dade 

County facility pursuant to an operation and management 

agreement with Miami-Dade County. Both facilities are 

qualifying small power production facilities under Federal 

and Florida law and solid waste facilities as I understand 

the definition of that term in Section 377.709, Florida 

Statutes. 

2 
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1 Q .  

2 A. 

3 
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5 
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I 
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9 

10 

11 
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13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 
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What is the purpose of your comments in this proceeding? 

My comments point out certain problems with the Staff's 

proposed amendments to the Commission's Rule 25- 

17.0832(4) (e) 3.&7., Florida Administrative Code ("F.A.C."), 

relating to standard offer contracts (the "Rule"). The 

most notable problems with the Staff's proposed amendments 

are: (1) that the proposed amendments treat solid waste 

facilities and other facilities that are eligible to accept 

standard offer contracts in a biased and discriminatory way 

as compared to the regulatory treatment afforded public 

utilities that construct and operate power plants and (2) 

that while the proposed amendments are intended to reduce 

the risks to utility customers (or ratepayers) associated 

with power sales contracts, they actually impose the 

virtually identical risks that are associated with utility- 

built power plants on utility customers. In my comments, I 

also suggest alternatives that will, in my opinion, better 

serve the State's declared policy favoring cogeneration and 

small power production facilities generally and solid waste 

facilities specifically. 

21 Q. 

22 to the Rule? 

What is your understanding of the FPSC's proposed changes 

r'. 23 A. As published in the Commission's Order No. PSC-01-1844-NOR- 
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EQ, the key substantive amendments to the Rule are a 

reduction in the minimum standard offer contract term from 

ten years to five years and a provision requiring that 

standard offer contracts have a "specific period" or term 

of years. Presumably, this "specific period" would be 

designated by the utility in its proposed standard offer 

contract tariffs and subject to Commission review and 

approval. In background documents explaining the proposed 

amendments, the Commission Staff stated: "The attached 

amendments to Rule 25-17.0832 will reduce the potential for 

ratepayers to be tied to a purchased power contract that is 

more expensive than alternative power sources during times 

of declining avoided cost" and "[tlhe five-year minimum 

term balances the interests of the ratepayers without 

unduly discouraging the construction of small qualifying 

facilities ." 
11. BACI(GR0uND 

Q .  Mr. Kordecki, what documents have you examined or reviewed 

in preparing your comments concerning the proposed 

amendments to the Rule? 

A. Yes, I have reviewed a number of statutes, legislative 

history documents, Commission orders, documents from 

previous Commission proceedings regarding the Commission's 

Cogeneration Rules, and other documents which address the 

4 
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1 State of Floridars policies regarding resource efficient 

2 cogeneration in general and solid waste facility generation 

3 specifically. There are numerous dockets from the early 

4 1980s well into the 1990s which address cogeneration and 

5 standard offer contracts. 

6 Q. Please describe what you learned from these various 

7 

8 A. 

9 

10 

,- 11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

documents. 

I ' l l  give an overview without going into great detail about 

the evolution of electricity supply from cogenerators in 

Florida with emphasis on standard offer contracts. 

Generally, the Commission moved conservatively in response 

to its obligations to meet the requirements of the Public 

Utility Regulatory Policies Act, commonly known as "PURPA". 

PURPA required utilities to purchase electricity from 

qualified generators and small power producers. The FPSC 

rule development overtones were to protect against 

cogenerator non-performance and assign risk discounts to 

avoided cost payments. This cautious approach avoided many 

of the mistakes made in other parts of the country-namely 

the Far West and Northeast, where long-term cogeneration 

contracts with all projected prices fixed as of the date of 

execution frequently turned out to be uneconomic as overall 

P. 23 market generation costs declined. On the other hand, the 

5 
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assignment of a statewide base load power plant as the 

avoided unit appears to have stimulated the development and 

construction of cogeneration facilities and solid waste 

facilities. A "hassle-free" or "no-hassle" standard offer 

alternative was part of the rules. 

In the late 198Os, the Florida Legislature became more 

active in the encouragement of cogeneration particularly 

solid waste facilities. In 1988, the Legislature encouraged 

the use of solid waste facilities to generate electricity 

and as an environmentally preferred alternative to 

conventional solid waste disposal in Florida. During the 

1989 sunset review of Chapter 366, Florida Statutes, the 

Legislature enacted Section 366.051, Florida Statutes, 

which specifically recognized the benefits of qualifying 

cogeneration and small power production facilities and 

recognized that power from such facilities was more 

resource efficient and its value should be calculated at 

the purchasing utility's avoided costs; the Legislature 

also required the Commission to remove the 20 percent risk 

factor assigned to standard offer contracts, provided that 

the facilities provided satisfactory security, based on 

their financial stability. More recent changes by the FPSC 

include requiring individual utility avoided unit analyses 

as opposed to a statewide avoided unit, removal of security 

6 
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deposits, levelized payments and the limiting of the 

availability of standard offer contracts to solid waste 

facilities, small power producers or qualifying facilities 

with 15 percent renewable resources as their energy source, 

and qualifying facilities of 100 KW or less. This latter 

change has eliminated the hassle-free availability of 

standard offers from most potential cogenerators except 

solid waste facilities. 

At this time, there is very little activity in the 

development of cogeneration facilities in Florida. 

111. SUMMARY 

Mr. Kordecki, please summarize your comnents. 

My comments address the inappropriateness of reducing the 

minimum term for the standard offer from 10 to 5 years, 

which I believe will effectively result in standard offer 

contracts being for only 5 years without affording the 

qualifying facility any flexibility in defining the 

ultimate contract period. My comments also address the 

proposed requirement that the standard offer contract 

contain a utility selected "specified period" for the 

length of the contract. This proposed amendment is 

similarly inappropriate; it biases the capacity selection 

process against cogeneration and solid waste facilities and 

/-- 24 imposes un-level, discriminatory treatment on those 

I 



P '  

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 Q 

11 

12 

13 A. 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

F- 

COMMENTS OF GERARD J. KORDECKI 

facilities as compared to utility-built generation 

facilities. Even more importantly, it will quite likely 

result in public utilities' customers being exposed to 

exactly the same types of risks associated with utility- 

built capacity that the Commission Staff are seeking to 

protect the customers from with respect to QF contracts. 

My comments also include recommendations that would 

correct the problems identified above. 

IV. DISCUSSION 

Please sunnnarize your understanding of the basic policy of 

the Florida Legislature as it relates to cogeneration and 

electricity generation from solid waste facilities. 

The Florida Legislature has enacted statutes that recognize 

the benefits of cogeneration, that express the 

Legislature's intent that the use of renewable energy 

sources and cogeneration be encouraged, and that declare 

the Legislature's policy favoring and encouraging the 

development of solid waste facilities because they not only 

represent an effective conservation effort but also 

represent an environmentally preferred alternative to 

conventional solid waste disposal. 

22 Q. Do you consider the policy favoring cogeneration and 

23 generation by solid waste facilities to be sound public 
/4 

8 
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1 policy that is consistent with the public interest? 

2 A. Yes, I do. This policy promotes resource-efficient 

3 

4 must be committed to landfills, with their attendant 

5 environmental issues. 

generation and reduces the amount of land in the State that 

6 Q. 

7 minimum contract period for standard offers from 10 years 

8 to 5 years? 

9 A. The Commission approved the 10-year minimum contract period 

Why do you oppose the Staff's recommendation to reduce the 

10 

11 
12 
13 

#- 

14 
15 
16 
17 
18 
19 
20 
21 
22 

based on: 

"The requirement that a QF be willing to 
sign a contract for the delivery of f i rm 
capacity for at least ten years after the 
originally anticipated in service date of 
the avoided unit is important from a 
planning perspective. While a ten-year 
contract will not offset the expected 
thirty-year life of a base load generating 
unit, we believe it is of sufficient length 
to confer substantial capacity related 
benefits on the ratepayers." (Docket No. 
820406-EU, page 19) 

23 The overriding concern here was to protect the public 

24 utility and its ratepayers so that the capacity would be 

25 available to serve load. The Staff's recommendation 

2 6  implies, or appears to be based on, a belief that this 

27 availability, for "at least ten years" is no longer a 

/4 28 concern and five years after the in-service date is 

29 apparently adequate for utilities. The selection of the 10- 

9 
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year period also afforded the QF some financial protection 

and certainty. This certainty from a no hassle contract is 

greatly reduced by this proposed change to the Rule and 

would effectively require the QF to negotiate a new 

contract every five years. 

This is turn will mean that the QF will have its 

payments re-set to then-current market prices every five 

years. This biases the process against QFs and 

discriminates against QFs because it treats them 

differently than public utilities who build their own 

plants; utilities that build their own plants, under normal 

circumstances, get to put the cost of their plants into 

their rate base and recover the costs associated with 

owning and operating those plants over the entire useful 

lives. This includes depreciation to recover the capital 

invested, return on investment to cover debt service and 

provide a return on equity, and operating and maintenance 

("O&M") costs. Under standard regulatory treatment, if the 

utility makes additions, repairs, refurbishments, or other 

improvements to its plants, those costs are typically 

capitalized and recovered over the plant's remaining life. 

Under the Staff's proposed amendments, the QF is not 

afforded comparable treatment. 

10 
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1 Q .  

2 

3 A. 

8 

9 

10 

11 
12 
13 
14 

fi 

15 
16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

/--. 

How was the change from 10 years to 5 years arrived at by 

the Staff? 

The proposed change in the minimum term of the standard 

offer apparently is based on waivers (five or six requests) 

granted by the Commission to utilities over the last 

several years. There was no rationale given in the Staff 

recommendation concerning how the five-year period was 

arrived at by the utilities as the appropriate waiver 

period, or by the Staff as to the minimum period for a 

standard offer. The Staff states: 

"the IOU's requested the waiver to reduce 
the risk that ratepayers would be tied to a 
long-term contract that is above avoided 
cost because of the uncertainty in the 
wholesale generation market." (page 2 of the 
Staff recommendation). 

If the standard offer contract was for non-firm or as- 

available power with some fixed pricing, the statement 

would have some validity. The selection of longer periods 

causing risks of higher costs would seem to suggest that 

public utilities generally overestimate costs of generation 

in their resource planning. History may not bear this out. 

Moreover, exactly the same risks are present with a 

utility-built power plant, which under conventional 

regulatory treatment (which, to the best of my knowledge, 

the Commission still employs) allows the utility full 

recovery of all prudently incurred capital, depreciation, 

11 
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and operating costs for the entire life of the plant, which 

can be 30 or 40 years or even longer. 

Taking the Staff‘s premise to the extreme -- that is, 
trying to match generation costs to wholesale generation 

market prices -- when applied to utility built generation, 
then utility rate-based generators would also only be 

allowed a five-year cost recovery period by the FPSC, and 

every sixth year the revenue requirements would have to be 

adjusted based on changes in avoided capacity costs. This 

process would then capture the fluctuating generation costs 

that the Staff feels are problematic with ten-year standard 

offer contracts and would level the playing field with 

potential standard offer cogenerators. With an initial 

five-year recovery and the potential unpredictable future 

recovery levels, utilities would be expected to have 

increased borrowing difficulties which in turn would 

borrowing costs. Any financial hardship caused by a 

shorter recovery period to the utilities would be similar 

to a cogenerator whose contract period is less than the 

life of the plant being financed. Changing from a minimum 

ten-year contract to a five-year contract without the 

cogenerator having an option for longer periods will only 

increase the cogenerator’s costs, if for no other reason, 

the increased transaction costs. 

raise 
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What effect will the reduction in the \\minimumtr standard 

offer period have on cogeneration construction? 

Reducing the standard offer minimum to five years, which I 

believe will become the maximum period, can only be adverse 

to cogeneration. Discouragement of cogeneration through 

biased rules is contrary to the wishes of the Florida 

Legislature. The Legislature has been emphatic that 

efficient cogeneration should be encouraged and 

particularly solid waste generating facilities: 

"Electricity produced by cogeneration and 
small power production is of benefit to the 
public when included as part of the total 
energy supply of the entire electric grid of 
the state . . . ." Section 366.051, Florida 
Statutes. 
"The Legislature further declares that the 
combustion of refuse by solid waste 
facilities to supplement the electricity 
supply not only represents an effective 
conservation effort but also represents an 
environmentally preferred alternative to 
conventional solid waste disposal in this 
state." Section 377.709(1) ,  Florida 
Statutes. 

In this latter section, the Legislature directed the 

FPSC to establish a funding program to encourage facilities 

using solid waste as a source of fuel. It seems very clear 

that the Staff's recommendations, and the proposed 

amendments, are contrary to the intent of the Florida 

Legislature and have the effect of discouraging expansion 

of generation from solid waste facilities and other 
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qualifying facilities. 

2 Q. 

3 offer contract proposed by the Staff becomes the maximum 

4 period? 

5 A. Under the present Rule and the proposed changes, the 

Why do you believe that the five-year minimum standard 

6 

I 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

f-. 

utilities have absolutely no incentive to offer any 

standard offer beyond the minimum period (10 or 5 years) 

They gain nothing with a longer term. The Commission Staff 

states that a five-year term is preferable to ten because 

"Keeping the ten-year term would continue the possibility 

that IOUs and their ratepayers would be faced with higher 

cost capacity and energy costs for an additional five years 

for new standard offer contracts, even if market costs 

declined." If I were a utility manager and the Commission 

told me to shorten a contract period for a power purchase 

which had no positive upside for my stockholders, who am I 

to disagree. Therefore, the minimum and maximum period will 

likely be the same. 

19 Q. Mr. Kordecki, isn't an option for a longer period available 

20 to the cogenerator or solid waste facility? 

21 A. 

22 leads me to believe that de facto each contract would be 

Reading the text of the Rule and the Staff's recommendation 

14 
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limited to five years and may be renegotiated every five 

years. The solid waste cogenerator will be forced to 

contract for five years or the expected life of the avoided 

unit. There appears to be no intervening period allowed at 

the request of the cogenerator, but the utility may pick 

'the specific period" or term of the standard offer 

contract, which may be greater than five years. The option 

for a longer period is unilateral to the utility, subject 

to Commission approval. 

/.-. 10 Q. In an earlier statement you indicated that the standard 

11 

1 2  A. 

1 3  

1 4  

15 

1 6  

17  

1 8  

1 9  

20 

2 1  

22  

23 

n 

offer rules are biased. How are they biased in your mind? 

Even though the Legislature has clearly stated that QFs 

should receive full avoided costs, there is a significant 

difference in how the costs are collected. The utilities 

recover their "costs" (which includes a return on 

investment) on a revenue requirements basis. In short, 

their revenues on the capacity are front-end loaded -- 
highest in the first year and declining there after. 

Cogenerators receive their capacity payments on a value of 

deferral basis -- the first year capacity payment is the 
lowest and the highest payments are on the back end. Even 

with levelized payments, a differential remains. If the 

standard offer contract is for the life of the unit, then 

15 
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1 the revenue requirements and value of deferral totals will 

2 be equal only in the last year of the life of the unit. 

3 Q .  

4 

5 

6 A. 

I 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 Q .  

14 

15 A. 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

If the net present value of the overall payments are equal 

in both methods over the life of the unit, do you still 

believe there is bias? 

Yes. The collection mechanism does make a difference -- 
front-end loaded versus back-end loaded. More front-end 

dollars would give local government-owned QFs more 

financial flexibility -- the same as enjoyed by utilities. 
This type of payment stream can also make a substantial 

difference in the availability of financing for a new 

facility. 

What is your reaction to standard offers which are less 

than the life of the unit? 

Looking beyond the natural incentive for the utilities to 

want to build generating units and earn returns on these 

investments, the utilities want standard offer contracts to 

be as short as possible. This allows the utilities to 

contract at below utility avoided costs without a 

concurrent long-term obligation. 

16 
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1 Q. Mr. Kordecki, doesn't that situation give the utility the 

2 

3 A. 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

/-- 11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

lowest costs that will be borne by retail ratepayers? 

No, not necessarily. For one reason, the timing of the 

contracts may not correspond to or correlate with changes 

in the market. The purchased power may be higher or lower 

at any one time and the five-year minimum (maximum, in my 

mind) does not guarantee any ability to match changing 

market conditions. 

The important points that should be remembered in this 

rulemaking are that the Florida Legislature has mandated 

that QFs be treated financially the same as utilities by 

receiving revenues equal to the utilities' avoided costs, 

and that solid waste facilities provide significant 

environmental benefits to the state. 

When utilities build the generation, the obligation on 

ratepayers automatically is extended over the life of the 

units. The ratepayers' obligations are less under standard 

offers due to contract length and the value of deferral 

payment methodology mandated in this Rule. Even under life- 

of-the-unit contracts, risks are reduced due to the value 

of deferral payment methodology. 

P. 22 Q. 

23 

Do you believe that the proposed amendments fairly or 

appropriately balance the interests of the ratepayers with 

17 
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1 the interests of the QFs who are eligible to accept a 

2 utility's standard offer contract? 

3 A. No. As explained above, the proposed amendments would 

4 impose exactly the same types of risks on ratepayers that 

5 the proposed amendments are supposedly intended to avoid. 

6 The point is simple: long-term investments, regardless 

7 whether they are utility-built power plants or power 

8 purchase contracts, have risks associated with them. If 

9 market prices for the power drop over the term of the 

10 investment or contract, then the investment or contract 

P-- 11 will be "over-priced" relative to then-current market 

12 conditions; on the other hand, if market prices increase, 

13 then the investment or contract will be "under-priced." If 

14 a utility builds a power plant instead of obtaining power 

15 from QFs, and market generation costs and prices 

16 subsequently drop, the utility's power plant is just as 

17 uneconomic as the QF contract would have been, and the 

18 ratepayers are just as "stuck" with the economic 

19 consequences of the investment. 

20 If anything, since QFs will frequently choose to sign 

21 standard offer contracts for less than the full life of the 

22 avoided unit, the risk exposure to ratepayers is generally 

23 less with such a contract than with a utility-built power 

24 plant. The risks associated with standard offer contracts 

18 
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1 are also less because the QF has no opportunity to come 

2 back to the utility or the Commission and ask for its 

3 payments to be increased if it has to spend additional 

4 money to maintain or upgrade or retrofit its plant, whereas 

5 the utility effectively has a right to recover such costs, 

6 subject only to a prudency review by the Commission. 

1 Q .  D o  you agree with the Staff that the proposed amendments do 

8 

9 

/4 10 A. 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

11 

18 

19 Q. 

20 

21 

22 A. 

23 

not discourage the construction of small Q F s  and solid 

waste facilities? 

No, I do not agree with this assertion. Limiting the life 

of standard offer contracts to five years will make it much 

more difficult for eligible QFs, including solid waste 

facilities, to obtain financing. The uncertainty of future 

capacity payments will be very unattractive to potential 

lenders, making financing for such facilities difficult if 

not impossible to obtain. This will greatly discourage the 

construction of small QFs and solid waste facilities. 

IV. RECOMMENDED RULE LANGUAGE CHANGES 

Mr. Kordecki, would you recomnend amending the 

Conmission's Cogeneration Rules on this subject, and, if 

so, how? 

I would recommend that the Commission amend Rule 25-17.0832 

( 4 )  (b), F.A.C., to read as follows: 

19 
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( 4 )  Standard Offer Contracts. 

* * *  
1 

2 

3 
4 
5 
6 
7 
8 
9 

10 
11 
12 
13 
14 
15 

(b) The rates, terms, and other conditions 
contained in each utility's standard offer contract or 
contracts shall be based on the need for and equal to 
the avoided cost of deferring or avoiding the 
construction or Durchasc of additional generation 
capacity or parts thereof by the purchasing utility. 
Each standard offer contract shall Drovide t he option 

the co sts that would be borne bv the utilitv's ae neral 
bodv of ratepavers if the utilitv were to build its 
avoided unit or Durchase caDacitv and enerav from 
another source. Without limitation, this shall 
include D avments calculated on the same basis as the 

for the au alifvina facilitv to be Da id rates eaua 1 tQ 

~ 

16 utilitv's revenue reauirements where the aualifvinq 
17 facilitv sians a standard offer contract with a term 
18 Baal to the Droiected life of the avoided unit. 
19 pavments calculated on the same basis as Dawn ents to 
20 $e made Dursuant to a DO wer "chase arranaement where 
21 such Dower purchase is the aeneration resource a voided 
22 bv the DU rchase from the aualifvina facilitv. and 

24 proDosed revenue reauirements for a D roDosed Dlant 
25 where the utilitv D lans to limit cost recoverv for the 
26 proDose d Dlant to a fixed ueriod of time. This 
27 reauirement shall not D reclude the use of the value of 
28 deferral Davme nt methodoloav to ca lculate caDac itv 
29 pavments where the aualifvina facilitv DroDoses to 

23 P a m  ents ca lculated on the same basis as the utilitv's 

30 
31 
32 
33 
34 
35 
36 
37 
38 
39 

sian a c ontract with a term less than the Droiected 
life of the avoided unit. Rates for payment of 
capacity sold by a qualifying facility shall be 
specified in the contract for the duration of the 
contract. In reviewing a utility's standard offer 
contract or contracts, the Commission shall consider 
the criteria specified in paragraphs (3)(a) through 
(3) (d) of this rule, as well as any other information 
relating to the determination of the utility's full 
avoided costs. 

40 Q. What does this change accomplish? 

41 A. This change permits the QF to operate under the same 

2 0  
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10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 Q .  

18 A. 

19 

20 
21 

22 

23 
24 
25 

COMMENTS OF GERARD J .  KORDECKI 

economics as the public utilities. First, the standard 

offer contract would be expanded to include purchases by 

utilities where such purchases are in fact the public 

utility's avoided generation resource, i.e., where such 

purchases are made in lieu of building new generating 

units. Secondly, each standard offer contract should allow 

for qualifying facilities to be paid in the same manner as 

the utilities collect from their ratepayers. Only "life of 

the unit" contracts would receive revenue requirements and 

avoided purchases would be dealt with on the same basis as 

the payments for power purchase contracts. 

These proposed amendments to this section only level 

the playing field so that QFs are facing the same treatment 

that is afforded to the utilities. This transparent 

treatment is what I believe meets the goals of PURPA and 

the intent of the Florida Legislature. 

What is your next recomnended change? 

I would recommend that the Commission amend Rule 25- 

17.0832(4) (e)7., F.A.C., to read as follows: 

(e) Minimum Specifications. Each standard offer 
contract shall, at minimum, specify: 

* * *  

7. The period of time over which firm capacity 
and energy shall be delivered from the qualifying 
facility to the utility. Firm capacity and energy 

21 
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shall be delivered, at a minimum, for a period of ten 
years, commencing with the anticipated in-service date 
of the avoided unit specified in the contract. At a 
maximum, firm capacity and energy shall be delivered 
for a period of time equal to the anticipated plant 
life of the avoided unit, commencing with the 
anticipated in-service date of the avoided unit. 
Consistent with the utilitv's obliaation to Durchase 
the firm caDacitv and enerav that a aualifvinq 
facilitv has available to sell to a utilitv. the 
aualifvina facilitv shall have the oDtion to sDecifv 
the duration of its obliaation to deliver firm 
caDac itv a nd enerav within the above Da rameters. 

1 
2 
3 
4 
5 
6 
I 
8 
9 

10 
11 
12 
13 

14 Q. What does this change accomplish? 

15 A. This change reflects the fact that utilities are obligated 

16 to purchase the qualifying facility's capacity at the point 

17 that each utility has nominated a type of unit or purchase 

18 and designated a date for commercial operation or purchase. 

19 Since QFs are receiving avoided cost in the form of total 

20 revenue requirements or value of deferral payments which 

21 are less than the annual revenue requirements, utilities' 

22 ratepayers are being held harmless. 

23 The ultimate customers see the same dollar amounts on 

24 their bills if the utilities built the generating units or 

25 made firm wholesale purchases or signed a standard offer 

26 contract with a qualifying facility. In order to facilitate 

21 this process, the QFs should have the option to specify the 

28 duration of the obligation within the parameters 

29 established for the avoided facilities or purchases. 

22 
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This is also consistent with the policy articulated in 

PURPA and in Section 366.051, Florida Statutes, that public 

utilities must buy, at their avoided cost, all electricity 

offered for sale by cogenerators and small power producers. 

If the QF has capacity and energy available to sell to a 

public utility for 17 years, then the law requires the 

utility to buy it at the utility's avoided cost. This is 

sound policy that promotes efficient generation and 

generation from solid waste facilities while protecting 

utility customers by requiring payments to be made at 

avoided cost. 

Mr. Kordecki, do you have any further comments regarding 

the Commission's Rule? 

Yes. I believe that the Commission should also clarify its 

Rule to require a level-playing-field evaluation and 

identification of each utility's avoided unit. More 

specifically, I believe that such evaluations, as well as 

the subsequent calculation of the utility's avoided cost, 

should be based on a generation expansion plan that 

includes only contractually committed or existing demand- 

side management and conservation measures. It is my 

understanding that Lee County, Miami-Dade County, and 

Montenay-Dade, Ltd. have submitted a separate petition 

23 
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1 

2 and that that issue will be taken up when the Commission 

3 acts upon that petition. 

asking the Commission to amend its Rule to accomplish this, 

4 Q .  

5 A. 

6 

I 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

Conceptually, what will this last change accomplish? 

This last suggested change will put standard offer contract 

purchase options on a consistent basis in the selection of 

resource alternatives to meet the utilities' load growth. 

The language requires that all incremental conservation and 

load management program estimates be removed from the load 

and energy forecasts so that the avoided unit calculations 

and the availability of qualifying facility purchases are 

dealt with in a consistent manner with demand and other 

supply options. 

14 Q. Mr. Kordecki, does this conclude your comments? 

15 A. Yes, it does. 

2 4  
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MONTENAY POWER CORP. 

August 31,2001 

Via Facsimile 

The Honorable E. Leon Jacobs, Jr. 
Chairman 
Florida Public Service Conmission 
2540 Shumard Oak Boulevard 
Tallahassee, FL 32399-0872 

Re: Comments of Montenay Power Corp. Regarding Proposed Cogeneration Rule Amendments 

Dear chairman Jacobs: 

I write to you to express Montenay Power Corp.'~ opposition to the amendments to the 
Commission's Cogeneration Rules that h a ~ e  been proposed by your StafF and which you will 
consider at your agenda conference next week. In summary, Montenay opposes the proposed 
a " t s  because they will almost certainly result in qualifying Cogeneration and small power 
production hcilitks ('QFs") being paid less than the avoided costs associated with the utility's 
self-build supply option and because they wiU discourage the development of new Cogeneration 
and small power production facilities in Florida, to the detriment ofFlorids electric consumers and 
Florida's citizens who rely on waste-to-energy facilities to dispose of theii municipal solid waste. 

While the Stail's goal of protecting ratepayers is certainly laudable. Montenay believes that the 
proposed a " e n t s  will more likely fiushate that goal than serve it. In particular, what the 
proposed amendments result in payments to QFs below the utility's fd avoided cost, which will 
bc a virtually certain result where capacity payments are limited to five years, or even ten years, 
and where the capacity payments arc calculated using the value of deferral methodology, they will 
discourage the construction of new QFs and wiU provide incentives to existing QFs Mf to enter 
into standard offer contracts with the utility. This will likely lead to the utility buildmg its own 
"avoided unit," which, by the S t a s  own hypothesis - &, that generation costs are decreasing -- 
will result m the utility's c u s t o m  bearing costs associated with the utility's self-built unit that 
are greater than future generation costs. Pleas note that Montenay is not attempting to argue for 
payments any greater than the costs that the utility's ratepayas would incur if the utility were to 
build its own self-build option; Montenay simply believes that Montenay and other eligible QFs 
should be entitled to the same costs that the utility would otherwise incur, its fill avoided cost 
as authorhed by Section 366.05 1, Florida Statutes, and by PURPA. 

r 
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waste-to-energy ncut~es, wbch IS set tbrth in Section 377.709(1), Florida Statutes. 

Thank you very much for considering these comments. A representative of Montenay will be 
present at your agenda conference next week to more fully explain Montenay’s position and 
concerns regarding the proposed amendments. If1 can answer any questions, please give me a 
call at (305) 593-7000. 

Sincerelv. 

Vice President 
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S O L I D  W A S T E  
M A N A G E M E N T  

August 29,2001 

E. Leon Jacobs, Chairman 
Florida Public Service Commission 
2540 Shumard Oak Boulevard 
Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0842 

RE: FPSC Docket No. 001574-EQ. (Proposed Amendments to 25-17.0832, F.A.C.) 

Dear Chairman Jacobs: 

The Miami-Dade County Department of Solid Waste Management administers the contracted operations 
of the County-owned Resources Recovery Facility. This small qualifying facility (SQF) provides this 
community with waste disposal services based on a Waste-to-Energy (WTE) technology utilizing 
municipal solid waste as a fuel source. 

For the reasons detailed in the enclosed May 14 letter to Mr. Hewitt of the Commission staff, I am writing 
to you at this time to urge you to reject proceeding with rule-making pertaining to the proposed 
amendments (referenced above) being presented at your upcoming meeting on September 4,2001. As 
explained in the May 14 letter, under the existing formulas utilized, shorter contract terms tend to unfairly 
undervalue this critical citizen-owned resource. This is being proposed at a time when local, renewable, 
reliable fuel sources and energy production technologies and fair pricing should be encouraged in Florida. 

In addition, while the Commission staff analysis argues that it is best that IOU ratepayers not be tied to 
long-term contracts in the event that prices decline, longer term contracts would actually be best for IOU 
ratepayers should prices increase. Longer contracts introduce greater financial stability into this critical 
market. Maintaining minimum contract lengths that are in closer alignment with facility life and 
financing terms reduce risk which, in turn, may have a more significant role in encouraging new capacity 
than any specific price level. 

Thank you for this opportunity to provide you with input. Your time and attention is appreciated. If you 
should have any questions or require any further information regarding this issue, please contact Ms. 
Deborah Silver, Executive Assistant to the Deputy Director at 305-594-1530. 

Sincerely, 

RECEIVED 
AU6 3 ‘f 21)N 

FLORIDA PUBLIC SEWICE CCWWCU 
Chiman BaPb, 

Director 
d W & !  

/- 

8675 Northwest 53 Street, Suite 201, Miami, Florida 33166 305592-1776 
“Love Your Neighbor” 
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Craig B. Hewitt 
Division of Economic Regulation, Florida Public Service Commission 
2540 Shumard Oak Boulevard 
Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0842 

RE: FPSC Docket No. 001574EQ. (Proposed Amendments to 25-17.0832, F.A.C.) 

Dear MI. Hewitt: 

Miami-Dade County owns the Miami-Dade County Resources Recovery Facility, a Refuse- 
Derived-Fuel Waste-to-Enera plant, which serves a major proportion of the disposal needs of 
the County’s 2 million residents. This facility is a small qualifying facility (SQF) pursuant to 
Commission rules. Accordingly, as an affected party, the County is providing you with this 
notice of its opposition to rule changes, including the above-referenced, that ultimately reduce 
the duration of energy sales contracts, particularly as they may apply to “standard offers”. 

Current rules require that standard contracts offer the SQF prices based on the utility’s actual 
avoided cost, using a “value of deferral” formula Given its design, the full and fair value of the 
deferral can only be realized over the entire “life” of the asset deferred. Accordingly, a single 
long-term deferral would, all other factors being equal, have a higher total value than a series of 
shorter-term deferrals. Therefore, the proposal to further limit contract duration fails to fairly 
and equitably take into account the value of the capacity provided. 

Given the public ownership status of this and like facilities, any shortfall arising &om a reduction 
in electrical revenues would ultimately be funded by the citizen-owners and alI disposal system 
rate-payers, in this case the residents of Miami-Dade County. In addition to shortchanging these 
residents, reduced contract durations undervalue many of the benefits of this renewable energy 
source, such as reduced greenhouse gas emissions and displacement of imported fossil fuels. 
Accordingly, we oppose such rule changes and strongly encourage a reevaluation of this issue. 
Please add this agency to any notification lists that you maintain in relation to this subject matter 
and see the enclosed response for further details concerning your data request. 

F- 

Sincerely, 

F- 
8675 Northwest 53 Street, Suite 201, Miami, Florida 33166 305592-1776 

“Low Your Neighbor” 



Miami-Dade County 
Response to Datahformation Proposed Rule Amendments to F.A.C. Firm Capacity and Energy 

P Contracts; Docket No. 001576Eq. 

1. ’ Please identify and estimate incremental costs to comply with each of the proposed 
rule requirements, including all potential transactional costs. For purposes of this 
question, “transactional costs” should include direct costs that are readily 
ascertainable based upon standard business practices. These costs may include 
filing fees, costs of obtaining a license, the cost of equipment required to be installed 
or used or procedures required to be employed in complying with the rule, 
additional operating costs incurred, and the costs of monitoring and reporting. 

The proposed rule change, by potentially shortening the term of SQF electrical sales contracts, 
would raise costs and/or reduce revenues for this citizen-owned facility in the following manner: 

1. Reduced contract durations would result in energy revenues that are severely discounted 
due to the failure to compensate for the full value of the avoided cost of capacity 
provision. In accord with the existing ‘’value of deferral” methodology, payments begin 
low and increase over time, the shorter the term, the proportionately lower the 
compensation will be for capacity overall. 

2. Shorter contract lengths would force local governments to go out into the energy sales 
market on a more fiequent basis resulting in higher administrative costs and added risk 
due to the increased instability. This in turn will affect the financial markets’ evaluation 
of county/municipal WTE projects, contributing to lower bond ratings and an increased 
the cost of borrowing for local govements. 

3. The proposed changes would discourage SQFs in general, and those utilizing renewable 
or other innovative technologies in particular at a time when such projects should be 
encouraged. This will deprive the citizens of Florida of added capacity in general and, 
more specifically, those with the environments! and long-term economic benefits of 
utilization of domestic renewable energy sources. 

2. 

From the perspective of the citizen-owners of the Miami-Dade County Resource Recovery 
Facility, no net benefits have been identified. 

Please identify and estimate additional benefits from the proposed rule. 

3. Please advise whether your company meets the defmithmwf- I------ 

Section 288.703(1), Florida Statutes. 

Not applicable. 



1 

4. Please provide any reasonable lower cost alternative method of accomplishing the 
requirements of the proposed rule. Include the estimated costs of each alternative. 
If only a modification of the proposed rule is suggested, please also include any 
related expenseslsavings on the modification compared to the expensehavings on the 
proposed rule identified in questions 1. and 2. 

/4 

In that the proposed rule used in conjunction with the existing payment formula results in a 
severe under-valuation of generating capacity, we are also opposed to any alternatives. In that 
the proposed rule reduces the potential for long-term stability in the market, a desired feature, 
particularly for local governments and financial markets, we are similarly opposed to any 
alternatives. We welcome proposals that address these concerns. 

5. Please provide additional comments or cost estimates that may be useful to the 
Commission or its staf f  in assessing the economic impacts of the proposed rule. 
Please include any company-recommended modifications and related 
expensedsavings if not covered above. 

Publicly-sponsored biomass facilities, such as the Miami-Dade County Resource Recovery 
Facility, currently supply slightly less than two percent of Florida’s energy needs while 
simultaneously providing numerous environmental benefits and meeting the disposal demands of 
our growing economy. These facilities are largely owned by the citizens and provide a critical 
public service; the sponsoring local communities are committed for the long term. Compensation 
for the public’s investment in this capacity is returned to the community. The full value of that 
capacity ought to be recognized and the term over which it is paid ought to be determined by the 
local community. Importantly, the integrity of the “standard offer” contract and the ability of 
the SQF to simply take those terms must be maintained. 

r‘. 



RICHARD A. ZAMBO, P.A. 
Al7ORNEYS AN0 COUNSELLORS 

598 S.W. HIDDEN RIVER AVENUE 
PALM CITY, FLORIDA 34990 ORIGINAL - Telephone (772)220-9163 r FAX (772) 220-9402 

REGISTERED PROFESSIONAL ENGINEER COGENERATION a ALTERNATIVE ENERGY 
ENERGY REGULATORY LAW REGISTERED PATENT ATTORNEY 

HAND DELIVERY 
March 7,2003 -e. S ”  yr‘ 

5 0  
0 %  P’ 

02 2 rG Ms. Blanca S. Bayo, Director r> q 
Division of Records & Reporting %% S ’  +, 
Florida Public Service Commission %3 ’0 $ 
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7 c3cD ”,e. 
Capitol Circle Office Center 
2540 Shumard Oak Boulevard 
Tallahassee, FL 32399 

In re: FPSC Docket No. 001574-EQ 
Proposed Amendments To Rule 25- 17.0832, F.A.C. 

.-- .”” Firm Capacity And Energy Contracts / - .- 

!-ear Ms. Bayo, 
Jh, 
=OM G&’<l&nclosed for filing in the captioned proceeding, please find the original and 15 copies 

I f  the Supplemental Direct Testimony of Frank Seidman on behalf of the City of Tampa, 32 a l o r i d a  --- (City) and the Solid Waste Authority (SWA) of Palm Beach County, Florida. 
OPC d 
MMS 
S~~ In addition, you are hereby advised that the City adopts and sponsors the March 1, 
OTH , 2 0 2  testimony of Frank Seidman and Ralph Michael Salmon previously filed in this 

proceeding, and that the SWA adopts and sponsors the March 1, 2002 testimony of Frank 
Seidman and Marc C. Bruner previously filed in this proceeding. We respectfully request 
that the referenced testimony be included in the Docket file. 

2. - 
i .- 

If you have any questions regarding this filing, or require any additional information: 
please do not hesitate to contact this office. 

,+., R A Z h  
Enclosures 

Sincerely, 

Richard A. Zambo 
Florida Bar No. 312525 

DOCUHFNT N W F Q - C A T E  

02293 flAR-73 
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SUPPLEMENTAL DIRECT TESTIMONY OF FRANK SEIDMAN 

BEFORE THE FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 

IN DOCKET NO. 001574-EQ 

REGARDING PROPOSED AMENDMENTS 

TO RULE 25-17.0832, F.A.c., 

FIRM CAPACITY AND ENERGY CONTRACTS 

ON BEHALF OF 

THE CITY OF TAMPA and 

THE SOLID WASTE AUTHORITY OF PALM BEACH COUNTY 

Please state your name, profession and address. 

My name is Frank Seidman. I am President o f  

Management and Regulatory Consultants, Inc., 

consultants in the utility regulatory field. My 

mailing address i s  P.O. Box 13421, Tallahassee, FL 

32317-3427. 

Have you previously filed direct testimony in this 

proceeding? 

Yes. I filed direct testimony on March 1, 2002. 

What is the purpose of your supplemental direct 

testimony? 

The purpose of my supplemental testimony is to 

address two statements made in the February 6, 2003 
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Notice of Rulemaking (NOR) as well as to address 

issues or concerns that have been brought to my 

attention since I filed my direct testimony. 

What is the first statement in the NOR that you 

wish to address? 

On page 3 of the NOR, in discussing the effect of 

the proposed reduction in the minimum contract 

length it is stated, " The effect is to reduce the 

risk that ratepayers will be tied to long-term 

contracts that are above avoided cost." In my 

opinion, the basic premise of that statement - that 
standard offer contracts can be above avoided cost 

- is in error. 

Please elaborate. 

That statement not only implies that this 

Commission has approved contracts that result in 

payments to Qualifying Facilities (QFs)  that are 

above avoided cost, but it also implies that the 

rule and formulae of this Commission could even 

produce payments that are above avoided cost. This 

is an absolutely false premise on which to base 

these proposed rule amendments. 

L 
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1 Q. Could you explain further? 

2 A. Yes. Contracts that result in payments to QFs in 
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excess of avoided cost are not possible in Florida. 

Such contracts are not allowed under the law, are 

not allowed by existing rules, and cannot happen 

when prices are determined using the formulae that 

were developed and implemented by this Commission. 

There are three very good reasons for this: 

First, federal law requires that no rule 

prescribed shall provide for a rate which 

"exceeds the incremental cost to the electric 

utility of alternative electric energy." And 

federal law defines incremental cost as "the 

cost to the electric utility of the electric 

energy which, but for the purchase from such 

cogenerator or small power producer, such 

utility would generate or purchase from 

another source." In other words, whether 

capacity is supplied by the utility or the QF, 

the cost will be transparent to the ratepayer. 

Second, this Commission implemented federal 

law by setting prices to be paid to qualifying 

facilities under a standard offer contract 

3 
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which, according to Commission rule, "shall be 

based on the need for and equal to the avoided 

cost of deferring or avoiding the construction 

of additional generation capacity or parts 

thereof by the purchasing utility." 

Third, all contracts approved by the 

Commission must contain prices that pass a 

test set up in the rules that insures that 

they do not exceed the avoided cost. 

Accordingly, under the formulae and provisions of 

the Commissions rules, a situation cannot exist 

where the ratepayers will be tied to long-term 

contracts that are above avoided cost. Prices 

based on a utility's avoided cost cannot - by 

definition - result in prices that exceed that 

utility's avoided cost. Therefore, the premise for 

the proposed rule amendments is nonexistent. 

That same statement in the NOR also addresses 

reducing the risk of QF contracts to the 

ratepayers. Do you have any comments on that issue? 

Yes, I do. The risk to ratepayers of payments made 

to QFs is already so much less than the risk of a 
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utility constructing its own generating capacity, 

that I do not believe anything further can be done 

without violating the provisions of state and 

federal law. This is because there are so many 

safeguards already built in to the formulae and the 

rules. 

First, is the value-of-deferral 

(V0D)payment stream on which payments 

under the standard offer contracts are 

based. Under VOD, QFs get paid very small 

fixed cost payments in the early years of 

a contract (in exchange for larger 

payments in future years), whereas, if a 

utility constructed its own capacity, it 

would receive very large payments in the 

early years. 

Second, a QF only gets paid for the "planned" 

or "projected" cost of generation. In 

comparison, if a utility builds its own 

generating capacity, it gets paid for the 

actual cost of construction, including any 

cost overruns. An example of this, is TECO's ' 

P o l k  coal-gasification units which were 
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projected to cost $389 million but actually 

ended up costing in excess of $506 million. A 

standard offer contract for deferral of 

capacity from this unit would have been based 

on the $389 million, whereas all $506 million 

ended up in TECO's rate base. QF contracts - 
in lieu of the coal-gasification units - would 

have reduced the risk to ratepayers by about 

$117 million. 

Third, there are alw ys addition 1 capital 

costs incurred during a generating plant's 

lifetime, be it for replacements of major 

components, technological upgrades or for 

meeting changing environmental requirements. 

For a utility constructed unit, those costs 

end up in rate base. For capacity provided by 

a QF, they do not. The payments are fixed, 

based solely on the originally projected 

costs, without consideration for any future 

capital expenditures. 

Fourth, when a utility constructed unit 

operates at a lower efficiency and reliability 

than planned or projected, the additional 
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operating costs end up in the expenses passed 

on to the ratepayer. That cannot happen under 

a QF standard offer contract because, the 

payments are based on a set level of 

efficiency and reliability. Lower levels of 

efficiency or reliability result in reduced 

payments to the QF and accordingly reduce 

costs to be borne by the ratepayers. 

All of these factors act to reduce the risk of QF 

standard offer contracts to the utility' s 

ratepayers to a level much lower than the risk 

associated with utility constructed capacity. 

What is the second statement in the NOR that you 

wish to address? 

On page 5 of the NOR, it is stated, " Allowing a 

qualifying facility to choose the contract term 

would abrogate the Commission's regulatory 

responsibility over capacity and energy contracts." 

In my opinion, this statement is completely 

misguided and in error. Allowing the QF to choose 

the maximum length of the contract has been an 

option since 1983. Staff therefore seems to be 

implying that the Commission has been abrogating 
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its responsibility for the past 2 0  years. Surely 

that has not been the case. Staff's statement begs 

the question "why does allowing a qualifying 

facility to choose the contract term abrogate the 

Commission's regulatory responsibility, but 

allowing the utility to choose it does not?" 

The purpose of setting contract term limits in the 

rules seems to have been forgotten. The rules set a 

minimum and maximum contract period. The minimum 

contract period was set at only 10 years (even 

though it would not offset the life of a generating 

unit) to ensure the QF would be around long enough 

to confer a capacity benefit on the utility and its 

ratepayers. The maximum contract period was set at 

the life of the unit because, with payments being 

made on the VOD basis, it was only at the end of 

that period that the QF would receive the same 

amount, on a present value basis, as it would have 

received on a revenue requirements basis. In other 

words, the minimum period protected the ratepayer 

from the QF not conferring a capacity benefit, and 

the maximum period protected the Q F s  entitlement to 

a full avoided cost payment. 
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This newly advocated preference for short-term 

contracts, without any assurance that a long-term 

contract can be secured, goes against the purposes 

of the rule. By removing the protection that a QF 

can earn full avoided cost, QF development will be 

impeded contrary to the intent and requirement of 

the law. 

Allowing the QF to seek longer contract terms, up 

to the life of the avoided unit, not only assures 

benefits to the ratepayers, but also allows QFs to 

secure long term financing for what is a major, 

long term, capital commitment on behalf of local 

governments. The ability to enter into a long term 

contract is essential for obtaining financing for 

waste-to-energy projects which typically have 

useful lives and financing terms in excess of 20 

years. Eliminating the option of long term standard 

offer contracts will severely limit a QF's ability 

to finance. 

2 2  Q .  You stated that you a lso  wanted t o  address some 

2 3  issues o r  concerns that have been brought t o  your 

2 4  attention since you f i l e d  your direct  testimony. 

P-. 2 5  Would you please elaborate? 
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Yes; I would be happy to. There seems to be a 

concern that small amounts of generating capacity 

cannot defer the need for large utility power 

plants. I touched on this matter to some degree in 

my original direct testimony of March 1, 2002. In 

that testimony I pointed to language in several 

Commission orders regarding approval of revised 

utility standard offer contracts that said that it 

was unlikely that the avoided unit would be 

avoided. It has always been my opinion that any 

capacity provided by a QF avoids an equal or 

greater amount of utility capacity. Until recently, 

tangible evidence and utility admission of this 

"theory" had been lacking. However, evidence 

confirming this opinion and theory can be found in 

the records of this Commission's Determination of 

Need for FPL's Martin Unit 8 plant. In that case, 

the Commission observed that the lack of 15 MW 

required FPL to accelerate installation of a new 

789 MW plant in order to maintain reserve margins. 

As an aside, but of great significance in this 

regard, it should be noted that selection by a 

utility of a proposed planned plant size is not an 

exact science. Plant size selection depends to a 
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large extent on the unit sizes available in the 

market - especially from manufacturers of 

combustion-gas turbines. Because there is a 

substantial degree of flexibility necessary when 

choosing a specific plant size, it is reasonable to 

assume that small increments of QF capacity can 

avoid or defer capacity - either small increments 
equal in size to the QF, or, as demonstrated in the 

Martin need hearings, a 789 MW plant. 
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, FPC insisted that its next planned 

plant. However, would not have been able 

in the time frame y deemed necessary to 

and outages. 

needed in a much shorter t frame thereby 

Fourth, if FPC had constructed 

coal plant, the ratepayers would 

variable - over its useful life - 

QF contracts. 



2" 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

I 

8 

9 

10 

11 Q .  

1 2  A. 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

1 8  

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

/"- 

,-- 

Do you have any concluding remarks? 

Yes. I would ask the Commissioners to keep in mind 

the many safeguards for the ratepayers that are 

already built into the rules, such as value of 

deferral pricing. Value of deferral pricing, which 

pays the QF very little up-front dollars, assures 

that the only way a QF can earn full avoided cost - 

as required by state and federal law - is to 

provide capacity and energy for as many years as 

the utility's avoided generating unit would have 

provided that capacity and energy. Please also keep 

in mind that by reducing the contract term, as is 

proposed in these amendments, guarantees that a QF 

will never receive the cost avoided by the utility 

and thus will end up subsidizing the utility. It is 
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understandable therefore, why the utilities are 

supportive of the rule amendments proposed by staff 

in this proceeding. But please keep in mind that 

the end 'result of the amendments - if implemented 

by the Commission - would be: (1)a substantial 

deterrent to QF development contrary to law, and 

( 2 )  a pure and simple subsidy from the QF t o  the 

utility and its ratepayers. 

I would also ask that the Commission keep in mind 

that smaller, dispersed generating units - such as 
those typically provided by QFs - contribute to a 
more reliable and secure electric system, and 

provide it at a cost no greater than that which 

would be incurred by the utility. The proposed 

amendments would thwart the intentions of the law 

and reduce the availability of those benefits. 

D o e s  that conclude your supplemental direct 

testimony? 

Yes it does. 

14 



,/- 
BEFORE TEE FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 

In Re: Proposed Amendments to ) 
Rule 25-07.0832, F.A.C., Firm ) 
Capacity and Energy Contracts ) 

Docket No. 001574-EQ 

Filed: March 1, 2002 

TESTIMONY 

AND EXHIBITS 

OF 

FRANK SEIDMAN 

ON BEHALF OF 

THE CITY OF TAMPA 

AND 

THE SOLID WASTE AUTHORITY OF PALM BEACH COUNTY 



i 
, .  

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

ii Q .  

12 A. 

13 

14 

1 5  

16 

17 

1 8  Q. 
19 

20 A. 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

TESTIMONY OF FRANK SEIDMAN 

BEFORE THE FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 

IN DOCKET NO. 001574-EQ 

REGARDING PROPOSED AMENDMENTS 

TO RULE 25-17.0832, F.A.C., 

FIRM CAPACITY AND ENERGY CONTRACTS 

ON BEHALF OF 

THE CITY OF TAMPA and 

THE SOLID WASTE AUTHORITY OF PALM BEACH COUNTY 

Please s t a t e  your name, profession and address. 

My name is Frank Seidman. I am President of 

Management and Regulatory Consultants, Inc., 

consultants in the utility regulatory field. My 

mailing address is P.O. Box 13427, Tallahassee, FL 

32311-3427. 

State briefly your eduoational background and 

experience. 

I hold the degree of Bachelor of Science in 

Electrical Engineering from the University of 

Miami. I have also completed several graduate level 

courses in economics at Florida State University, 

including public utility economics. I am a 

Professional Engineer, registered to practice in 
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the state of Florida. I have over 30 years 

experience in utility regulation, management and 

consulting. This experience includes nine years as 

a staff member of the Florida Public Service 

Commission, two years as a planning engineer for a 

Florida telephone company, four years as Manager of 

Rates and Research for a water and sewer holding 

company with operations in six states, and three 

years as Director of Technical Affairs for a 

national association of industrial users of 

electricity. I have been providing rate and 

regulatory consulting services in Florida for over 

20 years. Specifically, with regard to Commission 

rules affecting cogenerators and small power 

producers, I have participated in the development 

of those rules on behalf of cogenerators and small 

power producers, and presented testimony or 

comments before this Commission on their behalf, in 

nearly every rulemaking proceeding since 1982. 

On whose behalf are you presenting this testimony 3 

I am presenting this testimony and appearing on 

behalf of the City of Tampa, Florida ("Tampa") and 

the Solid Waste Authority of Palm Beach County, 

Florida ("the Authority"). 
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Q .  What is  the interest of Tampa and the Authority i n  

proceeding? 

A. The Authority and Tampa each currently own 

municipal solid waste facilities which are defined 

as a solid waste facility or Small Qualifying 

Facility ("SQF") by Commission Rule and as such are 

eligible for Standard Offer Contracts pursuant to 

Commission Rule 25-17.0832, F . A . C . ,  the subject of 

this proceeding. Accordingly, both the Authority 

and Tampa have a direct interest in the rule 

amendments proposed in this proceeding. 

Q .  What is  the position of Tampa h d  the Authority 

with regard to tho propoaed rule amendments? 

It i s  the position of Tampa and the Authority that 

the proposed amendments to the rule will result in 

payments to QF's that are less than the purchasing 

utility's avoided costs, will increase transaction 

costs for QF's, and will otherwise negatively 

impact upon QF's and consumers of electricity in 

Florida. One detrimental effect of the proposed 

amendments is that they would act as a disincentive 

to the development of QF's  and thereby indirectly 

contribute to an increase in the consumption of 

scarce resources, contrary to the letter and very 

A. 

3 



i . .  . .  

. I 
2 

3.  

4 

5 

6 

7 

0 

9 

10 

11 Q.  

12 

13 A. 

1 4  

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

2 1  

22 

23 

24 

2 5  

clear intent of existing federal and state laws. In 

addition, Tampa and the Authority are very 

concerned that the proposed rule amendments as well 

as interpretations of the existing rules, as 

expressed in recent Commission orders regarding 

standard offer rule waivers, no longer reflect the 

conservation benefits and economic principles upon 

which the laws and regulations encouraging the 

development of QF's  were founded. 

What are the Conservation benefits  and economic 

principles t o  which you refer? 

The conservation benefits and economic principles 

to which I refer are that (1) qualifying 

cogeneration facilities, as defined in federal laws 

and regulations, provide substantial savings in the 

consumption of energy relative to conventional 

separate production of electric energy and thermal 

technologies; (2)  qualifying small power producers 

conserve scarce resources producing energy through 

the use of renewable resources; and ( 3 )  payments to 

Q F ' s  equal to full avoided cost, as defined in 

federal and state laws and regulations, are just 

and reasonable to consumers, because they reflect 

costs to the utility that are neither higher nor 
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lower than the utility would have incurred, had it 

generated the electricity itself, or purchased it 

from another source. 

HISTORY OF LAWS AND RULES ENCOURAGING OF'S 

Q. Would you briefly summarize the development of the 

law and rules encouraging QF's? 

A. Yes. In 1978, in response to a world oil shortage 

resulting from an embargo, and other concerns 

regarding the availability of finite fuel resources 

and the efficient use of those resources in 

producing electric energy, Congress passed the 

Public Utility Regulatory Policies Act (PURPA). A 

significant part of that act was devoted to 

encouraging the development of cogeneration and 

small power production facilities that produce 

electricity by the use of highly efficient systems, 

or renewable fuel resources, or both. PURPA's 

primary means of encouraging the development of 

cogeneration and small power production was to 

remove the then existing institutional barriers 

that had grown out of the traditionally 

monopolistic electric utility industry. PURPA did 

this by requiring utilities to offer to purchase 

electricity from qualifying cogenerators and small 
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power producers ("Qualifying Facilities" or "QF's") 

at rates that were just and reasonable to 

consumers, non-discriminatory to QF's and not in 

excess of the cost the utility would have incurred 

to generate such electricity or purchase it from 

another source. To be a qualifying cogenerator or 

small power producer, the facility had to meet 

certain energy efficiency or fuel use standards to 

be established by the Federal Energy Regulatory 

Commission (FERC) The FERC, which was also 

responsible for developing regulatory guidelines 

for the states to implement PURPA, concluded that 

if rates for the purchase of electricity from QF's 

were set at the purchasing utility's full avoided 

cost for energy and capacity, the rates would meet 

the criteria set forth in PURPA. 

Beginning in 1981, and during most of the 198O's, 

this Commission developed and refined rules, the 

purpose of which, was to implement the intent of 

PURPA and the FERC regulations. The Commission's 

understanding and endorsement of the principles set 

out in PURPA and FERC regulations was clearly 

evident from its statement in Order No. 12443, 
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issued September 2, 1983 adopting rules in relation 

to cogeneration: 

" The encouragement of cogeneration 

through the establishment of 

electric utility markets for 

electricity produced by qualifying 

facilities (cogenerators and small 

power producers) will result in 

economic savings to consumers of 

electricity and the citizenry of 

Florida at large. These economic 

savings stem from the lessened 

dependency on the use of foreign oil 

as a boiler fuel and the deferral or 

cancellation of the construction of 

additional generating capacity by 

electric utilities in Florida which 

result from cogeneration." 

The rules developed by the Commission included four 

important features. (1) The first feature was a 

requirement that utility's must make available to 

QF'S, a standard offer contract for the purchase of 

firm capacity and energy as an alternative to 

negotiation of a contract with a utility. This 
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feature protected the QF from unreasonable and 

extended negotiations. (2) The second feature was a 

requirement that the capacity payments under a 

standard offer contract be based on the year-by- 

year value of deferral methodology. This feature 

was included as a means of protecting the consumer 

from a QF defaulting on a contract because payments 

would only have been made for the actual value of 

deferred capacity. It is important to note that at 

that point in time, the QF industry was in its 

infancy and the Commission and utilities were 

exercising caution, with a view toward erring (if 

at all) in favor of the consumer. ( 3 )  The third 

feature was the inclusion of a "risk factor" in the 

capacity payment as a result of which a QF would be 

paid only 80% of a utility's avoided capacity cost. 

The purpose of this feature was to further protect 

the customer; this time from various "unknown 

factors" such as the possibility that there might 

be an insufficient amount of capacity when needed 

or that a QF commitment of less than the useful 

life of the avoided unit would leave the utility 

with insufficient capacity in later years. ( 4 )  The 

fourth feature was a requirement that the standard 

offer contract period be a minimum of ten years and 
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a maximum of the useful life of the avoided unit. 

This feature protected the customer and the QF. It 

protected the customer because, in the words of the 

Commission: "while a ten-year contract will not 

offset the expected thirty year life of a base load 

generating unit, we believe it is of sufficient 

length to confer substantial capacity related 

benefits on the ratepayers." (Order No. 12634 at p. 

9 . )  It protected the QF by allowing the opportunity 

to contract for a period longer than ten years and 

to receive payments equal to full avoided cost if 

it was willing to contract for the life of the 

avoided unit. As the Commission pointed out in 

Order No. 12634, the value-of-deferral methodology 

pays low payments in the early years and high 

payments in the later years, while the revenue 

requirements for a generating unit are higher in 

the early years and lower in the later years (see 

Exhibit (FS-1)- , Graph 1). But over the life 

of the avoided unit the value-of-deferral method 

will pay the QF the same amount it would have 

received if capacity payments had been made based 

on deferred revenue requirements. This is an 

extremely important fact in the context of this 

rulemaking proceeding. To repeat, a QF can only 

9 
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receive full avoided cost (to which it is lawfully 

entitled) if it contracts for a period of time 

equal to the entire useful life of the avoided 

unit. 

Both the ten year minimum contract period and the 

other provisions, such as the inability of a QF to 

unilaterally modify its capacity commitment, were 

designed to protect the utility and the customer. 

As the Commission stated, "The rules pertaining to 

standard offer contracts have been carefully 

designed to provide the planning certainty required 

to allow a utility to depend on the QF capacity and 

defer additional power plant construction." (Order 

No. 13247 at p. 11). 

These features fairly well defined the Commission's 

implementation of PURPA and FERC regulations, 

through most of the 1980's. 

Were there changes in the Florida statutes near the 

end of the 1980's that had an affect on Commission 

cogeneration rules? 

Yes. Among other things, in 1988, the Florida 

legislature passed the 1988 Solid Waste Management 
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Act. This act specifically encouraged the 

development of local government solid waste 

facilities that use waste as the primary energy 

source for electrical generation. As regards the 

Commission's cogeneration rules, it required the 

elimination of the 20% risk factor when 

establishing capacity payments in a standard offer 

contract. 

Then, in 1989, the Florida legislature conducted a 

sunset review of Chapter 366, Florida Statutes. 

Until this review, all of the Commission's actions 

to encourage cogeneration were in response to the 

mandate of PURPA and the implementing FERC 

regulations. To that point, the Florida statutes 

had not addressed the issue, other than to give the 

Commission jurisdiction in matters pertaining to 

QF's. During the sunset review the legislature 

added language to the statute specifically 

addressing QF's. A new section, 366.051, was added 

to Chapter 366, Florida Statutes providing that 

electricity produced by cogeneration and small 

power production is a benefit to the public. In 

addition, this new section mandated the Commission 

to authorize a rate equal to the purchasing 
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utility's full avoided costs. Thus, cogeneration 

and small power production were now encouraged, at 

both the federal and state level, through payments 

for purchases at full avoided costs. Several 

changes were made to the existing rules. But a 

major change, with regard to standard offer 

contracts, was to limit their availability to solid 

waste facilities and other QF's  of I5 MW or less. 

Until that change, the standard offer,contract was 

available to any QF, regardless of size. 

After reviewing the history of the development of 

the Commission's rules through 1990, are there any 

conclusions that can be drawn? 

Yes. The rules regarding standard offer contracts, 

as they evolved through 1990 fairly implemented the 

intent and purpose of federal and state laws as 

they apply to QF's .  They fully recognize the 

conservation benefits and economic principles I 

described earlier in my testimony. As a result, 

they encourage the development of qualifying 

facilities. 

Did the Commission make any changes in the 1990'8 

that affected the standard offer rule? 
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Yes. In 1993, the Commission adopted a "bidding 

rule" that required all regulated electric 

utilities to issue Requests for Proposals for any 

capacity addition with a steam-electric generating 

capability of 1 5  MW or more. In the same year, 

assuming its bidding rules would provide ample 

opportunity for QF's to sell electricity, the 

Commission amended its rules to significantly limit 

the applicability of the standard offer contract. 

In Order No. PSC-96-1548-FOF-EQ, issued December 

19, 1996, the Commission limited the standard offer 

to "small qualifying facilities" which includes 

municipal solid waste facilities, small power 

producers or other QF's with a primary energy 

source of at least 75% renewable resources, and 

QF's -. no 

With that r u h  change did the rules continue to 

fully recognize the conservation benefits and 

economic principles you described earlier and 

continue to encourage the development of qualifying 

facilities? 

No. Absolutely not. That change severely limited 

the encouragement of QF's because it forced many 

otherwise qualified QF's into the negotiation 
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process with no reasonable expectation of success. 

However, for those that could still pass the 

Commission's litmus test for "small" QF's, it did 

offer a fair opportunity to contract at full 

avoided cost payments. As an aside, the 

Commission's bidding rules were and are defective 

in the sense that a utility can circumvent the 

intent of the rule by, for example, building 

combined cycle plants in piecemeal fashion. First, 

' the utility can build the combustion turbine 

components of a plant as a peaking facility. 

Because there is no steam generation the bidding 

rule does not apply. Later, when the utility seeks 

to add the steam portion, no bidder is able to 

compete with the utility because the utility only 

needs to build half of a plant to complete the 

combined cycle, while the bidder would have to 

build the entire plant. 

PRIMARY F EATURES OF THE EXISTING RUL ES 

Q. For those that sti l l  qualify for the standard o f fer  

contract, what are the primary features of the 

exist ing rules that result  i n  a fair implementation 

of the requirements of federal and state laws and 

the encouragement the developent of QF's? 

14 
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A. The primary features of the existing rules that 

encourage the development of QF's  in the fair 

manner required by federal and state laws, are as 

follows: 

1. They protect the customer by ensuring that 

capacity delivered is paid for only at its deferred 

value; 

2. They protect the planning process of the utility 

and the QF's by requiring a minimum ten year 

standard offer contract. This provides planning 

certainty and allows a utility to depend on QF 

capacity and deferral of additional construction. 

3 .  They protect the QF from monopsonistic behavior 

in negotiations by setting as a default 

alternative, a standard offer contract that pays 

full avoided cost for a contract period up to the 

life of the avoided unit; 

4. They provide QFf s with a basis for the long term 

financing of qualified facilities by providing a QF 

with the opportunity to contract, within the 

standard offer, for the life of a unit. Since a 

QF's generating facility will have a life equal or 

very similar to that of an avoided unit, it can be 

assured of a revenue stream to finance construction 

15 
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by opting for a contract equal to the life of the 

unit. 

PROBLFMS WITH THE PROPOSED AMENDMENTS 

Q. Will the proposad rule amendments continue to 

fairly implement the requirements of federal and 

s t a t e  laws and encourage the development of QF's? 

A. Unfortunately, no. The combined proposed 

amendments to the rules - lowering the minimum 

' contract period from ten years to five years 

requiring the utility to set a suecific contract 

period in the standard offer contract - will negate 
at least two of the four means of fair 

implementation and encouragement that I just 

summarized, and quite probably three. First, the 

protection from monopsonistic behavior is removed. 

Second, the basis for long term financing by the QF 

is seriously impaired. And to some degree the 

protection of the planning process is weakened. 

More importantly, however, the proposed amendments 

will result in capacity payments to QF's which are 

less than full avoided cost, thereby falling short 

of the requirement of Florida and Federal law. 

16 
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Bow does the proposed rule change remove the 

protection from monopsonistic behavior? 

As previously discussed, the existing rules require 

that a utility must enter into a standard offer 

contract as an alternative to negotiation. This is 

protection against monopsonistic behavior only if 

the standard offer is set high enough.to encourage 

the utility to negotiate. Under current rules, the 

standard offer indicates only the minimum length of 

the contract period, and allows the QF to choose a 

contract period up to the anticipated useful life 

of the avoided unit. Only a contract for a period 

of time equal to the life of the avoided unit will 

pay the QF full avoided cost for the capacity 

deferred. This was part of the leverage provided to 

QF' s  to insure that utility's had a motive to 

negotiate. If a utility would not negotiate in good 

faith, the QF could fall back on the standard 

offer. 

Under the proposed rule amendments, the utility 

would be permitted to establish the contract period 

so long as the minimum contract period is no less 

than five years. A number of Standard Offer rule 

waivers allowed by the Commission over the past 

1 7  
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several years have already allowed some utilities 

to specify the standard offer contract at five 

years, so the minimum contract period has already 

become the maximum contract period - unless the QF 
negotiates. But where is the leverage under the 

proposed rule with which the QF can negotiate? What 

is the incentive for the utility to negotiate? Is 

the QF to negotiate for than five years and 

then fall back to five years if negotiations are 

unsuccessful? That is not a realistic expectation 

if the Commission truly seeks to continue to 

encourage QF‘s and comply with the mandate of law. 

Nor is it realistic to expect a utility to 

negotiate for more than five years, when the only 

fall back for the QF for an unsuccessful 

negotiation is five years. The end result is that 

there is no longer protection from the utility’s 

monopsonistic behavior. In short, the QF either 

accepts the bone thrown to it, or incurs 

substantial transaction costs to challenge the 

utility and the Commission, or - in cases where the 
QF is a new proposed facility - the capacity is 
simply not built. 

F. 
18 
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Q .  Bow does the proposed ru le  language impair t h e  

bas i s  for long tem financing by the QF? 

A. Q F ' s  in general, and solid waste facilities in 

particular, are designed, constructed, operated and 

maintained to reliably produce electricity over a 

useful life of 20 to 40 years - similar to that of 
a utility generating plant. If such a facility is 

to be financed at a reasonable cost - or at all - 
there must be some assurance that revenues from 

electricity sales will be available during the 

financing period, which again, similar to a utility 

facility, can be f o r  a long period of time and 

often through the useful life of the facility. That 

cannot be done when the QF does. not have the option 

to contract for longer than five years. The 

proposed rule amendments effectively eliminate the 

QF's  ability to enter into a contract of any 

meaningful length. 

Q .  Bow does the proposed rule language weaken the  

planning process? 

Utilities need to plan for both the long and short 

term. When units are designated as an avoided unit, 

the implication is that without an alternative, the 

unit will need to be built. That is a long term 

19 
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commitment on the part of the utilities, the risk 

for which is borne by the customers. A utility may 

be able to defer construction f o r  short periods, 

but eventually capacity must be built by someone. 

The alternative to purchase from another source is 

only possible if there is another source. All 

sources are the result of a long term commitment by 

some entity - either the utility requiring the 

energy, another utility, or a non-utility supplier. 

By limiting standard offer contracts for QF's  to a 

term too short to allow financing, the availability 

of QF's ,  as a resource will be, for all intents and 

purposes, eliminated. It also removes the "planning 

certainty" which the Commission identified in Order 

No. 13241 as being required to allow a utility to 

depend on QF capacity to defer additional 

construction. This weakens the planning process by 

essentially discarding a reliable, efficient and 

cost-effective long-term generating alternative. 

RECENT COMMISSION INTERPRETATIONS 

Q. Earlier in your testimony, you indicated that Tampa 

and the Authority were concerned that 

interpretations of the existing rules, a8 expressed 

in recent Commission orders regarding standard 

.-. 20 



1 offer contract rule waivers, no longer reflect the 

2 conservation benefits  and economic principles upon 

3 which the laws and regulations encouraging the 

/-- 

4 development of  QF's were founded. What do you mean 

5 by that? 

6 A. The rules developed and implemented throughout the 

7 ' 8 0 ' s  and most of the ' 9 0 ' s  supported the federal 

8 and state premises that payments set at full 

9 avoided costs best met the criteria of just and 

10 reasonable to consumers and non-discriminatory to 

11 QPs. In addition, the rules protected the QF and 

1 2  the utility by making the standard offer contract 

13 an alternative to negotiations and by requiring 

1 4  contracts to be at least ten years in length, but 

15 up to the life of an avoided unit, so that a QE had 

16 the opportunity to earn the full avoided cost as it 

17 is legally entitled. 

18 

19 Then, beginning in 1999, in response to petitions 

2 0  by each of the investor owned utilities (some more 

21 than once) for approval of "sub-standard" standard 

22 offer contracts through, among other things, 

23 waivers of the ten year minimum contract 

24 requirement, the Commission began including 

25  statements in its orders that lead me to believe 
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that the Commission no longer considers QF's an 

economic alternative resource nor a more efficient 

electricity producer (i.e., more energy efficient) 

than utility generation. The comments lead me to 

believe that the Commission considers QF's to be 

nuisances rather than viable generating 

alternatives. The orders are replete with 

statements and innuendo that QF's provide no 

benefit and therefore any payment to them - above 
energy payments - is a subsidy. This is simply not 
true. It is disconcerting how far aeield the 

Commission has come from the its original concepts 

of QF' s .  

Could you be more specific with regard to the 

statements made by the Commission? 

Yes. In Order No. PSC-99-0748-FOF-EQ, the 

Commission approved a new standard offer contract 

for Tampa Electric Company (TECO), designating a 

2001 CT as the avoided unit. The Commission then 

goes on to say that it is unlikely that the unit 

can be avoided, that payments made to QF's amount 

to a subsidy, and that this subsidy is mandated by 

federal and state regulations. 

22 
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In Order No. PSC-99-1091-PAA-EI, the Commission 

approved a new standard offer contract for Gulf 

Power Company (GFC), designating a 2002 CC as the 

avoided unit. B u t ,  the Commission stated that most 

likely, the offering of said contract will not 

result in benefits to Gulf's ratepayers. 

In Order No. PSC-00-0505-TRF-EG, the Commission 

approved a new standard offer contract for Florida 

Power and Light Company (FPL) , designating a 2001 
CT as the avoided unit. The Commission then went on 

to state that the contract offer may result in a 

potential subsidy to Q F ' s ,  that QF's should compete 

on an equal footing with all other producers of 

electricity, and that unless the federal and state 

laws are changed, Q F ' s  are being given preferential 

treatment. 

In Order No. PSC-00-0265-PAA-EG, the Commission 

approved a new standard offer contract for Florida 

Power Corporation (FPC), designating 2001 CT as the 

avoided unit and approving a waiver to the 10 year 

minimum period and authorizing a 5 year limit to 

the contract period. The Commission stated that the 

waiver is warranted because a longer contract 

23 
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period will result in an economic hardship to 

ratepayers who bear the risk of generation that is 

not avoided or deferred. The Commission then 

restated the same arguments it made in the FPL 

order. 

Then, in Order N'os. PSC-00-0504-PAA-EQ, PSC-OO- 

1748-PAA-EI, PSC-00-1773-PAA-EQ, PSC-01-1418-TRF- 

EQ, all dealing with petitions by FPC, FPL or TECO 

for new standard offer contacts and/or waivers of 

the minimum contract period, the Commission's 

approval was supported by the same rationale used 

in the cases previously discussed. 

Q. What do you infer from the Commission statements an 

these recent orders? 

A. The only logical inference is that: (1) the 

Commission has decided to no longer base its 

decisions on sound economic principles and to no 

longer recognize the conservation benefits of QF' s; 

or, ( 2 )  the Commission has erroneously been led to 

believe that the economic and conservation benefits 

of QF's no longer exist. Nothing could be further 

from the truth, and for that reason, I sincerely 
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hope it is the latter reason, because those 

erroneous beliefs can be pointed out and corrected. 

How do the proposed rule amendments f i t  i n  with 

a l l  of this? 

The proposed rule amendments merely codify the 

Commission's actions and stated intent in approving 

the recent standard offer contract rule waivers of 

the minimum contract period. The proposed rule 

amendments assume that the Commission's reasoning 

in those orders is correct and therefore are the 

basis for the proposed rule change. 

Would you please address the Commission's statement 

that QF' s are being given preferential treatment 

and should be on an equal footing w i t h  a l l  other 

producers? 

If the rules actually were implementing the intent 

of the federal and state laws, I would agree that 

QF's were being given preferential treatment - a 
treatment to which they are legally entitled. After 

all, that is the intent of the Florida and Federal 

laws previously referred to with respect to QF's. 

There is nothing wrong with encouraging or 

preferring facilities that conserve scarce 

25 
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resources by making more efficient use of those 

resources than conventional fossil fuel burning 

facilities. That is the basis of all utility 

conservation programs approved by the Commission 

and paid for by the customers. But the Commission’s 

statements imply that such preference is not 

deserved. There is simply no basis for that 

conclusion. 

The sad fact is that with the restrictions to entry 

placed upon QF’s in the 1996 rule change and the 

proposed amendments now before the Commission, the 

rules could be better characterized as unduly 

discriminatory against QF‘s. The 1996 rule changes 

severely limited and constricted the QF market. The 

proposed rule amendments will more severely 

restrict that market and undermine the economic 

incentive for a QF contracting to sell firm 

capacity and energy. 

THE C QNSERVATION An D ECONOMIC BENEFITS OF 0 F‘ S 

Q .  Do the conservation and economic benefits of QF’s 

continue to exist? 

A. Absolutely. Nothing has happened that has changed 

those characteristics. By definition, QF’ s always 

2 6  
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conserve energy and/or scarce resources. By 

definition, avoided cost payments are always fair 

and reasonable to the utility and to the customer. 

How do QF's always conserve energy and/or scarce 

resources? 

The facilities that "qualify" as QF's are either 

cogenerators, facilities that produce electricity 

by use of renewable resources, or in some cases 

both. 

A cogenerator is a system that produces kx&h 

electrical or mechanical energy and thermal energy 
sequentially from the same primary source. By 

definition, a cogenerator gets two products out of 

the same source. When one of those products is 

electrical energy, producing any thermal output 

from the same primary source makes it more energy 

efficient than a 'systep that produces only 

electrical energy. Moreover, the minimum thermal 

output requirements of the federal regulations and 

Commission rules insure this outcome. 

QF's that are small power producers, according to 

federal regulations must produce energy using a 

2 1  
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renewable resource for at least 50% of its primary 

fuel input. To qualify for a standard offer 

contract under PSC rules, it must use a renewable 

resource for at least 75% of its primary fuel 

input. When renewable resources are used, 

nonrenewable fossil fuels are not. By definition, 

using renewable resources conserves scarce 

resources. In addition, though beyond the scope of 

this proceeding, resource recovery facilities 

minimize the amount of solid waste going to 

landfill thereby reducing a potential threat to 

Florida's scarce ground water supplies. 

Compared to conventional electric generation, QF's  

always conserve scarce resources. 

Q .  Why are avoided cost payments fair and reasonable? 

A. One only has to look at the definition in Section 

366.051, Florida Statutes. " A utility's "full 

avoided costs" are the incremental costs to the 

utility of the electric energy or capacity, or 

both, which, but for the purchase from cogenerators 

or small power producers, such utility would 

generate itself or purchase from another source." 

Obviously, if the costs the utility would have 
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incurred in generating or purchasing are fair and 

reasonable, paying those same costs to an 

alternative source to provide the same product is 

fair and reasonable. In the case of QF's ,  the 

utility would be paying those avoided costs f o r  a 

product that is superior in that the same product 

will be provided with the use of less fossil fuel 

input. 

PESPONSF: TO COMMISSION STATEMENTS 

Q. The Commission has stated, in the Rulemaking 

Notice, that keeping the ten year mini" would 

"continue" the possibility that IOU's and their 

ratepayers would be faced with "higher" costs. 

Would you please respond to those statements? 

A. Yes. First, in what context are the terms 

"continue" and "higher" used? "Continue" implies 

that payments made to QF's  in the past are higher. 

Higher than what? Payments to Q E ' s  are equal to or 

lower than the cost the utility would have incurred 

had it provided its own generation. The Commission 

sets those payments based on information provided 

by the utilities. The payments made to QF' s  cannot 

be higher than the costs avoided, and any capacity 

provided by QF's  is avoided by the utility. So, is 
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the Commission saying those numbers were in error? 

If so, that is not something for which QF's  should 

be penalized. Or is the Commission saying they 

chose the wrong avoided units, and therefore they 

are not really avoided? Again, that is not 

something for which QF's  should be penalized. 

Q. The Commission, in  the recent orders discussed 

above has made statements t o  the effect that 

standard offer contracts w i l l  not l ike ly  resul t  i n  

a unit being avoided or result  i n  benefits t o  

ratepayers. Would you please address those 

statements? 

A. Yes. I believe those statement are simply 

incorrect. When capacity requirements are provided 

by other than the serving utility, the need for 

that utility to construct that capacity is avoided. 

The utilities have identified their own avoided 

units. The selection is their choice; the timing 

for the selection is their choice. Capacity 

provided by others avoids the need for that unit's 

capacity in part or in total. For each year that 

any amount of alternative capacity is provided, the 

need for utility capacity is deferred or avoided or 

reduced. If alternative capacity is provided for 

3 0  
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five years, the need is deferred for five years. If 

capacity is deferred for twenty years, and the 

utility would have been required to build a unit 

with a twenty year life, the need is avoided 

entirely. It is as simple as that and that is the 

basis for the payment scheme devised by the 

Commission with the assistance of the utilities. 

W e l l  what i f  the cos t  of capacity goes down i n  the 

short term - say f i v e  years? Wouldn’t, it be a 

detriment to  ratepayers, as the Commission infers ,  

i f  QF’s with a long term contract are continued t o  

be paid at  the higher cos t  of  their  contract? 

No. The ratepayers would be unaffected. Remember, 

if the utility unit had not been deferred or 

avoided, it would have been built by the utility. 

Then, the cost of that investment would be 

recovered through rates for the life of the unit, 

regardless of what happens to the cost of future 

units. That’s what payments based on avoided costs 

are all about. If a utility builds a unit with a 

twenty year life, its liability for paying the 

associated capital costs does not go away if by 

chance, in five years, the cost of future 

construction goes down. But that is exactly what 
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is being asked of QF's  if a five year contract term 

is mandated. The Commission would be saying to the 

QF - "you commit to building a unit to defer a 
utility's need to construct capacity. We'll pay you 

the equivalent cost for five years and then we'll 

take another look to see if construction costs have 

changed. If they have gone down, that's too bad. I 

guess you will just have to make up the difference 

somewhere else. Of course, if costs go up, we'll 

pay you more, but that doesn't seem very probable, 

or we would not be proposing this rule change." 

Q .  Is that a viable choice for QF'S? 

A. Not any more so than for utilities. 

T f i  0 OMIC OF PAYM 

Q. In stating your position you said that the proposed 

rules will result in payments to QF'a that are less 

than the purchasing utility's avoided costs. Would 

explain how that happens? 

A. As previously discussed, the annual payments to 

Q F ' s  for capacity are determined by calculating the 

year-by-year value of deferral of investment in the 

avoided unit. Value of deferral payments begin low 

and increase with time (see Exhibit (FS-l)-, 

32 
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Graph 1); the later payments being higher to 

reflect the time value of money and the value of 

deferring for longer periods of time. If the unit 

can-be deferred entirely; i.e. for the length of 

its useful life, then the amount deferred is the 

total cost that the utility would have incurred to 

construct the unit and pay all the associated 

carrying costs. If a QF enters into a contract 

equal to the life of the avoided unit, it will be 

paid all of those avoided costs over the life of 

the plant, even though, as a practical matter, it 

will receive capacity payments in the early years 

that may be drastically less than its own actual 

carrying costs to build a facility to defer or 

avoid the utility's unit. In the later years, 

capacity payments are likely to be higher than its 

actual carrying costs to have built the facility to 

defer or avoid the utility's unit. On a net present 

value basis, however, the results are the same, 

over the life of the unit. In other words, on a 

net present value basis that accounts for the time 

value of money, the total value of deferral 

payments to the QF would be equal to the "revenue 

requirements" the utility would have collected from 

its ratepayers for the same capacity. If a QF 
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contracts for, or is forced to contract for, 

anything less than the life of the avoided unit, it 

will not receive payments equal to the full avoided 

cost of the unit. Under existing Commission rules, 

the QF has the opportunity to decide how long a 

contract it can enter into, as long as it is at 

least ten years. If the QF determines that a 

contract term shorter than the life of the avoided 

unit is workable, it can make that decision. It has 

a viable choice. 

Under the proposed rule amendments the QF will not 

have that choice. The minimum contract period will 

be five years and the choice of making it longer 

belongs solely to the utility. With the contract 

period limited to a minimum of five years or to a 

maximum at the utility's discretion, there can be 

no other conclusion than that QF's will receive 

payments that are less than the purchasing 

utility's avoided cost. 

The proposed rule amendment allows the QF to renew 

i t s  contract every five years. Assuming avoided 

costs don't change, if a QS proceeds with that 

option for four five-year periods, won't it receive 
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the same payments it would have received with a 

twenty year contract? 

No. Each time it enters into a new contract, the 

payments to the QF start over at the low end of the 

value-of-deferral payment stream. So the QF never 

receives the higher payments that make the present 

value of deferred payments and revenue requirements 

equal over the life of the unit. It just gets 

twenty years of low payments. This is illustrated 

in Exhibit (FS-1)- , Graph 2 .  

Can you provide a numerical example to the 

Coarmissioners to illustrate this point? 

Yes. Exhibit (FS-2) is just such an 

illustration, based on TECO's COG-2 Standard Offer 

tariff, effective July 24, 2001. The exhibit 

compares the payments a QF would receive if it 

entered into repeating 5 year contracts versus a 

single 20 year or 30 year contract. As the exhibit 

illustrates, the present value of the payments a QF 

would receive from four repeating contracts with 

5 year terms would be 12% less than if it had 

entered into a single 20 year contract, And the 

present value of the payments a QE would receive 

from six repeating contracts with 5 year terms 
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would be 17% less than if it had entered into a 

single 30 year contract. Of course, this 

illustration assumes that a standard offer contract 

will be available to the QF at then end of each 

successive five year period. 

CONCLUSION 

Q. If the proposed rule amendments are approved will 

the development o f  QF's continue to be a viable 

choice? 

A. Not in my opinion. I cannot see how anyone can 

afford to construct a unit with a twenty year life 

based on the assurance that it can cover its cost 

for only five years. If you don't believe me, ask 

the utility's if they would be willing to make a 

commitment to construct their avoided (or 

unavoided) unit with a twenty year life based on 

the assurance that they will receive value-of- 

deferral receipts for only five years, but will 

have another shot at another unknown payment stream 

every five years. 

Q. Does that conclude your direct testimony? 

A. Yes it does. 
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GRAPH 1 

Docket No. 001574-EQ 
Seidman Exhibit __ (FS-1) 

Page 1 of 2 

Useful Life of of the Avoided Unit (Years) 

... ”” ............................ ” .... ” ........................... _._._._._.-.-.- 
Revenue Requirements in $ Value of Deferral in $ 

Note: Present Value of “Value of Deferral” Payment stream = Present Value of “Revenue 
Requirement” Payment Stream =the full avoided cost of the capacity deferred. 
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streams is less than Present Value of “Revenue Requirement” Payment Stream and less than the full 
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Docket No. 001574-EQ 
Seidman Exhibit (FS-2) 

COMPARISON OF PAYMENTS 
REPEATING 5YEAR NORMAL PAY CONTRACTS, INCLUDING O&M 
VERSUS 20 AND 30 YEAR NORMAL PAY CONTRACTS INCLUDING O&M 

4 
5 Year 20 Year 

Year Contracts Contract 

1 $3.56 $3.56 
2 $3.65 $3.65 
3 $3.75 $3.75 
4 $3.85 $3.85 
5 $3.95 
6 $3.56 
7 $3.65 
6 $3.75 
9 $3.85 

10 $3.95 
11 $3.56 
12 $3.65 
13 $3.75 
14 $3.85 
15 $3.95 
16 $3.56 
17 $3.65 
18 $3.75 
19 $3.85 
20 $3.95 
21 
22 
23 
24 
25 
26 
27 

$3.95 
$4.05 
$4.15 
$4.26 
$4.37 
$4.48 
$4.60 
$4.72 
$4.84 
$4.97 
$5.10 
$5.23 
$5.37 
$5.50 
$5.65 
$5.79 

6 
5 Year 30 Year 

Contracts Contract 

$3.56 $3.56 
$3.65 $3.65 
$3.75 $3.75 
$3.85 $3.85 
$3.95 
$3.56 
$3.65 
$3.75 
$3.85 
$3.95 
$3.56 
$3.65 
$3.75 
$3.85 
$3.95 
$3.56 
$3.65 
$3.75 
$3.85 
$3.95 
$3.56 
$3.65 
$3.75 
$3.85 

$3.95 
$4.05 
$4.15 
$4.26 
$4.37 
$4.48 
$4.60 
$4.72 
$4.84 
$4.97 
$5.10 
$5.23 
$5.37 
$5.50 
$5.65 
$5.79 
$5.94 
$6.10 
$6.26 
$6.42 

$3.95 $6.59 
$3.56 $6.76 
$3.65 $6.93 

28 $3.75 $7.11 
29 $3.85 $7.30 
30 $3.95 $7.49 

s .  i NPV $394.55 $450.34 NPV $440.25 $530.67 
Diff fr 20 Y n  -12.39% Diff fr 30 Yrs -17.04% 

Note: Based on TECO COG-2 Tariff, effective Juy 24,2001 
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DIRECT TESTIMONY OF RALPH MICHAEL SALMON, PE, DEE 

ON BEHALF OF 

THE CITY OF TAMPA, FLORIDA 

FPSC DOCKET NO. 001547-EQ 

Please s t a t e  your name, occupation and business address. 

A. My name is Ralph Michael Salmon. I'm Deputy Chief 

Administrative Officer of the City of Tampa Florida with 

offices at 306 E. Jackson, Tampa, Florida 33602. 

S t a t e  briefly your educational background and experience. 

I have a BS and MS in Civil Engineering and a Masters of 

Public Works degree and have been a practicing Public 

Works official in three cities including the past 26 years 

in the City of Tampa, Florida. I'm a Registered 

Professional Engineer in Missouri and Florida and a 

Diplomate Environmental Engineer of The American Academy 

of Environmental Engineers. 

On whose behalf are you presenting th i s  testimony? 

I am presenting this testimony and appearing on behalf of 

the City of Tampa, Florida (the "City or "Tampa") in my 

capacity as Deputy Chief Administrative Officer. 

What is City's interest  i n  t h i s  proceeding? 

The City currently owns a municipal solid waste facility 

which is defined as a solid waste facility or Small 

Qualifying Facility ('SQF") by Commission Rule. As such, 
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we are eligible for Standard Offer Contracts pursuant to 

Commission Rule 25-17.0832, F.A.C., the subject of this 

proceeding. In addition to our existing facility, there 

is the possibility that our SQF capacity may be expanded, 

or that we would construct one or more additional SQFs. 

Accordingly, we are very concerned in maintaining our 

access to a viable standard offer contra'ct as is provided 

for in the current rules - without the proposed 

amendments. 

Please provide a brief general description of the C i t y ' s  

so l id  waste fac i l i ty .  

The City's facility disposes of approximately 320,000 tons 

of municipal solid waste annually. Most of the waste is 

generated within the City of Tampa. Our facility is of the 

"mass burn" type, where, after separating out large non- 

combustibles, and certain recyclables, the bulk of the 

solid waste is combusted "as-is'' in an incinerator. 

Recyclable metals, and other materials are recovered from 

the ash after the combustion process. (This is in 

contrast to RDF facilities which recover recyclables prior 

to combustion and which convert non-recyclable combustible 

wastes into a refuse derived fuel for firing in a boiler.) 

Heat produced in the incineration process is recovered to 

produce steam for use in a 22 mW steam turbine-generator. 

The City's facility generates approximately 185,000 mWh of 

electricity annually, the majority of which (about 160,000 

mWh) is sold to Tampa Electric Company (TECO), pursuant to 

2 
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a contract for firm energy and capacity. The contract was 

executed in August, 1982 (prior to the Commission's 

standard offer rules), was amended by renegotiation in 

May, 1989, and will expire in August, 2011. 

Is the City's contract with TECO a standard offer 

contract? 

No. The contract is the result of negotiations between 

the City and TECO. As I stated, the contract was 

originally executed prior to the time the Commission 

adopted the standard offer rules. Since that time it has 

been renegotiated in accordance with subsequently adopted 

rules of the Commission. 

It appears that the City was successfully able to 

negotiate a contract with TECO without the benefit of a 

standard offer contract. Why then are you concerned w i t h  

the proposed amendment to the standard offer rules? 

Until you have attempted to sell firm capacity and energy 

from an SQF to TECO, or to any electric utility, you will 

not likely understand the tremendous, and frankly unfair, 

advantage that the utility has in the negotiation process. 

Please elaborate. 

As an SQF, selling electricity to a utility is very 

similar to anyone buying electricity from a utility. 

are restricted to selling electricity produced by our 

facility to the utility. The utility is therefore the 

We 
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only buyer. When we are buying we are restricted to 

buying only from the utility. The utility is therefore 

the only seller. Either way, acting as a monopsony or a 

monopoly, our only buyer and seller, the utility has a 

great advantage in the market. It can set prices too low 

when buying and too high when selling because the other 

party to the transaction has no alternative. In the same 

way that "standard" tariff rates approved by this 

Commission are necessary to prevent monopoly utilities 

from overcharging for electricity sold, standard offer 

contracts are necessary to prevent monopsony utilities 

from underpaying for electricity purchased. The standard 

offer acts as a constraint on the monopsony power of the 

utility just as approved retail tariff act as constraints 

on its monopoly power. We need both. 

You said the City renegotiated its  original contract with 

TECO. I sn' t  t h i s  evidence that the negotiation process 

works? 

No, it is not. The original contract severely undervalued 

the electricity generated by the City and sold to TECO. 

We were able to renegotiate our contract with TECO as a 

result of the appeals of the City, as well as a number of 

other local governments, to the Florida legislature for 

relief. As a result, the legislature directed this 

Commission to adopt rules under which solid waste 

facilities could renegotiate their firm capacity and 

energy contracts with the purchasing utility. It is as a 
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result of those rules that TECO was willing to enter into 

renegotiations with the City. 

Did you rely on the. atandard offer in the renegotiation 

process? 

We did, but not as directly as we might have liked, As I 

recall, we were eligible to renegotiate, but due to the 

terms and conditions of our original contract, we were not 

eligible to accept the standard offer. (There was however 

I believe, a standard offer in effect at that time.) We 

relied on the standard offer in the sense that we used it 

as a measure of what were considered by the Commission to 

be reasonable terms, conditions and pricing for the sale 

of firm capacity and energy. 

So as the owner of an SQF, the City sees value in a 

atandard offer even though you have never entered into 

one. 

Absolutely. The value of having a reasonable, fair and 

legitimate standard offer is of great value to the SQF. 

If the utility is reluctant to negotiate in good faith, or 

seeks to unduly delay the negotiation process, the 

standard offer should be there to serve as a safety valve 

of sorts. If negotiations are failing and time is running 

out, a fair and reasonable standard offer provides an 

alternative to the SQF. 
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What did you intend by your reference t o  “time running 

out”? 

The process leading up to the start-up and operation of a 

solid waste facility is a lengthy one - on the order of 

perhaps 3 to 5 years. However, the time period becomes 

critical as the project proceeds, starting out slower and 

gaining momentum as the pieces fall into place. Delays in 

executing an electricity sales contract can delay 

financing, which can delay construction and start-up. 

Because solid waste facilities are usually being designed 

to relieve burdens on landfill operations, delays in 

start-up can have significant negative economic as well as 

environmental impacts. Knowing this, utilities might be 

tempted to delay the negotiation process to gain an 

advantage. As the deadline date for financing (or other 

milestone event relying on electricity sales) the SQF will 

be pressed to accept what the utility offers or 

potentially delay the project. 

Please elaborate on how the standard o f fer  aerves as a 

safety valve.  

Quite simply, I meant that if the standard offer contract 

is a reasonable one and if the utility proves to be 

unreasonable in negotiations, the SQF would have the 

option of accepting the standard offer in lieu of 

negotiation. The current rules, if enforced by the 

Commission would by definition result ixreasonable 

standard offers, and would continue to serve in this 

6 



Docket No. 001574-EQ 
Ralph Michael Salmon, PE, DEE 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 Q. 
7 A.  

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 Q .  

22 

23 A. 

24 

25 

26 

/-. 

safety valve capacity. However, the proposed amendments - 
in spite of the apparently minor changes - would destroy 
the value of the standard offer as both a reasonable 

alternative and as a negotiation safety valve. 

Would you please axplain? 

Yes, certainly. If at the time an SQF is negotiating for 

the sale of firm capacity and energy, a legitimate 

standard offer is in effect (one that is reasonable with 

respect to terms, conditions and pricing) the SQF will be 

in a position to resist unreasonable demands of the 

utility, as well an undue delays in the negotiation 

process. If necessary, the SQF could accept the standard 

offer, even though a negotiated contract might have 

benefited the SQF and the utility. One way to look at it 

is that the existence of the standard offer in a sense 

establishes the Commission's presence in the negotiation 

process as a mediator to help the parties overcome 

sticking points. 

What is the City's position with regard to the proposed 

rule amendments? 

Our position is that the proposed amendments, if adopted, 

will result in standard offer contracts that will no 

longer be reasonable in their terms, conditions or 

pricing. As such, the standard offer contract will no 

27 longer serve as a safety valve mechanism, thereby allowing 

28 
/-L.. 

the purchasing utility to take unfair advantage of SQFs 
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seeking to sell electricity by exercising its unregulated 

monopsony power. 

Moreover, it is our view, and that of our legal counsel, 

that the proposed rule amendments would clearly violate 

both Florida and Federal law in that they would result in 

payments less than the specified "full avoided cost". Our 

consultant, Mr. Frank Seidman will address in detail our 

concerns with respect to the full avoided cost issue and 

how the proposed rule amendments will result in payments 

of less than full avoided cost. 

Finally, we are somewhat perplexed that the Commission 

would propose an amendment which would so clearly violate 

the applicable law,and thereby 

local governments to expend their time and financial 

resources in opposing the amendment. 

force the City and other 

Do you have any suggestions or closing comments for the 

Commissioners? 

As I mentioned, our consultant Mr. Frank Seidman will 

address the details of the proposed amendment. However, 

as a general comment, the City would suggest that the 
Commission should be exploring ways to encourage the 

development of SQFs - QFs in general and waste fueled QFs 

in particular - rather than taking steps to further deter 

the industry. In 1985, the City of Tampa undertook the 

retrofit of its then nearly 20 year old incinerator 
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entirely as a result of the State of Florida’s mandate for 

resource recovery which specifically included Refuse to 

Energy (RTE). This was at a time when landfilling of 

municipal solid waste was creating great political 

friction due to the difficulties of siting and permitting 

and the public sentiment that landfilling in the State of 

Florida was undesireable due to porous soils and high 

water tables. The disconnect appeared to occur when the 

utilities were not seen to be a willing buyer of the 

energy due to traditional ratemaking strategies 

encouraging ownership and control of generating capacity. 

More recently, federally mandated environmental rules 

required much more sophisticated emission controls and the 

City of Tampa, in choosing not to again increase the 

amount of municipal solid waste taken to landfill, 

accomplished a massive $100 million retrofit. The 

certainty of a fair payment for the energy benefits 

provided by such facilities would seem a reasonable 

request. 

Does t h i s  conclude your d irec t  testimony? 

Yes it does. 

9 



REGISTERED PROFESSIONAL ENGINEER 
REGISTERED PATENT ATTORNEY 

RICHARD A. ZAMBO, P.A. 
ATTORMYS AND COUNSELLORS 

598 S.W. HIDDEN RIVER AVENUE 
PALM CITY, FLORIDA 34990 

Telwlmr (561) 220-9163 
FAX (5611 220.9402 

March 1,2002 

Bv Hand Delivery 

Ms. Blanca S. Bay6, Director 
Commission Clerk & Administrative Services 
Florida Public Service Commission 
2540 Shumard Oak Boulevard 
Tallahassee, FL 32399-0850 

Re: Florida Public Service Commission Docket No. 001574-EQ 
Proposed Amendments To Rule 25-17.0832, FAC, 
Firm Capacity And Energy Contracts 

Dear Ms. Bay6, 

COGENERATION .%ALTERNATIVE ENERGY 
ENERGY REGULATORY LAW 

Enclosed for filing and distribution, on behalf of the City of Tampa, Florida and the Solid Waste 
Authority of Palm Beach County, Florida, please find 10 copies of the Direct Testimony and Exhibit 
of Frank Seidman. 

If you have any questions or require anything further, please contact this office immediately. 

Sincerely, 

W s n  
enclosure Florida BarNo. 312525 



/- 

REGISTERED PROFESSIONAL ENGINEER 
REGISTERED PATENT ATORNEY 

March 1,2002 

Bv Hand Deliverv 

Ms. Blanca S. Bay6, Director 
Commission Clerk & Administrative Services 
Florida Public Service Commission 
2540 Shumard Oak Boulevard 
Tallahassee, FL 32399-0850 

Re: Florida Public Service Commission Docket No. 001574-EQ 
Proposed Amendments To Rule 25-17.0832, FAC, 
Firm Capacity And Energy Contracts 

Dear Ms. Bay6, 

COGENERATION a ALTERNATE ENERGY 
ENERGY REGULATORY LAW 

Enclosed for filing and distribution, on behalf of the Solid Waste Authority of Palm Beach County, 
Florida, please find 10 copies of the Direct Testimony of Marc Bruner. 

If you have any questions or require anything further, please contact this ofice immediately. 

Sipcerely, 

W s n  
enclosure 

, /&/@+ i Richard A. Zambo 

‘ FloridaBarNo. 312525 

DOCUHENTt iVtWR-CATE 

0 2 4 0 2  HAR-I 8 
FPSC-COMM!SSIOH CLERK 



BEFORE THE FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 

In Re: Proposed Amendments TO Rule ) 
25-17.0832, FAC, Firm Capacity And ) 
Energy Contracts. ) 

Docket No. 001574-EQ 

Filed: March 1,2002 

DIRECT TESTIMONY 

OF 

MARC C. BRUNER, PbD. 

FOR 

THE SOLID WASTE AUTHOITY 

OF 

PALM BEACH COUNTY, FLORIDA 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

! 9  

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

29 

. .  

Q .  

Q .  

A. 

Q .  

A. 

DIRECT TESTIMONY OF MARC C.BRUNER, Ph.D. 

ON BEHALF OF 

THE SOLID WASTE AUTHORITY OF PALM BEACH COUNTY, FLORIDA 

FPSC DOCKET NO. 001547-EQ 

P l e a s e  state your name, occupation and business address. 

A. My name is Marc C. Bruner. I'm the Director of 

Planning and Environmental Programs for the Solid Waste 

Authority of Palm Beach County, with offices at 7501 

North Jog Road, West Palm Beach, Florida, 33412 

State br ief ly  your educational background and experience. 

I have BA and MS Degrees in Botany from the University of 

Wisconsin - Milwaukee, and a Ph.D. in Ecology from the 
University of Tennessee - Knoxville. I have been 

practicing as an environmental manager for over twenty 

years in both government and the private sector. I have 

been the Director of Planning and Environmental Programs 

for the Authority for over 15 years. In that role I have 

been responsible for the long 'range planning for the 

Authority, including the waste-to-energy facility. 

On whose behalf are you presenting t h i s  testimony? 

I am presenting this testimony and appearing on behalf of 

the Solid Waste Authority of Palm Beach County, Florida 

('the Authority) in my.capacity as Director of Planning 

and Environmental Programs. 
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1 Q. What ia Authority's interest in this proceeding? 

2 A. The Authority currently owns a municipal solid waste 

3 .  facility that is defined as a solid waste facility or 

4 Small Qualifying Facility ('SQF") by Commission Rule. As 

5 such, we are eligible for Standard Offer Contracts 

6 pursuant to Commission Rule 25-17 .0832,  F.A.C., the 

7 subject of this proceeding. In addition to our existing 

8 facility, there is the possibility that our SQF capacity 

9 may be expanded, or that we would construct one or more 

10 additional SQFs. Accordingly, we are very concerned with 

1 1  maintaining our access to a viable standard offer 

12 contract as is provided for in the current rules - 
13 without the proposed amendments. 

14 

15 Q .  Please provide a brief general description of the 

16 Authority's solid waste facility. 

17 A. The Authority disposes of approximately 1.3 million tons 

18 of municipal solid waste annually. Approximately 800 

19 thousand tons of this total is delivered to the waste-to- 

20 energy facility for processing. Once at the facility, the 

21 

22 materials, primarily ferrous metal and aluminum, from 

23 non-recyclable materials. The non-recyclable materials 

24 are further processed into a material known as refuse 

solid waste undergoes processing to separate recyclable 

25 derived fuel (RDF). (This is in contrast to "mass burn" 

26 facilities, which incinerate the waste stream first and 

27 separate afterward.) RDF is fired in steam boilers to 

28 produce steam for use in a 62-mW steam turbine-generator. 

29 The facility generates approximately 450 thousand mWh of 
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1 electricity annually, the majority of which is sold to 

2 Florida Power and Light Company (FPL), pursuant to a 

3 contract for firm energy and capacity which was executed 

4 in January 1987 and expires in March 2010. 

5 

6 Q. Is the Authority's contract with FPL a standard offer 

7 contract? 

8 A. No. The contract is a result of negotiations between the 

9 Authority and FPL. 

10 

11  Q. If the Authority did not previously avail itself of the 

12 standard offer contract, opting instead to negotiate a 

13 contract with FPL, why are you concerned with the 

14 proposed amendment to the standard offer rules? 

15 A. Unless you have attempted to sell firm capacity and 

16 energy from a SQF to FPL, or to any electric utility, you 

17 will probably not understand the tremendous value of 

18 having the standard offer available as a "fall-back'' or 

19 "fail-safe" contract. If the standard offer had not been 

20 available to us as an alternative to the negotiated 

21 contract, I feel strongly that we would have been at a 

22 great disadvantage to FPL. 

23 
24 p. Please elaborate. 

25 A. When anyone buys electricity from a regulated utility, 

f i  

n 

26 the utility is the only seller - this is a monopoly. As a 

27 SQF, selling electricity to a regulated utility is very 

28 similar to anyone buying electricity from a utility. We 

29 are restricted to selling electricity produced by our 

3 
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1 facility to the utility, just as buyers are restricted to 

2 buying from the utility. The utility is the only buyer - 

3 which is known as a monopsony, rather than a monopoly. 

4 But either way, acting as a monopoly or a monopsony, the 

5 utility has a great advantage in the market. It can set 

6 

7 because the other party to the transaction has no 

8 alternative. In the same way that "standard" tariff 

9 

prices too low when buying and too high when selling 

rates approved by this Commission are necessary to 

10 prevent utilities from overcharging for electricity sold, 

11 standard offer contracts are necessary to prevent 

12 utilities from underpaying for electricity purchased. 

13 

14 Q. 

15 safe contract. What did you mean by that? 

16 A. Quite simply, I meant that if the standard offer contract 

17 is a reasonable one and if the utility proves to be 

18 unreasonable in negotiations, the Authority would have 

19 accepted the standard offer in lieu of negotiation. In 

20 other words, we could fall back on the standard offer. 

21 The current rules, if enforced by the Commission would 

22 result in reasonable standard offers, and would continue 

You described the standard offer as a fall-back or f a i l  

/--- 

23 to serve in this fall back or fail safe capacity. 

24 However, the proposed amendments - in spite of the 
25 apparently minor nature of the changes - would destroy 

26 the value of the standard offer as both a reasonable 

27 alternative and as a negotiation fall back or fail safe. 

28 

29 

4 
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8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 Q .  

26 

27 A. 

28 

29 

Would you please explain? 

Yes. At the time the Authority negotiated it current 

contract with FPL, the standard offer that was in effect 

at the time was a reasonable one with respect to terms, 

conditions and pricing. If necessary, the Authority 

could have accepted the standard offer, even though it 

was obvious that a negotiated contract would have 

benefited both the Authority and FPL. There were some 

aspects of the standard offer contract that we wanted to 

modify and some that FPL wanted modified, pointing to a 

negotiated contact as the way to proceed, if both sides 

would act in a reasonable fashion. We negotiated a 

contract that deviated from the standard offer contract 

in ways that benefited the Authority while enhancing the 

value of our firm capacity and energy sale to FPL and its 

ratepayers. 

During the negotiation process with FPL, we encountered 

difficulties on several occasions. However, the 

existence of the standard offer - which in a sense 
establishes the Commission's presence in the negotiation 

process as a mediator - provided sufficient incentive to 

overcome the sticking points. 

What is the Authority's,position with regard to the 

proposed rule amendments? 

Our position is that the proposed amendments, if adopted, 

will result in standard offer contracts that will not be 

reasonable in their terms, conditions or pricing. As 

5 
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4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

1 1  

12 

13 

14 

15 

is 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 Q .  

24 

25 A. 

26 

27 

,-"- 28 

29 

such, the standard offer contract will no longer serve as 

a fall back or  fail safe mechanism. These changes will 

eliminate the value of the standard offer contract as a 

reasonable alternative to negotiations for the SQFs. This 

will allow a purchasing utility to exercise its monopsony 

power without regulatory constraint, and to take unfair 

advantage of SQFs seeking to sell electricity. 

Moreover, it is our view, and that of our legal counsel, 

that the proposed rule amendments would clearly violate 

both Florida and Federal law because they would result in 

payments less than the specified "full avoided cost". 

Our consultant, M r .  Frank Seidman will address this 

aspect of our concern, and we will brief the legal issues 

in our comments following these hearings. 

We are also concerned that the Commission would propose 

an amendment that runs contrary to the applicable law, 

and requires the Authority and other local governments to 

'expend their time and financial resources in opposing the 

amendments. 

Do you have any suggestions or closing comments for the 

Commissioners? 

As I mentioned, our consultant Mr. Frank Seidman will 

address the details of the proposed amendment. However, 

as a general comment, the Authority would suggest that 

the Commission should be exploring ways to encourage the 

development of SQFs - QFs in general and waste fueled QFs 

6 
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1 

2 the industry. 

3 

4 Waste-to-energy facilities are SQFs that provide 

S significant benefits to the State of Florida. Florida 

6 has more waste-to-energy facilities than any other state, 

7 and produces more electricity from waste than any other 

8 state. Over half the population of the state of Florida 

9 is served by solid waste management systems that utilize 

in particular - rather than taking steps to further deter 

10 waste-to-energy. These solid waste systems rely on the 

11 revenue from the sale of electricity as part of their 

12 overall funding base, and if the waste-to-energy SQFs are 

13 not fairly compensated for the value of the electricity 

14 

1s increased. 

16 

17 Q D o e s  t h i s  conclude your direct testimony? 

18 A. Yes it does. 

19 

20 

21 

they produce, the costs to our customers will have to be /-- 

7 
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BEFORE THE FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION - 
In Re: Proposed Amendments To Rule 
25-17.0832, FAC, Firm Capacity And 
Energy Contracts. 1 Submitted for filing: 

1 December 11,2000 

Docket No. 001574-EQ 

PRELIMINARY COMMENTS 

QF 
THE CITY OF TAMPA 

The City of Tampa (the ”City”), through its undersigned attorney hereby submits these 

comments in opposition to certain of the proposed amendments in the captions proceeding. 

The City owns a municipal solid waste facility, as defined by rule 25-17.091, 1. 

which is a small qualifying facility (“SQF”)’ pursuant to Commission rules. 

/- 2. Under current Commission rules, standard offers are only available to certain 

types of non-utility generating facilities (referred to as SQFs) that this Commission 

specifically sought to encourage when it last revised its rules. The proposed amendments 

would deter or eliminate access by SQFs to meaningful standard offer contracts. This would 

appear to be contrary to both Florida and Federal l a d .  

3.  The City is particularly concemed with those provisions of the proposed 

amendment - appearing in the notice as proposed rule 25-17.0832(4)(d)2. - which would 

change the term of the standard offer to a maximum of 5 years.’ Without conforming 

The City’s McKay Bay facility is a type of facility described by rule 25-17.0832(4)(a), FAC, which is eligible 1 

for Standard Offer Contracts. 

5366.051, Florida Statutes, and Section 210 ofthe Public Utility Regulatory Policies Act (PURPA). 

Current rules call for a minimum contract term of IO years, and a maximum contract term equal to the useful 
life of the avoided unit on which the standard offer is based. 

RICHARD A. ZAMEO, P.A. 598 S . W .  HIDDEN RIVER AVENUE PALM CTY. FLORIDA 34990 ( 5 6  I I 220-9 I63 
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P- 
changes to the methodology andior formula by which capacity payments are calculated, the 

proposed amendment would unlawfully limit standard offer capacity payments to less than 

avoided cost. 

4. The current rules relating to firm energy and capacity contracts require that 

standard offer capacity prices be based on the utility’s actual avoided unit. As provided by 

rule 25-17.0832 (4) (b), F.A.C.: “The rates, terms, and other conditions contained in each 

utility’s standard offer contract or contracts shall be based on the need for and equal to the 

avoided cost of deferring or avoiding the construction of additional generation capacity’ or 

parts thereof by the purchasing utility. ” The proposed rule amendment, absent 

corresponding changes to the pricing provisions of the rules. would render this impossible. 

A key element of the standard offer rules is the “value of deferral” avoided 

capacity pricing methodology. This pricing methodology. as the term implies, determines 

the value of “deferring” the revenue requirements associated with a new ut?lity rate-based 

generating plant. By its very design, the value of deferral payment mechanism can only 

result in avoided cost payments if the SQF can sell capacity to the utility over the projected 

useful life of the avoided unit on which the value of deferral is based. The proposed 

amendment wrongly decouples contract term from useful life and therefore from avoided 

cost. Arbitrarily limiting standard offers to 5 year terms would thereby assure that SQFs 

cannot receive actual avoided cost in direct contravention of applicable law. 

5.  

4The City is unaware of any “real life” electric generating unit with a useful life of 5 years - as is apparently 
assumed in the proposed rule amendment. Virmally all recently constructed or planned electric generating units have 
minimum useful lives in the range of 30 years. 

2 
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6.  The value of deferral methodology essentially “inverts” the stream of capacity 

payments to the SQF, when compared to what the utility would receive if it constructed the 

avoided unit and added it to rate base. This is best illustrated by example. 

7. Assume that a utility constructed an electric generating unit at a cost of $100 

million. Assume further a useful life of 20 years, straight line depreciation, and a 10% rate- 

of-retum. In very simplified terms, ignoring taxes and other factors, the frst  year the unit 

is in rate base, the utility would earn (k increase its revenue requirement as reflected in rates) 

$10 million, the second year would be $9.5 million, the third year $9 million, and so on until 

in the twentieth (final) year the utility would earn $0.5 million. (A characteristic of the 

“revenue requirements” payment stream is that payments begin high and decline over time.) 

If that same generating unit were avoided or deferred by SQF‘s entering into 

standard offer contracts, the revenue stream - and the rate impact on the utility’s customers - 

would be “inverted” by virtue of the value of deferral methodology. The payments to the 

SQF would initially be very low - perhaps on the order of $1 million in the first year - but 

would escalate annually so that at the end of the 20 year useful life of the avoided unit, the 

net present value of payments received by the SQF would equal the net present value of 

revenues earned by the utility had it constructed the unit. (A characteristic of the ‘’value of 

deferral” is that payments begin low and increase over time’.) 

8. 

9. Integral to the value of deferral payment mechanism is the minimum term of 

the standard offer. Commission rules currently require that standard offers include “. . .a 

The value of deferral was adopted by the Commission for a number of reasons, For example, it tends to 
reduce intergenerational inequities as well as “rate shock” to the current utility customers. As payments under the value 
of deferral grow over time, there will be a larger customer base over which to spread the costs, thus reducing per- 
customer impacts. 

3 
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e 
minimum ten year term contract commencing with the in-service date of the avoided unitb. 

. .” and that “At a mmimum,$rm capacity and energy shall be deliveredjor a period of time 

equal to the anticipatedplant lij% ojthe avoided unit7. . . ”. This requirement assures that an 

SQF willing to contract for a period equal to the anticipated plant life of the avoided unit, 

will receive avoided cost, and allows all or part of a proposed generating unit to be avoided. 

The ten year minimum term was deemed necessary both from the utility planning 

perspective, and to be of sufficient length to confer substantial capacity benefit on the utility 

ratepayers’. The proposed amendment’s arbitrary imposition of a 5 year contract term 

minimudmaximum is clearly discriminatory to SQFs, defeats the public policy purpose of 

the standard offer rules, and assures less than avoided cost payments to SQFs. 

10. The current rule implements the provisions of Chapter 366.05 1, F.S. relating 

to cogeneration and small power production, which is specifically intended to encourage 

cogeneration ‘ u d  small power prod~ction.~ Under the proposed amendment, standard offer 

/4 

25-17.0832(4)(e)3., F.A.C. 

’ 25-17.0832(4)(e)7., F.A.C. 

* See FPSC Order 12634 at page 19 

That section provides in part that: “Electricity produced by cogeneration and small power production is of 
benefit to the public when included as part of the total energy supply of the entire electric grid of the state or consumed 
by a cogenerator or small power producer. The elecmc utility in whose service area a cogenerator or small power 
producer is located shall purchase, in accordance with applicable law, all electricity offered for sale by such cogenerator 
or small power producer; or the cogenerator or small power producer may sell such electricity to any other electric utility 
in the state. The commission shall establish guidelines relating to the purchase of power or energy by public utilities kom 
cogenerators or small power producers and may set rates at which a public utility must purchase power or energy from 
a cogenerator or small power producer.” b-- c e  rs or 
$3 . A  - 
utilitv’s ‘“ti~ll avoided costs” are the incremental costs to the utilitv of th e electric enerw or cauacitv. or both. which. but 

~ 

Source. (Emo hasis suo0 lied 

4 
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capacity prices would not be based on an avoided unit, would not represent avoided cost, and 

would fall well short of the statutory requirement. 

11. The proposed decoupling of contract term from useful life (and thereby 

capacity payments from avoided costs) raises other issues of concern to the City, such as the 

appropriate capacity pricing methodology, and the role of subscription limits on standard 

offers. The City reserves the right to raise and pursue these and other issues at this or any 

further proceedings that may be conducted by the Commission in this matter. 

12. The City respectfully suggests that the Commission withdraw the proposed 

amendments. 

Respectfully Submitted, 

Florida Bar No. 3 12525 

RICHARD A. ZAMBO, P.A. 
598 S.W. Hidden River Avenue 
Palm City, FL 34990 
Phone: (561) 220-9163 
FAX: (561) 220-9402 

Attorney for: The City Of Tampa 
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25-17.0832, FAC, Firm Capacity And 

PRELIMINARY- 
- OF 
5 NTY 

The Solid Waste Authority of Palm Beach County (the “Authority”), through its 

undersigned attomey hereby submits these comments in opposition to certain of the 

proposed amendments in the captions proceeding. 

1. The Authority owns a municipal solid waste facility, as defined by rule 25- 

)4 17.091, which is a small qualifying facility (“SQF”)’ pursuant to Commission rules. 

2. Under current Commission rules, standard offers are only available to certain 

types of non-utility generating facilities (referred to as SQFs) that this Commission 

specifically sought to encourage when it last revised its rules. The proposed amendments 

would deter or eliminate access by SQFs to meaningful standard offer contracts. This would 

appear to be contrary to both Florida and Federal l a g .  

3. The Authority is particularly concemed with those provisions of the proposed 

amendment - appearing in the notice as proposed rule 25-17.0832(4)(d)2. - which would 

change the term of the standard offer to a maximum of 5 years3 Without conforming 

‘ The Authority’s facility is a type of facility described by rule 25-17.0832(4)(a), FAC, which is eligible for 
Standard Offer Contracts. 

’ 5366.051, Florida Statutes, and Section 210 ofthe Public Utility Regulatory Policies Act (PURPA). 

Current d e s  call for a minimum contract term of IO years, and a maximum contract term equal to the useful 
life ofthe avoided unit on which the standard offer is based. 
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- changes to the methodology andor formula by which capacity payments are calculated, the 

proposed amendment would unlawfully limit standard offer capacity payments to less than 

avoided cost. 

4. The current rules relating to firm energy and capacity contracts require that 

standard offer capacity prices be based on the utility’s actual avoided unit. As provided by 

rule 25-17.0832 (4) (b), F.A.C.: “The rates, terms, and other conditions contained in each 

utility’s standard offer contract or contracts shall be based on the need for and equal to the 

avoided cost of deferring or avoiding the construction of additional generation capaciw4 or 

parts thereof by the purchasing utility. ” The proposed rule amendment, absent 

corresponding changes to the pricing provisions of the rules, would render this impossible. 

A key element of the standard offer rules is the “value of deferral” avoided 

capacity pricing methodology. This pricing methodology, as the term implies, determines 

the value of “deferring” the revenue requirements associated with a new utility rate-based 

L generating plant. By its very design, the value of deferral payment mechanism can only 

result in avoided cost payments if the SQF can sell capacity to the utility over the projected 

useful life of the avoided unit on which the value of deferral is based. The proposed 

amendment wrongly decouples contract term from useful life and therefore from avoided 

cost. Arbitrarily limiting standard offers to 5 year terms would thereby assure that SQFs 

cannot receive actual avoided cost in direct contravention of applicable law. 

5 .  

#-+ 

4The Authority is unaware of any “real life” electric generating unit with a useful life of 5 years - as is 
apparently assumed in the proposed rule amendment. Virtually all recently constructed or planned electric generating 
units have minimum useful lives in the range of 30 years. 

2 
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6. The value of deferral methodology essentially “inverts” the stream of capacity 

payments to the SQF, when compared to what the utility would receive if it constructed the 

avoided unit and added it to rate base. This is best illustrated by example. 

7. Assume that a utility constructed an electric generating unit at a cost of $100 

million. Assume further a useful life of 20 years, straight line depreciation, and a 10% rate- 

of-retum. In very simplified terms, ignoring taxes and other factors, the first year the unit 

is in rate base, the utility would earn (ie increase its revenue requirement as reflected in rates) 

$10 million, the second year would be $9.5 million, the third year $9 million, and so on until 

in the twentieth (final) year the utility would earn $0.5 million. (A characteristic of the 

“revenue requirements” payment stream is that payments begin high and decline over time.) 

If that same generating unit were avoided or deferred by SQF’s entering into 

standard offer contracts, the revenue stream - and the rate impact on the utility’s customers - 

would be “inverted” by virtue of the value of deferral methodology. The payments to the 

SQF would initially be very low - perhaps on the order of $1 million in the first year - but 

would escalate annually so that at the end of the 20 year useful life of the avoided unit, the 

net present value of payments received by the SQF would equal the net present value of 

revenues earned by the utility had it constructed the unit. (A characteristic of the “value of 

deferral“ is that payments begin low and increase over time’.) 

8. 

9. Integral to the value of deferral payment mechanism is the minimum term of 

the standard offer. Commission rules currently require that standard offers include “_ . .a 

The value of deferral was adopted by the Commission for a number of reasons, For example, it tends to 
reduce intergenerational inequities as well as “rate shock” to the current utility customers. As payments under the value 
of deferral grow over time, there will be a larger customer base over which to spread the costs, thus reducing per- 
customer impacts. 

5 

3 

RICHARD A. ZAMBO. P.A. 598 S.W.  HIDDEN RIVER AVENUE PALM CTTY. FLORIDA 34990 0 (56 I 1  220-9 I63 



SC Docket No. 001574-EQ 
of Palm Beach County 

rz minimum ten year term contract commencing with the in-service date of the avoided unit. 

. ." and that "At a maximum,firm capaciw and energy shall be delivered for a period of time 

equal to the anticipatedplant I@ of the avoided unit? . . 'I. This requirement assures that an 

SQF willing to contract for a period equal to the anticipated plant life of the avoided unit, 

will receive avoided cost, and allows all or part of a proposed generating unit to be avoided. 

The ten year minimum term was deemed necessary both from the utility planning 

perspective, and to be of sufficient length to confer substantial capacity benefit on the utility 

ratepayers'. The proposed amendment's arbitrary imposition of a 5 year contract term 

minimurdmaximum is clearly discriminatory to SQFs, defeats the public policy purpose of 

the standard offer rules, and assures less than avoided cost payments to SQFs. 

10. The current rule implements the provisions of Chapter 366.05 1, F.S. relating 

to cogeneration and small power production, which is specifically intended to encourage 

cogeneration and small power production.' Under the proposed amendment, standard offer 

capacity prices would not be based on an avoided unit, would not represent avoided cost, and 

would fall well short of the statutory requirement. 

25-17.0832(4)(e)3., F.A.C. 

' 25-17.0832(4)(e)7., F.A.C. 

See FPSC Order 12634 at page 19 

That section provides in pan that: "Electricity produced by cogeneration and small power production is of 
benefit to the public when included as part of the total energy supply of the entire electric grid of the state or consumed 
by a cogenerator or small power producer. The electric utility in whose service area a cogenerator or small power 
producer is located shall purchase, in accordance with applicable law, all electricity offered for sale by such cogenerator 
or small power producer; or the cogenerator or small power producer may sell such electricity to any other electric utility 
in the state. The commission shall establish guidelines relating to the purchase of power or energy by public utilities from 
cogenerators or small power producers and may set rates at which a public utility must purchase power or energy from 
a cogenerator or small power producer." In fixine rat es for Dower ourchased bv DU blic utilities t or 
small Dower Droducers. the commission shall authorize a rate eaual to the DwChasine utilitv's full avoided costs A 
Utilitv's "full avoided costs" are the incremental costs to the utilitv of the electric enerw or caDacitv. or both. which. hut 
for the Durchase from cooeneraton or small Dower Droducers. such utilitv would zenerate itself or Durchase 6om mot her 
source. (Emohasis SUDDI ied) 

4 
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/-. 11. The proposed decoupling of contract term from useful life (and thereby 

capacity payments from avoided costs) raises other issues of concem to the Authority, such 

as the appropriate capacity pricing methodology, and the role of subscription limits on 

standard offers. The Authority reserves the right to raise and pursue these and other issues 

at this or any further proceedings that may be conducted by the Commission in this matter. 

The Authority respectfully suggests that the Commission withdraw the 12. 

proposed amendments. 

December 11,2000 Respectfully Submitted, 

Florida Bar No. 312525 

RICHARD A. ZAMBO, P.A. 
598 S.W. Hidden River Avenue 
Palm City, FL 34990 
Phone: (561) 220-9163 
FAX: (561) 220-9402 

Attomey for: 
Solid Waste Authority of Palm Beach County 
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BEFORE THE FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 

PSC DOCKET NO. 001574-EQ2, FIRM CAPACITY AND ENERGY 
CONTRACTS 

COMMENTS OF DANIEL STROBRIDGE 

My name is Daniel Strobridge, and my business address is Camp Dresser McKee, 

1715 North Westshore Boulevard, Tampa, Florida 33602 I am employed by Camp 

Dresser McKee in the development and operation of municipal solid waste facilities, also 

known as waste-to-energy facilities, in Florida. I am submitting these comments on 

behalf of Pasco County, Florida, and Wsborough County, Florida, in support of the 

proposed rules offered by Lee County, Miami-Dade County, and Montenay-Dade, Ltd. in 

these rulemaking proceedings. My comments address why long-term power sales 

contracts are required to support the financing of waste-to-energy facilities. 

9 Whv Lonp-Term Contracts Are Reauired to Finance Waste-to-Enerw Facilities 

10 Introduction 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 comments on their behalf. 

Camp Dresser & McKee Inc. (CDM) is a nationally recognized engineering firm that 

has been responsible for the development and implementation of a number of waste-to- 

energy (WTE) fadties including those in Wsborough, Pasco and Lee Counties Florida. 

We have been requested by our Pasco and Hillsborough County dients to submit these 

/- 
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17 

18 
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22 

waste facilities) or some other funding mechanism will be in place, and that the local 

government will have sufficient revenues available from user fees and power sales revenues 

to meet the debt service on the bonds and to maintain specified minimum cash reserves. 

WTE facilities and the associated solid waste disposal systems rely upon two revenue 

streams to meet debt service, O M ,  and reserve fund cost obhgations. These are revenues 

from (1) the sale of electric energy and capacity and (2) user fees. User fees are reviewed 

a n n d y  and adjusted if necessary to pay the balance of budget cost requirements that are not 

met by energy and capacity sales revenues. For the three WTE facilities CDM was 

instrumental in implementingin Florida, energy and capacity revenues were projected in year 

2003 to comprise between about 20 and 47 percent of the total system revenue depending 

upon the specific project. As can be seen from these examples, energy and capauiy sales 

revenues are a significant component of the overall project revenue stream. Without them, 

the solid waste user charges would be significantly higher. So hgh, in hct, that certain 

projects may never have been implemented. (When waste-to-energy projects are not 

developed, the alternative is disposal of solid waste in landfills.) 

The demonstrations of financial feasibility and other legal issues are presented in the 

Official Statement or prospectus for the Revenue Bond Issue. The Official Statement 

contains an Engineer’s Feasibility Statement, which among other things describes the 

technical aspects of the WTE facility, the c o n t r a d  arrangements for its construction and 

operation and energy sales, waste supply availability, financial feasibility analysis, and the 

sensitivity of financial feasibility to changes in underlying assumptions relative to waste 

availability, energy revenues, and other economic factors over the term of the bonds. A key 

3 



n 

1 

2 

3 

4 

9 

10 

11 

conclusion that the investment banking community expects to see with respect to financial 

feasibility is that the user fees/charges required to support the enterprise are reasonable 

charges for solid waste disposal in the general geographic area of the facility. Without a 

long-term energy and capaaty contract to provide for a portion of the revenue necessary to 

finance the system, the user fees would =be reasonable and revenue bond financing 

could not be secured. 

Other forms of indebtedness such as general obhgation (GO) bonds are not a 

practical option for solid waste disposal facilities because municipal units of government are 

legally limited to the amount of GO bond indebtedness that they can incur and typically 

reserve this funding source for non-revenue generating public services such as schools, 

libraries, police and fire protection. 

12 Conclusion 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

Without long-term contracts for energy and capacity sales, WTE projects in Florida 

would not be economically feasible and could not be hanced. The revenue from energy and 

capaaty sales assists in supporting this method of environmentally sound solid waste 

disposal. The continued availability of long-term contracts for WTE projects is necessary to 

maintain the viability of this solid waste disposal option to local units of government 

18 throughout Florida. 
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P- 
BEFORE THE FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 

P. 

In Re: Proposed Amendments To Rule 1 Docket No. 001574-EQ 
25-17.0832, FAC, Firm Capacity And 
Energy Contracts. Submitted for filing: 

December 1 1,2000 

PRELIMINARY COMM ENTS 
OF 

THE FLORIDA INDUSTRIAL COGENERATION ASSOCIATIO N 

The Florida Industrial Cogeneration Association (“FICA”) and its members, through 

their undersigned attomey, hereby submits these comments in opposition to certain of the 

proposed amendments in the captions proceeding. 

1. FICA members own small power production facilities, or other qualifying 

facilities using renewable or non-fossil fuel where the primary energy source in British 

Thermal Units (BTUs) is at least 75 percent biomass, waste, solar or other renewable 

resource, which are small qualifying facility (“SQF”)‘ pursuant to Commission rules. 

2. Under current Commission rules, standard offers are only available to certain 

types of non-utility generating facilities (referred to as SQFs) that this Commission 

specifically sought to encourage when it last revised its rules. The proposed amendments 

would deter or eliminate access by SQFs to meaningful standard offer contracts. This would 

appear to be contrary to both Florida and Federal law‘. 

3. FICA is particularly concerned with those provisions of the proposed 

amendment - appearing in the notice as proposed rule 25-17.0832(4)(d)2. - which would 

m 

I FICA member’s facilities are of the described by rule which are eligible for Standard Offer Contracts. 

* $366.051, Florida Statutes, and Section 210 of the Public Utility Regulatory Policies Act (PUIU’A). 
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).4 change the term of the standard offer to a maximum of 5 years.’ Without conforming 

changes to the methodology andor formula by which capacity payments are calculated, the 

proposed amendment would unlawfully limit standard offer capacity payments to less than 

avoided cost. 

4. The current rules relating to fm energy and capacity contracts require that 

standard offer capacity prices be based on the utility’s actual avoided unit. As provided by 

rule 25-17.0832 (4) (b), F.A.C.: “The rates, terms, and other conditions contained in each 

utility’s standard offer contract or contracts shall be based on the need for and equal to the 

avoided cost of deferring or avoiding the construction ofadditional generation capacity4 or 

parts thereof by the purchasing utility ” The proposed rule amendment, absent 

corresponding changes to the pricing provisions of the rules. would render this impossible. 

A key element of the standard offer rules is the -Value of deferral” avoided 

capacity pricing methodology. This pricing methodology, as the term implies, determines 

the value of “deferring” the revenue requirements associated with a new utility rate-based 

generating plant. By its very design, the value of deferral payment mechanism can only 

result in avoided cost payments if the SQF can sell capacity to the utility over the projected 

useful life of the avoided unit on which the value of deferral is based. The proposed 

amendment wrongly decouples contract term from useful life and therefore from avoided 

cost. Arbitrarily limiting standard offers to 5 year term would thereby assure that SQFs 

cannot receive actual avoided cost in direct contravention of applicable law. 

/4 5. 

Current rules call for a minimum contract term of 10 years, and a maximum contract term equal to the useful 
life of the avoided unit on which the standard offer is based. 

4FICA is unaware of any “real life” elecmc generating unit with a useful life of 5 years - as is apparently 
assumed in the proposed rule amendment. Virtually all recently constructed or planned elecmc generating units have 
minimum useful lives in the range of 30 years. 

P- 

L 
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h 
6.  The value of deferral methodology essentially “inverts” the stream of capacity 

payments to the SQF, when compared to what the utility would receive if it constructed the 

avoided unit and added it to rate base. This is best illustrated by example. 

7. Assume that a utility constructed an electric generating unit at a cost of $100 

million. Assume further a useful life of 20 years, straight line depreciation, and a 10% rate- 

of-return. In very simplified terms, ignoring taxes and other factors, the first year the unit 

is in rate base, the utility would earn (& increase its revenue requirement as reflected in rates) 

$10 million, the second year would be $9.5 million, the thiid year $9 million, and so on until 

in the twentieth (final) year the utility would eam $0.5 million. (A characteristic of the 

“revenue requirements” payment stream is that payments begin high and decline over time.) 

If that same generating unit were avoided or deferred by SQF’s entering into 

standard offer contracts, the revenue stream - and the rate impact on the utility’s customers - 

would be “inverted” by virtue of the value of deferral methodology. The payments to the 

SQF would initially be very low - perhaps on the order of $1 million in the first year - but 

would escalate annually so that at the end of the 20 year useful life of the avoided unit, the 

net present value of payments received by the SQF would equal the net present value of 

revenues earned by the utility had it constructed the unit. (A characteristic of the “value of 

deferral” is that payments begin low and increase over time’.) 

8. 

9. Integral to the value of deferral payment mechanism is the minimum term of 

the standard offer. Commission rules currently require that standard offers include “. . .u 

The value of deferral was adopted by the Commission for a number of reasons, For example, it tends to 
reduce intergenerational inequities as well as “iate shock” to the current utility customen. As payments under the value 
of deferral grow over time, there will be a larger customer base over which to spread the costs, thus reducing per- 
customer impacts. 

,- 

3 
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minimum ten year term contract commencing with the in-service date of the avoided uniP. 

. .” and that ‘ 2 t  a maximum, firm capacity and energy shall be delivered for a period of time 

equal to the anticipatedplant I@ of the avoided unit7. . . ”. This requirement assures that an 

SQF willing to contract for a period equal to the anticipated plant life of the avoided unit, 

will receive avoided cost, and allows all or part of a proposed generating unit to be avoided. 

The ten year minimum term was deemed necessary both from the utility planning 

perspective, and to be of sufficient length to confer substantial capacity benefit on the utility 

ratepayers’. The proposed amendment’s arbitrary imposition of a 5 year contract term 

minimdmaximum is clearly discriminatory to SQFs, defeats the public policy purpose of 

the standard offer rules, and assures less than avoided cost payments to SQFs. 

n 

10. The current rule implements the provisions of Chapter 366.051, F.S. relating 

to cogeneration and small power production, which is specifically intended to encourage 

cogeneration and small power production? Under the proposed amendment, standard offer 

capacity prices would not be based on an avoided unit, would not represent avoided cost, and 

would fall well short of the statutory requirement. 

25-17.0832(4)(e)3., F.A.C. 

’ 25-17.0832(4)(e)7., F.A.C. 

’ See FPSC Order 12634 at page 19 

That section provides in part that: “Electric , produced by cogenera n and small power production is of 
benefit to the public when included as part ofthe total energ supply of the entire electric grid of the state or consumed 
by a cogenerator or small power producer. The electric utility in whose service area a cogenerator or small power 
producer is located shall purchase, in accordance with applicable law, all electricity offered for sale by such cogenerator 
or small power producer; or the cogenerator or small power producer may sell such electricity to any other electric utility 
in the state. The commission shall establish guidelines relating to the purchase of power or energy by public utilities from 
cogenerators or small power producers and may set rates at which a public utility must purchase power or energy from 
a cogenerator or small power producer.” In fixing rates for Dower aurchased bv Dublic utilities from c m  r 
s-A 
utilitv’s “ f i l l  avoided costs“ are the incremental costs to the utilitv of the electric enerw or caoacitv. or both. which. bu t 
for the ourchase from cogenerators or small wwer oroducers. such utilitv would generate itself or ourchase from an0 ther 
Source. (Emohasis suDolied) 

4 
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11. The proposed decoupling of contract term from useful life (and thereby 

capacity payments from avoided costs) raises other issues of concem to FICA, such as the 

appropriate capacity pricing methodology, and the role of subscription limits on standard 

offers. FICA reserves the right to raise and pursue these and other issues at this or any 

further proceedings that may be conducted by the Commission in this matter. 

F-. 

12. FICA respectfully suggests that the Commission withdraw the proposed 

amendments. 

‘ t ~ ,  December 11,2000 Respectfully Submitted, 

kchard A. Zambo J 

Florida Bar No. 3 12525 

RICHARD A. ZAMBO, P.A. 
598 S.W. Hidden River Avenue 
Palm City: FL 34990 
Phone: (561) 220-9163 
FAX: (561) 220-9402 

Attorney for: 
Florida Industrial Cogeneration Association 
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BEFORE THE FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 

In Re: Proposed Amendments To Rule 1 Docket No. 001574-EQ 

Energy Contracts. ) Submitted for filing: 
25-17.0832, FAC, Firm Capacity And 1 

) December 11,2000 

PRELIMINARY COMMENTS 
- OF 

THE F LORIDA INDU STRIAL COGENERATION ASSOCIATION 

The Florida Industrial Cogeneration Association (“FICA”) and its members, through 

their undersigned attomey, hereby submits these comments in opposition to certain of the 

proposed amendments in the captions proceeding. 

1. FICA members own small power production facilities, or other qualifying 

facilities using renewable or non-fossil fuel where the primary energy source in British 

Thermal Units (BTUs) is at least 75 percent biomass, waste, solar or other renewable 

resource, which are small qualifying facility (“SQF”)’ pursuant to Commission rules. 

2. Under current Commission rules, standard offers are only available to certain 

types of non-utility generating facilities (referred to as SQFs) that this Commission 

specifically sought to encourage when it last revised its rules. The proposed amendments 

would deter or eliminate access by SQFs to meaningful standard offer contracts. This would 

appear to be contrary to both Florida and Federal law‘. 

3. FICA is particularly concemed with those provisions of the proposed 

amendment - appearing in the notice as proposed rule 25-17.0832(4)(d)2. - which would 

/4 

’ FICA member’s facilities are of the described by rule which are eligible for Standard Offer Contracts 

5366.051, Florida Statutes, and Section 210 ofthe Public Utility Regulatory Policies Act (PUMA). 
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change the term of the standard offer to a maximum of 5 years.’ Without conforming 

changes to the methodology andor formula by which capacity payments are calculated, the 

proposed amendment would unlawfully limit standard offer capacity payments to less than 

avoided cost. 

4. The current rules relating to firm energy and capacity contracts require that 

standard offer capacity prices be based on the utility’s actual avoided unit. As provided by 

rule 25-17.0832 (4) (b), F.A.C.: “The rates, terms, and other conditions contained in each 

utility‘s standard offer contract or contracts shall be based on the need for and equal to the 

avoided cost of deferring or avoiding the construction of additional generation capacity4 or 

parts thereof by the purchasing utility.” The proposed rule amendment, absent 

corresponding changes to the pricing provisions of the rules, would render this impossible. 

A key element of the standard offer rules is the ‘value of deferral” avoided 

capacity pricing methodology. This pricing methodology, as the term implies, determines 

the value of “deferring” the revenue requirements associated with a new utility rate-based 

generating plant. By its very design, the value of deferral payment mechanism can only 

result in avoided cost payments if the SQF can sell capacity to the utility over the projected 

useful life of the avoided unit on which the value of deferral is based. The proposed 

amendment wrongly decouples contract term from useful life and therefore from avoided 

cost. Arbitrarily limiting standard offers to 5 year terms would thereby assure that SQFs 

cannot receive actual avoided cost in direct contravention of applicable law. 

5.  

Current rules call for a minimum contract term of IO years, and a maximum contract term equal to the useful 
life of the avoided unit on which the standard offer is based. 

r. 4FICA is unaware of any “real life” electric generating unit with a useful life of 5 years - as is apparently 
assumed in the proposed rule amendment. Virtually all recently constructed or planned electric generating units have 
minimum useful lives in the range of 30 years. 

2 
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6.  The value of deferral methodology essentially “inverts” the stream of capacity 

payments to the SQF, when compared to what the utility would receive if it constructed the 

avoided unit and added it to rate base. This is best illustrated by example. 

f i  

7. Assume that a utility constructed an electric generating unit at a cost of $100 

million. Assume further a useful life of20 years, straight line depreciation, and a 10% rate- 

of-return. In very simplified terms, ignoring taxes and other factors, the first year the unit 

is in rate base, the utility would earn (h increase its revenue requirement as reflected in rates) 

$10 million, the second year would be $9.5 million, the third year $9 million, and so on until 

in the twentieth (final) year the utility would earn $0.5 million. (A characteristic of the 

“revenue requirements” payment stream is that payments begin high and decline over time.) 

If that same generating unit were avoided or deferred by SQF’s entering into 

standard offer contracts, the revenue stream - and the rate impact on the utility’s customers - 

would be “inverted” by virtue of the value of deferral methodology. The payments to the 

8. - 
SQF would initially be very low - perhaps on the order of $1 million in the first year - but 

would escalate annually so that at the end of the 20 year useful life of the avoided unit, the 

net present value of payments received by the SQF would equal the net present value of 

revenues earned by the utility had it constructed the unit. (A characteristic of the “value of 

deferral” is that payments begin low and increase over time5.) 

9. Integral to the value of deferral payment mechanism is the minimum term of 

the standard offer. Commission rules currently require that standard offers include ‘ I .  . .a 

The value of deferral was adopted by the Commission for a number of reasons, For example, it tends to 
reduce intergenerational inequities as well as “me shock” to the c m n t  utility customem. As payments under the value 
of deferral grow over time, there will be a larger customer base over which to spread the costs, thus reducing per- 
customer impacts. 

5 

/h 
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minimum ten year term contract commencing with the in-service date of the avoided unif. 

. .” and that “At a maximum,firm capaciw and energy shall be delivered for aperiod of time 

/4 

equal to the anticipatedplant I@ of the avoided unit‘. . . ”. This requirement assures that an 

SQF willing to contract for a period equal to the anticipated plant life of the avoided unit, 

will receive avoided cost, and allows all or part of a proposed generating unit to be avoided. 

The ten year minimum term was deemed necessary both from the utility planning 

perspective, and to be of sufficient length to confer substantial capacity benefit on the utility 

ratepayers8. The proposed amendment’s arbitrary imposition of a 5 year contract term 

minimumimaximum is clearly discriminatory to SQFs, defeats the public policy purpose of 

the standard offer rules, and assures less than avoided cost payments to SQFs. 

10. The current rule implements the provisions of Chapter 366.051, F.S. relating 

to cogeneration and small power production, which is specifically intended to encourage 

cogeneration and small power production? Under the proposed amendment, standard offer 

capacity prices would not be based on an avoided unit, would not represent avoided cost, and 

would fall well short of the statutory requirement. 

25-17.0832(4)(e)3., F.A.C 

’ 25-17.0832(4)(e)7., F.A:C 

See FPSC Order 12634 at page 19 

That section provides in part that: “Electricity produced by cogeneration and small power production is of 
benefit to the public when included as part ofthe total energy supply of the entire electric grid of the state or consumed 
by a cogenerator or small power producer. The electric utility in whose service area a cogenerator or small power 
producer is located shall purchase, in accordance with applicable law, all electricity offered for sale by such cogenerator 
or small power producer; or the cogenerator or small power producer may sell such electricity to any other electric utility 
in the state. The commission shall establish guidelines relating to the purchase of power or energy by public utilities from 
cogenerators or small power producers and may set rates at which a public utility must purchase power or energy from 
a cogenerator or small power producer.” In fixine rates for Dower Durchased bv Dublic utilities from coeeneraton or 

utilitv‘s “full avoided costs” are the incremental costs to the utilitv of the electric enerw or caDacitv. or both. which. but 
for the ourchase from coeenerators or small Dower Droducen. such utilitv would generate itself or Durchase eom another 
source. (EmD hasis SUDDkd) 

Y A  

/“- 
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11. The proposed decoupling of contract term from useful life (and thereby 

capacity payments from avoided costs) raises other issues of concern to FICA, such as the 

appropriate capacity pricing methodology, and the role of subscription limits on standard 

offers. FICA reserves the right to raise and pursue these and other issues at this or any 

further proceedings that may be conducted by the Commission in this matter. 

12. FICA respectfully suggests that the Commission withdraw the proposed 

amendments. 

Respectfully Submitted, 

Y &chard A. Zambo 
Florida Bar No. 3 12525 

RICHARD A. 2-0, P.A. 
598 S.W. Hidden River Avenue 
Palm City, FL 34990 
Phone: (561) 220-9163 
FAX: (561) 220-9402 

Attorney for: 
Florida Industrial Cogeneration Association 
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BEFORE THE FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 

In re: Petition of Tampa 
Electric Company for approval of 
new standard offer contract for 
qualifying cogeneration and 
small power production 
facilities, and for waiver 
requirement in Rule 25- 
17.0832(4) (e)7, F.A.C., that 
standard offer contracts have a 
ten-year term. 

DOCKET NO. 020725-EQ 
ORDER NO. PSC-02-1625-PAA-EQ 
ISSUED: November 25, 2002 

The following Commissioners participated in the disposition of 
this matter: 

LILA A. JABER, Chairman 
J. TERRY DEASON 
BRAULIO L. BAEZ 

MICHAEL A. PALECKI 
RUDOLPH "RUDY" BRADLEY 

NOTICE OF PROPOSED AGENCY ACTION 
ORDER APPROVING RULE WAIVER AND NEW STANDARD OFFER CONTRACT 

BY THE COMMISSION: 

NOTICE is hereby given by the Florida Public Service 
Commission that the action discussed herein is preliminary in 
nature and will become final unless a person whose interests are 
substantially affected files a petition for a formal proceeding, 
pursuant to Rule 25-22.029, Florida Administrative Code. 

BACKGROUND 

On July 15, 2002, Tampa Electric Company (TECO) filed a 
Petition for Approval of a Standard Offer Contract (Petition) for 
qualifying cogeneration and small power production facilities. The 
proposed contract and associated tariffs are based on a 5 Mw 
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subscription limit of a 180 MW combustion turbine generating unit, 
Polk Unit 4, with an anticipated in-service date of May 1, 2005. 

Along with its July 15, 2002, Petition, TECO filed a Petition 
for Waiver of Rule 25-17.0832 (4) (e) 7., Florida Administrative Code 
(Petition for Waiver). TECO seeks a waiver from the 10-year 
minimum contract term required by the rule, and proposes a 5-year 
contract term. 

At the September 3, 2002 Agenda Conference, we suspended the 
tariff revisions filed as part of TECO's Petition. The tariff 
suspension allowed sufficient time to review TECO's Petition. 

This Order addresses both the Petition for Approval of the 
proposed Standard Offer Contract and the requested Petition for 
Waiver. We have jurisdiction pursuant to Sections 120.542, 366.04, 
366.05, 366.051, 366.06, and 366.80 through 366.82, Florida 
Statutes. 

RULE WAIVER 

I. Standard Of Review 

Section 120.542, Florida Statutes, mandates threshold proofs 
and notice provisions for variances and waivers from agency rules. 
Subsection (2) of the statute states in pertinent part: 

Variances and waivers shall be granted when the person 
subject to the rule demonstrates that the purpose of the 
underlying statute will be or has been achieved by other 
means by the person and when application of the rule 
would create a substantial hardship or would violate 
principles of fairness. For purposes of this section, 
"substantial hardship" means a demonstrated economic, 
technological, legal, or other type of hardship to the 
person requesting the variance or waiver. . . . 

Thus, under the statute, a person requesting a variance or waiver 
must affirmatively demonstrate that the purpose of the underlying 
statute has been or will be met. In addition, the petitioner must 

/-. demonstrate that it will either suffer "substantial hardship" or 
that 'principles of fairness" will be violated. If the allegations 
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relate to fairness, an additional proof of uniqueness to the 
petitioner is required by the statute. 

As stated in the case background, TECO filed its Petition For 
Waiver in conjunction with its Petition For Approval Of A Standard 
Offer Contract. The waiver requested by TECO is for a fixed 
standard offer contract term of five years instead of the ten-year 
minimum contract term required by Rule 25-17.0832 (4) (e) 7., Florida 
Administrative Code. Notice of the waiver request was published in 
the Florida Administrative Weekly on August 30, 2002. The comment 
period expired on September 14, 2002. No comments in opposition to 
the Petition For Waiver were received. 

11. TECO's Petition for Waiver 

As stated above, a petitioner for waiver of a rule must show: 
(1) that the purpose of the underlying statute has been or will be 
met; and (2) that the petitioner will either suffer "substantial 
hardship" or that "principles of fairness" will be violated. TECO 
claims that its Petition for Waiver demonstrates that it satisfies 
each of the two requirements. TECO argues that it has satisfied 
both these requirements as set forth below. 

EL PurDose of the Underlvins Statute 

In its Petition for Waiver, TECO correctly identifies Section 
366.051, Florida Statutes, as the underlying statute implemented by 
the rule from which a variance is requested. According to TECO, 
the purpose of that statute (and the Public Utility Regulatory 
Policies Act of 1978 - PURPA) with respect to cogeneration and 
small power production is to "encourage cogeneration while at the 
same time protect ratepayers from paying costs in excess of avoided 
costs. " 

n 

TECO states that the above-noted purpose "will be achieved by 
utilizing a five-year contract term.'' TECO further notes neither 
PURPA nor Section 366.051, Florida Statues, mandate a minimum term, 
and that the continued availability of standard offer contracts 
would provide "more than enough incentive to encourage the 
development of cogeneration in accordance with the statutes." 

e. 
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Finally, in paragraph 8 of its Petition for Waiver, TECO notes 
as follows: 

In considering the Standard Offer filed by Florida Power 
& Light Company in Docket No. 990249-EG, the Commission 
granted a variance from the rule's minimum ten-year 
requirement and approved a five-year term (Order No. 99- 
1713-TRF-EG, issued September 2, 1999, pages 10-16). The 
policy reasons relied on by the Commission in approving 
the five-year term - ratepayer protection and adequate QF 
incentive - are equally applicable to this petition. The 
Commission, likewise, recently granted a rule waiver 
allowing Florida Power Corporation to use a five-year 
term in its Standard Offer. See Order No. 00-0504-PAA- 
EQ, issued on March 7, 2000 in Docket No. 991973-EQ. The 
Commission granted the same rule waiver request for Tampa 
Electric in the company's last Standard Offer Contract 
approved in Order No. PSC-01-1418-PAA-EQ issued June 29, 
2001 in Docket No. 010334-EQ. 

- B. Substantial Hardshiu 

TECO asserts that strict adherence to the ten-year term would 
create a substantial hardship on both it and its ratepayers. 
Specifically, TECO argues that "new technologies and other factors 
may lower" costs over the coming years and that "limiting the term 
of the Standard Offer to five years" would give TECO "the 
opportunity to revisit the issue of its avoided cost and take 
advantage of lower costs for the benefit of ratepayers prior to the 
passage of a full ten years." TECO further argues that it "would 
subject the company to substantial hardship by adversely affecting 
its cost structure, and would subject its ratepayers to substantial 
hardship by raising the price that they would otherwise have to pay 
for electricity,'' if TECO were required "to adhere to a ten-year 
term in the face of declining costs." 

111. Analvsis 

PurDose Of The Underlvina Statute - The purpose of Section 366.051, Florida Statutes, to encourage 
cogeneration and small power production, is expressly stated in the 
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/-- 

statute: "Electricity produced by cogeneration and small power 
production is of benefit to the public when included as part of the 
total energy supply of the entire electric grid of the state 

It Rule 25-17.0832(4), Florida Administrative Code, 
implements Section 366.051, Florida Statutes. Pursuant to the 
Rule, standard offer contracts must contain certain minimum 
specifications relating to, among other things, the term of the 
contract and the calculation of firm capacity payments. With 
respect to the term of standard offer contracts, Subparagraph 25- 
17.0832 ( 4 )  (e) 7., requires: 

. . . .  

Firm capacity and energy shall be delivered, at a 
minimum, for a period of ten years, commencing with the 
anticipated in-service date of the avoided unit specified 
in the contract. At a maximum, firm capacity and energy 
shall be delivered for a period of time equal to the 
anticipated plant life of the avoided unit, commencing 
with the anticipated in service date of the avoided unit. 

The rule provides a range for the contract period tied to the plant 
life of the utilities' avoided unit by establishing a minimum and 
a maximum term for standard offer contracts. 

The ten-year minimum contract term, while not a requirement of 
PURPA, was mandated by us in order to assist utilities and 
cogenerators with planning. In Order No. 12634, issued October 27, 
1983, Docket No. 820406-EU, Amendment of Rules 25-17.80 throuah 25- 
17.89 relation to coseneration, addressing the issue of a ten-year 
minimum contract term, we stated: 

The requirement that a QF [qualifying facility] be 
willing to sign a contract for the delivery of firm 
capacity for at least ten years after the originally 
anticipated in service date of the avoided unit is 
important from a planning perspective. While a ten-year 
contract will not offset the expected thirty year life of 
a base load generating unit, we believe it is of 
sufficient length to confer substantial capacity related 
benefits on the ratepayers. 

Order No. 12634, page 19 
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However, as noted by TECO, in three successive orders 
involving Florida Power and Light Company, Florida Power 
Corporation, and TECO, respectively, we have found that the purpose 
of the underlying statute to encourage cogeneration has been met by 
allowing this waiver to a five-year period. To promote 
cogeneration, investor-owned utility's planned generation units not 
subject to Rule 25-22.082, Florida Administrative Code, are 
encouraged to negotiate contracts for the purchase of firm capacity 
and energy with utility and non-utility generators. Rule 25- 
17.0837(1), Florida Administrative Code. The alternative provision 
is standard offer contracts. Insofar as a cogenerator's abilityto 
enter into negotiated contracts is unaffected by the variance 
request, and a cogenerator retains the ability to enter into a 
five-year minimum standard offer contract with TECO, TECO's request 
for a variance appears to satisfy the underlying purpose of the 
statute. 

- B. Substantial Hardship 

~n allegation of substantial hardship requires an affirmative 
demonstration by the petitioner of economic, technological or legal 
hardship. The hardship demonstrated by TECO is economic hardship 
to its ratepayers who may bear the risk of generation which is not 
avoided or deferred. 

- C. Conclusion 

In sum, we find that TECO's Petition for Waiver from the 
minimum standard offer contract term shall be granted because it 
satisfies the mandatory statutory requirements. TECO has 
demonstrated that the purpose of the underlying statute will be met 
if the waiver is granted, because cogeneration will continue to be 
encouraged through negotiated as well as standard offer contracts. 
In addition, TECO's Petition for Waiver demonstrates substantial 
hardship to its ratepayers. 

NEW STANDARD OFFER CONTRACT 

Pursuant to federal law, the availability of standard rates is 
required for fossil-fueled qualifying facilities less than 100 

P kilowatts (0.1 MW) in size. 16 U.S.C. 2601 et seg., 16 U:S.C. 792 
et s e q . ,  18 CFR 292.304. Florida law requires this Commission to 
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“adopt appropriate goals for increasing the efficiency of energy 
consumption and increasing the development of cogeneration.” 
Section 366.82(2), Florida Statutes. We are further directed to 
“establish a funding program to encourage the development by local 
governments of solid waste facilities that use solid waste as a 
primary source of fuel for the production of electricity.“ Section 
377.709, Florida Statutes. 

These federal and state requirements were implemented by us 
through our adoption of the Standard Offer Contract in Rule 25- 
17.0832 (4) (a), Florida Administrative Code. Pursuant to this rule, 
each investor-owned electric utility must file a tariff and a 
Standard Offer Contract. These provisions implement the 
requirements of PURPA and promote renewables and solid waste-fired 
facilities by providing a straightforward contract. Larger 
qualifying facilities and other non-utility generators may 
participate in a utility‘s Request For Proposal process pursuant to 
Rule 25-22.082, Florida Administrative Code. 

F-, 

To comply with Rule 25-17.0832(4) (a), Florida Administrative 
Code, TECO proposes a new Standard Offer Contract based on a 5 MW 
portion of TECO’s next identified generating unit, Polk Unit 4, a 
180 MW combustion turbine (CT) unit with an anticipated in-service 
date of May 1, 2005. CT units typically require about 18 months to 
construct. Therefore, TECO will need to commence construction by 
November 1, 2003. 

TECO’s proposed COG-2 (firm capacity and energy) tariff 
includes a three-week open season period for receiving standard 
offer contracts. If TECO does not fully subscribe the 5 MW 
available for Standard Offer Contracts during the initial three- 
week open season period, an additional three-week open season 
period will be held within 60 days. This open season period is 
similar to that contained in previous TECO Standard Offer Contracts 
which have been approved by us. 

The evaluation criteria contained in TECO‘s proposed Standard 
Offer Contract should be readily understandable to any developer 
who signs the contract. The avoided unit cost parameters appear to 
be reasonable for a CT unit, and the resulting capacity payments 

/-. are appropriate. 
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It is unlikely that purchases made by TECO pursuant to the 
proposed Standard Offer Contract will result in the deferral or 
avoidance of TECO's 2005 CT unit, because: 1) the eligibility pool 
for Standard Offer Contracts is limited; 2) the subscription limit 
of TECO's avoided unit is only a portion of the CT unit's total 
capacity; and, 3 )  TECO has not received any takers for its last 
three Standard Offer Contracts. The interest in TECO's last three 
Standard Offer Contracts may have been reduced because the 
contracts were all based on CT units. Capacity payments for CT 
units are typically l o w  relative to capacity payments based on 
other generation technologies such as combined cycle or coal. 

If TECO signs Standard Offer Contracts under the proposed 
contract, but the need for the 2005 CT unit is not deferred or 
avoided, TECO will essentially be paying twice for the same firm 
capacity. Therefore, the requirements of federal law and the 
implementation of the state regulations discussed above may result 
in a subsidy to the qualifying facilities. However, the potential 
subsidy could be mitigated, as TECO may have opportunities to sell 
any surplus capacity on the wholesale market. 

/4 

Ideally, qualifying facilities should compete on equal footing 
with all other producers of electricity. However, until and unless 
there is a change in federal and state law, qualifying facilities 
are to be given some preferential treatment. We have minimized 
this unequal footing by requiring Standard Offer Contracts only for 
small qualifying facilities, renewables, or municipal solid waste 
facilities. These types of facilities may not be in a position to 
negotiate a purchased power agreement due to their size or timing. 
Thus, our rules balance market imperfections with the existing 
policy of promoting qualifying facilities. 

While we do not expect that TECO's proposed Standard Offer 
Contract will result in the avoidance of the 2005 CT unit, the 
proposed contract and tariffs do comply with our cogeneration 
rules. For this reason, TECO's petition to establish its new 
Standard Offer Contract and associated tariffs is approved. 

In order to process both the waiver request and the tariff 
filing simultaneously, we have used the proposed agency action 

e process instead of the tariff process. While both processes 
provide for a point of entry for protest, under the tariff process, 
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if there is a protest, the tariff would go into effect pending the 
outcome of the hearing; whereas under the proposed agency action 
process, if protested, the tariff would not go into effect as the 
proposed agency action order becomes a nullity. Therefore, TECO's 
proposed Standard Offer Contract shall only become effective upon 
the issuance of a consummating order. If there is no timely 
protest, the docket shall be closed. 

Based on the foregoing, it is 

ORDERED by the Florida Public Service Commission that Tampa 
Electic Company's Petition for Waiver of Rule 25-17.0832(4) (e)7., 
Florida Administrative Code, is granted. It is further 

ORDERED that the provisions of this Order, issued as proposed 
agency action, shall become final and effective upon the issuance 
of a Consummating Order unless an appropriate petition, in the form 
provided by Rule 28-106.201, Florida Administrative Code, is 

/4 received by the Director, Division of the Commission Clerk and 
Administrative Services, 2540 Shumard Oak Boulevard, Tallahassee, 
Florida 32399-0850, by the close of business on the date set forth 
in the "Notice of Further Proceedings" attached hereto. It is 
further 

ORDERED that Tampa Electic Company's Petition for Approval of 
a Standard Offer Contract with a contract term of five years is 
approved. It is further 

ORDERED that this new Standard Offer Contract shall become 
effective upon the issuance of a Consummating Order if no person 
whose substantial interests are affected by the proposed agency 
action files a protest within 21 days of the issuance of this 
Order. It is further 

ORDERED that in the event this Order becomes final, this 
docket shall be closed upon the issuance of the Consummating Order. 
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-. 

By ORDER of the Florida Public Service Commission this 25th 
day of November, 2002. 

BLANCA S. BAY6. Director 
Division of the Commission Clerk 
and Administrative Services 

By: / s /  Kav Flvnn 
Kay Flynn, Chief 
Bureau of Records and Hearing 
Services 

This is a facsimile copy. Go to the 
Commission's Web site, 
httD://www.flOKidaDSC.com or fax a request 
to 1-850-413-7118, for a copy of the order 
with signature. 

F- 

( S E A L )  

RR J 

; 

The Florida Public Service Commission is required by Section 
120.569(1), Florida Statutes, to notify parties of any 
administrative hearing that is available under Section 120.57, 
Florida Statutes, as well as the procedures and time limits that 
apply. This notice should not be construed to mean all requests 
for an administrative hearing will be granted or result in the 
relief sought. 

Mediation may be available on a case-by-case basis. If 
mediation is conducted, it does not affect a substantially 
interested person's right to a hearing. 

The action proposed herein is preliminary in nature. Any 
person whose substantial interests are affected by the action 
proposed by this order may file a petition for a formal proceeding, P 
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in the form provided by Rule 28-106.201, Florida Administrative 
Code. This petition must be received by the Director, Division of 
the Commission Clerk and Administrative Services, 2540 Shumard Oak 
Boulevard, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0850, by the close of 
business on December 16. 2002. 

In the absence of such a petition, this order shall become 
final and effective upon the issuance of a Consummating Order. 

Any objection or protest filed in this/these docket(s) before 
the issuance date of this order is considered abandoned unless it 
satisfies the foregoing conditions and is renewed within the 
specified protest period. 



P BEFORE THE FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 

In re: Petition for approval of 
standard offer contract based on 
2005 combined cycle avoided unit 
and accompanying Rate Schedule 
COG-2, by Florida Power 
Corporation. 

DOCKET NO. 020295-EQ 
ORDER NO. PSC-02-.0909-PAA-EQ 
ISSUED: July 8 ,  2002 

.. . . .  

The following Commissioners participated in the disposition of 
this matter: 

LILA A. JABFiR, Chairman 
J.  TERRY DEASON 
BRAULIO L. BAEZ 

MICHAEL A. PALECKI 
RUDOLPH "RUDY" BRADLEY 

NOTICE OF PR OPOSED AGENCY ACTION 
ORDER GRANTING RULE WAIVE R AND APPROVING PETITION 

FOR STANDARD OFFER CONTRACT 

BY THE COMMISSION: 

NOTICE is hereby given by the Florida Public Service 
Commission that the action discussed herein is preliminary in 
nature and will become final unless a person whose interests are 
substantially affected files a petition for a formal proceeding, 
pursuant to Rule 25-22.029, Florida Administrative Code. 

- 

BACKGROUND 

On April 2, 2002, Florida Power Corporation (FPC) filed a 
Petition for Approval of a Standard Offer Contract and associated 
tariffs. The proposed contract subject to this petition is based 
on a 20 Megawatt (MW) portion of FPC's next planned capacity 
addition, Hines 3 ,  a 530 MW combined cycle unit with a scheduled 
in-service date of December 1, 2005. 

Concurrent with the filing of this petition, FPC also filed 
petitions for waiver of the requirements of Rule 25-17.0832(4) ( e ) 7 ,  
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and Rule 25-17.0832(4) (e)5, Florida Administrative Code. Rule 25- 
17.0832 (4) (e) 7, Florida Administrative Code, requires standard 
offer contracts to have a minimum term of ten years. The term of 
FPC's proposed standard offer contract is five years. Rule 25- 
17.0832(4) (e)5, Florjda Administrative Code, requires that a' 
standard offer contract's open solicitation period must end prior 
to the issuance of a request for proposal (RFP) pursuant to Rule 
25-22.082, Florida Administrative Code. This rule is often 
referred to as the Commission's "bidding rule." 

Pursuant to Section 120.542 (61, Florida Statutes, notice of 
FPC's Petitions was submitted to the Secretary of State for 
publication in the April 19, 2002, Florida Administrative Weekly. 
The 14-day comment period provided by Rule 28-104.003, Florida 
Administrative Code, expired on May 3, 2002. No comments 
concerning these petitions for waiver were filed. 

This Order addresses both the petition for approval of the 
proposed standard offer contract and the requested rule waivers. 

r' We are vested with jurisdiction over these matters by Section 
120.542, Florida Statutes, as well as by several provisions of 
Chapter 366.06, Florida Statutes, including Sections 366.04, 
366.05, 366.051, 366.06, and 366.80-.82, Florida Statutes. 

I. Waiver of Rule 25-17.0832 (4) (e) 7, Florida Administrative Code 
i 

- A. Standard for ADDrOVal 

Section 120.542, Florida Statutes, mandates threshold proofs 
and notice provisions for variances and waivers from agency rules. 
subsection (2) of the statute states: 

Variances and waivers shall be granted when the person 
subject to the rule demonstrates that the purpose of the 
underlying statute will be or has been achieved by other 
means by the person and when application of the rule 
would create a substantial hardship or would violate 
principles of fairness. For purposes of this section, 
"substantial hardship" means a demonstrated economic, 
technological, legal, or other type of hardship to the 
person requesting the variance or waiver. For purposes 
of this section, "principles of fairness" are violated 
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when literal application of a rule affects a particular 
person in a manner significantly different from the way 
it affects other similarly situated persons who are 
subject to the rule. . .  

Thus, under the statute, a person requesting a variance or waiver 
must affirmatively demonstrate that the purpose of the underlying 
statute has beenmet. In addition, the petitioner must demonstrate 
that it will either suffer "substantial hardship" or that 
"principles of fairness" will be violated. If the allegations 
relate to fairness, an additional proof of uniqueness to the 
petitioner is required by the statute. 

B. FPC's Petition for Waiver 

The waiver requested by FPC is to allow for a standard offer 
contract term limited to five years instead of the ten year minimum 
contract term required by rule 25-17.0832 ( 4 )  (e), Florida 
Administrative Code. 

1. Purpose of the Underlying Statute 

In its Petition For Waiver, FPC identifies the underlying 
statute implemented by the rule as Section 366.051, Florida 
Statues. According to FPC, the purposes of the statute, and the 
purposes of the Public Utility Regulatory Policies Act of 1978 
(PURPA) , are to promote the growth of alternative generating 
facilities, with the express limitation that electric customers 
should not pay more for power than they otherwise would. 

FPC states that its Petition For Waiver will meet the purpose 
of the statute. FPC asserts that the standard offer contract will 
provide economic incentive for the development of the type of 
projects contemplated by the'statute. FPC further asserts that new 
t.echnologies and other factors may lower FPC's costs over the 
coming years. Limiting the term of the Standard Offer to five 
years gives FPC the opportunity to revisit the issue of its avoided 
cost and take advantage of lower cost for the benefit of Its 
ratepayers prior to passage of a full ten years. 

2. Substantial Hardship 
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FPC states that strict adherence to the ten-year term provided 
for in the Commission's rules would create a substantial hardship 
on FPC and its ratepayers by raising the price that would otherwise 
be paid f o r  electricity. 

C. Analvsis 

The purpose of Section 366.051, Florida Statutes, which is to 
encourage cogeneration and small power production, is expressed in 
the Statute as follows: "Electricity produced by cogeneration and 
small power production is of benefit to the public when included as 
part of the total energy supply of the entire electric grid of the 
state. . . ." Rule 25-17.0832(4), Florida Administrative Code, 
implements Section 366.051, Florida Statutes. Pursuant to the 
Rule, standard offer contracts must contain certain minimum 
specifications relating to, among other things, the term of the 
contract and the calculation of firm capacity payments. With 
respect to the term of standard offer contracts, Subsection 25- 
17.0832(4) (e)7, requires: 

.. 8 .  

Firm capacity and energy shall be delivered, at a 
minimum, for a period of ten years, commencing with the 
anticipated in-service date of the avoided unit specified 
in the contract. At a maximum, firm capacity and energy 
shall be delivered for a period of time equal to the 
anticipated plant life of the avoided unit, commencing 
with the anticipated in service date of the avoided unit. 

The above rule provides a range €or the contract period tied to the 
plant life of the utilities' avoided unit by establishing a minimum 
and a maximum term for standard offer contracts. 

The ten year minimum contract term, while not a requirement of 
PURPA, was mandated 'in order to assist utilities and cogenerators 
with planning. In Order No. 12634, issued October 2 7 ,  1983, Docket 
No. 820406-EU, Amendment of Rules 25-17.80 throuqh 25-17.89 
relation to coqeneratiou, we addressed the issue of a ten year 
minimum contract term. That Order stated: 

The requirement that a QF be willing to sign a contract 
for the delivery of firm capacity for at least ten years 
after the originally anticipated in service date of the 
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avoided unit is important from a planning perspective. 
While a ten-year contract will not offset the expected 
thirty year life of a base load generating unit, we 
believe it is of sufficient length to confer substantial 
capacity related.benefits on the ratepayers. .. a. 

Order No. 12634, pg. 19. 

The purpose of the statute underlying Rule 25-17.0832(4) (e), 
Florida Administrative Code, is to encourage cogeneration. 
Investor-owned utilities' planned generation units not subject to 
Rule 25-22.082, Florida Administrative Code, are encouraged to 
negotiate contract8 for the purchase of firm capacity and energy 
with utility and non-utility generators by Rule 25-17.0837(1), 
Florida Administrative Code. The alternative provision is standard 
offer contracts. 

Insofar as cogenerators' ability to enter into negotiated 
contracts is unaffected by the waiver request, and because a 
cogenerator retains the ability to enter into a five year standard 
offer contract with FPC, FPC's request for a waiver satisfies the 
underlying purpose of the statute. 

An allegation of substantial hardship requires an affirmative 
demonstration by the petitioner of economic, technological, or 
legal hardship. Purchases made by FPC pursuant to the proposed 
Standard Offer Contract will not result in the deferral or 
avoidance of its proposed avoided unit, the 2005 CC. This is due 
to the subscription limit being 20 MW of a 500 Mw unit. Thus, FPC 
.has demonstrated in this case that application of the rule would 
create an economic hardship to its ratepayers who may bear the risk 
of generation which is not avoided or deferred. 

In addition, we note that there have been other requests for 
waiver of the ten year minimum contract requirements of Rule 25- 
17.0832(4) (e), Florida Administrative Code, which we have granted, 
on substantially the same grounds asserted by FPC in this docket: 

1. Order No. PSC-99-1713-TRF-EG, issued on September 2, 1999, in 
Docket No. 990249-EG granted Florida Power and Light Company 
(FPL) a variance of this rule. 
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2. Order No. PSC-OO-O~~YS-PAA-EG, issued on February 8 ,  2000 in 
Docket No. 991526-EQ granted FPC a waiver of this rule. In 
this Order, we also directed staff to initiate a rulemaking 
proceeding to amend Rule 25-17.0832(4) (e) ( 7 ) ,  Florida 
Administrative Code, to amend the contract term provision of. 
the rule. [Hearing currently planned for Octaber, 2002). 

3 .  Order No. PSC-00-0504-PAA-EQ, issued on March 7, 2000, in 
Docket No. 991973-EQ granted FPC a waiver of this rule. 

4 .  Order No. PSC-00-1748-PAA-EI, issued on September 26, 2000, in 
Docket No. 0 0 0 8 6 8  granted FPL Company a waiver of this rule. 

5 .  Order No. PSC-00-1773-PAA-EQ, issued on September 27, 2000, in 
Docket No. 000684 granted Tampa Electric Company (TECO) a 
waiver of this rule. 

FPC's present petition for waiver from the minimum standard 
offer contract term satisfies the statutory requirements for a rule 
waiver. FPC has demonstrated that the purpose of the underlying 
statute will be met if the waiver is granted. This is so because 
cogeneration will continue to be encouraged through negotiated as 
well as standard offer contracts. In addition, FPC's Petition for 
waiver demonstrates that substantial hardship to its ratepayers 
would result from application of the rule. 

)4 

For these reasons, we approve FPC's petition for a waiver of 
Rule 25-17.0832(4) (e)7, Florida Administrative Code. 

11. Waiver of Rule 25-17.0832 ( 4 )  le)5, Florida Administrative Code 

A. -L r o a  

FPC also requested a waiver of Rule 25-17.0832 (4) (e) 5,  Florida 
Administrative Code, which requires that the open solicitation 
period for a utility's standard offer contract must terminate priox 
to its issuance of a notice of Request for Proposal (RFP) based on 
the standard offer contract's avoided unit. 

As discussed previously, FPC must demonstrate that the 
purposes of the underlying statute will be met, and that 
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application of the rule either creates a substantial hardship or 
violates principles of fairness. 

B. Waiv r 

1. Purpose of the Underlying Statute 

In its Petition For Waiver, FPC identifies the underlying 
statute implemented by the rule as Section 366.051, Florida 
Statues, the purpose of which is to encourage Cogeneration while at 
the same time protecting ratepayers from potential adverse effects. 
According to FPC, the purpose of the statute will not only be 
achieved, but enhanced by the requested waiver of the rule's 
standard offer closure provision. 

2 .  Substantial Hardship 

FPC states that strict adherence to the closure provision 
would create a substantial hardship on FPC and its ratepayers. 
FPC's waiver request is intended to protect FPC and it ratepayers 
from potential adverse effects of the rule. 

F- 

C. Analvsis 

Rule ' 25-17.0832 ( 4 )  (e) 5, Florida Administrative Code, 
implements Section 366.051, Florida Statutes, the purpose of which 
is to encourage cogeneration and small power production. Pursuant 
to the Rule, each standard offer contract shall, at minimum, 
specify : 

A reasonable open solicitation period during which time 
the utility will accept proposals for standard offer 
contracts. Prior to the issuance of timely notice of a 
Request for Proposals (RFP) pursuant to Rule 25- 
22.082 ( 3 )  , the utility shall end the open solicitation 
period. 

We agree that the purpose of the underlying statute will be 
enhanced by the requested waiver because it will eliminate a 
limitation on the availability of a standard offer contract to 
cogenerators. The waiver will enable the standard offer to remain 
in effect and available to cogenerators while the RFP process is 

r'. 
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underway, a situation that would be impermissible under the rule 
sought to be waived. 

Further, we agree that allowing the issuance of the RFP at the 
same time as the open solicitation period will satisfy the' 
underlying purposes of the statute by encouraging Small qualifying 
facilities (QF). FPC has stated that recent revisions to the 
cogeneration rules focus the rules more closely upon QFs less than 
0.1 MW. Therefore, neither FPC nor its ratepayers will be at a 
disadvantage if FPC issues a RFP for Hines Unit 3 while the 
standard offer contract is outstanding. 

We also agree with FPC in that the timely completion of the 
RFP process is a key milestone in the schedule to place this 500 MW 
capacity addition in service by December, 2005, and be available to 
meet the ensuing 2005/2006 winter peak demand period. Delaying the 
completion of the RFP process until after the standard offer has 
been approved and open solicitation period has expired would 
significantly impair FPC's ability to satisfy its 20% reserve 

/4 margin responsibilities within this important reliability time 
frame. Such an impairment to the reliability of FPC's generation 
resources would create a real and substantial hardship on FPC and 
its customers. 

We agree that if the waiver is not granted, FPC's efforts to 
meet the new 20% reserve margin would be frustrated. On November 
30, 1999, we approved an agreement between FPC, FPL, and TECO 
adopting a 20% reserve margin planning criterion starting in the 
summer of 2004. A delay in the RFP process could seriously 
jeopardize FPC's ability to bring Hines 3 on line by the December, 
2005, in-service date. 

Finally, we note that by Order No. PSC-00-0504-PAA-EQ, issued 
March 7, 2000, in Docket No. 991973-EQ, we granted a requested 
waiver of the rule's standard offer closure requirement and 
approved the contract's open solicitation period that ran 
concurrent with the RPF process conducted for Hines 2 self-build 
option. The request granted was on substantially the same grounds 
asserted by FPC in this docket. FPC's petition satisfies the 
statutory requirements for a rule waiver. FPC has demonstrated 
,that the purpose of the underlying statute will be met if the 
waiver is granted. This is so because the requested waiver will 
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eliminate a limitation on the availability of a standard offer 
contract to cogenerators. In addition, FPC's Petition for waiver 
will remove the impairment to the reliability of FPC's generation 
resources, thus eliminating a substantial hardship to its 
ratepayers that would.have result from application of the'rule:. *' 

For these reasons, we approve FPC's petition for a waiver of 
Rule 25-17.0832(4) (e)5, Florida Administrative Code. 

111. Petition for Approval of New Standard Offer Contract 

Pursuant to federal law, the availability of standard rates is 
required for fossil-fueled qualifying facilities less than 100 
kilowatts (0.1 MW) in Size. 16 U.S.C. 2601 et seq., 16 U.S.C. 792 
et seq. ,  18 CAR 292.304. Florida law requires the Commission to 
"adopt appropriate goals for increasing the efficiency of energy 
consumption and increasing the development of cogeneration." 
Section 366.82(2), Florida Statutes. We are further directed to 
"establish a funding program to encourage the development by local 
governments of solid waste facilities that use solid waste as a 
primary source of fuel for the production of electricity." Section 
377.709, Florida Statutes. 

We implemented these federal and state requirements through 
our adoption of the Standard Offer Contract in Rule 25- 
17.0832 (41 (a), Florida Administrative Code. Pursuant to this rule, 
each investor-owned electric utility must file with the Commission 
a tariff and a Standard Offer Contract for the purchase of firm 
capacity and energy from small QFs. These provisions implement the 
requirements of the PURPA and promote renewables and solid waste- 
fired facilities by providing a straightforward contract. Larger 
QFs and other non-utility generators may participate in a utility's 
RFP process pursuant to Rule 25-22 .082 ,  Florida Administrative 
Code. 

To comply with Rule 25-17.0832(4) (a), Florida Administrative 
Code, FPC proposed a Standard Offer Contract based on a Combine 
Cycle (CC) unit with an in-service date of December 1, 2005, as its 
avoided unit. Specifically, the Contract is based on a 20 Mw 
portion of a 530 MW CC unit. FPC has also proposed an associated 
tariff, COG-2 (firm capacity and energy). This tariff would expire 
on the earlier of the date the subscription limit (20 m) is fully 



ORDER NO. PSC-02-0909-PAA-EQ 
DOCKET NO. 020295-EQ 
PAGE 10 

e. 

subscribed, or two weeks after approval of this standard offer by 
this Comission. 

We believe that FPC's evaluation criteria will be readily 
understandable to any developer who signs FPC's Standard Offer' 
Contract. The avoided unit cost parameters appear to be reasonable 
for a CC unit, and the resulting capacity payments are appropriate. 
The performance provisions include dispatch and control, and on- 
peak performance incentives. 

Given that the subscription limit of FPC's avoided unit is 
only a portion of its total capacity, purchaaes made by FPC 
pursuant to the proposed Standard Offer Contract will not result in 
the deferral or avoidance of the 2005 CC unit. If FPC enters into 
Standard Offer Contracts, but the need for the 2005 CC unit is not 
deferred or avoided, FPC will essentially be paying twice for the 
same firm capacity. Therefore, the requirements of federal law and 
the implementation of state regulations discussed above may result 
in a subsidy to the QFs. We note, however, that the potential 
subsidy could be mitigated, as FPC may have opportunities to sell 
any surplus capacity to the wholesale market. 

Ideally, QFs should compete on equal footing with all other 
producers of electricity. However, until and unless there is a 
change in federal and state law, QFs are given some preferential 
treatment. We have minimized this unequal footing by requiring 
Standard Offer Contracts for small fossil fueled QFs, 
renewables, or municipal solid waste facilities. These types of 
facilities may not be in a position to negotiate a purchased power 
agreement due to their size or timing. Thus, our rules balance 
market imperfections with the existing policy of promoting QFs. 

In summary, we do not expect that FPC's proposed Standard 
Offer Contract will result in the avoidance of its proposed avoided 
unit, a 2005 CC. Nonetheless, FPC's proposed contract and tariff 
comply with our cogeneration rules. For this reason, we approve 
FPC's Petition to Establish its New Standard Offer Contract and 
associated tariffs. 

Since it would not be reasonable to have this tariff go into 
effect if the waiver portions of this Order were protested, the 
tariff shall not be effective if a protest is filed. If there is 

/4 
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no protest by a substantially affected person to the portion of the 
order approving the contract o r  the waivers, FPC's proposed 
Standard Offer Contract shall become effective upon the issuance of 
a Consummating Order for the waiver portions of this Order. " .  

Based on the foregoing, it is 

ORDERED by the Florida Public Service Commission that the 
Petition of Florida Power Corporation for waiver of Rule 25- 
17.0832 (4) (e) 7, Florida Administrative Code, is hereby granted. It 
is further 

ORDERED that the Petition of Florida Power Corporation for 
waiver of Rule 25-17.0832(4) (e)5, Florida Administrative Code, is 
hereby granted. It is further 

ORDERED that Florida Power Corporation's Petition for Approval 
of a Standard Offer Contract is approved. It is further 

)4 ORDERED that the tariff for the Standard Offer Contract shall 
become effective upon the issuance of a Consummating Order in this 
docket. It is further 

ORDERED that the provisions of this Order, issued as proposed 
agency action, shall become final and effective upon the issuance 
of a Consummating Order unless an appropriate petition, in the form 

- provided by Rule 28-106.201, Florida Administrative Code, is 
received by the Director, Division of the Commission Clerk and 
Administrative Services, 2540 Shumard Oak Boulevard, Tallahassee, 
Florida 32399-0850, by the close of business on the date set forth 
in the 'Notice of Further Proceedings" attached hereto. It is 
further 

ORDERED that in the event this Order becomes final, this 
docket shall be closed. 
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By ORDER of the Florida Public Service Commission this gLh day 
of Julv, 2002. 

I 

BLANCA S.  BAY^, Direct@ 
Division of the Commission Clerk 
and Administrative Services 

NOTICE OF FURTHER PROCEEDINGS OR JUDICIAL REVIEW 

The Florida Public Service Commission is required by Section 
120.569(1), Florida Statutes, to notify parties of any 
administrative hearing that is available under Section 120.57, 
Florida Statutes, as well as the procedures and time limits that 
apply. This notice should not be construed to mean all requests 
for an administrative hearing will be granted or result in the 
relief sought. 

Mediation may be available on a case-by-case basis. If 
mediation is conducted, it does not affect a substantially 
interested person's right to a hearing. 
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The action proposed herein is preliminary in nature. Any 
person whose substantial interests are affected by the action 
proposed by this order may file a petition for a formal proceeding, 
in the form provided by Rule 28-106.201, Florida Administrative 
Code. This petition must be received by the Director, Division Q€ 
the Commission Clerk and Administrative Services, 2540 Shumard Oak 
Boulevard, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0850, by the close of 
business on Julv 29. 2002. 

In the absence of such a petition, this order shall become 
final and effective upon the issuance of a Consummating Order. 

Any objection or protest filed in this/these docket(s1 before 
the issuance date of this order is considered abandoned unless it 
satisfies the foregoing conditions and is renewed within the 
specified protest period. 
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Jeanette Sickel 
/4 From: JimDean 

Sent: Monday, July 08,2002 2:lO PM 
To: Adrienne Vining; Jeanette Sickel 
Subject. Nv: New Contact and Questionnairerenewables 

Adrienne: Would you please add this person to our mailing list. 

Jeanette: Would you please send her a questionnaire for completion 

thanks 
jim 
---Original Message----- 
From: Taw,  Florida Hydro [mailto:Tanzy@floridahydro.wm] 
Sene Monday, July 08,2002 2 0 1  PM 
To: jdean@psc.sbte.fl.us 
Subject: renewable 

Jim, 
Here's our contact info: 

Florida Hydro Power & Light Co. 
171 Comfort Road 
Palatka, FL 32177 

phone: (386)328-2470 - fax: (386)328-2558 

e-mail: tanzv@floridahvdro.com 
web site: www.floridahvdro.com 

Much thanks, 
Tanzy Kratzke 

7/9/02 



BEFORE THE FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 

In re: Petition for waiver of 
Rule 25-17.0832(4) (e), F.A.C., 
which requires ten-year minimum 
contract term, by Florida Power 
& Light Company, and for 
approval to offer standard offer 
contract with five-year minimum 
term. 

DOCKET NO. 011199-EQ 
ORDER NO. PSC-01-2488-PAA-EQ 
ISSUED: December 20, 2001 

The following Commissioners participated in the disposition of 
this matter: 

E. LEON JACOBS, JR., Chairman 
J. TERRY DEASON 
LILA A. JABER 
BRAULIO L. BAEZ 

MICHAEL A. PALECKI 

NOTICE OF PROPOSED AGENCY ACTION 
ORDER GRANTING RULE WAIVER 

BY THE COMMISSION: 

NOTICE is hereby given by the Florida Public Service 
Commission that the action discussed herein is preliminary in 
nature and will become final unless a person whose interests are 
substantially affected files a petition for a formal proceeding, 
pursuant to Rule 25-22.029, Florida Administrative Code. 

I. Background 

On September 14, 2001, Florida Power & Light Company (FPL) 
filed a Petition for Waiver of Rule 25-17.0832(4) (e), Florida 
Administrative Code (Petition for Waiver). FPL seeks a waiver from 
the 10 year minimum standard offer contract term required by the 
rule. Instead, FPL requests that it be permitted to substitute a 
standard offer contract term of five years. Pursuant to Section 
120.542(6), Florida Statutes, the petition for rule waiver was 
noticed in the October 5, 2001, Florida Administrative Weekly. No 

P. 
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comments were received. 
over this matter by Section 120.542, Florida Statutes. 

The Commission is vested with jurisdiction 

Also on September 14, 2001, FPL filed its petition for 
approval of a standard offer contract in Docket No. 011200-EQ. 
The term of the proposed standard offer contract is five years. 

11. Request for Waiver 

A. Standard for Approval 

Section 120.542, Florida Statutes (2001), mandates threshold 
proofs and notice provisions for variances and waivers from agency 
rules. Subsection (2) of the statute states: 

Variances and waivers shall be granted when the person 
subject to the rule demonstrates that the purpose of the 
underlying statute will be or has been achieved by other 
means by the person and when application of the rule 
would create a substantial hardship or would violate 
principles of fairness. For purposes of this section, 
"substantial hardship" means a demonstrated economic, 
technological, legal, or other type of hardship to the 
person requesting the variance or waiver. For purposes 
of this section, "principles of fairness" are violated 
when literal application of a rule affects a particular 
person in a manner significantly different from the way 
it affects other similarly situated persons who are 
subject to the rule. 

Thus, under the statute, a person requesting a variance or waiver 
must affirmatively demonstrate that the purpose of the underlying 
statute has been met. In addition, the petitioner must demonstrate 
that it will either suffer "substantial hardship" or that 
"principles of fairness" will be violated. If the allegations 
relate to fairness, an additional proof of uniqueness to the 
petitioner is required by the statute. 
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B. FPL’s Petition For Waiver 

The waiver requested by FPL is for a standard offer contract 
term limited to five years instead of the ten year minimum contract 
term required by Rule 25-17.0832(4)(e), Florida Administrative 
Code, 

1. Purpose of the Underlying Statute 

In its Petition For Waiver, FPL identifies the underlying 
statute implemented by the rule as Section 366.051, Florida 
Statues. According to FPL, the purposes of the statute, and the 
purposes of the Public Utility Regulatory Policies Act of 1978 
(PURPA), are to promote the growth of alternative generating 
facilities, with the express limitation that electric customers 
should not pay more for power than they otherwise would. 

FPL believes that its requested waiver, if granted, will still 
meet the purpose of the statute. FPL asserts that the standard 
offer contract will provide economic incentive for the development 
of the type of projects contemplated by the statute. FPL further 
asserts that the waiver requested is more likely to ensure that 
electric customers do not pay excessive costs for power purchased 
under the standard offer contract. 

2. Substantial Hardship 

FPL states that the standard offer contract will not defer or 
avoid the construction of additional generating capacity. FPL 
asserts that its customers are prejudiced to the extent they are 
required to make capacity payments where no generation is avoided 
or deferred. FPL states that to require capacity payments in such 
instance for a ten-year period, would incur a substantial risk and 
hardship. 

C. Analysis 

1. Purpose Of The Underlying Statute 

The purpose of Section 366.051, Florida Statutes, to encourage 
cogeneration and small power production, is express: “Electricity 
produced by cogeneration and small power production is of benefit 



ORDER NO. PSC-01-2488-PAA-EQ 
DOCKET NO. 011199-EQ 
PAGE 4 

to the public when included as part of the total energy supply of 
the entire electric grid of the state.. . ." Rule 25-17.0832 (4), 
Florida Administrative Code, implements Section 366.051, Florida 
Statutes. Pursuant to the Rule, standard offer contracts must 
contain certain minimum specifications relating to, among other 
things, the term of the contract and the calculation of firm 
capacity payments. With respect to the term of standard offer 
contracts, Subsection 25-17.0832 (4) (e) 7, requires: 

Firm capacity and energy shall be delivered, at a 
minimum, for a period of ten years, commencing with the 
anticipated in-service date of the avoided unit specified 
in the contract. At a maximum, firm capacity and energy 
shall be delivered for a period of time equal to the 
anticipated plant life of the avoided unit, commencing 
with the anticipated in service date of the avoided unit; 

The rule provides a range for the contract period tied to the plant 
life of the utilities' avoided unit by establishing a minimum and 
a maximum term for standard offer contracts. 

The ten year minimum contract term, while not a requirement of 
PURPA, was mandated by the Commission in order to assist utilities 
and cogenerators with planning. In Order No. 12634, issued October 
27, 1983, Docket No. 820406-EU, Amendment of Rules 25-17.80 
throush 25-17.89 relation to coseneration, the Commission addressed 
the issue of a ten year minimum contract term. The Commission 
stated: 

The requirement that a QF be willing to sign a contract 
for the delivery of firm capacity for at least ten years 
after the originally anticipated in service date of the 
avoided unit is important from a planning perspective. 
While a ten-year contract will not offset the expected 
thirty year life of a base load generating unit, we 
believe it is of sufficient length to confer substantial 
capacity related benefits on the ratepayers. 

Order No. 12634, pg. 19. 

The purpose of the underlying statute is to encourage 
cogeneration. To promote cogenreation, investor-owned utilities 
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who plan generating units not subject to Rule 25-22.082, Florida 
Administrative Code, are encouraged to negotiate contracts for the 
purchase of firm capacity and energy with utility and nonutility 
generators by Rule 25-17.0837 (l), Florida Administrative Code. The 
alternative provision is the standard offer contract. Insofar as 
cogenerators' ability to enter into negotiated contracts is 
unaffected by the waiver request, and a cogenerator retains the 
ability to enter into a five year standard offer contract with FPL, 
FPL's request for a waiver appears to satisfy the underlying 
purpose of the statute. 

2. Substantial Hardship 

An allegation of substantial hardship requires an affirmative 
demonstration by the petitioner of economic, technological, or 
legal hardship. Purchases made by FPL pursuant to the proposed 
Standard Offer Contract will not result in the deferral or 
avoidance of its proposed avoided unit, the 2003 CT. This is due * to the subscription limit being 5 MW of a 165 MW unit. FPL has 
demonstrated, in this case, that application of the rule would 
create an economic hardship to its ratepayers who may bear the risk 
of generation which is not avoided or deferred. 

3. Other Requests for Waiver/Variance of Rule 

We note that there have been other requests for variance or 
waiver of Rule 25-17.0832(4) (e), Florida Administrative Code: 

1. Order No. PSC-99-1713-TRF-EG, issued on September 2, 1999, in 
Docket No. 990249-EG granted FPL a variance of this rule. 

2. Order No. PSC-00-0265-PAA-EG, issued February 8, 2000, in 
Docket No. 991526-EQ granted Florida Power Corporation a 
waiver of this rule. This order also directed staff to 
initiate a rulemaking proceeding to amend Rule 25- 
17.0832 (4) (e) (71, Florida Administrative Code, to amend the 
contract term provision of the rule. 

3 .  Order No. PSC-00-0504-PAA-EQ, issued on March 7, 2000, in 
Docket No. 991973-EQ granted Florida Power Corporation a 

f-. waiver of this rule. 
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4 .  Order No. PSC-00-1773-PAA-EQ, issued on September 27, 2000, in 
Docket No. 000684-EQ, granted Tampa Electric Company a waiver 
of this rule. 

5. Order No. PSC-00-1748-PAA-EQ, issued on September 26, 2000, 
2000, in Docket No. 000868-EI, granted FPL a variance of this 
rule. 

6. Order No. PSC-O1-1418-TRF-EQ, issued on June 29, 2001, in 
Docket No. 010334-EQ, granted Tampa Electric Company a waiver 
of this rule. 

The Commission has proposed a modification of the rule in Docket 
No. 001574-EQ. A hearing is scheduled for May 15, 2002. 

111. Conclusion 

In s u m ,  FPL’s Petition for Waiver from the minimum standard 
offer contract term is granted because it satisfies the statutory 
requirements for a rule waiver. FPL has demonstrated that the 
purpose of the underlying statute will be met if the waiver is 
granted because cogeneration will continue to be encouraged through 
negotiated as well as standard offer contracts. In addition, FPL’s 
Petition for Waiver demonstrates that substantial hardship to its 
ratepayers would result from application of the rule. 

Based on the foregoing, it is 

ORDERED by the Florida Public Service Commission that Florida 
Power & Light Company’s request for a Waiver of Rule 25- 
17.0832 (4) (e) (7), Florida Administrative Code, is hereby granted. 
It is further 

ORDERED that the provisions of this Order, issued as proposed 
agency action, shall become final and effective upon the issuance 
of a Consummating Order unless an appropriate petition, in the form 
provided by Rule 28-106.201, Florida Administrative Code, is 
received by the Director, Division of the Commission Clerk and 
Administrative Services, 2540 Shumard Oak Boulevard, Tallahassee, 
Florida 32399-0850, by the close of business on the date set forth 
in the “Notice of Further Proceedings” attached hereto. It is 
further 
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ORDERED that if no timely protest is filed, this Order shall 
be closed upon the issuance of a Consummating Order. 

By ORDER of the Florida Public Service Commission this 20th 
day of December, 2001. 

BLANCA S .  BAY6, Director 
Division of the Commission Clerk 
and Administrative Services 

By: Is/ Kav Flvnn 
Kay Flynn, Chief 
Bureau of Records and Hearing 
Services 

This is a facsimile copy. Go to the 
Commission's Web site, 
httD://WWW.floridaDSc.com or fax a request 
to 1-850-413-7118, for a copy of the order 
with signature. 

( S E A L )  

KNE 

NOTICE OF FURTHER PROCEEDINGS OR JUDICIAL REVIEW 

The Florida Public Service Commission is required by Section 
120.569(1), Florida Statutes, to notify parties of any 
administrative hearing that is available under Section 120.57, 
Florida Statutes, as well as the procedures and time limits that 
apply. This notice should not be construed to mean all requests 
for an administrative hearing will be granted or result in the 
relief sought. 

Mediation may be available on a case-by-case basis. If 
mediation is conducted, it does not affect a substantially 

f- interested person's right to a hearing. 
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The action proposed herein is preliminary in nature. Any 
person whose substantial interests are affected by the action 
proposed by this order may file a petition for a formal proceeding, 
in the form provided by Rule 28-106.201, Florida Administrative 
Code. This petition must be received by the Director, Division of 
the Commission Clerk and Administrative Services, 2540 Shumard Oak 
Boulevard, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0850, by the close of 
business on Januarv 10.  2002. 

In the absence of such a petition, this order shall become 
final and effective upon the issuance of a Consummating Order. 

Any objection or protest filed in this docket before the 
issuance date of this order is considered abandoned unless it 
satisfies the foregoing conditions and is renewed within the 
specified protest period. 



-. 
BEFORE THE FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 

In re: Petition for approval of 
new standard offer contract for 
qualifying cogeneration and 
small power production 
facilities by Tampa Electric 
Company. 

DOCKET NO. 010334-EQ 
ORDER NO. PSC-01-1418-TRF-EQ 
ISSUED: June 29, 2001 

The following Commissioners participated in the disposition of 
this matter: 

E. LEON JACOBS, JR., Chairman 
J. TERRY DEASON 
LILA A. JABER 
BRAULIO L. BAEZ 

MICHAEL A. PALECKI 

ORDER GRANTING PETITION FOR WAIVER AND APPROVING STANDARD OFFER 
CONTRACT 

BY THE COMMISSION: 

NOTICE is hereby given by the Florida Public Service 
Commission that the action discussed herein is preliminary in 
nature and will become final unless a person whose interests are 
substantially affected files a petition for a formal proceeding, 
pursuant to Rule 25-22.029, Florida Administrative Code. 

I. CASE BACKGROUND 

On March 19, 2001, Tampa Electric Company (TECO) filed a 
Petition for Approval of a Standard Offer Contract f o r  qualifying 
congeneration and small power production facilities. The proposed 
contract is based on a 5 megawatt (MW) subscription limit of a 180 
MW combustion turbine generating unit with an in-service date of 
May 1, 2004. 

Along with its March 19, 2001, Petition, TECO filed a Petition 
for Waiver of Rule 25-17.0832(4) (e) ( 7 ) ,  Florida Administrative 
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Code. TECO seeks a waiver from the 10 year minimum contract term 
required by the rule, and proposes a 5 year contract term. On May 
2, 2001, TECO filed amended copies of Fifth Revised Tariff Sheet 
No. 8.295. 

11. PETITION FOR WAIVER 

TECO's request for a waiver is granted because TECO 
demonstrated that the purpose of the underlying statute will be 
met, and that TECO and its ratepayers will suffer substantial 
hardship if a waiver is not granted. 

A. Standard Of Review 

Section 120.542, Florida Statutes (1997), mandates threshold 
proofs and notice provisions for variances and waivers from agency 
rules. Subsection (2 )  of the statute states: 

Variances and waivers shall be granted when the person 
subject to the rule demonstrates that the purpose of the 
underlying statute will be or has been achieved by other 
means by the person and when application of the rule 
would create a substantial hardship or would violate 
principles of fairness. For purposes of this section, 
"substantial hardship" means a demonstrated economic, 
technological, legal, or other type of hardship to the 
person requesting the variance or waiver. For purposes 
of this section, "principles of fairness" are violated 
when literal application of a rule affects a particular 
person in a manner significantly different from the way 
it affects other similarly situated persons who are 
subject to the rule. 

Thus, under the statute, a person requesting a variance or waiver 
must affirmatively demonstrate that the purpose of the underlying 
statute has been met. In addition, the petitioner must demonstrate 
that it will either suffer "substantial hardship" or that 
"principles of fairness" will be violated. If the allegations 
relate to fairness, an additional proof of uniqueness to the 
petitioner is required by the statute. 

P. 
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yz. 

The waiver requested by TECO is for a standard offer contract 
term limited to five years instead of the ten year minimum contract 
term required by Rule 25-17.0832(4)(e)(7), Florida Administrative 
Code. 

B. TECO‘s Petition For Waiver 

1. Purpose of the Underlying Statute 

In its Petition For Waiver, TECO identifies the underlying 
statute implemented by the rule as Section 366.051, Florida 
Statues. According to TECO, the purposes of the statute, and the 
purposes of the Public Utility Regulatory Policies Act of 1978 
(PURPA), to encourage cogeneration while at the same time 
protecting ratepayers from paying costs in excess of avoided costs, 
will be achieved by utilizing a five-year contract term. 

TECO states that its Petition For Waiver will meet the 
P. underlying purpose of the statute. TECO submits that new 

technologies and other factors may lower TECO’s costs in the 
future. TECO contends that limiting the term of the standard offer 
contract to five years will give the company an opportunity to 
reassess its avoided costs and take advantage of lower costs for 
the benefit of ratepayers prior to the passage of ten years. TECO 
also states that PURPA and Section 366.051, Florida Statutes do not 
establish a minimum term for standard offer contracts. 

2. Substantial Hardship 

TECO argues that obligating it to a ten year contract term in 
the face of declining costs would subject it to substantial 
hardship by adversely affecting its cost structure. TECO also 
states that ratepayers would be subjected to substantial hardship 
by raising the price that they would otherwise have to pay for 
electricity, in the face of declining costs. 

C. Analvsis 

1. Purpose Of The Underlying Statute 

/--, The purpose of Section 366.051, Florida Statutes, to encourage 
cogeneration and small power production, is express. “Electricity 
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e. 

produced by cogeneration and small power production is of benefit 
to the public when included as part of the total energy supply of 
the entire electric grid of the state.. . ." Rule 25-17.0832 (4), 
Florida Administrative Code, implements Section 366.051, Florida 
Statutes. Pursuant to the Rule, standard offer contracts must 
contain certain minimum specifications relating to, among other 
things, the term of the contract and the calculation of firm 
capacity payments. With respect to the term of standard offer 
contracts, Subsection 25-17.0832(4)(e)7, requires: 

Firm capacity and energy shall be delivered, at a 
minimum, for a period of ten years, commencing with the 
anticipated in-service date of the avoided unit specified 
in the contract. At a maximum, firm capacity and energy 
shall be delivered for a period of time equal to the 
anticipated plant life of the avoided unit, commencing 
with the anticipated in service date of the avoided unit: 

The rule provides a range for the contract period tied to the plant 
life of the utilities' avoided unit by establishing a minimum and 
a maximum term for standard offer contracts. 

The ten year minimum contract term, while not a requirement of 
PURPA, was mandated by this Commission in order to assist utilities 
and cogenerators with planning. In Order No. 12634, issued October , 
27, 1983, Docket No. 820406-EU, Amendment of Rules 25-17.8Q 
throuah 25-17.89 relation to coaeneration, the issue of a ten year 
minimum contract term was addressed as follows: 

/--. 

The requirement that a QF be willing to sign a contract 
for the delivery of firm capacity for at least ten years 
after the originally anticipated in service date of the 
avoided unit is important from a planning perspective. 
While a ten-year contract will not offset the expected 
thirty year life of a base load generating unit, we 
believe it is of sufficient length to confer substantial 
capacity related benefits on the ratepayers. 

Order No. 12634, pg. 19. 

The purpose of the statute underlying Rule 25-27.0832 (4) (e) is 
to encourage cogeneration. To promote cogeneration, investor-owned 

/--. 
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utilities' planned generation units not subject to Rule 25-22.082, 
Florida Administrative Code, are encouraged to negotiate contracts 
for the purchase of firm capacity and energy with utility and non- 
utility generators. Rule 25-17.0837(1), Florida Administrative 
Code. The alternative provision is standard offer contracts. 
Insofar as cogenerators' ability to enter into negotiated contracts 
is unaffected by the waiver request, and a cogenerator retains the 
ability to enter into a five year minimum standard offer contract 
with TECO, TECO's request for a variance appears to satisfy the 
underlying purpose of the statute. 

2. Substantial Hardship 

An allegation of substantial hardship requires an affirmative 
demonstration by the petitioner of economic, technological or legal 
hardship. The hardship demonstrated by TECO is economic hardship 
to its ratepayers who may bear the risk of generation which is not 
avoided or deferred. Specifically, the unit to be avoided is 

fi, Bayside Unit 2, a 5 MW portion of a 180 MW combustion turbine 
scheduled to be placed in service in May 2004 as part of the Gannon 
Station repowering project. 

In sum, TECO's Petition For Waiver from the minimum standard 
offer contract term shall be granted because it satisfies the 
mandatory, statutory requirements of Section 120.542, Florida 
Statutes. TECO demonstrated that the purpose of the underlying 
statute, Section 366.051, Florida Statutes, will be met if the 
waiver is granted. 

111. PETITION FOR APPROVAL OF A NEW STANDARD OFFER CONTRACT 

Pursuant to federal law, the availability of standard rates is 
required for fossil-fueled qualifying facilities less than 100 
kilowatts (0.1 MW) in size. 16 U.S.C. 2601 et seq., 16 U.S.C. 792 
et seq., 18 CFR292.304. Florida law requires us to "adopt 
appropriate goals for increasing the efficiency of energy 
consumption and increasing the development of cogeneration." 
Section 366.82(2), Florida Statutes. We are further directed to 
"establish a funding program to encourage the development by local 
governments of solid waste facilities that use solid waste as a 
primary source of fuel for the production of electricity." Section 
377.709, Florida Statutes. 

/- 
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These federal and state requirements were implemented through 
our adoption of the Standard Offer Contract in Rule 25- 
17.0832 (4) (a) , Florida Administrative Code. Pursuant to this rule, 
each investor-owned electric utility must file a tariff and a 
Standard Offer Contract with us. These provisions implement the 
requirements of the Public Utilities Regulatory Policies Act and 
promote renewables and solid waste-fired facilities by providing a 
straightforward contract. Larger qualifying facilities and other 
non-utility generators may participate in a utility‘s Request For 
Proposal process pursuant to Rule 25-22.082, Florida Administrative 
Code. 

To comply with Rule 25-17.0832(4) (a), Florida Administrative 
Code, TECO proposed a new Standard Offer Contract based on a 
combustion turbine (CT) unit with an in-service date of May 1, 
2004. Specifically, the Contract is based on a 5 MW portion of a 
180 MW CT. CT units typically require about 18 months to construct. 
Therefore, TECO will need to commence construction by November 1, 

t-. 2002. 

TECO’s proposed COG-2 (firm capacity and energy) tariff 
includes a three-week open season period for receiving standard 
offer contracts. If TECO does not receive a full subscription of 5 
MW within the initial three-week open season period, an additional 
three-week open season period will be held in 60 days. This open 
season period is similar to the open season period in TECO’s 
previous Standard Offer Contract. TECO’s previous Standard Offer 
Contract tariffs have stated that subsequent to the open. season 
period, TECO will file a petition with the Commission to close the 
Standard Offer Contract. TECO’s Fifth Revised Tariff Sheet No. 
8.295, filed on May 2, 2001, now states that TECO will advise our 
staff in writing and indicate that the Standard Offer Contract 
should be closed, “once the Company’s Standard Offer Contract is 
fully and acceptably subscribed or has expired.” The revised 
language also states that TECO’ s written notification will include: 
1) the results of the open season period; 2) an estimated time when 
a new Standard Offer Contract will be filed; and, 3 )  the revised 
tariff sheets reflecting the closure of the Standard Offer 
Contract. We believes that it will increase efficiency for both 
the Company and this Commission to administratively approve the 
closure of TECO’ s proposed Standard Offer Contract. TECO’ s written 
notification will provide the necessary information for our staff 

#“-. 
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to track the results of the Standard Offer Contract. Our staff 
will advise us if any substantive issues are raised by TECO's 
written notification. 

TECO's evaluation criteria in the proposed Standard Offer 
tariff should be readily understandable to any developer who signs 
TECO's Standard Offer Contract. The avoided unit cost parameters 
appear to be reasonable for a CT unit, and the resulting capacity 
payments are appropriate. 

It is unlikely that purchases made by TECO pursuant to the 
proposed Standard Offer Contract will result in the deferral or 
avoidance of TECO's 2004 CT unit, because: 1) the eligibility pool 
for- Standard Offer Contracts is limited; 2)the subscription limit 
of TECO's avoided unit is only a portion of the CT's total 
capacity; and, 3 )  TECO has not received any takers for its last two 
Standard Offer Contracts. The interest in TECO's last two Standard 
Offer Contracts may have been reduced because the contracts were 
based on TECO's next avoided units, which were all CT's. The 
capacity payments for CT's are typically low relative to those for 
contracts based on other avoided generation technologies, such as 
combined cycle, coal, or nuclear facilities. 

e, 

If TECO enters into Standard Offer Contracts under the 
proposed contract, but the need for the 2004 CT unit is not 
deferred or avoided, TECO will essentially be paying twice for the 
same firm capacity. Therefore, the requirements of federal law and 
the implementation of the state regulations discussed above may 
result in a subsidy to the qualifying facilities. We note, 
however, that the potential subsidy could be mitigated, as TECO may 
have opportunities to sell any surplus capacity to the wholesale 
market. 

Ideally, qualifying facilities should compete on equal footing 
with all other producers of electricity. However, until and unless 
there is a change in federal and state law, qualifying facilities 
are to be given some preferential treatment. This unequal footing 
is minimized by requiring Standard Offer Contracts & for small 
qualifying facilities, renewables, or municipal solid waste 
facilities. These types of facilities may not be in a position to 
negotiate a purchased power agreement due to their size or timing. 

)4. Thus, our rules balance market imperfections with the existing 
policy of promoting qualifying facilities. 
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In summary, we find that TECO's proposed Standard Offer 
Contract will probably not result in the avoidance of the 2004 CT 
unit. Nonetheless, TECO's proposed contract and tariffs comply 
with our cogeneration rules. For this reason, we approve TECO's 
Petition for Approval of a Standard Offer Contract and associated 
tariffs. 

To process both the waiver request and the tariff filing 
simultaneously, the proposed agency action process shall be 
utilized instead of the tariff process. While both processes 
provide for a point of entry for protest, under the tariff process, 
if there is a protest, the tariff would go into effect pending the 
outcome of the hearing; whereas under the proposed agency action 
process, if protested, the tariff would not go into effect as the 
proposed agency action order becomes a nullity. Since it would not 
be reasonable to have this tariff go into effect if the waiver 
portion of the Commission's order were protested, the tariff shall 
be processed as proposed agency action. 

Based on the foregoing, it is 

ORDERED by the Florida Public Service Commission that Tampa 
Electric Company's Petition for Waiver of Rule 25-17.0832(4) (e) ( 7 ) ,  
Florida Administrative Code, is aproved. It is further 

ORDERED that Tampa Electric Company's Petition for Approval of 
a Standard Offer Contract is hereby approved. It is further 

ORDERED that the standard offer contract shall become 
It is further 

ORDERED that the provisions of this Osder, issued as 
proposed agency action, shall become final and effective upon the 
issuance of a Consummating Order unless an appropriate petition, in 
the form provided by Rule 28-106.201, Florida Administrative Code, 
is received by the Director, Division of the Commission Clerk and 
Administrative Services, 2540 Shumard Oak Boulevard, Tallahassee, 
Florida 32399-0850, by the close of business on the date set forth 
in the "Notice of Further Proceedings" attached hereto. It is 
further 

effective upon the issuance of a consummating order. 

/4 ORDERED that in the event this Order becomes final, this 
docket shall be closed. 
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By ORDER of the Florida Public Service Commission this 29th 
Day of June. 2001. 

/I 
BLANCA S. BAY6, Director 
Division of Records and Reporting 

This is a facsimile copy. Go to the 
Commission's Web site, 
b- or fax a request 
to 1-850-413-7118, for a copy of the order 
with signature. 

( S E A L )  

MKS 

The Florida Public Service Commission is required by Section 
120.569(1) ,  Florida Statutes, to notify parties of any 
administrative hearing or judicial review of Commission orders that 
is available under Sections 120.57 or 120.68, Florida Statutes, as 
well as the procedures and time limits that apply. This notice 
should not be construed to mean all requests for an administrative 
hearing or judicial review will be granted or result in the relief 
sought. 

Mediation may be available on a case-by-case basis. If 
mediation is conducted, it does not affect a substantially 
interested person's right to a hearing. 

The Commission's decision on this tariff is interim in nature 
and will become final, unless a person whose substantial interests 
are affected by the proposed action files a petition for a formal 
proceeding, in the form provided by Rule 28-106.201, Florida 
Administrative Code. This petition must be received by the 
Director, Division of the Commission Clerk and Administrative 
Services, 2540 Shumard Oak Boulevard, Tallahassee, Florida 32399- 
0850, by the close of business on Julv 20. 2001. 

P. 
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In the absence of such a petition, this Order shall become 
final and effective upon the issuance of a Consummating Order. 

Any objection or protest filed in this docket before the 
issuance date of this order is considered abandoned unless it 
satisfies the foregoing conditions and is renewed within the 
specified protest period. 



BEFORE THE FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 

In re: Petition for approval of 
standard offer contract for 
qualifying cogeneration and 
small power production 
facilities by Tampa Electric 
Company. 

DOCKET NO. 000684-EQ 
ORDER NO. PSC-00-1773-PAA-EQ 
ISSUED: September 2 7 ,  2000 

The following Commissioners participated in the disposition of 
this matter: 

J. TERRY DEASON, Chairman 
E. LEON JACOBS, JR. 

LILA A. JABER 
BRAULIO L. BAEZ 

NOTICE OF PROPOSED AGENCY ACTION 
ORDER APPROVING STANDARD OFFER CONTRACT 

BY THE COMMISSION: 

NOTICE is hereby given by the Florida Public Service 
Commission that the action discussed herein is preliminary in 
nature and will become final unless a person whose substantial 
interests are affected files a petition for a formal proceeding 
pursuant to Rule 2 5 - 2 2 . 0 2 9 ,  Florida Administrative Code. 

On June 2 ,  2 0 0 0 ,  Tampa Electric Company (TECO) filed a 
Petition for Approval of a New Standard Offer Contract for 
Qualifying Cogeneration and Small Power Production Facilities and 
associated tariffs. According to this petition, TECO has 
determined that its Standard Offer Contract should be based on a 5 
megawatt (MW) portion of a 180 MW combustion turbine (CT) scheduled 
to be placed in service on May 1, 2003. TECO asserts that this CT 
is an integral component of the Gannon Station repowering project, 
specifically Bayside Unit 1. By Order No. PSC-00-1418-PCO-EQ, 
issued August 3, 2000, we suspended the proposed Standard Offer 
Contract and associated tariffs. We are vested with jurisdiction 
over this matter through several provisions of Chapter 366, Florida 
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Statutes, including Sections 366.04, 366.05, 366.051, 366.06, and 
366.80-.82, Florida Statutes. 

TECO also filed a Petition for Waiver of the requirement in 
Rule 25-17.0832(4) (e)7, Florida Administrative Code, that Standard 
Offer Contracts have a minimum term of ten (10) years. The term of 
TECO’s proposed Standard Offer Contract is five (5) years. 
Pursuant to Section 120.542(6), Florida Statutes, notice of TECO’s 
petition was submitted to the Secretary of State for publication in 
the August 11, 2000, Florida Administrative Weekly. No comments 
concerning the petition for waiver were filed within the 14-day 
comment period provided by Rule 28-104.003, Florida Administrative 
Code, which expired on August 25, 2000. 

Pursuant to Section 120.542(8), Florida Statutes, a petition 
for rule waiver is deemed approved if the Commission does not grant 
or deny it within 90 days. TECO has waived this 90-day deadline to 
allow the waiver request to be addressed together with the Standard 
Offer Contract. We are vested with jurisdiction to address TECO’s 
petition for waiver through Section 120.542, Florida Statutes. 

- I. PETITION FOR RULE WAIVER 

/4 

A. Standard for Approval 

Section 120.542, Florida Statutes (1999), mandates threshold 
proofs and notice provisions for variances and waivers from agency 
rules. Subsection (2) of the statute states: 

/-- 

variances and waivers shall be granted when the person 
subject to the rule demonstrates that the purpose of the 
underlying statute will be or has been achieved by other 
means by the person and when application of the rule 
would create a substantial hardship or would violate 
principles of fairness. For purposes of this section, 
‘‘substantial hardship“ means a demonstrated economic, 
technological, legal, or other type of hardship to the 
person requesting the variance or waiver. For purposes 
of this section, “principles of fairness” are violated 
when literal application of a rule affects a particular 
person in a manner significantly different from the way 
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it affects other similarly situated persons who are 
subject to the rule. 

Thus, under the statute, a person requesting a variance or waiver 
must affirmatively demonstrate that the purpose of the underlying 
statute has been met. In addition, the petitioner must demonstrate 
that it will either suffer ‘substantial hardship” or that 
”principles of fairness” will be violated. If the allegations 
relate to fairness, an additional proof of uniqueness to the 
petitioner is required by the statute. 

B. TECO‘s Petition for Waiver 

The waiver requested by TECO is for a standard offer contract 
term limited to five years instead of the ten year minimum contract 
term required by Rule 25-17.0832(4) (e), Florida Administrative 
Code. 

/- 
1 Purwose of the Underlvina Statute 

In its petition for waiver, TECO identifies the underlying 
statute implemented by the rule as Section 366.051, Florida 
Statues. According to TECO, the purposes of the statute, and the 
purposes of the Public Utility Regulatory Policies Act of 1978 
(PURPA), are to promote the growth of alternative generating 
facilities, with the express limitation that electric customers 
should not pay more for power than they otherwise would. 

L 

TECO states that its petition for waiver will meet the purpose 
of the statute. TECO asserts that the standard offer contract will 
provide an economic incentive for the development of the type of 
projects contemplated by the statute. TECO further asserts that 
the waiver requested is more likely to ensure that electric 
customers do not pay excessive costs for power purchased under the 
standard offer contract. 

TECO states that the standard offer contract will not defer or 
avoid the construction of additional generating capacity. TECO 
asserts that its customers are prejudiced to the extent they are 
required to make capacity payments where no generation is avoided 

r’. 
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or deferred. TECO states that to require capacity payments in such 
instance for a ten-year period would result in a substantial risk 
and hardship. 

C. Analysis 

- 1. PurDose Of The Underlvins Statute 

The purpose of Section 366.051, Florida Statutes, to encourage 
cogeneration and small power production, is express: “Electricity 
produced by cogeneration and small power production is of benefit 
to the public when included as part of the total energy supply of 
the entire electric grid of the state . . . .  ’‘ Rule 25-17.0832(4), 
Florida Administrative Code, implements Section 366.051, Florida 
Statutes. Pursuant to the Rule, standard offer contracts must 
contain certain minimum specifications relating to, among other 
things, the term of the contract and the calculation of firm 
capacity payments. With respect to the term of standard offer 

/4 contracts, Rule 25-17.0832(4) (e)7, requires: 

Firm capacity and energy shall be delivered, at a 
minimum, for a period of ten years, commencing with the 
anticipated in-service date of the avoided unit specified 
in the contract. At a maximum, firm capacity and energy 
shall be delivered for a period of time equal to the 
anticipated plant life of the avoided unit, commencing 
with the anticipated in service date of the avoided unit; 

The above rule provides a range for the contract period tied to the 
plant life of the utilities’ avoided unit by establishing a minimum 
and a maximum term for standard offer contracts. 

The ten year minimum contract term, while not a requirement of 
PURPA, was mandated in order to assist utilities and cogenerators 
with planning. In Order No. 12634, issued October 27, 1983, Docket 
No. 820406-EU, Amendment of Rules 25-17.80 throush 25-17.89 
relation to coaeneration, we addressed the issue of a ten year 
minimum contract term. We stated: 

The requirement that a QF be willing to sign a contract 
for the delivery of firm capacity for at least ten years 
after the originally anticipated in service date of the 
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avoided unit is important from a planning perspective. 
While a ten-year contract will not offset the expected 
thirty year life of a base load generating unit, we 
believe it is of sufficient length to confer substantial 
capacity related benefits on the ratepayers. 

Order No. 12634, pg. 19. 

The purpose of the statute underlying Rule 25-17.0832(4) (e) is 
to encourage cogeneration. Pursuant to Rule 25-17.0837(2), Florida 
Administrative Code, investor-owned utilities with planned 
generation units not subject to Rule 25-22.082, Florida 
Administrative Code, are encouraged to negotiate contracts for the 
purchase of firm capacity and energy with utility and nonutility 
generators. Rule 25-17.0832(4) requires investor-owned utilities 
to offer standard offer contracts as an alternative for certain 
types of QFs. Insofar as cogenerators' ability to enter into 
negotiated contracts is unaffected by the variance request, and a 
cogenerator retains the ability to enter into a five year standard 
offer contract with TECO, we find that TECO's request for a waiver 
satisfies the underlying purpose of the statute. 

/4- 

- 2. Substantial HardshiD 

An allegation of substantial hardship requires an affirmative 
demonstration by the petitioner of economic, technological, or 
legal hardship. Purchases made by TECO pursuant to the proposed 
Standard Offer Contract will not result in the deferral or 
avoidance of its proposed avoided unit, the 2003 CT. This is due 
to the subscription limit being 5 MW of a 180 MW unit. Therefore, 
we find that TECO has demonstrated in this case that application of 
the rule would create an economic hardship to its ratepayers who 
may bear the risk of generation which is not avoided or deferred. 

- 3. Other Requests for Waiver/Variance of Rule 

We note that we have granted other requests for variance or 
waiver of the ten year minimum contract requirements of Rule 25- 
17.0832(4) (e), Florida Administrative Code, to a five year term: 
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1. 

2. 

3. 

4. 

By Order No. PSC-99-1713-TRF-EG, issued on September 2, 
1999, in Docket No. 990249-EG, we granted Florida Power 
& Light Company (FPL) a variance from this rule. 

By Order No. PSC-00-0265-PAA-EG, issued February 8, 2000, 
in Docket No. 991526-EQ2, we granted Florida Power 
Corporation (FPC) a waiver of this rule. This order also 
directed that a rulemaking proceeding be initiated to 
amend Rule 25-17.0832 (4) (e) (7), Florida Administrative 
Code, to amend the contract term provision of the rule. 

By Order No. PSC-00-0504-PAA-EQ, issued on March 7, 2000, 
in Docket No. 991973-EQ, we granted FPC a waiver of this 
rule. 

On July 17, 2000, FPL petitioned for a variance from the 
ten year minimum contract period in Docket No. 000684-EQ. 
That request was approved at our September 5, 2000, 
Agenda Conference. 

The requests granted to date were granted on substantially the same 
grounds asserted by TECO in this docket. 

In sum, we grant TECO's petition for waiver from the minimum 
standard offer contract term because it satisfies the statutory 
requirements for a rule variance. TECO has demonstrated that the 
purpose of the underlying statute will be met if the variance is 
granted. This is so because cogeneration will continue to be 
encouraged through negotiated as well as standard offer contracts. 
In addition, TECO's petition for waiver demonstrates that 
substantial hardship to its ratepayers would result from 
application of the rule. 

11. - 
For the reason's stated below, we find that TECO's new 

Standard Offer Contract complies with Rule 25-17.0832, Florida 
Administrative Code, and should therefore be approved. 

Pursuant to federal law, the availability of standard rates is 
/4 required for fossil-fueled QFs less than 100 kilowatts (0.1 MW) in 

size. 16 U.S.C. 2601 et seq., 16 U.S.C. 792 et seq., 18 CFR 
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292.304. Florida law requires us to "adopt appropriate goals for 
increasing the efficiency of energy consumption and increasing the 
development of cogeneration." Section 366.82(2), Florida Statutes. 
We are further directed to "establish a funding program to 
encourage the development by local governments of solid waste 
facilities that use solid waste as a primary source of fuel for the 
production of electricity." Section 377.709, Florida Statutes. 

These federal and state requirements were impl-emented through 
our adoption of the Standard Offer Contract in Rule 25- 
17.0832 (4) (a) , Florida Administrative Code. Pursuant to this rule, 
each investor-owned electric utility must file with this agency a 
tariff and a Standard Offer Contract for the purchase of firm 
capacity and energy from small QFs. These provisions implement the 
requirements of PURPA and promote renewables and solid waste-fired 
facilities by providing a straightforward contract. Larger QFs and 
other non-utility generators may participate in a utility's Request 
for Proposal process pursuant to Rule 25-22.082, Florida 
Administrative Code. e 

To comply with Rule 25-17.0832(4) (a), Florida Administrative 
Code, TECO proposed a new Standard Offer Contract based on a CT 
unit with an in-service date of May 1, 2003, as its avoided unit. 
Specifically, the Contract is based on a 5 MW portion of a 180 MW 
CT. TECO has also proposed an associated tariff, Schedule COG-2, 
Firm Capacity and Energy. This tariff would expire on the earlier 
of the date the subscription limit (5 MW) is fully subscribed, or 
upon the expiration of the two week open solicitation period which 
would begin ten days after the date that a Consummating Order is 
issued in this docket. 

We believe that TECO's evaluation criteria will be readily 
understandable to any developer who signs TECO's Standard Offer 
Contract. The avoided unit cost parameters appear to be reasonable 
for a CT unit, and the resulting capacity payments are appropriate. 
The performance provisions include dispatch and control and on-peak 
performance incentives. 

Given that the subscription limit of TECO's avoided unit is 
only a portion of its total capacity, purchases made by TECO 
pursuant to the proposed Standard Offer Contract will not result in 
the deferral or avoidance of the 2003 CT unit. If TECO enters into 

/". 
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Standard Offer Contracts, but the need for the 2003 CT unit is not 
deferred or avoided, TECO will essentially be paying twice for the 
same firm capacity. Therefore, the requirements of federal law and 
the implementation of state regulations discussed above may result 
in a subsidy to the QFs. We note, however, that the potential 
subsidy could be mitigated, as TECO may have opportunities to sell 
any surplus capacity on the wholesale market. 

Ideally, QFs should compete on equal footing with all other 
producers of electricity. However, until and unless there is a 
change in federal and state law, QFs are given some preferential 
treatment. We have minimized this unequal footing by requiring 
Standard Offer Contracts & for small QFs, renewables, or 
municipal solid waste facilities. These types of facilities may 
not be in a position to negotiate a purchased power agreement due 
to their size and the time and resources required for negotiations. 
Thus, our rules balance market imperfections with the existing 
policy of promoting QFs. n 

In summary, we do not expect that TECO's proposed Standard 
Offer Contract will result in the avoidance of its proposed avoided 
unit, a 2003 CT. Nonetheless, TECO's proposed contract and tariff 
comply with our cogeneration rules. For this reason, we approve 
TECO's petition to establish its new Standard Offer Contract and 
associated tariffs. 

Because it would not be reasonable to have this tariff go into 
effect if the waiver portion (part I) of this Order is protested, 
the tariff shall not be effective if a protest is filed. TECO's 
proposed standard offer contract shall become effective upon the 
issuance of the Consummating Order for the waiver if there is no 
timely protest filed to either the waiver or the standard offer 
contract portion (part 11) of the Order. The open solicitation 
period for the Standard Offer Contract shall begin ten days after 
the effective date. The docket shall be closed upon the issuance 
of a Consummating Order. 

Based on the foregoing, it is 

ORDERED by the Florida Public Service Commission that Tampa 
Electric Company's Petition for Waiver of the minimum contract term /4 
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requirements in Rule 25-17.0832 (4) (e), Florida Administrative Code, 
is granted. It is further 

ORDERED that Tampa Electric Company's Petition for Approval of 
a New Standard Offer Contract for Qualifying Cogeneration and Small 
Power Production Facilities and associated tariffs is granted. It 
is further 

ORDERED that the tariff associated with the new Standard Offer 
Contract shall become effective upon the issuance of a Consummating 
Order. The open solicitation period for the Standard Offer 
Contract shall begin ten days after issuance of a Consummating 
Order. It is further 

ORDERED that if no timely protest is filed to either the 
waiver portion (part I) or the standard offer contract portion 
(part 11) of this Order, this docket shall be closed upon the 
issuance of a Consummating Order. /-. 

ORDERED that the provisions of this Order, issued as proposed 
agency action, shall become final and effective upon the issuance 
of a Consummating Order unless an appropriate petition, in the form 
provided by Rule 28-106.201, Florida Administrative Code, is 
received by the Director, Division of Records and Reporting, 2540 
Shumard Oak Boulevard, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0850, by the 
close of business on the date set forth in the "Notice of Further 
Proceedings" attached hereto. It is further 

ORDERED that in the event this Order becomes final, this 
Docket shall be closed. 

By ORDER of the Florida Public Service Commission this 27th 
day of SeDtember, -. 

/a 
BLANCA S. BAY6, Director 
Division of Records and Reporting 
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( S E A L )  

WCK 

This is a facsimile copy. A signed 
copy of the order may be obtained by 
calling 1-850-413-6770. 

NOTICE OF FURTHER PROCEEDINGS OR JUDICIAL REVIEW 

The Florida Public Service Commission is required by Section 
120.569(1), Florida Statutes, to notify parties of any 
administrative hearing that is available under Section 120.57, 
Florida Statutes, as well as the procedures and time limits that 
apply. This notice should not be construed to mean all requests 
for an administrative hearing will be granted or result in the 
relief sought. 

Mediation may be available on a case-by-case basis. If 
mediation is conducted, it does not affect a substantially 
interested person's right to a hearing. 

n 

The actions proposed herein are preliminary in nature. Any 
person whose substantial interests are affected by either of the 
actions proposed by this order may file a petition for a formal 
proceeding, in the form provided by Rule 28-106.201, Florida 
Administrative Code. This petition must be received by the 
Director, Division of Records and Reporting, 2540 Shumard Oak 
Boulevard, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0850, by the close of 
business on October 18. 2000. 

In the absence of such a petition, this order shall become 
final and effective upon the issuance of a Consummating Order. 

Any objection or protest filed in this docket before the 
issuance date of this order is considered abandoned unless it 
satisfies the foregoing conditions and is renewed within the 
specified protest period. 
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NOTICE OF PROPOSED AGENCY ACTION 
ORDER APPROVING PETITION FOR STANDARD OFFER CONTRACT 

AND GRANTING VARIANCE 

BY THE COMMISSION: 

/4. NOTICE is hereby given by the Florida Public Service 
Commission that the action discussed herein is preliminary in 
nature and will become final unless a person whose substantial 
interests are affected files a petition for a formal proceeding 
pursuant to Rule 25-22.029, Florida Administrative Code. 

I. CASE BACKGROUND 

On July 17, 2000, Florida Power & Light Company (FPL) filed a 
Petition for Approval of a Standard Offer Contract (Petition) for 
qualifying cogeneration and small power production facilities 
(QFs). The proposed contract is based on a 5 megawatt (MW) 
subscription limit of a 165 MW combustion turbine generating unit 
with an in-service date of January 1, 2002. 

FPL also filed a Petition for a Variance from Rule 25- 
17.0832 (4) (e), Florida Administrative Code (Petition for Variance). 
FPL seeks a variance from the 10 year minimum contract term 
required by the rule, and instead proposes the contract be limited 
to a term of five years. Pursuant to Section 120.542(6), Florida 
Statutes, notice of FPL's petition was submitted to the Secretary 
of State for publication in the August 11, 2000, Florida 
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Administrative Weekly. No comments on the Petition for Variance 
were filed. The 14-day comment period provided for variances by 
Rule 28-104.003, Florida Administrative Code, expired on August 25, 
2000. 

In this Order we rule on both the petition for approval of the 
proposed standard offer contract and the requested rule variance. 
We are vested with jurisdiction over this matter through several 
provisions of Chapter 366, Florida Statutes, including Sections 
366.04, 366.05, 366.051, 366.06, and 366.80-.82, Florida Statutes. 
We are vested with jurisdiction to address FPL's Petition for 
Variance through Section 120.542, Florida Statutes. 

11. VARIANCE 

The variance shall be granted because FPL has demonstrated 
that the purpose of the statute underlying the rule from which it 
seeks a variance will be met, and that FPL and its ratepayers will 
suffer substantial hardship if the variance is not granted. 

/- 

A. Standard for Avvroval 

Section 120.542, Florida Statutes (1999). mandates threshold 
proofs and notice provisions for variances and waivers from agency 
rules. Subsection (2) of the statute states: 

Variances and waivers shall be granted when the person 
subject to the rule demonstrates that the purpose of the 
underlying statute will be or has been achieved by other 
means by the person and when application of the rule 
would create a substantial hardship or would violate 
principles of fairness. For purposes of this section, 
"substantial hardship" means a demonstrated economic, 
technological, legal, or other type of hardship to the 
person requesting the variance or waiver. For purposes 
of this section, "principles of fairness" are violated 
when literal application of a rule affects a particular 
person in a manner significantly different from the way 
it affects other similarly situated persons who are 
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subject to the rule. 

Thus, under the statute, a person requesting a variance or waiver 
must affirmatively demonstrate that the purpose of the underlying 
statute has been met. In addition, the petitioner must demonstrate 
that it will either suffer "substantial hardship" or that 
"principles of fairness" will be violated. If the allegations 
relate to fairness, an additional proof of uniqueness to the 
petitioner is required by the statute. 

B. FPL's Petition For Variance 

The variance requested by FPL is for a standard offer contract 
term limited to five years instead of the ten year minimum contract 
term required by Rule 25-17.0832(4) (e), Florida Administrative 
Code. 

1. Purpose of the Underlying Statute 

In its Petition For Variance, FPL identifies the underlying 
statute implemented by the rule as Section 366.051, Florida 
Statues. According to FPL, the purposes of the statute, and the 
purposes of the Public Utility Regulatory Policies Act of 1978 
(PuRPA), are to promote the growth of alternative generating 
facilities, with the express limitation that electric customers 
should not pay more for power than they otherwise would. 

FPL states that its Petition For Variance will meet the 
purpose of the statute. FPL asserts that the standard offer 
contract will provide an economic incentive for the development of 
the type of projects contemplated by the statute. FPL further 
asserts that the variance requested is more likely to ensure that 
electric customers do not pay excessive costs for power purchased 
under the standard offer contract. 

2. Substantial Hardship 

FPL states that the standard offer contract will not defer or 
avoid the construction of additional generating capacity. FPL 
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asserts that its customers are prejudiced to the extent they are 
required to make capacity payments where no generation is avoided 
or deferred. FPL states that to require capacity payments in such 
instance for a ten-year period, would result in a substantial risk 
and hardship. 

c .  

1. Purpose Of The Underlying Statute 

The purpose of Section 366.051, Florida Statutes, to encourage 
cogeneration and small power production, is express: "Electricity 
produced by cogeneration and small power production is of benefit 
to the public when included as part of the total energy supply of 
the entire electric grid of the state.. . ." Rule 25-17.0832 (4), 
Florida Administrative Code, implements Section 366.051, Florida 
Statutes. Pursuant to the Rule, standard offer contracts must 
contain certain minimum specifications relating to, among other 
things, the term of the contract and the calculation of firm 
capacity payments. With respect to the term of standard offer 
contracts, Rule 25-17.0832 (4) (e)7, requires: 

/-. 

Firm capacity and energy shall be delivered, at a 
minimum, for a period of ten years, commencing with the 
anticipated in-service date of the avoided unit specified 
in the contract. At a maximum, firm capacity and energy 
shall be delivered for a period of time equal to the 
anticipated plant life of the avoided unit, commencing 
with the anticipated in service date of the avoided unit; 

The above rule provides a range for the contract period tied to the 
plant life of the utilities' avoided unit by establishing a minimum 
and a maximum term for standard offer contracts. 

The ten year minimum contract term, while not a requirement of 
PURPA, was mandated in order to assist utilities and cogenerators 
with planning. In Order No. 12634, issued October 27, 1983, Docket 
No. 820406-EU, Amendment of Rules 25-17.80 throush 25-17.89 
relation to coseneration, we addressed the issue of a ten year 
minimum contract term. We stated: 

P. 
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The requirement that a QF be willing to sign a contract 
for the delivery of firm capacity for at least ten years 
after the originally anticipated in service date of the 
avoided unit is important from a planning perspective. 
While a ten-year contract will not offset the expected 
thirty year life of a base load generating unit, we 
believe it is of sufficient length to confer substantial 
capacity related benefits on the ratepayers. 

Order No. 12634, pg. 19. 

The purpose of the statute underlying Rule 25-17.0832(4) (e) is 
to encourage cogeneration. Pursuant to Rule 25-17.0837(2), Florida 
Administrative Code, investor-owned utilities with planned 
generation units not subject to Rule 25-22.082, Florida 
Administrative Code, are encouraged to negotiate contracts for the 
purchase of firm capacity and energy with utility and nonutility 
generators. Rule 25-17.0832(4) requires investor-ownedutilities to 
offer standard offer contracts as an alternative for certain types 
of Qfs. Insofar as cogenerators' ability to enter into negotiated 
contracts is unaffected by the variance request, and a cogenerator 
retains the ability to enter into a five year standard offer 
contract with FPL, FPL's request for a variance satisfies the 
underlying purpose of the statute. 

2. Substantial Hardship 

An allegation of substantial hardship requires an affirmative 
demonstration by the petitioner of economic, technological, or 
legal hardship. Purchases made by FPL pursuant to the proposed 
Standard Offer Contract will not result in the deferral or 
avoidance of its proposed avoided unit, the 2002 CT. This is due 
to the subscription limit being 5 MW of a 165 MW unit. Therefore, 
we find that FPL has demonstrated in this case that application of 
the rule would create an economic hardship to its ratepayers who 
may bear the risk of generation which is not avoided or deferred. 

3 .  Other Requests for Waiver/Variance of Rule 

We note that we have granted other requests for variance or 
waiver of the ten year minimum contract requirements of Rule 25- 

/-% 
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17.0832(4) (e), Florida Administrative Code, to a five year term: 

1. By Order No. PSC-99-1713-TRF-EG, issued on September 2, 1999, 
in Docket No. 990249-EG, we granted FPL a variance from this 
rule. 

2 .  By Order No. PSC-00-0265-PAA-EG, issued February 8, 2000, in 
Docket No. 991526-EQ, we granted Florida Power Corporation a 
waiver of this rule. This order also directed that a 
rulemaking proceeding be initiated to amend Rule 25- 
17.0832 (4) (e) (7), Florida Administrative Code, to amend the 
contract term provision of the rule. 

3. By Order No. PSC-00-0504-PAA-EQ, issued on March 7, 2000, in 
Docket No. 991973-EQ, we granted Florida Power Corporation a 
waiver of this rule. 

4. On June 2, 2000, Tampa Electric Company petitioned for a 
waiver of the ten year minimum contract period in Docket No. 
000684-EQ. That request was approved at our September 5 ,  
2000, Agenda Conference. 

The requests granted to date were granted on substantially the same 
grounds asserted by FPL in this docket. 

In sum, we grant FPL's Petition for Variance from the minimum 
standard offer contract term because it satisfies the statutory 
requirements for a rule variance. FPL has demonstrated that the 
purpose of the underlying statute will be met if the variance is 
granted. This is so because cogeneration will continue to be 
encouraged through negotiated as well as standard offer contracts. 
In addition, FPL's Petition for Variance demonstrates that 
substantial hardship to its ratepayers would result from 
application of the rule. 

111. PETITION FOR APPROVAL OF NEW STANDARD OFFER CONTRACT 

For the reason's stated below, FPL's new Standard Offer 
Contract complies with Rule 25-17.0832, Florida Administrative 
Code, and is therefore approved. 
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Pursuant to federal law, the availability of standard rates is 
required for fossil-fueled QFs less than 100 kilowatts (0.1 MW) in 
size. 16 U.S.C. 2601 et seq., 16 U.S.C. 792 et seq., 18 CFR 
292.304. Florida law requires us to “adopt appropriate goals for 
increasing the efficiency of energy consumption and increasing the 
development of cogeneration.’’ Section 366.82(2), Florida Statutes. 
The Commission is further directed to ‘establish a funding program 
to encourage the development by local governments of solid waste 
facilities that use solid waste as a primary source of fuel for the 
production of electricity.” Section 377.709, Florida Statutes. 

These federal and state requirements were implemented through 
our adoption of the Standard Offer Contract in Rule 25- 
17.0832 (4) (a), Florida Administrative Code. Pursuant to this rule, 
each investor-owned electric utility must file with this agency a 
tariff and a Standard Offer Contract for the purchase of firm 
capacity and energy from small QFs. These provisions implement the 
requirements of PURPA and promote renewables and solid waste-fired 
facilities by providing a straightforward contract. Larger QFs and 
other non-utility generators may participate in a utility’s Request 
For Proposal process pursuant to Rule 25-22.082, Florida 
Administrative Code. 

To comply with Rule 25-17.0832(4) (a), Florida Administrative 
Code, FPL proposed a new Standard Offer Contract based on a CT unit 
with an in-service date of January 1, 2002, as its avoided unit. 
Specifically, the Contract is based on a 5 MW portion of a 165 MW 
CT. FPL has also proposed an associated tariff, COG-2 (firm 
capacity and energy). This tariff would expire on the earlier of 
the date the subscription limit ( 5  MW) is fully subscribed, or upon 
the expiration of the two week open solicitation period which would 
begin ten days after the date that a Consummating Order is issued 
in this docket. 

We believe that FPL‘s evaluation criteria will be readily 
understandable to any developer who signs FPL‘s Standard Offer 
Contract. The avoided unit cost parameters appear to be reasonable 
for a CT unit, and the resulting capacity payments are appropriate. 
The performance provisions include dispatch and control and on-peak 
performance incentives. 
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Given that the subscription limit of FPL's avoided unit is 
only a portion of its total capacity, purchases made by FPL 
pursuant to the proposed Standard Offer Contract will not result in 
the deferral or avoidance of the 2002 CT unit. If FPL enters into 
Standard Offer Contracts, but the need for the 2002 CT unit is not 
deferred or avoided, FPL will essentially be paying twice for the 
same firm capacity. Therefore, the requirements of federal law and 
the implementation of state regulations discussed above may result 
in a subsidy to the QFs. We note, however, that the potential 
subsidy could be mitigated, as FPL may have opportunities to sell 
any surplus capacity on the wholesale market. 

Ideally, QFs should compete on equal footing with all other 
producers of electricity. However, until and unless there is a 
change in federal and state law, QFs are given some preferential 
treatment. We have minimized this unequal footing by requiring 
Standard Offer Contracts for small QFs, renewables, or 
municipal solid waste facilities. These types of facilities may 
not be in a position to negotiate a purchased power agreement due 
to their size and the time and resources required for negotiations. 
Thus, our rules balance market imperfections with the existing 
policy of promoting QFs. 

In summary, we do not expect that FPL's proposed Standard 
Offer Contract will result in the avoidance of its proposed avoided 
unit, a 2002 CT. Nonetheless, FPL's proposed contract and tariff 
comply with our cogeneration rules. For this reason, we approve 
FPL's petition to establish its new Standard Offer Contract and 
associated tariffs. 

Because it would not be reasonable to have this tariff go into 
effect if the variance portion of this Order is protested, the 
tariff shall not be effective if any protest is filed. FPL's 
proposed standard offer contract shall become effective upon the 
issuance of the Consummating Order for the waiver if there is no 
timely protest filed to either the waiver or the standard offer 
contract portion of the order. The open solicitation period shall 
begin ten days after the effective date. The docket shall be 
closed upon the issuance of a Consummating Order. 

Based on the foregoing, it is 

ORDERED by the Florida Public Service Commission that Florida 
Power and Light Company's Petition for a Variance from Rule 25- 
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17.0832(4) (e), Florida Administrative Code, is granted. It is 
further 

ORDERED that Florida Power and Light Company’s Petition for 
Approval of a Standard Offer Contract is approved. It is further 

ORDERED that the tariff for the Standard Offer Contract shall 
become effective upon the issuance of a Consummating Order. The 
open solicitation period for the tariff shall begin ten days after 
issuance of a Consummating Order. It is further 

ORDERED that if no timely protest is filed to either the 
variance or the standard offer contract portion of this Order, this 
docket shall be closed upon the issuance of a Consummating Order. 

ORDERED that the provisions of this Order, issued as proposed 
agency action, shall become final and effective upon the issuance 
of a Consummating Order unless an appropriate petition, in the form 
provided by Rule 28-106.201, Florida Administrative Code, is 
received by the Director, Division of Records and Reporting, 2540 
Shumard Oak Boulevard, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0850, by the 
close of business on the date set forth in the “Notice of Further 
Proceedings” attached hereto. It is further 

/-. 

ORDERED that in the event this Order becomes final, this 
Docket shall be closed. 

By ORDER of the Florida Public Service Commission this 26th 
day of m. 2000. 

Is/ Blanca S. Bav6 
BLANCA S. BAY6, Director 
Division of Records and Reporting 

This is a facsimile copy. A signed 
copy of the order may be obtained by 
calling 1-850-413-6770. 

( S E A L )  

MKS 
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NOTICE OF FURTHER PROCEEDINGS OR JUDICIAL REVIEW 

The Florida Public Service Commission is required by Section 
120.569(1), Florida Statutes, to notify parties of any 
administrative hearing that is available under Section 120.57, 
Florida Statutes, as well as the procedures and time limits that 
apply. This notice should not be construed to mean all requests 
for an administrative hearing will be granted or result in the 
relief sought. 

Mediation may be available on a case-by-case basis. If 
mediation is conducted, it does not affect a substantially 
interested person's right to a hearing. 

The actions proposed herein are preliminary in nature. Any 
person whose substantial interests are affected by either of the 
actions proposed by this order may file a petition for a formal 
proceeding, in the form provided by Rule 28-106.201, Florida 
Administrative Code. This petition must be received by the 
Director, Division of Records and Reporting, 2540 Shumard Oak 
Boulevard, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0850, by the close of 
business on October 17. 2000. 

In the absence of such a petition, this order shall become 
final and effective upon the issuance of a Consummating Order. 

Any objection or protest filed in this docket before the 
issuance date of this order is considered abandoned unless it 
satisfies the foregoing conditions and is renewed within the 
specified protest period. 
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NOTICE OF PROPOSED AGENCY ACTION 
ORDER APPROVING STANDARD OFFER CONTRACT AND ACCOMPANYING RATE 

SCHEDULE COG-2 

BY THE COMMISSION: 
P 

NOTICE is hereby given by the Florida Public Service 
Commission that the action discussed herein is preliminary in 
nature and will become final unless a person whose interests are 
substantially affected files a petition for a formal proceeding, 
pursuant to Rule 25-22.029, Florida Administrative Code. 

On October 8, 1999, Florida Power Corporation (FPC) filed a 
Petition for Approval of a Standard Offer Contract (Petition) for 
qualifying cogeneration and small power production facilities. The 
proposed contract is based on a 20 megawatt (MW) subscription limit 
of a 90 MW combustion turbine generating unit with an in-service 
date of January 1, 2001. 

Along with its October 8 ,  1999, Petition, FPC filed a Petition 
for Waiver of Rule 25-17.0832(4) (e)(7), Florida Administrative Code 
(Petition for Waiver). FPC sought a waiver of the 10 year minimum 
contract term required by the rule. FPC proposed that its contract 
be limited to a term of five years. The petition for rule waiver 
was noticed in the October 29, 1999, Florida Administrative Weekly. 
The comment period expired on November 12, 1999. 
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On November 15, 1999, the Florida Industrial Cogeneration 
Association (FICA) filed comments in opposition to FPC's petition. 
In its comments, FICA requests that the Commission enter an order: 
denying FPC's petition and waiver request; directing FPC to file a 
standard offer contract based on an appropriate avoided unit in 
full compliance with Commission rules; and, directing FPC to open 
a solicitation period on its standard offer contract ending October 
1, 2000. 

By letter dated November 24, 1999, FPC waived its right under 
Section 366.04, Florida Statutes, to a consent or suspension 
decision on its proposed tariff within 60 days of filing its 
petition. In the same letter, FPC also waived its right under 
Section 120.542, Florida Statutes, to a decision on its rule waiver 
request within 9 0  days of its petition. 

I. Petition for Waiver of Rule 25-17.0832(4) (e) (7). Florida 
Administrative Code 

rc. A. Standards for Approval 

Section 120.542, Florida Statutes ( 1 9 9 7 ) ,  mandates threshold 
proofs and notice provisions for variances and waivers from agency 
rules. Subsection (2) of the statute states: 

Variances and waivers shall be granted when the person 
subject to the rule demonstrates that the purpose of the 
underlying statute will be or has been achieved by other 
means by the person and when application of the rule 
would create a substantial hardship or would violate 
principles of fairness. For purposes of this section, 
"substantial hardship" means a demonstrated economic, 
technological, legal, or other type of hardship to the 
person requesting the variance or waiver. For purposes 
of this section, "principles of fairness" are violated 
when literal application of a rule affects a particular 
person in a manner significantly different from the way 
it affects other similarly situated persons who are 
subject to the rule. 

Thus, under the statute, a person requesting a variance or waiver 
must affirmatively demonstrate that the purpose of the underlying 
statute has been met. In addition, the petitioner must demonstrate 
that it will either suffer "substantial hardship" or that 
"principles of fairness" will be violated. If the allegations 

r'- 
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f l  

relate to fairness, an additional proof of uniqueness to the 
petitioner is required by the statute. 

EPC requests a waiver of the ten year contract term for 
standard offer contracts mandated by Rule 25-17.0832(4)(e)(7), 
Florida Administrative Code. FPC seeks to have the term limited to 
five years instead of the ten years required by Rule 25- 
17.0832(4) (e) ( 7 ) ,  Florida Administrative Code. 

B. FPC’s Petition For Waiver 

1. Purpose of the Underlying Statute 

In its Petition For Waiver, FPC identifies the underlying 
statute implemented by the rule as Section 366.051, Florida 
Statues. According to EPC, the purposes of the statute, and the 
purposes of the Public Utility Regulatory Policies Act of 1978 
(PURPA) are to encourage cogeneration while at the same time 
protecting ratepayers from paying costs in excess of avoided costs. 
FPC contends that these purposes will be achieved by utilizing a 
five-year contract term. 

/4 

FPC states that its Petition For Waiver will meet the 
underlying purpose of the statute. FPC submits that new 
technologies and other factors may lower FPC’s costs in the future. 
FPC contends that limiting the term of the standard offer contract 
to five years will give the company the flexibility to reassess its 
avoided costs and to take advantage of lower costs for the benefit 
of its ratepayers prior well in advance of the ten years required 
by the rule. FPC also states that PURPA and Section 366.051, 
Florida Statutes do not establish a minimum term €or standard offer 
contracts. 

2. Substantial Hardship 

FPC argues that obligating it to a ten year contract term in 
the face of declining costs would subject the it to substantial 
hardship by adversely affecting its cost structure. FPC also 
states that ratepayers would be subjected to substantial hardship 
because the ten year term would increase the price that they would 
otherwise have to pay for electricity, in the face of declining 
costs. 

P. C. FICA’s Comments 
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Florida Industrial Cogeneration Association members own 
and/or operate small qualifying facilities which generate and sell 
electricity in conjunction with their industrial operations. FICA 
advances three arguments against the five-year contract term 
requested by FPC. 

1. Value Of Deferral 

FICA's first argument was that the objective of the value of 
deferral pricing mechanism for capacity payments, a component of 
the standard offer rules, will not be met if standard offer 
contract terms are limited to five years. According to FICA, the 
proposed five year contract term will not meet this objective 
because value of deferral pricing assumes that a small qualifying 
facility will sell capacity to the utility over the projected 
useful life of the utility's avoided unit. The value of deferral 
methodology inverts the capacity revenue stream in comparison to 
what the utility would receive if it constructed the avoided unit 
and added it to rate base. Value of deferral payments begin low 
and increase over time. Traditional revenue requirements begin 
high and decrease over time. /4 

2. Purpose of Underlying Statute 

FICA's second argument was that the purpose of the underlying 
statute will not be met if the requested five year waiver were 
granted. The underlying statute is designed to encourage 
cogeneration and small power production. FICA argued that FPC's 
proposed five year fixed term guarantees less than full avoided 
cost payments to the cogenerator and w i l l  discourage, rather than 
encourage, cogeneration and small power production. "Granting the 
waiver sought by FPC would deny SQF's [small qualifying facilities] 
the opportunity to provide electric generating capacity to FPC. 
Such a result would be contrary to both Florida and Federal law 
which favors QFs as an alternative to the construction of 
generating capacity by electric utilities." (Comments, pg. 9) 

3 .  Inadequate Basis 

FICA's third argument was that FPC has not adequately pled a 
basis for a variance. Citing the uniqueness requirement of Section 
120.542, Florida Statutes, FICA stated that FPC's request is based 

)4 
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on 'vague allegations and unsubstantiated opinions". (Comments, pg. 
8 )  FICA maintained that, if FPC's request were granted, it would 
defeat the underlying statutory objective and render the standard 
offer rules meaningless. FICA stated that FPC's petition was more 
in the nature of rulemaking because it operates to undermine the 
purpose of the rule. In sum, FICA argued that FPC's Petition For 
Variance should be denied because the request defeats the purpose 
of the statute and does not satisfy the burden of proof required to 
obtain a waiver. 

D. Analysis 

1. Purpose Of The Underlying Statute 

Section 366.051, Florida Statutes, expressly encourages 
cogeneration and small power production. "Electricity produced by 
cogeneration and small power production is of benefit to the public 
when included as part of the total energy supply of the entire 
electric grid of the state . . . " Rule 25-17.0832 (41, Florida 

rc Administrative Code, implements Section 366.051, Florida Statutes. 
Pursuant to the Rule, standard offer contracts must contain certain 
minimum specifications relating to, among other things, the term of 
the contract and the calculation of firm capacity payments. With 
respect to the term of standard offer contracts, Subsection 25- 
17.0832(4) (e)7, requires: 

Firm capacity and energy shall be delivered, at a 
minimum, for a period of ten years, commencing with the 
anticipated in-service date of the avoided unit specified 
in the contract. At a maximum, firm capacity and energy 
shall be delivered for a period of time equal to the 
anticipated plant life of the avoided unit, commencing 
with the anticipated in service date of the avoided unit; 

Rule 25-17.0832(4)(e)7, Florida Administrative Code. 

The rule provides a range for the contract period tied to the plant 
life of the utility's avoided unit by establishing a minimum and a 
maximum term for standard offer contracts. 

The ten year minimum contract term, while not a requirement of 
PURPA, was mandated by the Commission in order to assist utilities 
and cogenerators with planning. In Order No. 12634, issued October 
27, 1983, Docket No. 820406-EU, Amendment of Rules 25-17.80 
throuah 25-17.89 relation to coaeneration, the Commission addressed 

f i  
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the issue of a ten year minimum contract term. The Cornmission 
stated: 

The requirement that a QF be willing to sign a contract 
for the delivery of firm capacity for at least ten years 
after the originally anticipated in service date of the 
avoided unit is important from a planning perspective. 
While a ten-year contract will not offset the expected 
thirty year life of. a base load generating unit, we 
believe it is of sufficient length to confer substantial 
capacity related benefits on the ratepayers. 

Order No. 12634, pg. 19. 

The purpose of the underlying statute is to encourage 
cogeneration. To promote cogeneration, investor-owned utilities' 
planned generation units not subject to Rule 25-22.082, Florida 
Administrative Code, are encouraged to negotiate contracts for the 
purchase of firm capacity and energy with utility and nonutility 

F-. generators. Rule 25-17.0837(1), Florida Administrative Code. The 
alternative provision is the standard offer contract. FPC' s 
request for a waiver appears to satisfy the underlying purpose of 
the statute because a cogenerators' ability to enter into 
negotiated contracts is unaffected by the waiver request, and a 
cogenerator retains the ability to enter into a five year standard 
offer contract with FPC. 

2. Substantial Hardship 

A n  allegation of substantial hardship requires an affirmative 
demonstration by the petitioner of economic, technological or legal 
hardship. 

In determining whether a rule waiver should be granted to a 
utility which bases its assertion of substantial hardship upon 
hardship to its ratepayers, we refer to Order No. PSC-98-1211-FOF- 
EI, issued September 14, 1998, in Docket No. 980740-EI. In that 
Order, which determined a rule waiver request by Florida Power & 
Light Company (FPL), we noted that the Legislature intended the 
provisions of Section 120.542, Florida Statutes: 

to remedy situations where "strict application of 
uniformly applicable rule requirements can lead to 
unreasonable, unfair, and unintended results . . . 
Section 120.542 (l), Florida Statutes. We believe that 

,, 
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this language should be read together with subsection (2) 
of the statute in order to determine whether FPL has 
demonstrated a substantial hardship in this case. 

In terms of the rule's impact on FPL alone, it is 
arguable whether the rule creates a substantial hardship. 
However, FPL's ratepayers may achieve substantial 
benefits if FPL's request for a rule waiver is granted. 
Conversely, if the rule waiver is not granted, FPL's 
ratepayers must forego those benefits. We believe that 
this is the type of "unreasonable, unfair, and unintended 
result" that Section 120.542, Florida Statutes, was 
intended to remedy. Therefore, given the interests of 
FPL's ratepayers and our responsibility to those 
ratepayers, we find that FPL has demonstrated that 
application of Rule 25-17.015(1) Florida Administrative 
Code, creates a substantial hardship. 

We, therefore, believe that our precedent holds that a 
demonstration by an Investor Owned Electric Utility (IOU) that the 
application of a rule will cause a substantial hardship to its 
ratepayers is sufficient to grant the IOU the requested rule 
waiver. 

The hardship demonstrated by FPC is economic hardship to its 
ratepayers who may bear the risk of generation which is not avoided 
or deferred. We disagree with FICA's argument that the value of 
deferral payment methodology compels a minimum ten year contract 
term. First, value of deferral is but one of four payment 
methodologies provided for in Rule 25-17.0832(4) (g), Florida 
Administrative Code. Second, the value of deferral payments 
compensate the cogenerator for the service provided. For example, 
if a cogenerator signed a 12 year contract, it would be paid the 
value of deferring construction of an avoided unit for 12 years. 
The cogenerator would not be paid the entire cost of the unit 
because of the finite term of the contract. 

3 .  Inadequate Basis 

FICA's argument that FPC has not demonstrated uniqueness, 
incorrectly applies the law of waivers and variances. Section 
120.542, Florida Statutes states that when "principles of fairness" 
are alleged to be violated, the petitioner must demonstrate 
application of the rule affects it differently than similarly 
situated persons subject to the rule. FPC did not allege that 

/4 
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principles of fairness were violated, therefore, the standard does 
not apply. 

We believe that FPC's Petition For Waiver from the minimum 
standard offer contract term satisfies the mandatory, statutory 
requirements. We believe that FPC has demonstrated that the 
purpose of the underlying statute will be met if the variance is 
granted because the company will continue to enter into negotiated 
as well as standard offer contracts with cogenerators. We also 
believe that FPC's Petition For Waiver demonstrated substantial 
hardship to its ratepayers should we have declined to grant the 
waiver. 

11. Rule 25-17.0832(4) (e) ( 7 )  Florida Administrative Code 

We believe that the number of requests for variance or waiver 
of Rule 25-17.0832(4)(e)(7), Florida Administrative Code, that we 
have ruled upon in the last year indicates that the rule needs to 
be amended. In at least two dockets, Docket No. 991973-E1, and the 

n present docket, utilities have requested a variance of this rule. 
Both of these instances have occurred since we issued Order No. 
PSC-99-1713-TRF-EG on September 2, 1999, in Docket No. 990249-EG. 
In that Order we granted Florida Power & Light Company a variance 
of this rule. We believe that five year terms for standard offer 
cogeneration contracts are sufficient to fulfill the purposes of 
the underlying statutes: Section 366.051, Florida Statues; and, 
PURPA. We, therefore, direct staff to initiate rulemaking 
proceedings to amend the contract term provision of Rule 25- 
17.0832(4) (e)  (7), Florida Administrative Code. 

111. FPC's Standard Offer Contract 

Pursuant to federal law, the availability of standard rates is 
required for fossil-fueled qualifying facilities less than 100 
kilowatts (0.1 MW) in size. 16 U.S.C. 2601 et seq., 16 U.S.C. 792 
et seq., 18 CFR 292.304. Florida law requires us to "adopt 
appropriate goals for increasing the efficiency of energy 
consumption and increasing the development of cogeneration." 
Chapter 366.82(2), Florida Statutes. We are further directed to 
"establish a funding program to encourage the development by local 
governments of solid waste facilities that use solid waste as a 
primary source of fuel for the production of electricity." Chapter 
377.709, Florida Statutes. 

/4 
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We implemented these federal and state requirements through 
the adoption of the Standard Offer Contract in Rule 25- 
17.0832(4)(a), Florida Administrative Code. Pursuant to this rule, 
each investor-owned electric utility must file a tariff and a 
Standard Offer Contract with the Commission. These provisions 
implement the requirements of the Public Utilities Regulatory 
Policies Act and promote renewables and solid waste-fired 
facilities by providing a straightforward contract. Larger 
qualifying facilities and other non-utility generators may 
participate in a utility's Request For Proposal process pursuant to 
Rule 25-22.082, Florida Administrative Code. 

To comply with Rule 25-17.0832(4) (a), Florida Administrative 
Code, FPC proposed a new Standard Offer Contract based on a 20 MW 
portion of a 90 MW combustion turbine (CT) unit with an in-service 
date of January 1, 2001. FPC's proposed COG-2 (firm capacity and 
energy) tariff shall expire on the earlier of the date the 
subscription limit (20 MW) is fully subscribed, or July 1, 2000. 
We believe that the nearly six month open season period will 

/4 increase the probability that FPC will receive offers under its 
proposed Standard Offer Contract. 

FPC's evaluation criteria should be readily understandable to 
any developer who signs FPC's Standard Offer Contract. The avoided 
unit cost parameters appear to be reasonable for a CT unit, and the 
resulting capacity payments are appropriate. The performance 
provisions include dispatch and control, and on-peak performance 
incentives. 

Given that the subscription limit of FPC's avoided unit is 
only a portion of its total capacity, purchases made by FPC 
pursuant to the proposed Standard Offer Contract will not result in 
the deferral or avoidance of the 2001 CT unit. If FPC enters into 
a Standard Offer Contract, but the need for the 2001 CT unit is not 
deferred or avoided, FPC will essentially be paying twice for the 
same firm capacity. Therefore, the requirements of federal law and 
the implementation of state regulations discussed above may result 
in a subsidy to the qualifying facilities. We note, however, that 
the potential subsidy could be mitigated, as FPC may have 
opportunities to sell any surplus capacity to the wholesale market. 

Ideally, qualifying facilities should compete on equal footing 
with all other producers of electricity. However, until and unless 
there is a change in federal and state law, qualifying facilities 
are to be given some preferential treatment. We have minimized 

/4 
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this unequal footing by requiring Standard Offer Contracts only for 
small qualifying facilities, renewables, or municipal solid waste 
facilities. These types of facilities may not be in a position to 
negotiate a purchased power agreement because of either timing or 
their small size. Thus, our rules balance market imperfections 
with the existing policy of promoting qualifying facilities. 

We do not expect that FPC's proposed Standard Offer Contract 
will result in the avoidance of the 2001 CT unit. Nonetheless, 
FPC's proposed contract and tariffs comply with the Commission's 
cogeneration rules. We, therefore, approve FPC's petition to 
establish its new Standard Offer Contract and associated tariffs. 

Because it would not be reasonable to have this tariff go into 
effect if the waiver portion of this Order were protested, FPC's 
COG-2 tariff approved in this Order shall be processed as a 
proposed agency action. Therefore, FPC's proposed standard offer 
contract shall become effective upon the issuance of a consummating 
order. 

Based on the foregoing, it is therefore 

ORDERED by the Florida Public Service Commission that the 
Petition of Florida Power Corporation for Approval of Standard 
Offer Contract and Accompanying Rate Schedule COG-2 is hereby 
approved. It is further 

ORDERED that the Petition for Waiver of Rule 25- 
17.0832 ( 4 )  (e) ( 7 ) ,  Florida Administrative Code is hereby granted. 
It is further 

ORDERED that the provisions of this Order, issued as proposed 
agency action, shall become final and effective upon the issuance 
of a Consummating Order unless an appropriate petition, in the form 
provided by Rule 28-106.201, Florida Administrative Code, is 
received by the Director, Division of Records and Reporting, 2540 
Shumard Oak Boulevard, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0850, by the 
close of business on the date set forth in the "Notice of Further 
Proceedings" attached hereto. It is further 

ORDERED that in the event this Order becomes final, this 
Docket shall be closed. 

By ORDER of the Florida Public Service Commission this 8th 
day of February, m. 
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/ s /  Blanca S. Bav6 
BLANCA S. BAY6, Director 
Division of Records and Reporting 

This is a facsimile copy. A signed 
copy of the order may be obtained by 
calling 1-850-413-6770. 

( S E A L )  

GAJ 

n 
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NOTICE OF FURTHER PROCEEDINGS OR JUDICIAL REVIEW 

The Florida Public Service Comission is required by Section 
120.569(1), Florida Statutes, to notify parties of any 
administrative hearing that is available under Section 120.57, 
Florida Statutes, as well as the procedures and time limits that 
apply. This notice should not be construed to mean all requests 
for an administrative hearing will be granted or result in the 
relief sought. 

Mediation may be available on a case-by-case basis. If 
mediation is conducted, it does not affect a substantially 
interested person's right to a hearing. 

The action proposed herein is preliminary in nature, Any 
person whose substantial interests are affected by the action 
proposed by this order may file a petition for a formal proceeding, 
in the form provided by Rule 28-106.201, Florida Administrative 
Code. This petition must be received by the Director, Division of 

/4 Records and Reporting, 2540 Shumard Oak Boulevard, Tallahassee, 
Florida 32399-0850, by the close of business on Februarv 29, 2000. 

In the absence of such a petition, this order shall become 
final and effective upon the issuance of a Consummating Order. 

Any objection or protest filed in this docket before the 
issuance date of this order is considered abandoned unless it 
satisfies the foregoing conditions and is renewed within the 
specified protest period. 

P 
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In re: Petition by Florida Power 

a standard offer contract and 
revised COG-2 tariff. 

& Light Company for approval of 

BEFORE THE FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 

DOCKET NO. 990249-EG 

ISSUED: September 2, 1999 
ORDER NO. PSC-99-1713-TRF-EG 

The following Commissioners participated in the disposition of 
this matter: 

JOE GARCIA, Chairman 
J. TERRY DEASON 
SUSAN F. CLARK 
JULIA L. JOHNSON 

E. LEON JACOBS, JR. 

ORDER DENYING FLORIDA POWER & LIGHT COMPANY'S 
PETITION FOR APPROVAL OF STANDARD OFFER CONTRACT 

AND GRANTING REOUEST FOR VARIANCE 

BY THE COMMISSION: P-. 

On March 3 ,  1999, Florida Power & Light Company (FPL) filed a 
Petition for Approval of a Standard Offer Contract (Petition) for 
qualifying cogeneration and small power production facilities. The 
proposed contract is based on a 5 MW subscription limit of a 209 MW 
combustion turbine generating unit with an in-service date of 2001. 
In determining the appropriate payment amounts, FPL accounted for 
an offsetting equity adjustment to compensate for costs imposed on 
its customers due to a risk adjusting practice of the Standard and 
Poor's rating agency. The proposed standard offer contract also 
includes a "Regulatory Disallowance" section which permits FPL to 
adjust payments to a signatory to compensate for any unforeseen 
regulatory action. 

Along with its March 3 ,  1999, Petition, FPL filed a Petition 
for a Variance from Rule 25-17.0832(4) (e), Florida Administrative 
Code (Petition for Variance). FPL seeks a variance from the 10 
year minimum contract term required by the rule and instead 
proposes a fixed five-year contract term. 

The 60-day suspension date of May 3, 1999, has been waived by 
FPL pursuant to correspondence dated April 14, and 16, 1999. Order 

/4 No. PSC-99-1053-TRF-EG, issued May 24, 1999, suspended FPL's 
proposed standard offer contract and COG-2 tariff revision until 
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final review. By letter dated May 12, 1999, FPL agreed to waive 
its right to a decision on the Petition for Variance within 90 days 
after receipt pursuant to Section 120.542(8), Florida Statutes. 

On May 6, 1999, the Florida Industrial Cogeneration 
Association (FICA) filed comments requesting denial of both FPL’s 
Petition and Petition for Variance. In its comments, FICA asks the 
Commission to enter an order: (1) denying FPL’s petition and 
variance request; (2 )  instructing FPL to file a standard offer 
contract based on its next proposed generating plant; and (3), 
directing FPL to open a solicitation period on its standard offer 
contract ending July 1, 2000. On June 11, 1999, FPL filed a 
Response to Comments of the Florida Industrial Cogeneration 
Association. 

This order addresses both the petition for approval of the 
proposed standard offer contract and the requested variance. The 
merits and conformity of FPL’s proposed standard offer contract 
with our rules is discussed first. Next the order addresses FPL’s 

P use of an Equity adjustment when determining capacity payments 
under the proposed contract and FPL’s Petition for Variance. 

I. Proposed Standard Offer Contract 

FPL‘s Petition For Approval of a Standard Offer Contract 
based on a combustion turbine unit with an in-service date of 2001 
and revised COG-2 tariff is denied for two reasons. Contrary to 
our rule requirements, the proposed standard offer contract is not 
based on FPL’s next avoided unit. In addition, consistent with the 
decision set forth in Order NO. 24989, issued August 29, 1991, a 
“Regulatory Out Clause” is not appropriate in a standard offer 
contract. FPL should revise its standard offer contract to reflect 
the recommended changes and provide no less than a two week 
availability. FPL is directed to submit a revised standard offer 
contract and associated tariffs no later than 60 days from the date 
of the our vote. 

Pursuant to federal law, the availability of standard rates is 
required for fossil-fueled qualifying facilities (QFs) less than or 
equal to 100 kilowatts (0.1 MW) in size. 16 U.S.C. 2601 et seq. ,  
15 U.S.C. 791 et seq . ,  16 U.S.C. 792 et seq., 18 CFR 292.304. 
Florida law requires the Commission to “adopt appropriate goals for 
increasing the efficiency of energy consumption and increasing the 
development of cogeneration.” Section 366.82(2), Florida Statutes. 
The Commission is further directed to “establish a funding program 
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to encourage the development by local governments of solid waste 
facilities that use solid waste as a primary source of fuel for the 
production of electricity." Section 377.709, Florida Statutes. 

These federal and state regulations are implemented in part 
through the standard offer contract rules. Pursuant to Rule 25- 
17.0832(4)(a), Florida Administrative Code, each investor-owned 
electric utility must file a tariff and a standard offer contract 
with this Commission. These provisions effectuate the requirements 
of the Public Utilities Regulatory Policies Act (PURPA) and promote 
renewables and solid waste facilities by providing a 
straightforward contract. Larger QFs and other non-utility 
generators may participate in a utility's Request For Proposal 
process, referred to as the bidding rule. 

A. Avoided Unit 

To comply with our rules, FPL proposed a standard offer 
contract based on a hypothetical combustion turbine (CT) unit with 

m an in-service date of January I, 2001. This is the same unit FPL 
used to evaluate Demand-side management programs in the on-going 
Conservation Goals proceedings. FPL's April, 1998, and its April, 
1999, Ten Year Site Plan identifies the Ft. Myers Repowering 
project as its next planned generation addition.' This project 
entails replacing the existing steam boilers with six 150 MW GE-7FA 
combustion turbines and Heat Recovery steam generators (HRSG) at 
the Ft. Myers site by January, 2002 .  The contract-based 
hypothetical CT has no relationship to the repowering project nor 
any of the proposed additions identified in FPL's current Ten Year 
Site Plan. Our Rules require that standard offer contracts be 
based on a utility's "avoided unit" which is its next planned 
generating unit addition. More specifically, Rule 2 5 - 2 2 . 0 8 2 ( 2 ) ,  
and Rule 25-17.0832 (4) (e) 5, Florida Administrative Code, require 
that: 

Prior to filing a petition for determination of need for 
an electrical power plant pursuant to Section 403.519, 
Florida Statutes, each investor-owned electrical utility 
shall evaluate supply-side alternatives to its next 
planned aeneratina unit by issuing a request for 
proposals. (Emphasis added) 

'See Schedule 9 of FPL's 1998 and 1999 Ten Year Site Plan /4 

filings . 
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A reasonable open solicitation period during which time 
the utility will accept proposals for standard offer 
contracts. Prior to the issuance of timely notice of a 
Request for Proposals (RFP) pursuant to Rule 25- 
22.082 (3), the utility shall end the open solicitation 
period: 

Though these Rules pertain to those planned additions that are 
subject to the Florida Electric Power Plant Siting Act (PPSA), Rule 
25-17.0832(2), Florida Administrative Code, encourages utilities 
and QFs to: 

... negotiate contracts for the purchase of firm capacity 
and energy to avoid or defer the construction of a 
planned utilitv a eneratina units which are not subiect to 
the reauirements of Rule 25-22.082. (Emphasis added) 

In lieu of a separately negotiated contract, standard offer 
contracts are available to QFs as defined in Rule 25- 
17.0832 ( 4 )  (a) 1-3, Florida Administrative Code. - 

We believe these rules collectively require investor-owned 
utilities to pursue construction deferring alternatives for their 
next planned resource additions, whether they are PPSA affected or 
unaffected. Basing a standard offer contract on something other 
than the next generating unit addition would render the intended 
construction deferring purpose of such an option meaningless. 
Moreover, it is likely that subsequent planned additions may indeed 
be delayed or modified from an original proposal, depending on load 
growth, the effect of demand-side management measures, and 
technological changes. In Order No. PSC-94-1008-FOF-EQ, issued 
August 22, 1994, we held that it was important that Tampa Electric 
Company (TECO) not purchase standard offer capacity too far in 
advance of the avoided unit's in-service date. 

Our position with respect to the correctness of basing a 
standard offer contract on a utility's next planned unit is 
consistent with precedent recently affirmed in Docket Nos. 990172- 
E1 and 981893-EQ2. In resolving each of these matters, we found it 

2DOCKET NO. 990172-E1 - Petition by Gulf Power Company for 
waiver of Rule 25-17.0832(4), F.A.C., which sets forth requirements 

/-. for filing of a standard offer contract, Order No. PSC-99-1091-PAA- 
EI, issued May 28, 1999. 
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appropriate to base both Gulf Power Company’s (Gulf) and TECO’s 
proposed standard offer contracts on their next planned generating 
unit. Gulf’s next planned unit addition is required to go through 
the PPSA process whereas TECO‘s next planned unit addition is not. 

B. Regulatory Out Clause 

Within its proposed standard offer contract, FPL has included 
a section entitled “Regulatory Disallowance”, Section 18, Second 
Revised Sheet No. 9.857. This type of provision, more commonly 
referred to as a “Regulatory Out Clause“, permits FPL to adjust a 
QF’s scheduled payments based on some unforeseen regulatory action. 
Staff recommends that FPL be directed to remove this section from 
its proposed standard offer contract. In Order No. 24989, we 
instructed FPL and the other three large investor-owned electric 
utilities to remove the “Regulatory Out Clause“ from standard offer 
contracts. In that decision, we concluded that utilities would not 
be allowed to include a “Regulatory Out Clause” in their standard 
offer contracts citing them as “unnecessary surplusage” given the 
our commitment to allow recovery of the mandated payments. FPL 
appealed Order No. 24989 to the Florida Supreme Court alleging that 
“the Commission’s decision to eliminate the regulatory out clause 
was based on a misrepresentation of the doctrine of ‘administrative 
finality’ and the faulty legal conclusion that the finality of the 
Commission‘s decision rendered regulatory out clauses unnecessary.“ 
Florida Power & Liaht Co. v. Beard, 626 So.2d 660, 662 (Fla. 1993). 
The Supreme Court held that “the Commission’s decision to remove 
regulatory out clauses from standard offer contracts with small QFs 
is supported by substantial competent evidence and consistent with 
the doctrine of administrative finality.“ Id. at 663. FPL did not 
present any arguments which persuade us that a different result is 
appropriate in this case. Therefore, we find that FPL shall submit 
revised tariff sheets that reflect removal of Section 18, 
”Regulatory Disallowance“. 

- 

Clearly, FPL should have been aware of the decision to remove 
Regulatory Out Clauses from standard offer contracts. This places 
us in the position of having to deny FPL‘s petition and then wait 
for FPL to refile its standard offer contract further delaying 

DOCKET NO. 981893-EQ - Petition to Establish New Standard 
Offer Contract for Qualifying Cogeneration and Small Power 
Production Facilities by Tampa Electric Company, Order No. PSC-99- 
0748-FOF-EQ, issued April 19, 1999. 

#-. 
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achievement of any capacity deferring benefits. As discussed in 
the following section, this timing problem has been exacerbated, in 
la'rge part, due to FPL waiting so long to file its Standard Offer 
Contract. 

C. Timing 

FPL was questioned regarding its required filing immediately 
after it identified the Ft. Myers repowering as its next planned 
generation addition. On July 15, 1998, a letter was sent to FPL 
questioning when it would be filing a petition seeking approval of 
a standard offer contract or, in the alternative, a waiver of Rule 
25-17.0832(4), Florida Administrative Code. FPL was asked to 
respond by July 31, 1998. FPL was again contacted by letter on 
October 1, 1998, requesting that it provide an estimated date of 
filing and the avoided unit(s) the contract would be based on. 
This letter asked FPL to respond no later than October 15, 1998. 
FPL ultimately responded on October 15, 1998, and again on December 
22, 1998, indicating that it would be filing a standard offer 
contract by January 22, 1999, based on a 5 MW portion of a 209 MW 
CT with an in-service date of January 1, 2002. The instant 
Petition was not filed until March 3, 1999. Contrary to the 
intended benefit of standard offer contracts, we believe that FPL 
has essentially ensured that any signed standard offer contract 
will have an inadequate opportunity to delay or avoid any portion 
of FPL's next capacity addition. 

D. Conclusion 

/4. 

FPL's proposed standard offer contract does not comply with 
either Rule 25-17.0832, Florida Administrative Code, or Order No. 
24989. The proposed contract is based on a purely hypothetical 
unit that is not part of FPL's current or previous generation 
expansion plan. The purpose of a standard offer contract is to 
offer small QFs, renewable, and municipal solid waste facilities a 
straightforward contract after all other cost-effective measures 
have been taken. The dual benefit of these contracts is that, when 
filed in a timely manner, they encourage energy efficiency while 
avoiding or deferring the construction of generating plants at a 
cost no greater than that which would otherwise be incurred by an 
electric utility. To allow utilities to select avoided units other 
than their next planned addition as the basis for a standard offer 
contract renders the intent of our rules regarding these contracts 

r. meaningless. It is for these reasons, as more fully discussed 
within the body of this order, that FPL's Petition is denied. FPL 



ORDER NO. PSC-99-1713-TRF-EG 
DOCKET NO. 990249-EG 
PAGE 7 

?. 

shall file a revised standard offer contract consistent with this 
order. 

Upon filing revised tariff sheets, the revised standard offer 
contract should remain available for a period of no less than two 
weeks from the date of our approval. This approach is consistent 
with the approach recently taken by Tampa Electric Company in 
Docket No. 981893-EQ. In that case, TECO's planning process 
indicated that its next planned generating unit would need to be 
built sooner than expected. While TECO was not required to issue 
an RFP for the unit, there was no time to issue a standard offer 
contract that could effectively defer the necessity to construct 
the unit. In order to comply with the rule, however, TECO 
petitioned for approval of a standard offer contract based on that 
unit. The contract called for a brief open solicitation period of 
two weeks. By Order No. PSC-99-0748-FOF-EQ, issued April 19, 1999, 
we approved TECO's petition. 

11. Equity Adjustment 

We find it is appropriate to include an equity adjustment when 
determining FPL's proposed standard offer contract payments. 
However, FPL should recalculate the capacity payments to reflect an 
equity adjustment based on a 10% risk factor. 

- 
A utility can add capacity by buying power with a long-term 

contract or  by building generating plants. Both alternatives have 
advantages and disadvantages. Regarding financial risk, building 
capacity can involve adding debt to finance the construction, cost 
overruns, and regulatory lag. Buying power increases the utility's 
fixed charges, which, in turn, can reduce financial flexibility. 
Standard L Poor's (S&P) notes that, "regardless of whether a 
utility buys or builds, adding capacity means incurring risk." 

Particularly since the passage of the National Energy Policy 
Act of 1992, bond rating agencies have viewed the fixed charges 
from long-term purchased power contracts in part as off-balance 
sheet debt equivalents. SLP's method for recognizing off-balance 
sheet obligations is to discount a utility's future capacity 
payments under a long-term purchased power contract at a 10% 
discount rate. Part of the present value of the capacity payments 
is added to the utility's balance sheet as debt for rating 
purposes. Financial ratios - including the equity ratio and 
interest coverage ratio - are adjusted for this off-balance sheet 
obligation. The risk factor, which is how much of the present 
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value of capacity payments is treated as debt, depends on S&P's 
qualitative analysis of market, operating, and regulatory risks. 
These include the following: 

Whether the contract is take-or-pay or take-and-pay, with 
take-or-pay being riskier; 

Whether the power is economic and needed; 

Whether there is a recovery clause for capacity payments; 

Whether there is a regulatory out clause that passes 
disallowances to the seller; 

Whether there are performance standards; 

Whether the utility has a say in maintenance and 
dispatch; and 

Whether the contract has been preapproved by regulators. 

In its standard offer contract, FPL has included an "equity 
adjustment" reflecting the adjustment to the equity ratio that bond 
rating agencies make. In including this equity adjustment, FPL is 
reflecting the cost, in the form of less financial flexibility, 
that is imposed on electric utilities with purchased power 
contracts. The adjustment to a utility's equity ratio for the 
effects of purchased power is made only for bond rating purposes. 
For regulatory and accounting purposes, the amount of equity and 
debt on the utility's books is the actual amount and is not 
adjusted to reflect the effect of purchased power contracts. 

The discussion of the perceived need for utilities to increase 
the level of equity in the capital structure to offset the 
adjustment made to the financial ratios by rating agencies and how 
this affects the overall cost of capital has not been specifically 
addressed. We note, however, that there are persuasive arguments 
on both sides of the issue of who should be responsible for the 
incremental cost of additional equity to compensate for these 
contracts. Given the terms of the recently approved Stipulation 
and Settlement (Stipulation) involving FPL, we believe FPL's 
current cost of capital includes recognition of this cost. 

n In Order No. PSC-99-0519-AS-E1 issued March 17, 1999, we 
approved the Stipulation entered into by FPL, the Office of Public 



ORDER NO. PSC-99-1713-TRF-EG 
DOCKET NO. 990249-EG 
PAGE 9 

m 

Counsel (OPC) , the Florida Industrial Power Users Group (FIPUG) , 
and the Coalition for Equitable Rates (the Coalition) to settle the 
issues raised in Docket No. 990067-EI. Provision 4 of the 
Stipulation caps FPL’s adjusted equity ratio at 55.83% for 
surveillance purposes. This adjusted ratio equates to an actual 
ratio of 65.1% as reported in the Company’s projected 1998 Rate of 
Return Report. 

We recognize the effect that purchased power contracts have on 
the utility’s financial ratios as calculated by S&P. To be 
consistent with the terms of the Stipulation approved in Order No. 
PSC-99-0519-AS-E1 which allows for the recovery of the “equity 
adjustment” through base rates, we approve F P L ‘ s  adjustment to its 
standard offer contract to recognize the effect of purchased power 
contracts and to avoid possible double recovery. However, while we 
are approving FPL’s request in the instant case due to the unique 
circumstances surrounding FPL’s Stipulation, the broader policy 
issue of who should bear the incremental cost of additional equity 
to compensate for purchased power contracts has not been addressed. 

Although the facts and circumstances in this case persuade us 
that this adjustment should be included in the Company‘s standard 
offer contract, FPL calculated its equity adjustment using a 20% 
risk factor. FPL subsequently represented that S&P assigns a 10% 
risk factor to its existing cogeneration contracts. Therefore, we 
find that a recalculation of the capacity payments to reflect an 
equity adjustment based on a 10% risk factor to be appropriate. 

111. Request For Variance 

P 

FPL’s request for a variance from the ten-year minimum 
contract term required by Rule 25-17.0832(4) (e), Florida 
Administrative Code is granted. FPL has demonstrated that the 
purpose of the underlying statute will be met and that it will 
suffer substantial hardship if the variance is not granted. 

A. Standard Of Review 

Section 120.542, Florida Statutes (1997), mandates threshold 
proofs and notice provisions for variances and waivers from agency 
rules. Subsection (2) of the statute states: 

Variances and waivers shall be granted when the person 
subject to the rule demonstrates that the purpose of the 
underlying statute will be or has been achieved by other 
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means by the person and when application of the rule 
would create a substantial hardship or would violate 
principles of fairness. For purposes of this section, 
"substantial hardship" means a demonstrated economic, 
technological, legal, or other type of hardship to the 
person requesting the variance or waiver. For purposes 
of this section, "principles of fairness" are violated 
when literal application of a rule affects a particular 
person in a manner significantly different from the way 
it affects other similarly situated persons who are 
subject to the rule. 

Thus, under the statute, a person requesting a variance or waiver 
must affirmatively demonstrate that the purpose of the underlying 
statute has been met. In addition, the petitioner must demonstrate 
that it will either suffer "substantial hardship" or that 
"principles o€ fairness" will be violated. If the allegations 
relate to fairness, an additional proof of uniqueness to the 
petitioner is required by the statute. 

As previously stated, FPL filed its Petition For A Variance 
From Rule 25-17.0832(4) (e) on March 3 ,  1999, in conjunction with 
its Petition For Approval Of A Standard Offer Contract. The 
variance requested by FPL is for a fixed standard offer contract 
term of five years instead of the ten year minimum contract term 
required by Rule 25-17.0832(4) (e) ( 7 ) ,  Florida Administrative Code. 
Notice of the variance request was published in Florida 
Administrative Weekly on April 23, 1999. The comment period 
expired on May 7, 1999. Comments in opposition to the Petition For 
Variance were received from the Florida Industrial Cogeneration 
Association on May 6, 1999. This section of the order addresses 
FPL's Petition For Variance, FICA's Comments on the variance 
request and FPL's Response To FICA's Comments. 

B. FPL's Request For Variance 

1. Purpose of the Underlying Statute 

In its Petition For Variance, FPL identifies the underlying 
statute implemented by the rule as Section 366.051, Florida 
Statues. According to FPL, the purpose of the statute with respect 
to cogeneration and small power production is to "encourage the 
growth of alternative competitive electrical generating facilities 

/-- which would use non-traditional fuel sources for power while at the 
same time ensuring that electric consumers are not harmed through 
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the imposition of such purchase obligations." (Petition For 
Variance, pgs. 2-3) (citing H.R. Rep. No. 1750, 1978 U.S.C.C.A.N. 
7797) 

FPL states that its Petition For Variance will meet the 
underlying purpose of the statute. FPL acknowledges that the ten- 
year minimum standard offer contract term provides both the 
purchasing utility and the cogenerator a reasonable planning 
horizon. Notwithstanding that, FPb-' s position- is that a five-year 
standard offer contract will provide economic incentive for the 
development of cogeneration projects and is more likely to ensure 
that consumers do not pay excessive costs for power purchased under 
the contracts. FPL opines that the ability of cogenerators to plan 
must be weighed against consumer protection concerns. 

2. Substantial Hardship 

FPL argues that a ten year contract term will create an 
unreasonable risk and burden for its customers. In support of its 

f i  position, FPL asserts that Congress is currently considering 
repeal of Section 210 of PURPA and there is thus uncertainty 
surrounding the statutory foundation for FPL's obligations under 
Rules 25-17.080 through 25-17.0832, Florida Administrative Code. 
In addition, EPL states that any cogeneration contracted for under 
the standard offer contract will not defer or avoid the 
construction of additional generating capacity. FPL's argument 
appears to be that a fixed five-year standard offer contract term 
accomplishes the purpose of the statute to encourage cogeneration 
but at a lower cost to the ratepayers. With the passage of time, 
the cost to the ratepayers becomes a substantial hardship. 

C. FICA' s Comments 

Florida Industrial Cogeneration Association members own and 
operate small qualifying facilities which generate and sell 
electricity in conjunction with their industrial operations. FICA 
advances three arguments against the five-year contract term 
requested by EPL. First, FICA argues that the Rule's minimum ten- 
year term correlates to the value of deferral pricing mechanism and 
is, therefore, necessary to effectuate the intent of the rule. 
Second, FICA opines that the purpose of the underlying statute will 
not be met if FPL's variance request is granted. Third, FICA 
states that FPL's basis for a variance request is inadequate. 

P 
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1. Value Of Deferral 

FICA's first argument is that the objective of the value of 
deferral pricing mechanism for capacity payments, a component of 
the standard offer rules, will not be met if standard offer 
contracts are limited to five years. This is so, according to 
FICA, because value of deferral pricing assumes that a small 
qualifying facility Will sell capacity to the utility over the 
projected useful life of the utility's avoided unit. The value of 
deferral methodology inverts the capacity revenue stream in 
comparison to what the utility would receive if it constructed the 
avoided unit and added it to rate base. Value of deferral payments 
begin low and increase over time. Traditional revenue requirements 
begin high and decrease over time. 

2. Purpose of Underlying Statute 

FICA's second argument is that the purpose of the underlying 
statute will not be met if the five year variance is granted. The 
underlying statute is designed to encourage cogeneration and small 

F-. power production. FPL's proposed five year fixed term guarantees 
less than full avoided cost payments to the cogenerator and will 
discourage, rather than encourage, cogeneration and small power 
production. "Granting the waiver (sic) sought by FPL would deny 
SQF's the opportunity to provide electric generating capacity to 
FPL. Such a result would be contrary to both Florida and Federal 
law which favors QFs as an alternative to the construction of 
generating capacity by electric utilities." (Comments, pg. 7 )  

3 .  Inadequate Basis 

FICA's third argument is that FPL has not adequately pled a 
basis for a variance. Citing the uniqueness requirement of Section 
120.542, Florida Statutes. FICA states that FPL's request is based 
on "vague allegations and unsubstantiated opinions". (Comments, pg. 
6) If granted, FICA asserts, FPL's request would defeat the 
underlying statutory objective and render the standard offer rules 
meaningless. FICA states that FPL's petition is more in the nature 
of rulemaking insofar as it undermines the purpose of the rule. In 
sum, FICA argues that FPL's Petition For Variance should be denied 
because the request defeats the purpose of the statute and does not 
satisfy the burden of proof. 

+ 



ORDER NO. PSC-99-1713-TRF-EG 
DOCKET NO. 990249-EG 
PAGE 13 

F 

D. Analysis 

1. Purpose Of The Underlying Statute 

The purpose of Section 366.051, Florida Statutes, to encourage 
cogeneration and small power production, is express. "Electricity 
produced by cogeneration and small power production is of benefit 
to the public when included as part of the total energy supply of 
the entire electric grid of the state .... " Rule 25-17.0832(4), 
Florida Administrative Code, implements Section 366.051, Florida 
Statutes. Pursuant to the Rule, standard offer contracts must 
contain certain minimum specifications relating to, among other 
things, the term of the contract and the calculation of firm 
capacity payments. With respect to the term of standard offer 
contracts, Subsection 25-17.0832 (4) (e) 7, requires: 

Firm capacity and energy shall be delivered, at a 
minimum, for a period of ten years, commencing with the 
anticipated in-service date of the avoided unit specified 
in the contract. At a maximum, firm capacity and energy 
shall be delivered for a period of time equal to the 
anticipated plant life of the avoided unit, commencing 
with the anticipated in service date of the avoided unit; 

Rule 25-17.0832(4) (e)7, Florida Administrative Code. 

The rule provides a range for the contract period tied to the plant 
life of the utilities' avoided unit by establishing a minimum and 
a maximum term for standard offer contracts. 

The ten year minimum contract term, while not a requirement of 
PURPA, was mandated by the Commission in order to assist utilities 
and cogenerators with planning. In Order No. 12634, issued October 
27, 1983, Docket No. 820406-EU, Amendment of Rules 25-17.80 
throuah 25-17.89 relation to coaeneration, the Commission addressed 
the issue of a ten year minimum contract term. The Commission 
stated: 

The requirement that a QF be willing to sign a contract 
for the delivery of firm capacity for at least ten years 
after the originally anticipated in service date of the 
avoided unit is important from a planning perspective. 
While a ten-year contract will not offset the expected 
thirty year life of a base load generating unit, we 
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believe it is of sufficient length to confer substantial 
capacity related benefits on the ratepayers. 

Order No. 12634, pg. 19. 

The purpose of the underlying statute is to encourage 
cogeneration. To promote cogeneration, investor owned utility's 
planned generation units not subject to Rule 25-22.082, Florida 
Administrative Code, are encouraged to negotiate contracts for the 
purchase of firm capacity and energy with utility and nonutility 
generators. Rule 25-17.0837(1), Florida Administrative Code. The 
alternative provision is standard offer contracts. Insofar as 
cogenerators' ability to enter into negotiated contracts is 
unaffected by the variance request, and a cogenerator retains the 
ability to enter into a five year minimum standard offer contract 
with FPL, FPL's request for a variance appears to satisfy the 
underlying purpose of the statute. 

2. Substantial Hardship 

An allegation of substantial hardship requires an affirmative 
demonstration by the petitioner of economic, technological or legal 
hardship. The hardship demonstrated by FPL is economic hardship to 
its ratepayers who may bear the risk of generation which is not 
avoided or deferred. We disagree with FICA's argument that the 
value of deferral payment methodology compels a minimum ten year 
contract term. First, value of deferral is but one of four payment 
methodologies provided for in Rule 25-17.0832(g), Florida 
Administrative Code. Second, the value of deferral payments 
compensates the cogenerator for the service provided. For example, 
if a cogenerator signed a 12 year contract, it would be paid the 
value of deferring construction of an avoided unit for 12 years. 
The cogenerator would not be paid the entire cost of the unit 
because of the finite term of the contract. Our current rules 
specify the maximum term as an option to the cogenerator with a cap 
on the avoided unit. 

3. Inadequate Basis 

FICA's argument that FPL has not demonstrated uniqueness, 
incorrectly applies the law of waivers and variances. Section 
120.542, Florida Statutes states that when 'principles of fairness' 
are alleged to be violated, the petitioner must demonstrate 

P application of the rule affects it differently than similarly 
situated persons subject to the rule. FPL did not allege that 
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principles of fairness were violated, therefore, the standard does 
not apply. 

In sum, FPL’s Petition For Variance from the minimum standard 
offer contract term is granted because it satisfies the mandatory, 
statutory requirements. FPL has demonstrated that the purpose of 
the underlying statute will be met if the variance is granted. 
This is so because cogeneration will continue to be encouraged 
through negotiated as well as standard offer contracts. In 
addition, FPL’s Petition For Variance demonstrates substantial 
hardship to its ratepayers. 

4 .  Conclusion 

FPL’s Petition For Approval of a Standard Offer Contract based 
on a combustion turbine unit with an in service date of 2001 is 
denied. The proposed Contract is not based on FPL’s next avoided 
unit, the regulatory out clause is inappropriate. FPL is directed 
to revise its proposed Standard Offer Contract within 60 days of 
the date of our vote consistent with this order and provide a 
minimum two-week availability. FPL’s requests for an equity 
adjustment and variance are granted as set forth herein. This 
docket shall remain open for final resolution of matters considered 
in sections I and I1 of this order. With respect to section 111, 
this docket shall be closed if no protest is filed in accordance 
with the requirements set forth below. 

Based on the foregoing, it is 

ORDERED by the Florida Public Service Commission that Florida 
Power & Light Company‘s Petition For Approval of Proposed Standard 
Offer Contract is denied. It is further 

ORDERED that Florida Power & Light Company’s Request For An 
Equity Adjustment is approved as set forth in the body of this 
order. It is further 

ORDERED that Florida Power & Light Company’s Request For a 
Variance is approved. It is further 

ORDERED that Florida Power E, Light Company shall submit a 
revised proposed standard offer contract and revised tariff sheets 
in accordance with this order on or before September 2 1 ,  1999. It 

f l  is further 
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ORDERED that this docket shall remain open for final 
resolution of sections I and I1 of this order and that with respect 
to section 111 of this order, if no protest is filed in accordance 
with the requirements set forth below, that portion of this docket 
shall be closed. 

By ORDER of the Florida Public Service Commission this 
day of Sewtember, 1999. 

I s /  Blanca S. Bav6 

BLANCA S. BAYO, Director 
Division of Records and Reporting 

This is a facsimile copy. A signed 
copy of the order may be obtained by 
calling 1-850-413-6770. 

( S E A L )  

RVE 
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SECTIONS I AND 11: 

NOTICE OF FURTHER PROCEEDINGS 

The Florida Public Service Commission is required by Section 
120.569(1), Florida Statutes, to notify parties of any 
administrative hearing or judicial review of Commission orders that 
is available under Sections 120.57 or 120.68, Florida Statutes, as 
well as the procedures and time limits that apply. This notice 
should not be construed to mean all requests for an administrative 
hearing or  judicial review will be granted or result in the relief 
sought. 

Mediation may be available on a case-by-case basis. If 
mediation is conducted, it does not affect a substantially 
interested person's right to a hearing. 

The Commission's decision on this tariff is interim in nature 
and will become final, unless a person whose substantial interests 

/? are affected by the proposed action files a petition for a formal 
proceeding, in the form provided by Rule 28-106.201, Florida 
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Administrative Code. This petition must be received by the 
Director, Division of Records and Reporting, 2540 Shumard Oak 
Boulevard, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0850, by the close of 
business on September 23, 1999. 

In the absence of such a petition, this Order shall become 
final and effective upon the issuance of a Consummating Order. 

Any objection or protest filed in this docket before the 
issuance date of this order is considered abandoned unless it 
satisfies the foregoing conditions and is renewed within the 
specified protest period. 

SECTION 111: 

NOTICE OF FURTHER PROCEEDINGS OR JUDICIAL REVIEW 

The Florida Public Service Commission is required by Section 
120.569(1), Florida Statutes, to notify parties of any 
administrative hearing that is available under Section 120.57, 
Florida Statutes, as well as the procedures and time limits that 
apply. This notice should not be construed to mean all requests 
for an administrative hearing will be granted or result in the 
relief sought. 

f l  

Mediation may be available on a case-by-case basis. If 
mediation is conducted, it does not affect a substantially 
interested person's right to a hearing. 

The action proposed herein is preliminary in nature. Any 
person whose substantial interests are affected by the action 
proposed by this order may file a petition for a formal proceeding, 
in the form provided by Rule 28-106.201, Florida Administrative 
Code. This petition must be received by the Director, Division of 
Records and Reporting, 2540 Shumard Oak Boulevard, Tallahassee, 
Florida 32399-0850, by the close of business on SeDtember 23, 1999. 

In the absence of such a petition, this order shall become 
final and effective upon the issuance of a Consummating Order. 

#-- 

Any objection or protest filed in this docket before the 
issuance date of this order is considered abandoned unless it 
satisfies the foregoing conditions and is renewed within the 
specified protest period. 




